
           

  
 

City Council Regular Meeting
 

Thursday, June 24, 2021
6:00 p.m.

 

Chandler City Council Chambers
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ

 

  



  

Our Vision
We are a world-class City that provides an exceptional
quality of life.
Our Brand
A safe, diverse, equitable and inclusive community that
connects people, chooses innovation and inspires
excellence.

Our Goals
City Council Strategic Policy Goals
1. Being the most connected City
2. Being a leader in trust and transparency
3. Maintaining fiscal sustainability
4. Attracting a range of private sector businesses
5. Fostering a contemporary culture that embraces unity
6. Being safe and beautiful

Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the
members of the Chandler City Council and to the general public that the Chandler City Council will hold a REGULAR
MEETING open to the public on Thursday, June 24, 2021, at 6:00 p.m., in the Chandler City Council Chambers, 88
E. Chicago Street, Chandler, Arizona. One or more members of the Chandler City Council may attend this meeting
by telephone.

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable modification or communication aids and services by contacting
the City Clerk’s office at 480-782-2181 (711 via AZRS). Please make requests in advance as it affords the City time
to accommodate the request.

Agendas are available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.
 

           

  

Page 2 of 14 Council Regular Meeting



Regular Meeting Agenda   

 

 

Call to Order
 

Roll Call
 

Invocation - Fr. Robert S. Aliunzi, St. Andrew the Apostle Catholic Church
 

Pledge of Allegiance
 

Consent Agenda
Items listed on the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion and one vote. If a discussion is required by
members of the governing body, the item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and
determination will be made if the item will be considered separately.
 

City Clerk
 
 

1. June 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes
  Move City Council approve the Council Meeting minutes of the Work Session of June 7, 2021, Study Session

of June 7, 2021, Special Meeting of June 10, 2021, Regular Meeting of June 10, 2021, Special Meeting -
Budget Adoption of June 10, 2021, Special Meeting (8:30 am) of June 14, 2021, and Special Meeting (1:00
pm) of June 14, 2021. 

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Page 3 of 14 Council Regular Meeting



City Manager
 
 

2. Resolution No. 5496 SRP 230kV Transmission Project Agreement
  Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5496 authorizing an Agreement with Salt River Project

Agricultural Improvement and Power District (SRP) regarding the location and under-grounding of a 230kV
transmission system in South Chandler and authorizing the Mayor to execute the Agreement; and move City
Council approve a General Fund, Contingency account transfer to the Water Operating Fund for $4.350M and
Wastewater Operating Fund for $10.150M, allowing for their fund balances to be spent for the needed
City utility line relocations. 

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Cultural Development
 
 

3. Purchase of Downtown Sidewalk Re-Coating Services
  Move that City Council approve the purchase of downtown sidewalk re-coating services, from Creative Paving

Solutions, Inc., utilizing the City of Scottsdale Contract No. 20PB033, in an amount not to exceed $200,000,
and authorize the City Manager or designee to sign a linking agreement with Creative Paving Solutions, Inc.  

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Page 4 of 14 Council Regular Meeting



           

4. Resolution No. 5493 Authorizing the Enhanced Municipal Services District (EMSD) Agreement for
Fiscal Year 2021-2022

  Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5493, authorizing the Enhanced Municipal Services
District (EMSD) Agreement for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 between the City of Chandler and the Downtown
Chandler Community Partnership, and authorizing the City’s voluntary contribution to the EMSD in the
amount of $118,804.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Development Services
 
 

5. Introduction of Ordinance No. 4974, ANX20-0004 Annexation and initial City Zoning of
approximately 5 acres located at the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Appleby Road

  Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4974 approving the annexation and
initial City zoning of approximately 5 acres located at the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Appleby
Road, as recommended by Planning staff. 

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

6. Resolution No. 5484 and Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 4975,
PLH20-0050/PLH20-0051/PLT21-0015 The Ashley 

  Area Plan
Move City Council adopt Resolution No. 5484 Chandler Airpark Area Plan (CAAP) amendment,
PLH20-0050 The Ashley, located at the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Appleby Road, as
recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Rezoning
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No.4975 approving PLH20-0051 The
Ashley, Rezoning from Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development for multi-family
residential (PAD/MF-2) located at the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Appleby Road, subject to
the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Preliminary Development Plan 
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH20-0051 The Ashley for site layout and
building architecture located at the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Appleby Road, subject to the
conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Preliminary Plat
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT21-0015 The Ashley, located at the southeast corner of

Page 5 of 14 Council Regular Meeting



Arizona Avenue and Appleby Road, subject to the condition recommended by Planning and Zoning
Commission.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

7. Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 4997, PLH20-0030/PLT20-0020 Schrader
Farms Business Park

  Rezoning
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4997 approving PLH20-0030 Schrader
Farms Business Park, located at the northwest corner of McQueen and Queen Creek roads, rezoning
from Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for a light industrial and office
business park with a Mid-Rise Overlay and a commercial corner, subject to the conditions as
recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Preliminary Development Plan
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH20-0030 Schrader Farms Business
Park, located at the northwest corner of McQueen and Queen Creek roads, for site layout and building
architecture, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Preliminary Plat
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT20-0020 Schrader Farms Business Park, located at the
northwest corner of McQueen and Queen Creek roads, subject to the condition recommended by
Planning and Zoning Commission.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

8. PLH20-0072/PLT21-0016 Chandler Airpark Technology Center (Staff Requests Continuance to the
August 12, 2021, City Council Meeting.)

  Move City Council continue PLH20-0072/PLT21-0016 Chandler Airpark Technology Center, located at the
southwest corner of Gilbert Road and Insight Way, to the August 12, 2021, City Council meeting, as
recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

9. PDP PLH20-0069 Chandler Corporate Center Lots 8 & 10 (Staff Requests Continuance to the
August 12, 2021, City Council Meeting.)

  Move City Council continue PLH20-0069 Chandler Corporate Center Lots 8 & 10, located north of the
northwest of Chandler Boulevard and McClintock Drive, to the August 12, 2021, City Council meeting, as
recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Page 6 of 14 Council Regular Meeting



Facilities and Fleet
 
 

10. Agreement No. BF6-910-3566, Amendment No. 3, with Arizona Elevator Solutions, Inc., for Elevator
Maintenance Repair and Service

  Move City Council approve Agreement No. BF6-910-3566, Amendment No. 3, with Arizona Elevator
Solutions, Inc., for elevator maintenance repair and service, increasing the spending limit by $250,000, for
a revised amount not to exceed $315,150, for the existing term ending August 31, 2021. 

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

11. Agreement No. FS2-928-4310, Auto Body Repair Service
  Move City Council approve Agreement No. FS2-928-4310, with Allard Collision, LLC, and Arizona Truck

and Coach, LLC, for auto body repair service, in a combined amount not to exceed $250,000, for the
period of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022, with the option of up to four one-year extensions. 

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Fire Department
 
 

12. Resolution No. 5489, Renewal of Agreement between the City of Chandler and Dignity Health to
provide Administrative Medical Direction to Chandler Fire Department Paramedics

  Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5489 renewing an Agreement between the City of
Chandler and Dignity Health to provide administrative medical direction from a base hospital for Chandler
Fire Department (CFD) Certified Emergency Paramedics as required by Arizona law.

 

Page 7 of 14 Council Regular Meeting



 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

13. Resolution No. 5491, Agreement with Dignity Health for Neonatal Resuscitation Education
  Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5491 Adopting an Agreement between the City of

Chandler and Dignity Health to provide required Neonatal Resuscitation Provider education for Chandler
Fire Department (CFD) paramedic students.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Information Technology
 
 

14. Purchase of Hardware and Software for Network Infrastructure 
  Move City Council approve the purchase of hardware and software for network infrastructure from

Sentinel Technologies, Inc., utilizing 1GPA Contract No. 21-02PV-08, in the amount of $93,886, and
authorize the City Manager or designee to sign a linking agreement with Sentinel Technologies, Inc.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Law
 
 

Page 8 of 14 Council Regular Meeting



           

15. Settlement in Jennifer Przybyla vs. City of Chandler
  Move City Council to authorize the settlement in the matter of Jennifer Przybyla vs. City of Chandler in full

and final satisfaction of all claims asserted without admitting liability for the amount of $300,000 and
further authorize the City Attorney to sign any necessary documents in such forms as are approved by the
City Attorney to effectuate the terms and conditions of settlement in this action.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

16. Settlement in Kathleen Renee Clum vs. City of Chandler
Settlement in Anthony Jose Cano, Sr. vs. City of Chandler   

  Move City Council to authorize the settlement in the matter of Kathleen Renee Clum and Anthony Jose
Cano, Sr.  vs. City of Chandler in full and final satisfaction of all claims asserted without admitting liability
for the amount of $1,125,000 and further authorize the City Attorney to sign any necessary documents in
such forms as are approved by the City Attorney to effectuate the terms and conditions of settlement in
this action.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

17. Renewal of Commercial Insurance and Services for Fiscal Year 2021-22
  Move City Council approve the renewal of commercial insurance and services with recommended

insurance carriers for FY 2021-22 to protect the City against financial loss in the total amount not to
exceed $2,308,258. 

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Management Services
 
 

18. Ordinance No. 4970, Levying Upon the Assessed Valuation of the Property Within the City of
Chandler.

  Move City Council to pass and adopt Ordinance No. 4970, levying upon the assessed valuation of the
property within the City of Chandler, Arizona, subject to taxation a certain sum upon each one hundred
dollars ($100) of assessed valuation sufficient to raise the amount estimated to be required in the annual
budget, less the amount to be received from other sources of revenue; providing funds for various bond
redemptions, for the purpose of paying interest upon bonded indebtedness and providing funds for
general municipal expenses, all for the Fiscal Year ending the 30th day of June 2022.

 

 

Page 9 of 14 Council Regular Meeting



 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

19. Agreement No. MS1-926-4312 for Emergency Environmental Response and Remediation.
  Move that City Council award Agreement No. MS1-926-4312 to Emergency Environmental

Services; GrayMar Environmental Services, Inc.; and Kary Environmental Services for emergency
environmental response and remediation services, in a combined amount not to exceed $150,000, for the
period of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

20. New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License Application for Ramen Hood Chandler, LLC,
DBA Ramen Hood

  Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval of the
State Liquor Job No. 149960, a Series 12 Restaurant Liquor License for James Xie, Agent, Ramen Hood
Chandler, LLC, DBA Ramen Hood, located at 1940 W. Chandler Boulevard, Suite 12, and approval of the
City of Chandler Series 12 Restaurant Liquor License No. 300794.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

21. Resolution No. 5494, Designating the Chief Fiscal Officer for Officially Submitting the Fiscal Year
2022 Expenditure Limitation Report to the Arizona Auditor General

  Move to pass and adopt Resolution No. 5494, designating the Chief Fiscal Officer for officially submitting
the Fiscal Year 2022 Expenditure Limitation Report to the Arizona Auditor General.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Mayor and Council
 
 

22. Employment Agreement for City Magistrate Patrick Gann
  Move City Council approve the City Magistrate employment agreement with Patrick Gann for the term of

July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2023, with an annual base salary of $170,881.08 for the first year, and
$176,007.51 for the second year.  

 

Page 10 of 14 Council Regular Meeting



           

23. Employment Agreement for City Magistrate Alexa Nolle
  Move City Council approve the City Magistrate employment agreement with Alexa Nolle for the term of

July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2023, with an annual base salary of $170,881.08 for the first year, and
$176,007.51 for the second year.  

 

24. City Attorney Employment Agreement
  Move City Council approve the City Attorney Employment Agreement with Kelly Schwab for the term of

July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022, at an annual base salary of $213,690. 
 

25. City Clerk Employment Agreement
  Move City Council approve the City Clerk Employment Agreement with Dana DeLong for the term of July

1, 2021, through June 30, 2022, at an annual base salary of $150,921.
 

26. Appointment of Presiding City Magistrate and Employment Agreement
  Move City Council appoint Alicia Skupin as Presiding City Magistrate and approve an Employment

Agreement for the term of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2023, with an annual base salary of $195,000,
and a three percent (3%) increase for the second year of the term.

 

Police Department
 
 

27. Agreement No. PD9-200-4038, Amendment No. 3, for Police Uniforms
  Move City Council approve Agreement No. PD9-200-4038, Amendment No. 3, with Skaggs Companies

Inc., for police uniforms, in an amount not to exceed $150,000, for the period of July 1, 2021, through
June 30, 2022

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

28. Purchase of Police Firearm Simulator Equipment 
  Move City Council approve the purchase of a police firearm simulator from VirTra, Inc., utilizing the State

of Arizona Contract No. ADPS17-152755, in the amount of $256,136.49, and authorize the City Manager
or designee to sign a linking agreement with VirTra, Inc.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Page 11 of 14 Council Regular Meeting



           

29. Agreement No. PD8-680-3892, Amendment No. 3, for Outer Vest Carriers
  Move City Council approve Agreement No. PD8-680-3892, Amendment No. 3, with Universal Police

Supply, for outer vest carriers, in an amount not to exceed $78,625, for the period of July 1, 2021, through
June 30, 2022.   

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Public Works and Utilities
 
 

30. Sole Source Purchase of Wastewater Membrane Modules
  Move City Council approve the sole source purchase of wastewater membrane modules, from SUEZ

Water Technologies & Solutions, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $300,000.
 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

31. Agreement No. WW0-885-4137, Amendment No. 1, with In-Pipe Technology, LLC, and USP
Technologies, for the Collection System Odor and Corrosion Control

  Move City Council approve Agreement No. WW0-885-4137, Amendment No. 1, with In-Pipe Technology,
LLC, and USP Technologies, for the collection system odor and corrosion control, in a combined amount
not to exceed $500,000, for a one-year period, July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

32. Agreement No. ST0-988-4175, Amendment No. 1, with Reyes & Sons Landscaping, LLC, for
Landscape Maintenance Areas 1 through 4

  Move City Council approve Agreement No. ST0-988-4175, Amendment No. 1, with Reyes & Sons
Landscaping, LLC, for landscape maintenance areas 1 through 4, in an amount not to exceed
$1,487,219.40, for a one-year period, July 6, 2021, through July 5, 2022. 

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Page 12 of 14 Council Regular Meeting



           

33. Agreement No. ST0-988-4194, Amendment No. 1, with Brightview Landscape Services, Inc., for
Revegetation, Storm Repair, and Maintenance of City Streets

  Move City Council approve Agreement No. ST0-988-4194, Amendment No. 1, with Brightview Landscape
Services, Inc., for revegetation, storm repair, and maintenance of City streets, in an amount not to exceed
$500,000, for a one-year period, August 1, 2021, through July 31, 2022. 

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

34. Agreement No. PW1-925-4350, with Mechanical Solutions, Inc., for Vibration Diagnostic Services
  Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW1-925-4350, with Mechanical Solutions, Inc., for vibration

diagnostic services, in an amount not to exceed $120,000. 
 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

35. Agreement No. MU0-962-4219, Amendment No. 1, with Cartright's Drain Service, Inc.; PM Plumbing
and Mechanical, Inc.; RKS Plumbing and Mechanical, Inc.; and TALIS Construction Corporation,
for Plumbing Services

  Move City Council approve Agreement No. MU0-962-4219, Amendment No. 1, with Cartright's Drain
Service, Inc.; PM Plumbing and Mechanical, Inc.; RKS Plumbing and Mechanical, Inc.; and TALIS
Construction Corporation, for plumbing services, increasing the combined contract limit by $500,000 for a
revised contract amount not to exceed $1,000,000, for the existing term ending October 31, 2021.

 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Discussion and Direction
 

36. Discussion and Direction to staff to include review of the Draft Non-Discrimination Resolution in
the Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Study Approved as Part of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget,
and Direct Staff to Engage a Public Process to Develop Recommendations for the City Council, as
Requested by Mayor Hartke

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Informational
 

37. Study Session & Regular Minutes of May 5, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission
 

Council Focus Area(s):
 

38. Special Event Liquor Licenses and Temporary and Permanent Extensions of Liquor License
Premises Administratively Approved. 

 
Council Focus Area(s):

 

Page 13 of 14 Council Regular Meeting



           

Unscheduled Public Appearances
 

Current Events
1. Mayor's Announcements
2. Council's Announcements
3. City Manager's Announcements
 

Adjourn
 

 

Page 14 of 14 Council Regular Meeting



ITEM  1 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. 21-014
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
From: Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Subject: June 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the Council Meeting minutes of the Work Session of June 7, 2021, Study
Session of June 7, 2021, Special Meeting of June 10, 2021, Regular Meeting of June 10, 2021, Special
Meeting - Budget Adoption of June 10, 2021, Special Meeting (8:30 am) of June 14, 2021, and Special
Meeting (1:00 pm) of June 14, 2021. 

Attachments
Minutes of the Work Session of June 7, 2021 
Minutes of the Study Session of June 7, 2021 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 10, 2021 
Minutes of the Special Meeting of June 10, 2021 
Minutes of the Special Budget Meeting of June 10, 2021 
Minutes of the Special Meeting 1:00 pm of June 14, 2021 
Minutes of the Special Meeting 8:30 am of June 14, 2021 



Meeting Minutes 

City Council Work Session 
 

June 7, 2021 | 4:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers Conference Room 

88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 

 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 4:00 p.m. 

 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 

Mayor Kevin Hartke      Josh Wright, Acting City Manager 

Vice Mayor Mark Stewart      Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 

Councilmember OD Harris     Kelly Schwab, City Attorney  

Councilmember Terry Roe     Dana DeLong, City Clerk  

*Councilmember René Lopez       

Councilmember Christine Ellis    

 

*Councilmember Lopez attended telephonically.  

 

Absent / Excused 

Councilmember Orlando  

 

Staff in Attendance  

Matt Burdick, Communications and Public Affairs Director 

Andy Bass, Community Services Director 

Mickey Ohland, Community Services Planning Manager 

Jeff Kratzke, Kimley – Horn Consultant 

Mike Svetz, PROS Consulting 

  

Discussion 
1. Presentation and discussion regarding the Parks Master Plan.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE called for a staff presentation.  

 



Page 2 of 11 
 

JOSHUA WRIGHT, Acting City Manager, introduced the discussion item and said this is the third time 

Council has had a touchpoint with this plan. Mr. Wright said in January 2020 and September 2020 and 

now they would be presenting final recommendations.   

 

ANDY BASS, Community Services Director, noted how much the public was involved in the Parks Master 

Plan update despite COVID-19. There was a lot of feedback from the community.  

 

JEFF KRATZKE, Kimley – Horn Consultant, presented the following presentation.  

 Parks Strategic Master Plan 

• Agenda 

o Public Support 

o Park Assessments 

o Levels of Service/Contribution Strategy and Equity Mapping 

o Strategic Direction 

o Questions 

• Project Website  

o www.planchandlerparks.com 

• City of Chandler Parks Needs Assessment Survey 

o Statistically Valid Survey 

▪ Only scientific and defensible method to understand community needs 

▪ Administered by mail/phone/web 

▪ Developed in partnership with the City  

▪ Methodology allows high return rate (25%-35%) 

▪ Total of 652 completed surveys, 95% level of confidence with a margin of error of +/- 

3.8% 

▪ Goal was 500 

• Public Support 

• Support for Actions to Improve System 

• Actions Most Willing to Fund 

• Park Assessments 

• In general, the overall impression of the Department’s parks are as follows: 

o Parks are clean, consistent and well-maintained 

o Good variety of types and amenities 

o Newer parks have unique character 

o More shade is needed  

o Minor drainage and erosion issues 

o Parking lots need of resurfacing  

o Restrooms are aging 

o Vehicular and pedestrian conflicts 

• Chandler HOA Parks 

o In addition, staff and the consultant team inventoried the City’s HOA parks and facilities 

▪ Over 800 acres of neighborhood parks were identified and inventoried 

http://www.planchandlerparks.com/


Page 3 of 11 
 

▪ Developed HOA parks provide 36% of the total of publicly accessible developed park 

acreage in Chandler 

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked why sports lighting and fields were not counted.  

 

MR. KRATZKE said they looked at all of the facilities offered and most of the facilities do not have lighted 

facilities in the HOA parks.  

 

MIKE SVETZ, PROS Consulting Consultant, continued the presentation.  

• Level of Service 

• Level of Service and Contribution Strategy Methodology 

o Level of Service population based standards are developed using a combination of local, 

regional and national resources including: 

▪ Current Level of Service and Utilization 

▪ Current Inventory and its condition ratings 

▪ Opportunity to acquire and develop/redevelop park land 

▪ Recreation participation rates 

▪ Prioritization of Community Need 

▪ Operational and Financial Sustainability  

• Trail and Conservation Park Assumptions 

o Population based standards are NOT developed for: 

▪ Conservation Park Acreage 

▪ Trail Miles 

o Conservation Park acquisition is based on resource location and opportunity to acquire this 

typology of park land rather than City population 

o Trail Miles is based on developing a connected network rather than City population 

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked if Veteran’s Oasis Park was considered a conservation park and if that was the 

only one that would fall in this category. 

 

MR. SVETZ said yes.  

 

MR. SVETZ continued the presentation.  

• Current Inventory – Parks and Acreage 

• Future Needs – Parks and Acreage  

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked what number was associated with full build out. 

 

MR. SVETZ said about 350,000 to show a projection far in the future and would be contingent on how 

the community builds out.  

 

MR. SVETZ continued the presentation. 

• Future City of Chandler Parks and Opportunities 



Page 4 of 11 
 

• Future Needs – Athletic Fields 

• Future Needs – Sports Courts 

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked if the recommended service level for one court was based on total 

population or age groups.  

 

MR. SVETZ said it is based on the primary age group associated with it for some specific amenities. For 

other amenities it may be all inclusive of the entire population.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked where they got that basis.  

 

MR. SVETZ said using the methodology and the demographic information that is broken down by age 

segmentation. Mr. Svetz said they have a good understanding of how many people are in the age group 

now and then what the projection is for the future.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked if this was an internal number to create these numbers. 

 

MR. SVETZ said this methodology is not quite an algorithm but it pretty close regarding establishing 

what that is. Mr. Svetz said they also take into consideration the current service level and meeting needs 

now and be realistic about the recommendations. 

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked if this algorithmic number is just applied in recreational groups across regions.  

 

MR. SVETZ said no, it is based on Chandler. Mr. Svetz said they take into account what norms are and 

use the community values and needs. Chandler is a balanced age group and would continue to be that 

way. Mr. Svetz said these service standards would not be the same for another City because their 

demographics are different and the way the community uses the parks are different.  

 

MR. SVETZ continued the presentation. 

• Future Needs – Traditional Amenities  

• Future City of Chandler Parks and Opportunities – Impact on Need 

• Equity Mapping 

• Neighborhood Park Map – City Only 

• Neighborhood Park Map – HOA 

• Neighborhood Park Map – Combined  

• Community Parks Map 

• Regional Park Map 

• Special Use Parks Map 

• Baseball Fields – Lighted Map 

• Softball Fields – Lighted Map 

• Multi-Purpose Fields Lighted Map 

• Outdoor Basketball Courts – Lighted Map 

• Tennis Courts – Lighted Map 



Page 5 of 11 
 

• Pickleball Courts Map 

• Ramadas Map 

• Off Leash Dog Parks Map 

• Playgrounds Map 

• Accessibility and Proximity Standards 

o Further service delivery analysis should be undertaken to ensure equitable access to parks 

and recreation facilities 

o Bike and Trails Master Plan 

• Strategic Direction 

• Areas of Focus 

o Improve Access to parks and trail and Maintain Quality  

o Increase Connectivity in alignment with Transportation Master Plan 

o Invest in Existing Resources  

o Create an Economic Catalyst  

o Ensure Operational, Environmental and Financial Sustainability  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked for more information on the economic catalyst piece. 

 

MR. SVETZ said when they talk about special use parks it has an opportunity to become more than just 

a single use park. It has an opportunity to provide multiple experiences and some of that could be 

athletic fields. Mr. Svetz said they need to determine the highest and best use of the park and complete 

an economic analysis to determine what the park could be. Mr. Svetz said from there they should 

determine to see if there is the ability to drive tourism through the park system.  

 

MR. SVETZ said feasibility studies are really the key part to making that happen.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART said Chandler does not have a strong tourism and asked if sports tourism was 

popular.  

 

MR. SVETZ said it can be, but you have to take into account if there is too much saturation in the area 

and that is where the economic impact analysis helps understand if it is worth doing.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said they have sports fields that bring in regional draws, but they are building a huge 

sports field in east Mesa. Mayor Hartke asked if there are niche type of economic drives that could work 

that aren’t being overcapitalized in the Valley. 

 

MR. SVETZ said the Valley is hard in that it is a very sport-oriented location in fall, winter, spring. Mr. 

Svetz said there are opportunities in the outdoor or adventure recreation. Mr. Svetz said they could do 

a request for interest to see the private development side of the equation. Mr. Svetz this could include 

ropes courses or ziplining and really take advantage of the nice weather. It is important to go through 

the process and see if it makes financial sense.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said cricket and badminton are popular and asked if those bring in people as well. 



Page 6 of 11 
 

 

MR. SVETZ said he was not sure but thought there were pockets in the West, but not like it is in Florida 

and areas of the East Coast. They can use the Master Plan and then see if there is a way to expand the 

reach and see what potential niches are. This is market definition and competition analysis which then 

sets the stage to make a decision on something like that.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART said that was not included in the RFP. 

 

MR. SVETZ said that was correct.  

 

MR. SVETZ continued the presentation.  

• Highest Priority Recommendations  

o Prioritize lifecycle replacement of assets in parks 

o Provide significant renovations at aging parks 

o Complete a renovation of Folley Park 

o Continue improvements to Snedigar Sprots Complex 

• Highest Priority Recommendations  

o Consider the development of an updated site-specific master plan for Desert Breeze Park 

o Continue to implement the master plan for Tumbleweed Park 

o Complete the development of planned parks (Lantana Mesquite Grove and Homestead North 

Parks) 

o Continue to be a regional partner in Sports Tourism 

• Other Priority Recommendations 

o Consider a pilot project of converting one athletic field to synthetic turf 

o Develop a Bike/Trails Master Plan in alignment with Transportation Master Plan 

o Conduct a sports tourism feasibility study to include current park assets and impact of new 

facilities being built in surrounding communities  

o Conduct a feasibility study and site-specific master plan for the redevelopment of South 

Chandler Regional Parks 

o Consider exploring options with private developers to meet park needs in north Chandler 

and other parks of the City as needed 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE said he thought it was a good and they couldn’t do it all but there are schools 

that have facilities as well. 

 

MR. SVETZ said in Arizona a lot of the campuses are locked down, but the schools do provide 

opportunities.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE asked about the tennis courts and what it would take to have major 

tournaments.  

 



Page 7 of 11 
 

MR. BASS said they do have major tournaments here and there, and there are three to four a year. Mr. 

Bass said there was a junior tournament where people from out of state and some out of the country 

came.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE asked if that was maxed out or if there was opportunity there to grow.  

 

MR. BASS said there is a balance between how many tournaments there are and ensuring there is access 

for the residents. Mr. Bass said they take any tournaments requested from the US Tennis Association.  

 

MICKEY OHLAND, Community Services Planning Manager, said they do have the ability to add three 

more courts there.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ said he thought there was further expansion than just the three. 

 

MR. BASS said there is a spot to the southwest that would hold three courts.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said there were a lot of comments when the courts were shut down during COVID-

19 so there is a large group of regular players.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART said he thought it was good to find a niche, but they still need softball fields, 

soccer fields, pickleball courts, and more trails. Vice Mayor Stewart said he loved the analysis to better 

understand the HOA parks, but they need to continue to work on getting more lighted fields for the 

kids.  

 

MR. KRATZKE said not all communities have what Chandler has as far as the extensiveness of the 

coverage. 

 

MAYOR HARTKE said it does seem that Hamilton High School and Chandler High School is fairly open 

for public use but a lot of them are locked down. Mayor Hartke said he wished there was a 

relationship with the schools like before when they were open about 10 to 15 years ago but that is 

not the case anymore.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE thought there was an opportunity with the schools and just like with the 

aquatic centers they should have the same for this as well.  

 

MR. BASS said he has been working on this for the past two years and they are starting to make some 

progress. 

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked if that was the school board to decide.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said yes, the administration has not been in favor ever since the Colorado shootings. 

Before then there were no gates or fencing.  

 



Page 8 of 11 
 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said there are also human trafficking concerns. 

 

MAYOR HARTKE said they are weak in indoor facilities. Mayor Hartke said there is Tumbleweed and 

some private solutions but asked if that is address in the study.  

 

MR. SVETZ said no, the RFP focused on the outdoor facilities. The next step would be a recreation 

master plan which would look at programs to directly offer or facilitate and indoor space. Mr. Svetz 

said they had conducted the Senior Center Study and there were some options proposed in there as 

well.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said they are heading in a good direction.  

 

MR. KRATZKE said there are always things that could be done better and using this Master Plan is a 

tool to prioritize and set the direction.   

 

MR. BASS said staff had an update on the lighted fields and there is funding for design of some 

softball fields.  

 

MR. OHLAND presented the following presentation.  

• Chandler Sports Fields  

• Field Map 

• Tumbleweed Park – 1995 

• Tumbleweed Park Master Plan Development 1998 – 2000 

• Tumbleweed Park Master Plan 2004/05 

• Tumbleweed Park Existing Development  

• Tumbleweed Park Existing Master Plan 

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked when the update to the Master Plan happened.  

 

MR. OHLAND said it is carried over through the years. Mr. Ohland said this is conceptual park specific 

master plan.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked if it could be baseball and softball fields.  

 

MR. OHLAND said yes, they want to make them multiuse because they do not have the land to make 

it sports specific.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked what the thought is for the top right area.  

 

MR. OHLAND said the original thought was to have a commercial recreation area where a private 

developer would come in to develop it and part of the revenue would help maintain the park. Mr. 

Ohland said they have been holding it to see what the best use would be.  

 



Page 9 of 11 
 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE said if they did something big it would be great but there would be parking 

issues for large events.  

 

MR. OHLAND said when they started developing the park and as events started to come to the park, 

they knew a day would come where there would not be enough on-site parking. Mr. Ohland said they 

are not there yet but once those areas are developed they would need to look at other parking.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE said he could see additional downtown events coming down there and 

suggested having additional events to put to use.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said they could bus many people from downtown to the event in a matter of 

minutes using the existing structures in downtown.  

 

MR. OHLAND said they have the infrastructure to make it happen and there is the railroad track that 

goes there as well.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE said they need to think about those things to get the big events at the park.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS said it would be great to have a holiday train. 

 

MR. OHLAND said there were thoughts of having something like the Desert Breeze train or something 

that you would not see at a typical park.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART asked about the full remodel at Folley Park. 

 

MR. OHLAND said nothing is in concrete, but the thought was that the aquatic center needs to be 

renovated and see if there is a possibility to move the softball fields to Tumbleweed. This would make 

Folley Park a more general park.  

 

MR. BASS said the aquatic center is driving the renovation and the parking lot has issues. Mr. Bass 

said that is what leads into the rest of the park.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ asked if the aquatic centers has had increased use since it was declining 

previously.  

 

MR. BASS said he would need to look at the numbers but has not seen a decline in aquatics. Mr. Bass 

said at three of the pools there are at least 1,000 people coming through every day. Mr. Bass said 

there is a waitlist to all of the aquatic programs. Mr. Bass said Folley Park is the least attended but it is 

an old pool so there is nothing really to draw people there compared to the other pools. Mr. Bass said 

the hope is to alleviate Hamilton and Mesquite Groves because those pools are overrun. Mr. Bass said 

the highest zip code that uses Hamilton is the zip code for Folley Park.  

 

MR. OHLAND continued the presentation.  



Page 10 of 11 
 

• Mesquite Groves Park Site Master Plan 

• Lantana Ranch Park Site Master Plan  

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked what was left at Snedigar.  

 

MR. OHLAND said Snedigar is built out, but the restrooms need to be updated and they need to 

maintain the baseball fields.  

 

MR. BASS said there are funds to design softball fields and they had waited until the Master Plan was 

done to move forward to ensure there was a need. Mr. Bass said they need three fields. Mr. Bass said 

it was originally to be built at Tumbleweed Park and asked if that is still the way staff should move 

forward.  

 

MR. OHLAND said it is a major project as they would also need to finish Pioneer Parkway and Ryan 

Road.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said Council has made promises to girls softball and thought they should move 

forward.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS agreed.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART said he wanted to know more and wanted to understand the demographics 

and the data. Vice Mayor Stewart said if the plan is to change Folley and move the fields down then 

yes but if it’s not the plan then no. Vice Mayor Stewart asked what the long-term plan was.  

 

MR. OHLAND said in the bond election the plan is to renovate Folley and the pool and move the 

fields.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said once they renovate the pool then it would encroach on the fields so 

they would have to be moved.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART said they need eight multipurpose fields and asked when and where those 

would go.  

 

MR. BASS said Lantana is the next area.  

 

MR. OHLAND said for most of those large pieces of land to built it and maintain it would be six years 

out.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said Lantana and Mesquite seem like those are the places they would go.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said the three would move to Tumbleweed.  

 



Page 11 of 11 
 

MR. BASS said the baseball softball fields.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS was in agreement.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE was in agreement.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ said he was good with moving forward.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said the direction was to move forward with the plan. 

 

MR. OHLAND said they would ensure baseball and softball would fit for adults as well.  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ROE asked if there would be three or four fields.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE said four.  

 

VICE MAYOR STEWART thought they could add a concession area between the fields.  

 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 5:27 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 

                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 

 

Approval Date of Minutes:  June 24, 2021 

 

 

 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Work 

Session of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 7th day of June 2021.  I further certify that 

the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 

DATED this _______ day of June, 2021. 

 

      __________________________ 

                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 

City Council Study Session 
 

June 7, 2021 | 6:00 p.m. 

Chandler City Council Chambers  

88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 

 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 6:00 p.m. 

 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 

Mayor Kevin Hartke     Joshua Wright, Acting City Manager  

Vice Mayor Mark Stewart     Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 

Councilmember OD Harris    Kelly Schwab, City Attorney  

*Councilmember René Lopez    Dana DeLong, City Clerk 

Councilmember Terry Roe  

Councilmember Christine Ellis  

*Councilmember Matt Orlando 

 

*Councilmember Lopez and Councilmember Orlando attended telephonically. 

  

Scheduled Public Appearances 
MAYOR HARTKE invited Vice Mayor Stewart to join him for the recognitions. 

 

1. Service Recognitions 

None. 

 

2. Proclamation - Military Mental Health Resilience Month 

MAYOR HARTKE read the proclamation and invited Operation Shockwave to accept.   

 

CARRIE WARFIELD, Operation Shockwave, said they do suicide prevention for veterans using 

complementary and integrative healing modalities. Ms. Warfield thanked Council for their support and 

said in Chandler there are 13,000 veterans.  

 

Consent Agenda and Discussion 



Page 2 of 6 
 

City Clerk 

1. May 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes  

Move City Council approve the Council Meeting minutes of the Special Meeting - Budget Briefing 

of April 23, 2021; Special Meeting and Study Session of May 24, 2021; and Special Meeting and 

Regular Meeting of May 27, 2021. 

  

2. Board and Commission Appointments  

  Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as recommended.   

 

City Magistrate 

3. Public Defender Agreements   

Move City Council to approve Public Defender Agreements between the City of Chandler, 

Chandler Municipal Court and Jared Allen in the amount of $50,000, Manny Jacobo in the 

amount of $50,000, Alex Gonzalez in the amount of $50,000, Laurie Grogan in the amount of 

$50,000, Scott Silva in the amount of $50,000, Michael Smith in the amount of $50,000 and Lynn 

Arouh (part-time) in the amount of $25,000. 

 

Development Services  

4. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4973 PLH20-0019 Commonwealth Lofts  

Rezoning 

Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 4973 approving PLH20-0019 Commonwealth Lofts, 

Rezoning from Agricultural (AG-1) District to Planned Area Development (PAD) for townhomes 

located at 699 E. Commonwealth Avenue, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning 

and Zoning Commission. 

  

Economic Development 

5. Agreement No. ED8-920-3876, Amendment No. 3, for Search Engine Optimization and Pay Per 

Click Services  

Staff move that City Council approve Agreement No. ED8-920-3876, Amendment No. 3, with 

Simpleview, LLC, for search engine optimization and pay per click services, in an amount not to 

exceed $75,200 for the period of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022. 

 

Information Technology 

6. Purchase of IBM Notes Annual Support and Maintenance Services  

Move City Council approve the purchase of IBM Notes annual support and maintenance services, 

from SHI International Corporation, utilizing the Omnia Partners Contract No. 2018011-02, in the 

amount of $93,694, and authorize the City Manager or designee to sign a linking agreement with 

SHI International Corporation.  

 

7. Purchase of EAM System Annual Support and Maintenance  

Move City Council approve the sole source purchase of EAM system annual support and 

maintenance from CentralSquare Technologies, LLC, in the amount of $92,921 for the term of 

July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022. 



Page 3 of 6 
 

 

8. Purchase of Oracle Annual Support and Maintenance  

Move City Council approve the purchase of Oracle annual support and maintenance from 

Mythics, Inc., utilizing Omnia Partners Contract No. 180233-002, in the amount of $300,165, for 

the term of August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2022, and authorize the City Manager or designee 

to sign a linking agreement with Mythics, Inc.   

 

9. Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, for Business License Portal Applications Managed Support 

Services.  

Move City Council approve Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, with Parsus Solutions, LLC, for business 

license portal applications managed support services, in the amount of $500,000, for the period 

of June 15, 2021, through June 14, 2022. 

 

Management Services 

10. License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License Application for V&S, LLC, DBA Brooklyn V's Pizza.  

Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval 

of the State Liquor Job No. 149186, a Series 12 Restaurant Liquor License, for Jared Michael 

Repinski, Agent, V&S, LLC, dba Brooklyn V's Pizza, located at 4991 S. Alma School Road, Suite 

12, and approval of the City of Chandler, Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License No. 301001. 

   

Neighborhood Resources 

11. Resolution No. 5483 Authorizing the Allocation of Fiscal Year 2021-2022 General Funds  

Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5483, authorizing the allocation of Fiscal Year 

2021-2022 General Funds in the amount of $1,087,344.23 and American Rescue Plan funds in 

the amount of $737,955.77 to various non-profit agencies in accordance with the 

recommendations of the Chandler Housing and Human Services Commission and staff. 

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS called for a staff presentation. 

 

RIANN BALCH, Community Resources Manager, presented the following presentation.  

• Process 

o Annual Allocation Process 

o Award Approximately 1 Million 

o Non-Profit Organizations Serving Chandler Residents 

o Utilize ZoomGrants 

o One-Year Contracts 

• Priorities 

o Populations in Need 

▪ People experiencing homelessness and/or housing crisis 

▪ Households with Low and Moderate Income 

▪ Seniors who are isolated or have low income 

▪ Youth who are isolated or have low income 

▪ People living with mental health and/or substance use disorders 



Page 4 of 6 
 

▪ People living with physical and/or intellectual disabilities 

o Areas of Need 

▪ Housing for all incomes  

▪ Behavioral health 

▪ Homelessness 

▪ Better communication of available resources 

▪ Transportation 

▪ Social isolation 

▪ Food security 

• Evaluation 

o Three subcommittees of the HHSC Evaluate Proposals 

o Criteria Include: 

▪ Address Priority Needs 

▪ Experience and Expertise  

▪ Past Performance 

▪ Collaboration 

▪ Community Involvement 

• Monitoring  

o Ongoing Technical Assistance 

o Agency Tours 

o Mid-Term Report 

o Final Report 

• Additional Opportunities  

o Award ARP Funds to Non-Profits Not Engaged in Annual GF Process 

o Grants from $5,000 to $10,000 

o Must be located in Chandler  

 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said she wanted to ensure the community was aware of this. Councilmember 

Ellis said the City is fortunate to have such great partners when it comes to social services and engaging 

the community. Councilmember Ellis asked how this process would be for those smaller organizations 

that are coming up and doing great work to apply. 

 

MS. BALCH said through ZoomGrants there is a comprehensive application that requires a lot of 

information. For the organizations that are just getting started or do not have as robust of a structure, 

the process would be simplified. Ms. Balch said they would put information out, and meeting with the 

organizations, and help them apply. Ms. Balch said staff is still working on the details of that process.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked what the timeline for the second part would be around July or August.  

 

MS. BALCH said yes.  

 

MAYOR HARTKE thanked Council for their support in helping a variety of people through the non-

profits to address needs that Council may not be aware of.  



Page 5 of 6 
 

 

Public Works and Utilities  

12. Project Agreement No. WA2108.401, with Professional Piping Systems, LLC, dba WaCo 

Contracting for the Small Water Valve Replacements 2021  

Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WA2108.401 to Professional Piping Systems, 

LLC, dba WaCo Contracting, pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC1702.401, for the Small 

Water Valve Replacements 2021, in an amount not to exceed $909,698.87. 

 

13. Professional Services Agreement No. ST2112.201, with Premier Engineering Corporation, for the 

Alleyway Rehab PM10 Dust Emissions Reduction 2 Design Services  

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. ST2112.201 to Premier 

Engineering Corporation, for the Alleyway Rehab PM10 Dust Emissions Reduction 2 Design 

Services, in an amount not to exceed $72,376.88. 

 

14. Professional Services Agreement No. WA2107.201, with Arcadis U.S., Inc., for the Hunt Highway 

Water Production Facility Ground Subsidence Mitigation Design Services  

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2107.201 to Arcadis U.S., Inc., 

for the Hunt Highway Water Production Facility Ground Subsidence Mitigation Design Services, 

in an amount not to exceed $115,594. 

 

15. Professional Services Agreement No. WA2108.451 with Ritoch-Powell & Associates Consulting 

Engineers, Inc., for the Small Water Valve Replacements 2021 Construction Management Services  

Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2108.451 to Ritoch-Powell & 

Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc., for the Small Water Valve Replacements 2021 Construction 

Management Services, in an amount not to exceed $80,450. 

 

Public Hearing  
16. FY 2021-22 Annual Budget and 2022-2031 Capital Improvement Program and Setting of 

Property Tax Levies  

1.  Open Public Hearing 

2.  Staff Presentation 

3.  Council Discussion 

4.  Discussion from the Audience 

5.  Close Public Hearing  

 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:13 p.m. 

 

 

ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 

                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 



Page 6 of 6 
 

 

Approval Date of Minutes:  June 24, 2021 

 

 

 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Study 

Session of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 7th day of June 2021.  I further certify that 

the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 

DATED this _______ day of June, 2021. 

 

      __________________________ 

                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 

City Council Regular Meeting 
 

June 10, 2021 | 6:00 p.m. 
Chandler City Council Chambers  
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 
 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 6:01 p.m. 
 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 

Mayor Kevin Hartke     Joshua Wright, Acting City Manager  
Vice Mayor Mark Stewart     Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 

Councilmember OD Harris    Kelly Schwab, City Attorney 
Councilmember Terry Roe    Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Councilmember René Lopez  
Councilmember Christine Ellis  

*Councilmember Matt Orlando 

 

*Councilmember Orlando attended telephonically.  

 

Invocation 
The invocation was given by Pastor Grant Brown, Cornerstone Church. 
 

Pledge of Allegiance 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Councilmember Roe. 

 

Consent Agenda and Discussion 
City Clerk 

1. May 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes  

Move City Council approve the Council Meeting minutes of the Special Meeting - Budget Briefing 
of April 23, 2021; Special Meeting and Study Session of May 24, 2021; and Special Meeting and 
Regular Meeting of May 27, 2021. 

 
2. Board and Commission Appointments  

Move City Council approve the Board and Commission appointments as recommended. 
 



Page 2 of 6 
 
 

 

City Magistrate  

3. Public Defender Agreements   

Move City Council to approve Public Defender Agreements between the City of Chandler, 
Chandler Municipal Court and Jared Allen in the amount of $50,000, Manny Jacobo in the amount 
of $50,000, Alex Gonzalez in the amount of $50,000, Laurie Grogan in the amount of $50,000, 

Scott Silva in the amount of $50,000, Michael Smith in the amount of $50,000 and Lynn Arouh 
(part-time) in the amount of $25,000. 

 

Development Services 

4. Final Adoption of Ordinance No. 4973 PLH20-0019 Commonwealth Lofts  
Rezoning 
Move City Council adopt Ordinance No. 4973 approving PLH20-0019 Commonwealth Lofts, 

Rezoning from Agricultural (AG-1) District to Planned Area Development (PAD) for townhomes 
located at 699 E. Commonwealth Avenue, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning 
and Zoning Commission. 

 

Economic Development 

5. Agreement No. ED8-920-3876, Amendment No. 3, for Search Engine Optimization and Pay Per 

Click Services  
Staff move that City Council approve Agreement No. ED8-920-3876, Amendment No. 3, with 
Simpleview, LLC, for search engine optimization and pay per click services, in an amount not to 
exceed $75,200 for the period of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022. 

 

Information Technology 

6. Purchase of IBM Notes Annual Support and Maintenance Services  

Move City Council approve the purchase of IBM Notes annual support and maintenance services, 
from SHI International Corporation, utilizing the Omnia Partners Contract No. 2018011-02, in 
the amount of $93,694, and authorize the City Manager or designee to sign a linking agreement 

with SHI International Corporation. 
 

7. Purchase of EAM System Annual Support and Maintenance  

Move City Council approve the sole source purchase of EAM system annual support and 
maintenance from CentralSquare Technologies, LLC, in the amount of $92,921 for the term of 
July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022. 

 
8. Purchase of Oracle Annual Support and Maintenance  

Move City Council approve the purchase of Oracle annual support and maintenance from 
Mythics, Inc., utilizing Omnia Partners Contract No. 180233-002, in the amount of $300,165, for 

the term of August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2022, and authorize the City Manager or designee 
to sign a linking agreement with Mythics, Inc.   

 

9. Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, for Business License Portal Applications Managed Support 
Services.  
Move City Council approve Agreement No. IT1-918-4343, with Parsus Solutions, LLC, for 

business license portal applications managed support services, in the amount of $500,000, for 
the period of June 15, 2021, through June 14, 2022.  



Page 3 of 6 
 
 

 

 

Management Services 

10. License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License Application for V&S, LLC, DBA Brooklyn V's Pizza.  
Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval 
of the State Liquor Job No. 149186, a Series 12 Restaurant Liquor License, for Jared Michael 

Repinski, Agent, V&S, LLC, dba Brooklyn V's Pizza, located at 4991 S. Alma School Road, Suite 
12, and approval of the City of Chandler, Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License No. 301001.  
   

Neighborhood Resources 

11. Resolution No. 5483 Authorizing the Allocation of Fiscal Year 2021-2022 General Funds  
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5483, authorizing the allocation of Fiscal Year 
2021-2022 General Funds in the amount of $1,087,344.23 and American Rescue Plan funds in 

the amount of $737,955.77 to various non-profit agencies in accordance with the 
recommendations of the Chandler Housing and Human Services Commission and staff. 
 

Public Works and Utilities 

12. Project Agreement No. WA2108.401, with Professional Piping Systems, LLC, dba WaCo 
Contracting for the Small Water Valve Replacements 2021  

Move City Council award Project Agreement No. WA2108.401 to Professional Piping Systems, 
LLC, dba WaCo Contracting, pursuant to Job Order Contract No. JOC1702.401, for the Small 
Water Valve Replacements 2021, in an amount not to exceed $909,698.87. 
 

13. Professional Services Agreement No. ST2112.201, with Premier Engineering Corporation, for the 
Alleyway Rehab PM10 Dust Emissions Reduction 2 Design Services  
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. ST2112.201 to Premier 

Engineering Corporation, for the Alleyway Rehab PM10 Dust Emissions Reduction 2 Design 
Services, in an amount not to exceed $72,376.88. 
 

14. Professional Services Agreement No. WA2107.201, with Arcadis U.S., Inc., for the Hunt Highway 
Water Production Facility Ground Subsidence Mitigation Design Services  
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2107.201 to Arcadis U.S., Inc., 

for the Hunt Highway Water Production Facility Ground Subsidence Mitigation Design Services, 
in an amount not to exceed $115,594. 
 

15. Professional Services Agreement No. WA2108.451 with Ritoch-Powell & Associates Consulting 
Engineers, Inc., for the Small Water Valve Replacements 2021 Construction Management 
Services  
Move City Council award Professional Services Agreement No. WA2108.451 to Ritoch-Powell & 

Associates Consulting Engineers, Inc., for the Small Water Valve Replacements 2021 
Construction Management Services, in an amount not to exceed $80,450. 
 

Consent Agenda Motion and Vote  
Councilmember Roe moved to approve the Consent Agenda of the June 10 2021, Regular City Council 
Meeting; Seconded by Councilmember Harris.  
 



Page 4 of 6 
 
 

 

Motion carried unanimously (7-0) with the exception of Consent Agenda Item No. 4 which carried (6-
0) Mayor Hartke declaring a conflict of interest.  

  

Public Hearing Item No. 16 
16.  FY 2021-22 Annual Budget and 2022-2031 Capital Improvement Program and Setting of 

Property Tax Levies  
 

Open Public Hearing 

MAYOR HARTKE opened the public hearing. Mayor Hartke said this next year the City would return to 
normalcy and provide residents and businesses the resources to thrive. Chandler’s commitment to 

strong financial policies, healthy reserves, and conservative forecasting kept Chandler in an excellent 
fiscal position throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. Mayor Hartke thanked Council and staff for finding 
innovative ways to guide us through the unparalleled times of the pandemic and we would continue to 

build upon that in the next fiscal year. Mayor Hartke thanked residents and businesses for their input 
in the budget. Mayor Hartke thanked the budget staff for their work.  
 

Staff Presentation 

DAWN LANG, Management Services Director, presented the following presentation.  
• Public Hearing 2021- 2022 Budget 2022 – 2031 Capital Improvement Program 2021- 2022 Property 

Tax Levy 
• FY 2021 – 2022 Budget  

o Moving Forward Together 

o Total Budget $1,058,074,338 
o 13.6% increase which includes the $36M in Contingency for the federal ARPA grant 
o Prior to grant appropriation budget was up 9.7% 

• Operating Budget Highlights 
o Slight reduction of City property tax rate and no change to Transaction Privilege Tax (TPT) 

rates 

o Anticipate Water, Wastewater, and Solid Waste rate changes pending results of Cost of 
Service Study 

o Budget maintains existing service levels while addressing policy goals from strategic 
framework 

o Adds funding for labor association commitments and general employee merit/market 
o Plans towards debt reduction: $22M in onetime funding for paydown of Public Safety 

Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) liability  

o Maintains strong reserves (includes 15% General Fund contingency reserve and $10M budget 
stabilization reserve) 

• 2022- 2031 Capital Improvement Program (CIP) 

o $1.27B Total 10-Year CIP 
o $369M 1st Year of 10-Year CIP 
o Council CIP Priorities: 

▪ Minimizing increase to property taxes 
▪ Maintaining existing infrastructure 
▪ Finishing planned construction of parks and streets 

▪ Addressing public needs 



Page 5 of 6 
 
 

 

• FY 2021- 22 Property Tax Levy 
o FY 2020-21 LPV  

▪ $3.243B 
o 2020-21 Levy 

▪ $36,329,729 

o FY 2021-22 LPV 
▪ $3.464B 

o 2021-2022 Levy 

▪ $38,538,200 
o +6.8% increase  
o 3.7% New Property  

o 3.1% New Appreciation 
o Levy Increase 

▪ $2,208,471 
o Tax rate reduction from $1.1201 to $1.1126 to reduce impact of LPV increase 

• Impact of Tax Rate Reduction on Median Value Homeowner  

 

Council Discussion 

COUNCILMEMBER ORLANDO said there are 15 new police staff and 15 police overhires, and he was 
very excited for this budget.  
 

VICE MAYOR STEWART thanked staff for their work and asked how much the budget was cut during 
the pandemic.  
 

MS. LANG said the budget reductions were about $20 million. Ms. Lang said if those were back in it 
would be about a 9.6% increase.  
 

VICE MAYOR STEWART said the budget increase seems high because of the reductions that were done 
the previous year, but it is a normal year.  
 
MS. LANG said yes.  

 
COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ thanked staff and said residents are happy with the value for the service they 
receive.  

 
COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said the budget process is tedious and thanked staff for their work and guiding 
Council through the process.  

 
COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS thanked staff for their commitment and is proud they put together a solid 
fiscally responsible budget. Councilmember Harris thanked Acting City Manager Josh Wright for his 

work on the budget and his leadership.  
 
COUNCILMEMBER ROE said COVID-19 was challenging and Chandler had the ability to have options 

during the pandemic because of their strong fiscal policies.  
 

Discussion from the Audience 



Page 6 of 6 
 
 

 

MAYOR HARTKE asked if there was any discussion from the audience. There was none. 
 

Close Public Hearing 

MAYOR HARTKE closed the public hearing.  
 

Unscheduled Public Appearances 
None. 

 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:19 p.m. 
 

 
ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 
                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 
 
Approval Date of Minutes:  June 24, 2021 
 

 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of Regular 
Meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 10th day of June 2021.  I further certify 

that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 
DATED this _______ day of June, 2021. 

 
      __________________________ 
                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 

City Council Special Meeting 
 

June 10, 2021 | 4:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers Conference Room 

88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 

 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 4:00 p.m. 

 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 

Mayor Kevin Hartke      Kelly Schwab, City Attorney 

Vice Mayor Mark Stewart      Dana DeLong, City Clerk 

Councilmember OD Harris     Alicia Skupin, Acting Presiding Magistrate 

Councilmember Terry Roe      

Councilmember René Lopez      

Councilmember Christine Ellis    

Councilmember Matt Orlando – attended telephonically   

 

 

Set an Executive Session 
1.  Personnel Matters--A.R.S. §§ 38-431.03(A)(1) – Annual Performance Review of City Attorney. 

 

2.  Personnel Matters--A.R.S. §§ 38-431.03(A)(1) – Annual Performance Review of City Clerk. 

 

3.  Personnel Matters--A.R.S. §§ 38-431.03(A)(1) – Performance Reviews of City Magistrates. 

 

Action Agenda Motion and Vote 
Councilmember Lopez moved to hold an Executive Session Meeting immediately following the Special 

Meeting; Seconded by Councilmember Roe.  

 

Motion carried unanimously (7-0). 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 4:00 pm. 

 

 

 

ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 

                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 

 

Approval Date of Minutes:  June 24, 2021 

 

 

 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Special 

Meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 10th day of June 2021.  I further certify 

that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 

DATED this _______ day of June, 2021. 

 

      __________________________ 

                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 

City Council Special Meeting 
 

June 10, 2021 | 6:00 p.m. 
Chandler City Council Chambers  
88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 
 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 6:19 p.m. 
 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 

Mayor Kevin Hartke      Josh Wright, Acting City Manager 
Vice Mayor Mark Stewart      Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 

Councilmember OD Harris     Kelly Schwab, City Attorney    
Councilmember René Lopez      Dana DeLong, City Clerk 
Councilmember Terry Roe  
Councilmember Christine Ellis    

*Councilmember Matt Orlando    
 
*Councilmember Orlando attended telephonically. 
  

Action Agenda and Discussion 
1. Resolution No. 5477, Adopting the Annual Budget in the Amount of $1,058,074,338; Setting Forth 

the Receipts and Expenditures, and the Amounts Proposed to be Raised by Direct Property Taxation 
for the Various Purposes for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22, and Adopting the 2022-2031 Capital 

Improvement Program (CIP) in the Amount of $1,267,887,520.  
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5477, adopting the Annual Budget in the amount 

of $1,058,074,338; setting forth the receipts and expenditures; and the amounts proposed to be 
raised by direct property taxation for the various purposes for FY 2021-22, and adopting the 2022-

2031 CIP in the amount of $1,267,887,520, as presented or amended after the close of the public 
hearing. 

 

Action Agenda Motion and Vote 
Councilmember Harris moved to approve the Action Agenda Item No. 1 of the June 10, 2021, Special 

Meeting; Seconded by Councilmember Ellis.  
 

Motion carried unanimously (7-0). 

 



Page 2 of 3 
 

Current Events 
Mayor's Announcements 

MAYOR HARTKE said Council had a work session to discuss the Parks Strategic Master Plan and the 

recommendations would be moving forward to the Parks and Recreation Board and then to Council this 
summer. Mayor Hartke said staff was given direction to implement the current Tumbleweed Park Master 
Plan and the next phase of development would include the construction of four lighted baseball softball 
fields. Mayor Hartke thanked staff, the consultant, and residents for their work on these 

recommendations.  

 

Council's Announcements 

COUNCILMEMBER HARRIS said Juneteenth celebrations would start at the Center for the Arts on Friday 
June 18 and a festival at Folley Park. After the festival there would be Culture Music in the Park with 
music and dine in the park. There are many events though the City and encouraged everyone to 

celebrate.   
 
COUNCILMEMBER LOPEZ said the University of Arizona is having an open house in Downtown Chandler 

at the University of Arizona Chandler campus. The event would be June 30 to learn more about the 
programs that are offered such as IT cyber, education, law and business. Tours of the Chandler Public 
Library would also be available during the event.  
 

COUNCILMEMBER ELLIS said donations are needed for the Operation Back to School drive by June 14 
and encouraged people to donate. 

 

City Manager's Announcements 

JOSH WRIGHT, Acting City Manager, thanked Council for their support of the budget and thanked 
staff for their work on the budget, as it is a huge staff effort. Mr. Wright thanked Ms. Lang for her 

leadership in keeping Chandler in the outstanding financial shape that it is.    
 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:26 pm. 
 

 
 
ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 

                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 
 
 

Approval Date of Minutes:  June 24, 2021 
 
 

 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Special 
Meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 10th day of June 2021.  I further certify 
that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 



Page 3 of 3 
 

 
DATED this _______ day of June, 2021. 

 
      __________________________ 
                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 

City Council Special Meeting 
 

June 14, 2021 | 1:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers Conference Room 

88 E. Chicago St., Chandler, AZ 

 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 1:04 p.m. 

 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 

Mayor Kevin Hartke      Kelly Schwab, City Attorney 

Vice Mayor Mark Stewart      Dana DeLong, City Clerk 

Councilmember OD Harris      

Councilmember Terry Roe     Staff in Attendance   

Councilmember René Lopez     Rae Lynn Nielsen, Human Resources Director  

Councilmember Christine Ellis    

Councilmember Matt Orlando   

 

 

Set an Executive Session 
1.  Personnel Matters--A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(1) – Discussion or consideration and review of applications 

of candidates for the possible appointment to the office of City Manager.  

 

 

Action Agenda Motion and Vote 
Councilmember Orlando moved to hold an Executive Session Meeting immediately following the Special 

Meeting; Seconded by Councilmember Harris.  

 

Motion carried unanimously (7-0). 

 

 

 

Adjourn 



Page 2 of 2 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 1:04 pm. 

 

 

 

ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 

                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 

 

Approval Date of Minutes:  June 24, 2021 

 

 

 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Special 

Meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 14th day of June 2021.  I further certify 

that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 

DATED this _______ day of June, 2021. 

 

      __________________________ 

                                                                    City Clerk 



Meeting Minutes 

City Council Special Meeting 
 

June 14, 2021 | 8:30 a.m. 

Mayor’s Conference Room 

175 S. Arizona Ave., Chandler, AZ 

 
 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Kevin Hartke at 8:34 a.m. 

 

Roll Call 
Council Attendance     Appointee Attendance 

Mayor Kevin Hartke      Dana DeLong, City Clerk 

Vice Mayor Mark Stewart       

Councilmember OD Harris     Staff in Attendance 

Councilmember Terry Roe     Rae Lynn Nielsen, Human Resources Director 

Councilmember René Lopez      

Councilmember Christine Ellis    

Councilmember Matt Orlando   

 

 

Set an Executive Session 
1.  Personnel Matters--A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(1) – Interviews, discussion, and consideration of candidates 

for Presiding Magistrate appointment. Candidates for consideration include Patrick Gann, Michelle 

Lue Sang, and Alicia Skupin. 

 

 

Action Agenda Motion and Vote 
Vice Mayor Stewart moved to hold an Executive Session Meeting immediately following the Special Meeting;  

Seconded by Councilmember Lopez.  

 

Motion carried unanimously (7-0). 

 

 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

Adjourn 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:34 a.m. 

 

 

 

ATTEST:  _______________________  ______________________________ 

                       City Clerk                                                   Mayor 

 

 

Approval Date of Minutes:  June 24, 2021 

 

 

 

Certification 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Special 

Meeting of the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, held on the 14th day of June 2021.  I further certify 

that the meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 

 

DATED this _______ day of June, 2021. 

 

      __________________________ 

                                                                    City Clerk 



ITEM  2 

City Council Memorandum      Government Relations & Transportation Policy  Memo No. 
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager
From: Ryan Peters, Government Relations and Policy Manager 
Subject: Resolution No. 5496 SRP 230kV Transmission Project Agreement.

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5496 authorizing an Agreement with Salt River
Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District (SRP) regarding the location and under-grounding
of a 230kV transmission system in South Chandler and authorizing the Mayor to execute the
Agreement; and move City Council approve a General Fund, Contingency account transfer to the Water
Operating Fund for $4.350M and Wastewater Operating Fund for $10.150M, allowing for their fund
balances to be spent for the needed City utility line relocations. 

Background/Discussion:
Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District (SRP) is in the process of expanding its
230kV transmission system to the Intel Ocotillo Campus to meet the power demands of Intel's planned
plant expansion. To meet the demand, SRP must construct new 230kV transmission lines from two
different substations in South Chandler. One project segment will connect the Intel Campus to the
Henshaw Substation located near Old Price Road and Germann Road. This project segment will
generally follow the Old Price Road alignment to the Intel Campus. The second project segment will
connect to Intel from the Schrader Substation located near Arizona Avenue and Ocotillo Road. SRP
examined various route alternatives from the Schrader substation and, in consultation with the City, has
identified a route that generally follows the railroad tracks east of Arizona Avenue from Schrader south
to Chandler Heights Road, then west to Alma School Road, then north to Lake Drive, then southwest
on Chaparral Way to Dobson Road before entering the Intel Campus. 

The City and SRP have negotiated an agreement to underground a 2.65-mile segment of the
transmission lines from the Schrader substation in order to minimize the negative impacts of new
transmission lines in areas that do not currently have any overhead utilities. Due to the fact that SRP's
standard of construction for the type of transmission lines proposed in this project is overhead, the City
is agreeing to pay the difference through a combination of the value of the rights-of-way being
contributed to the project for a perpetual easement for the transmission lines, moving existing
City-owned underground utilities, and payment through funds accrued to the City through the SRP
Aesthetics Fund Program. 

SRP has agreed that with the City's approval of this agreement, it will file an application with the
Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting Committee requesting approval of the route agreed
to by SRP and the City. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, the City will support this route with the
under-grounding portions. The parties have agreed to work with each other during the installation of the



transmission lines to minimize disruption to the residences, schools, and businesses along the corridor.
The goal of this agreement is to facilitate economic development while protecting Chandler residents
and businesses by undergrounding the majority of the new transmission lines and keeping overhead
lines within existing overhead utility corridors.  

Financial Implications:
Each year, SRP provides annual funding allotments to the City through their Municipal Aesthetics
Program to conduct aesthetic improvements to SRP water and power distribution facilities.
While aesthetics funds are held by SRP, the annual allotments to municipalities are calculated using:
the municipality's share of irrigation acreage, percentage of Salt River Valley Water Users Membership
within the municipality, the municipality's percentage share of total electric facility revenue, and the total
cost of electric system work accomplished during SRP's prior fiscal year period. The City has
received nearly $49 million from SRP for aesthetics projects since the program's inception in
1989. Although transmission projects are not typically allowed under SRP Municipal Aesthetics
Program rules, SRP will authorize a special exception through this agreement to make available a total
of $19.5M in program funds by using the existing fund balance of $7.250M and advancing up to
$12.250M in future aesthetics fund allocations for this project. 

The City will contribute to the difference in cost to construct underground transmission lines through a
combination of granting SRP a permanent easement for the underground transmission lines in City
rights-of-way for a value of $4.5M and use $12.5M of SRP Municipal Aesthetics Program funds accrued
to the City.

Additionally, the City will relocate City-owned water, wastewater, and reclaimed utility lines that conflict
with the underground transmission lines within the dedicated easement area on Chandler Heights
Road, Alma School Road, Lake Drive, and Chaparral Way for an estimated cost of $14.5M.
The remaining balance of $7M from the $19.5M in Municipal Aesthetics Program funds will be used to
reimburse the City for a portion of this work. The City will also seek additional funding opportunities to
offset the costs associated with the utility work through the State or other programs intended to help
support public infrastructure projects required for semiconductor manufacturing, but until this
information is known, the City must fund the difference of $7.5M.

Since this was not a project anticipated in the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), an appropriation transfer
from General Fund, Contingency (101.1290.5911) will be required to the Water Operating Fund for
$4.350M (30% of the cost) and Wastewater Operating Fund for $10.150M (70% of the cost), allowing
for their fund balances to be spent for the total of $14.5M.  After the receipt of the $7M in Municipal
Aesthetics Program funds from SRP to be deposited in the Water ($2.1M) and Wastewater ($4.9M)
Operating Funds, the estimated cost impact for the City utility line relocations will be $2.250M from the
Water and $5.250M from the Wastewater Operating Funds.  

Capital Account No.            Fund Name                           CIP Program Name     Dollar Amount
605.3820.6714.0.6WA688    Water Operating Fund           Utility Line Relocation   $   4,350,000    
615.3910.6813.0.6WW688   Wastewater Operating Fund  Utility Line Relocation   $10,150,000    
                                                                                                                    Total       $14,500,000

Attachments
Resolution No. 5496 
SRP Agreement 
Letter of Support - Sellers 



RESOLUTION NO.  5496 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

CHANDLER, ARIZONA, APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH SALT 

RIVER PROJECT AGRICULTURAL IMPROVEMENT AND POWER 

DISTRICT (SRP) RELATED TO THE ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION 

AND PARTIAL UNDERGROUNDING OF SRP’S 230KV TRANSMISSION 

SYSTEM TO SUPPORT THE INTEL OCOTILLO CAMPUS EXPANSION 

AND AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE AGREEMENT 

 
WHEREAS, on March 23, 2021, Intel announced an expansion to its Ocotillo campus in 

the Price Road Corridor, which includes two new fabrication facilities; and  

 
WHEREAS, SRP will need to add facilities to its 230kV transmission system to serve the 

energy requirements of the Intel Ocotillo campus expansion; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has determined that the agreement between the City and SRP 

relating to the additional construction and partial undergrounding of SRP’s 230kV transmiss ion 
system to support the expansion of the Intel Ocotillo campus is in the best interests of the City, its 

residents, and businesses. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, 

Arizona, as follows: 
 

Section1. The City of Chandler is authorized to enter into an agreement with SRP 
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.  

 

 Section 2. The agreement shall be in a form approved by the Chandler City Attorney.  
 

 Section 3. The Mayor is authorized to execute and deliver the agreement on behalf of 
the City of Chandler.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this ____ day 
of June, 2021. 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

CITY CLERK                                                           MAYOR 



Resolution No. 5496 
Page 2 

 

 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No.5496 was duly passed 

and adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
___ day of June, 2021, and that a quorum was present thereat. 

 
       _____________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 
____________________________ 

CITY ATTORNEY 

 
 

 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Page 1 

 

AGREEMENT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made between the City of Chandler (“City”) and the Salt 
River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District (“SRP”) (City and SRP are 
individually “Party” or collectively “Parties”) with an Effective Date of June 24, 2021. 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. City is a duly formed municipal corporation of the State of Arizona. 

 
B. SRP is an agricultural improvement district, a political subdivision of the State of 

Arizona.  SRP provides electric service to a distribution service area in central Arizona, 
which includes areas within City. 
 

C. On March 23, 2021, Intel announced a $20 billion expansion to its Ocotillo campus in the 
Price Road Corridor.  Intel’s planned expansion includes two new fabrication facilities 
that are expected to create more than 3,000 high-tech, high-wage jobs, 3,000 construction 
jobs, and 15,000 local long-term jobs.  Intel’s announced expansion is reported to be the 
largest single capital investment in Arizona history. 
 

D. SRP will need to add facilities to its 230kV transmission system by the third quarter of 
2023 to serve the energy requirements of the Intel expansion.  City and SRP agree that 
the successful development of the Intel expansion and the required new transmission 
facilities will be beneficial to City residents as well as for current and future economic 
development in Chandler. 
 

E. SRP will seek a Certificate of Environmental Compatibility (“CEC”) to construct the 
needed high voltage transmission lines in South Chandler, near the Intel Ocotillo 
Campus.  Exhibit 1, attached hereto, and incorporated herein by this reference, shows the 
general location of the existing SRP Schrader and Henshaw substations.  SRP will seek a 
CEC to construct a double circuit 230kV line from the existing Henshaw substation to a 
new substation, currently referred to as RS28, which will be located generally east of the 
Old Price Road alignment on the Intel Ocotillo Campus near the intersection of Dobson 
Road and Chaparral Way, as generally depicted in Exhibit 2 (referenced herein as the 
“north/south portion”). SRP also plans to include in the CEC Application (hereinafter 
defined) a double circuit 230kV line from the existing Schrader substation to the new 
RS28 substation (referenced herein as the “east/west portion”) as generally depicted in 
Exhibit 3. 
 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Page 2 

 

F. The transmission lines to be constructed from the Henshaw substation to the RS28 
substation and from the Schrader substation to the RS28 substation are collectively 
referred to as the “Project”. 
 

G. City and SRP wish to minimize the impact of the Project on Chandler residents and 
businesses and to minimize the potential negative impacts of the Project. 
 

H. City has proposed to SRP an alternative route for the east/west portion of the Project to 
avoid adding new overhead lines in established residential communities and has proposed 
terms and conditions through which City may reasonably contribute to reduce the cost 
and burden associated with undergrounding portions of the transmission lines.  
 

I. SRP will conduct a public process to determine possible routing options for the double 
circuit 230kV lines.  Through the process, SRP will develop alternative alignments for 
the overhead segments of the east/west portion of the Project in such a way as to 
minimize impacts on existing residential neighborhoods.   
 

J. SRP’s standard for 230 kV transmission lines such as those proposed in this Project is by 
overhead installation.  City as well as residents and businesses in Chandler are likely 
opposed to overhead installation for a portion of the Project. Accordingly, City has 
requested, and SRP is willing, to negotiate an agreement to reduce the impacts of the 
Project by undergrounding certain portions of the Project.   
 

K. Under some circumstances, SRP will underground facilities where other parties pay the 
difference in cost between the overhead installation and the underground installation of 
230 kV lines.  Under this policy and to minimize the potential negative impacts to City’s 
residents and businesses, City is willing to pay the reasonable difference between an 
underground installation and the cost of an overhead installation for the Project segment 
located from the Schrader to RS28 substations, as depicted in Exhibit 3.  City is willing to 
pay the difference through a combination of: (i) City’s grant of perpetual easements for 
the Project; (ii) relocation of existing City-owned utilities; and (iii) City Aesthetic 
Program funds. 
 

L. After examining various alternatives, City and SRP believe that the best route to 
minimize potential negative impacts to nearby residences and businesses for the Project 
segment between Schrader and RS28 substations, which incorporates an underground 
segment, is a route that generally follows the railroad tracks east of Arizona Avenue from 
the Schrader substation to Chandler Heights Boulevard, then west to Alma School Road, 
then north to Lake Drive, then southwest on Chaparral Way to Dobson Road before 
entering the Intel Campus, combining underground and overhead segments.  This 
alignment is generally depicted in Exhibit 3.   



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Page 3 

 

M. SRP and City recognize the significant uncertainty about future requirements for 
additional electric transmission in South Chandler as industrial growth continues. For the 
convenience of residents and to avoid additional disruption in residential areas, the 
Project segments located on Lake Drive and Chaparral Way will include construction of a 
second duct bank to accommodate future growth.  SRP and City will work cooperatively 
to address future transmission requirements in the area, including the potential 
completion of the second circuit and duct bank along the Schrader-RS28 alignment 
identified in Exhibit 3. The cost of future transmission infrastructure is not subject to nor 
part of this Agreement.    
 

N. SRP will configure the overhead segments of the Project for up to two circuits, at its cost, 
to enable future growth in the area.   
 

O. SRP will file an application with the Arizona Corporation Commission (the 
“Commission”) to seek a CEC for the double circuit 230kV lines and the RS28 substation 
(collectively the “CEC Application”).  SRP intends to file the CEC Application on or 
about September 27, 2021.   

 
AGREEMENT 

 
NOW THEREFORE, City and SRP agree that the preceding recitals are accurate and 
incorporated herein by this reference and further agree: 
 
1.0 Permitting and Construction of the Project. 
 

1. As set forth in this Agreement, SRP will seek permits for and will construct, if 
permitted, the Project in the alignments depicted in Exhibits 2 and 3.  SRP will obtain 
all necessary permits and approvals for the Project including, but not limited to, a 
CEC through the Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting Committee (the 
“Committee”) and the Commission. 

 
2. Consistent with this Agreement, City will support SRP’s efforts to permit and 

construct the Project as depicted in Exhibits 2 and 3, and will actively oppose 
conditions inconsistent with the terms of this Agreement, including with respect to 
interactions with the community, and by intervening and actively supporting SRP’s 
efforts before the Committee and the Commission and other permitting authorities.  

 
3. SRP will construct the east/west portion of the Project in the alignment depicted in 

Exhibit 3 including undergrounding from approximately the railroad tracks east of 
Arizona Avenue, west on Chandler Heights Boulevard to Alma School Road, north 
on Alma School Road to Lake Drive, west on Lake Drive to Chaparral Way, west on 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Page 4 

 

Chaparral Way to Dobson Road, and on Dobson Road to the Intel Campus contingent 
upon field verification by SRP of underground utilities as depicted on City plans 
presented to SRP.  In connection with the construction: 

 
a. SRP will work cooperatively with City to identify the exact easement for the 

overhead and underground portions of the 230 kV line prior to the completion of 
engineering design of the 230 kV lines. SRP will locate the underground portion 
of the Schrader-RS28 segment of the Project in the Chandler Heights, Alma 
School, Lake Drive, Chaparral Way and Dobson rights-of-way.  SRP will work 
cooperatively with City to identify pole locations on the railroad segments to 
minimize, as may be practicable, the proximity of the poles to existing residences 
subject to approval by the Committee and the Commission. 

 
b. SRP will obtain all easements at its expense that are not part of City right-of-way, 

except as otherwise provided in Section 2.0. 
 
c. To the extent reasonably feasible and unless alternative agreements are reached 

during construction, the portions of the Project not directly related to the 
construction of electric facilities will be designed and reviewed to meet City 
requirements for Capital Improvement Projects.  City agrees that City will review 
SRP’s civil plans for design and right-of-way permits within 14 business days 
after final and full submittal by SRP. SRP agrees to address City’s comments to 
ensure compliance with City’s regulations and standards.  The plans submitted by 
SRP will include detailed traffic plans, construction processes, and plans to ensure 
that emergency vehicles can access properties along the construction route 
including: 

 
i. Access to all adjacent land uses, including businesses and offices, along the 

corridor must be always maintained.  If the land use has two or more 
driveways, solely one driveway may be restricted or closed at a time; if a land 
use solely has one driveway, solely one-half of the driveway may be closed 
during business hours. 

 
ii. Any driveway closures will be limited to closure periods that do not exceed 72 

hours, Monday thru Sunday inclusive.  
 

iii. Any restricted access to a driveway due to construction activity within 200 
feet of the driveway must have a flagger provided by the contractor to assist 
traffic using the driveway during construction work hours.  Any work within 
300 feet of a signalized intersection must have a uniformed police officer 
present during construction work hours.  



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Page 5 

 

iv. Any open and unprotected trench area must be limited to the active work area 
by the contractor.  An active work area is defined as the area where the 
contractor is working or is scheduled to work during a given workday.  

 
v. Any open trench that is not in an active work area must be protected with 

either steel plates or temporary chain link fence segments over the trench.   
 

vi. Except during active construction, any open trench without steel plates within 
6 feet of traffic on a public street must have either concrete Jersey barriers or 
water filled Jersey barriers between the open trench and the traffic.  These 
Jersey barriers must be connected to the adjacent barriers as recommended by 
the barricade company.  

 
vii. SRP will coordinate its trenching and schedule the undergrounding of the 

230kV lines adjacent to the Chandler Traditional Academy on Lake Drive to 
minimize, to the extent reasonably possible, disruption to school operations. 

 
viii. SRP will construct the underground portion of the Project using open trench 

methods except in locations where it is technically infeasible.  SRP will bore 
under Arizona Avenue for the location of the two duct banks crossing Arizona 
Avenue. 

 
ix. SRP will, after a duct bank is completed and trench is backfilled with cement 

slurry, perform a T-top pavement replacement followed by an arterial slurry-
seal over the entire half-width of the affected roadway. Where trenching 
affects both directions of travel, SRP will slurry-seal each half-width of 
roadway a minimum of 200 feet beyond the extent of trenching.  City agrees 
to allow pavement cuts for the Project in pavement that was installed less than 
two years prior and will waive its right to collect pavement restoration fees for 
such cuts as permitted under Chandler City Code Sections 46-2.7(C) and (D). 

 
x. Except as provided in this subparagraph, City agrees to exempt SRP from 

seasonal lane closure restrictions to enable timely construction of the 
underground duct bank. Seasonal lane closure restrictions will continue to 
apply to active arterial street and roadway intersections. 

 
4. The underground portion of the Project described in paragraph 3 consists of a single 

duct bank containing eight (8) 8-inch, two (2) 3-inch, and two (2) 2-inch conduits 
encased in thermal concrete backfill. SRP will install a 2-cable-per-phase 230 kV 
conductor system with associated communication and sensing cables in the duct bank. 
On Lake Drive and Chaparral Way, SRP will construct a second duct bank of the 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Page 6 

 

same configuration.  The cables for the second duct bank will not be installed at this 
time.  

 
5. As part of this Agreement and the Project, SRP must not place any pole, 

infrastructure, or other obstruction that in any way compromises, interferes with, or 
damages the visibility or aesthetics of the City of Chandler monument and 
landscaping located near Queen Creek Road and Old Price Road.  
 

2.0 Financial Participation of Chandler   
 

1. Consideration for Project. As consideration for the Project and the undergrounding of 
230kV transmission lines for part of the Project, City will provide the following 
consideration as further described in this Agreement: (i) City’s grant of certain 
permanent easements for the Project; (ii) City’s relocation of existing City-owned 
utilities; and (iii) City’s payment by use of certain SRP Municipal Aesthetic Program 
Funds allocated to City. 
 

2. Easements. 
 

a. Permanent Easements.  After completion of the joint technical study and 
assessment as provided in subparagraph 2.2(d) and permitting of the Project, and 
on or before the date SRP issues its notice to proceed to its contractor for the 
construction of the Project, City will grant certain permanent easements to SRP 
for: (i)  the underground portion of the Project located in City right-of-way as 
depicted in Exhibit 3 (the “Underground Easement”); (ii) the overhead portion of 
the Project located in City right-of-way as depicted in Exhibit 4 (“Right-of-Way 
Overhead Easement”); and (iii) the overhead portion of the Project located near 
City-owned real property where City’s Water Reclamation Facilities (hereinafter 
defined) are located (“Water Reclamation Facilities Overhead Easement”) 
(Underground Easement, Right of Way Overhead Easement, and Water 
Reclamation Facilities Overhead Easement are collectively “Permanent 
Easements”).  City and SRP agree City’s grant of the Permanent Easements 
constitutes additional consideration for the Project and SRP’s undergrounding of a 
portion of the Project and agree that the fair market value of the Permanent 
Easements is Four Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($4,500,000). The 
documents granting the Permanent Easements will be essentially in the forms 
attached as Exhibit 5 (Underground Easement), Exhibit 6 (Right of Way 
Overhead Easement), and Exhibit 7 (Water Reclamation Facilities Overhead 
Easement) respectively.   
 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Page 7 

 

b. Underground Easement.  The Underground Easement will be 35 feet wide from 
approximately the railroad tracks east of Arizona Avenue, west on Chandler 
Heights Boulevard to Alma School Road, north on Alma School Road to Lake 
Drive, west on Lake Drive to Chaparral Way, west on Chaparral Way to Dobson 
Road, and on Dobson Road to the Intel Campus.   

 
c. Right of Way Overhead Easement.  The Right of Way Overhead Easement will be 

80 feet wide and will be located in City right-of-way for most of the Project. The 
Right-of-Way Overhead Easement does not apply to the portions of the Project 
located underground or to an overhead easement described in subparagraph 
2.2(d)(i) below located near, on, or that abuts City’s Ocotillo Water Reclamation 
Facility and the Ocotillo Brine Reduction Facility (collectively “Water 
Reclamation Facilities”). 

 
d. Water Reclamation Facilities Overhead Easement. At, near, or abutting City’s 

Water Reclamation Facilities, the Water Reclamation Facilities Overhead 
Easement will follow one of two alternative alignments: (i) east of and generally 
parallel to Old Price Road across City-owned real property where City’s Water 
Reclamation Facilities are located (“East Alignment”); or (ii) at the western edge 
of Old Price Road (“West Alignment”). Both East and West Alignments may 
overlap the roadway. The Parties will work cooperatively to select the permanent 
easement alignment for the portion of the Project abutting the Water Reclamation 
Facilities after the Parties’ reasonable review and consideration of a joint 
technical study prepared by the Parties at SRP’s sole cost.  

 
i. If the Parties select the East Alignment for the Water Reclamation 

Facilities Overhead Easement as provided in this subparagraph, SRP will 
relocate at its sole cost all Water Reclamation Facilities infrastructure and 
utilities necessary to complete the Project. The Parties will also work 
cooperatively and agree to a form of overhead easement: (i) the main 
purpose of which is an “aerial” easement and which includes “islands” to 
permit  poles and other related infrastructure to be  physically located on 
the ground; (ii) that minimizes the size and extent of any easement to limit 
SRP’s intrusion into and conflicting use of City’s Water Reclamation 
Facilities; (iii) that permits City the full and beneficial use of the easement 
where City’s use does not unreasonably interfere or conflict with SRP’s 
transmission lines; and (iv) this overhead easement (80 feet wide in total) 
extends 50 feet west over Old Price Road right-of-way and a maximum of 
30 feet east over the City-owned parcel for the Water Reclamation 
Facilities. These easement limits are measured from the eastern right-of-
way boundary for Old Price Road. City will grant the Water Reclamation 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Page 8 

 

Facilities Overhead Easement in a form substantially similar to Exhibit 7 
attached. 

 
ii. If the Parties select the West Alignment, City will grant SRP a Right-of-

Way Overhead Easement in Old Price Road and a 30-foot wide (as 
measured from the eastern right-of-way boundary for Old Price Road) 
temporary construction easement in the form attached as Exhibit 9 on the 
east side of Old Price Road for the duration of the Project.  City and SRP 
will work cooperatively to amend the form of easement attached to reflect 
the temporary need.       
 

3. Aesthetics Funds and Utility Relocations 
 

a. Upon execution of this Agreement, City will contribute through commitment of 
its SRP Municipal Aesthetics Program allocated funds, a total not-to-exceed 
amount of Nineteen Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($19,500,000) as 
follows: 
 

i. Seven Million Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($7,250,000) from 
currently available aesthetics funds.  

 
ii. A not-to-exceed amount of Twelve Million Two Hundred Fifty Thousand 

Dollars $12,250,00) in Aesthetics Advanced Funding from City’s future 
aesthetics allocations.   City’s future annual allocations will be applied as 
payment towards the advanced funding amount until the advanced funding 
balance is repaid in full.  Based on City’s average annual Aesthetics Program 
allocations, the Parties anticipate that City will be able to repay the Aesthetics 
Advanced Funding balance within six (6) years of the Effective Date. 

 
b. City's Nineteen Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($19,500,000) of 

Aesthetics Funds will be applied as follows: 
 

i. City will fund the cost difference between overhead and underground 
construction of the transmission lines (without consideration of the cost for 
moving utilities as discussed in subparagraph 2(b)(ii) below) through City’s 
SRP Municipal Aesthetics Program allocated funds.  SRP and City agree that 
such cost difference (net of the fair market value of the permanent easements) 
is Twelve Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($12,500,000).   

 
ii. For the portion of the Project to be undergrounded on Chandler Heights, Alma 

School, Lake Drive, Chaparral Way and Dobson roads within the dedicated 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Page 9 

 

easement area, as depicted in Exhibit 3, City will, at City’s expense, relocate 
or abandon existing City-owned underground utilities as may be necessary to 
provide to SRP an easement of approximately 35 feet in width, which is clear 
of City-owned underground utilities and obstructions. Where no feasible 
alternative exists, utility lines will be permitted to cross over SRP’s 230kV 
lines in City right-of-way. City may apply City’s committed Aesthetics 
Program Funds allocation in an amount not-to-exceed Seven Million Dollars 
($7,000,000) to reimburse City for City’s underground utility relocation costs 
associated with the Project. City and SRP mutually agree to locate 
underground utilities in City right-of-way to minimize the need to relocate 
private facilities and obstructions. City will not be responsible to relocate 
utilities not owned by City. All City-owned underground utilities and 
obstructions will be cleared or abandoned in place no later than twelve (12) 
months following final approval of the Project CEC. City is responsible for 
City’s underground utility relocation costs greater than Seven Million Dollars 
($7,000,000.00).  

 
c. Reimbursement for underground utility relocations cost applies solely to like-for-

like relocations and excludes any form of betterment to City’s utilities.  
 

d. SRP will issue a purchase order to City in the amount of Seven Million Dollars 
($7,000,000) for future payment of City underground utility relocation costs. 
Upon accumulation of City’s underground utility relocation costs up to the 
amount described in subparagraph 2(b)(ii) above, City will submit a single 
invoice to SRP for reimbursement.  The invoice will include sufficient auditable 
documentation of City’s costs to demonstrate the costs incurred are those 
necessary to relocate City's underground utilities in support of this Project. 
Documentation will include contractor and vendor invoices and payment(s) made 
by City to such contractors and vendors. Vendor and contractor invoices will 
reference scope documents sufficient to demonstrate the costs are associated with 
City underground utility relocation costs. City proof of payment is required for 
consideration of reimbursement from City’s Aesthetics Funds.   
 

e. To make the Seven Million Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($7,250,000) in 
Aesthetic Funds available for the Project, City agrees City will not seek Aesthetic 
Funds for current (as of July 1, 2021) or future projects that are eligible for 
Aesthetic Funds until the Advanced Funding balance is repaid in full.  
 

f. SRP will not require City to utilize City’s Aesthetics Funds to repay the Seven 
Hundred Two Thousand One Hundred Sixty Dollars and Seventy-Eight Cents 
($702,160.78) in previously incurred SRP design costs associated with the 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Page 10 

 

remaining canceled 12kV distribution projects that resulted from the Price Road 
Corridor agreement as listed in Exhibit 8.  

 
3.0 Henshaw to RS28 230kV Lines  
 

SRP agrees that the double circuit 230kv line from the Henshaw substation to the Intel 
property will be located on the Old Price Road alignment, subject to approval by the 
Commission, if there are no obstructions that prevent standard overhead construction 
techniques from being utilized at the time the line is to be built and the right of way is 
available at a cost comparable to other installation alternatives.  City agrees to support the 
Old Price Road route with all community stakeholders and landowners along the route. 

 
4.0 Agreement Term 
 

This Agreement begins on the Effective Date and will have a term that ends on 
completion of Project construction and payment by Chandler as set forth in this 
Agreement. 

 
5.0 Additional Provisions 
 

1. With this Project, SRP is making a one-time exception to its Municipal Aesthetics 
Fund policies to fund 230kV undergrounding costs and utility relocation costs 
incurred by City. SRP makes this exception recognizing underground 230kV 
installations have limited flexibility to avoid existing utilities. SRP and City recognize 
the unique technical constraints applicable to this Project. The waiver of policies by 
either party under this Agreement and Project solely applies to this Agreement and 
Project and does not constitute a waiver of or change to either party's ongoing 
policies.   

 
2. This Agreement and the exception to SRP’s Municipal Aesthetics Fund policies are 

subject to approval by its Board of Directors. This Agreement is subject to the 
approval the Chandler City Council and conditioned on the approval of the Project 
CEC by the Commission. 
 

3. Notices under this Agreement may be sent by email, US Mail, or hand delivery to: 
 

If to City:   
City of Chandler, Attn:  City Manager  
Post Office Box 4008, MS 605 
Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 
Email:  josh.wright@chandleraz.gov 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Page 11 

 

With a copy to:  
Chandler City Attorney Office 
Attn.:  Chandler City Attorney  
Post Office Box 4008, MS 602  
Chandler, AZ 85244-4008 
Email: legal.notices@chandleraz.gov 
 
If to SRP:   
Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District 
Attn:  Senior Director Power Delivery 
1500 North Mill Avenue 
P.O. Box 52025 
Phoenix, Arizona 85072 
Email: Chris.janick@srpnet.com 
 
With a copy to:  
Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement and Power District 
Attn:  Chief Legal Executive 
1500 North Mill Avenue 
P.O. Box 52025 
Phoenix, Arizona 85072 
Email: Michael.o’connor@srpnet.com 

 
4. If any provision of this Agreement is declared void or unenforceable, such provision 

will be deemed severed from this Agreement and this Agreement will otherwise 
remain in full force and effect.  Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, however, 
this Agreement will retroactively be deemed reformed to the extent reasonably 
possible in such a manner so that the reformed Agreement provides essentially the 
same rights and benefits (economic and otherwise) to City and SRP as if such 
severance and reformation were not required.  City and SRP further agree, in such 
circumstances, to do all acts and to execute all amendments, instruments, and 
consents necessary to accomplish and to give effect to the purposes of this 
Agreement, as reformed.  If the Agreement cannot be retroactively reformed in such a 
way that it provides essentially the same rights and benefits to City and SRP then 
either City or SRP may terminate the Agreement without further rights or liabilities to 
the other than those that expressly survive termination. 

 
5. In the event it becomes necessary for either City or SRP to employ legal counsel or to 

bring an action at law or other proceedings for the other party’s material breach of the 
terms, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement, the non-prevailing party will pay 
the prevailing party's reasonable expenses, including, but not limited to, expert 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Page 12 

 

witness fees, court costs, litigation and appeal expenses, and reasonable attorney fees 
incurred because of the material breach. 

 
6. This Agreement and all exhibits thereto constitute the entire agreement between City 

and SRP regarding its subject matter.  All prior and contemporaneous agreements, 
representations, and understandings of City and SRP, oral or written, are hereby 
superseded and merged herein.  In the event of a conflict between the text of this 
Agreement and the attached or incorporated Exhibits, the text of this Agreement will 
control.  A conflict among the incorporated Exhibits will be resolved by the more 
specific Exhibit over the more general Exhibit unless the context explicitly requires 
otherwise.  

 
Exhibit 1 – Schrader and Henshaw Substation Existing Location 
Exhibit 2 – 230 kV transmission line alignment Henshaw to RS28 (north/south 

portion)  
Exhibit 3 – 230 kV transmission line alignment Schrader to RS28 (east/west portion)  
Exhibit 4 – Depiction of Particular Permanent Easement  
Exhibit 5 – Permanent Underground Easement form  
Exhibit 6 – Permanent Right-of-Way Overhead Easement form 
Exhibit 7 – Permanent Water Reclamation Facilities Overhead Easement form 
Exhibit 8 -- Remaining Canceled 12kV Distribution Projects from the Price Road 

Corridor Agreement. 
Exhibit 9 – Temporary Construction Easement form (if necessary, to construct West 

Alignment)  
 

7. The descriptive headings of the paragraphs of this Agreement are inserted for 
convenience only and shall not control or affect the meaning or construction of any of 
the provisions hereof. 

 
8. Arizona Revised Statutes sec. 38-511 applies to this Agreement.   
 

Signed with an Effective Date of June 24, 2021. 
 
Salt River Project Agricultural Improvement  
and Power District 
 
 
____________________________________   
By _________________  
Its _________________ 
 



 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
Page 13 

 

Attest: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
John Felty 
Corporate Secretary 
 
City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation 
 
 
_______________________________________  
By Mayor Kevin Hartke 
Mayor 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________________  
By ____________________ 
City Clerk 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
________________________________________ 
By City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Exhibit 1 
Schrader and Henshaw Substation Existing Location 

  



! ! ! !

!

!

!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! !!

!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!!

!!!

!!!!!
!

!!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! !

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

! ! ! !

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!! !!!

!

!

!

!
! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! !

!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! ! !

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

_̂

_̂

§̈¦10

Hunt HwyDo
bs

on
 R

d

Chandler Heights Rd

Queen Creek Rd

Germann Rd

Ocotillo Rd

Al
ma

 Sc
ho

ol 
Rd

Riggs Rd

UV587

UV87

UV202

Gila River
Indian Community

Gila River
Memorial Airport

Chandler
Municipal

Airport

PINAL COUNTY

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d

MARICOPA COUNTY

Riggs Rd

Pr
ice

 R
d

Queen Creek Rd

Do
bs

on
 R

d

Al
ma

 Sc
ho

ol 
Rd

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d

UV87

Ol
d P

ric
e R

d

HENSHAW
SUBSTATION

SCHRADER
SUBSTATION

RS-28

Co
op

er 
Rd

CHANDLER

Legend

Author:  sjwDate: 6.11.21

Map Extent: Maricopa & Pinal County, AZ

HIGH-TECH
INTERCONNECTION PROJECT (HIP)

Exhibit 1 Schrader and Henshaw
Substation Existing Location

°

State Plane Coordinate System
NAD 83, Arizona Central

Linear Unit:  Foot US

0 0.25 0.5 0.75 1

Miles

! ! !

! ! !

Existing 69kV

Existing 230kV

Existing Substation_̂
RS-28 Site

Underground Route

Node (Origin or Terminus)

County Boundary

Interstate or State Highway

Railroad

Jurisdictional Land Ownership

Gila River Indian Community

Canal

Overhead Route Options

Overhead Alternative Route
     Option



Exhibit 2 
230 kV transmission line alignment Henshaw to RS28 (north/south portion)   



!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! !
!

!
!

!

!!!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!!!

! ! ! ! ! !

!!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! !

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!!

!

_̂

§̈¦10
Chandler Heights Rd

Queen Creek Rd

Germann Rd

Ocotillo Rd

Gila River
Indian Community

Gila River
Memorial Airport

Pr
ice

 R
d

Queen Creek Rd

Do
bs

on
 R

d

Al
ma

 Sc
ho

ol 
Rd

Ol
d P

ric
e R

d

HENSHAW
SUBSTATION

RS-28

CHANDLER

Al
ma

 Sc
ho

ol 
Rd

Legend

Author:  sjwDate: 6.11.21

Map Extent: Maricopa & Pinal County, AZ

HIGH-TECH
INTERCONNECTION PROJECT (HIP)
Exhibit 2 230 kV Transmission Line

Alignment Henshaw to RS-28
(North/South Portion)

°

State Plane Coordinate System
NAD 83, Arizona Central

Linear Unit:  Foot US

0 0.25 0.5 0.75

Miles

! ! ! Existing 69kV

Existing Substation_̂
RS-28 Site

Node (Origin or Terminus)

Interstate

Jurisdictional Land Ownership

Gila River Indian Community

Henshaw to RS-28 Overhead
     Route



Exhibit 3 
230 kV transmission line alignment Schrader to RS28 (east/west portion) 

  



! ! ! ! ! !

!

!

!

!

!!!!

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

! !
!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!!!!

!

! !!

!!!
!!!!!!

!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! !

!

!
!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

! ! ! ! ! !

!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!!!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!!!
!!!!

_̂

Do
bs

on
 R

d

Chandler Heights Rd

Queen Creek Rd

Ocotillo Rd

Riggs Rd

UV87

Gila River
Indian

Community

Gila River
Memorial Airport

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d

Riggs Rd

Pr
ice

 R
d

Do
bs

on
 R

d

Al
ma

 Sc
ho

ol 
Rd

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d

Ol
d P

ric
e R

d

SCHRADER
SUBSTATION

RS-28

Al
ma

 Sc
ho

ol 
Rd

Queen Creek Rd
CHANDLER

Legend

Author:  sjwDate: 6.11.21

Map Extent: Maricopa & Pinal County, AZ

HIGH-TECH
INTERCONNECTION PROJECT (HIP)
Exhibit 3 230 kV Transmission Line

Alignment Schrader to RS-28
(East/West Portion)

°

State Plane Coordinate System
NAD 83, Arizona Central

Linear Unit:  Foot US

0 0.25 0.5 0.75

Miles

! ! !

! ! !

Existing 69kV

Existing 230kV

Existing Substation_̂
RS-28 Site

Underground Route

Node (Origin or Terminus)

State Highway

Railroad

Jurisdictional Land Ownership

Gila River Indian Community

Canal

Schrader to RS-28 Overhead
     Route

Overhead Alternative Route
     Option



Exhibit 4 
Depiction of Particular Permanent Easement 



!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

Queen Creek Rd

Gila River
Indian Community

°
State Plane Coordinate System

NAD 83, Arizona Central
Linear Unit:  Foot US

0 100 200 300 400 500

Feet

Gila River Indian Community

Legend
! ! ! Existing 69kV

Proposed 230kV - Approximate Alignment

Option 1

Easement locations are approximations intended to show the
general alignment relative to Old Price Rd. Actual alignment
will vary based on technical study.

! ! !

New Permanent 80-Ft Overhead 230kV Easement
     (on east side of Old Price Road)

Author:  sjwDate: 6.12.21

Map Extent: Maricopa County, AZ

HIGH-TECH
INTERCONNECTION PROJECT (HIP)
Exhibit 4A Water Treatment Facility

Easement Option 1



!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

Queen Creek Rd

Gila River
Indian Community

Author:  sjwDate: 6.12.21

Map Extent: Maricopa County , AZ

HIGH-TECH
INTERCONNECTION PROJECT (HIP)
Exhibit 4B Water Treatment Facility

Easement Option 2

°
State Plane Coordinate Sy stem
NAD 83, Arizona Central
Linear U nit:  Foot U S

0 100 200 300 400 500
Feet

Gila River Indian Community

Proposed 230kV – Replaces Existing  69kV     Alig nment

Option 2

Easement locations are approximations intended to show thegeneral alig nment relative to Old Price Rd. Actual alig nmentwill vary  based on technical study.

Temporary  30-Ft Overhead 69kV Easement
     (on east side of Old Price Road)

! ! !

New Permanent 80-Ft Overhead 230kV Easement     (on west side of Old Price Road)

Legend



Exhibit 5 
Permanent Underground Easement Form 

  
  



  

 

 
 

 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:  
 
SALT RIVER PROJECT 
Land Department/PAB400 
P. O. Box 52025 
Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2025 
 

 
AFFIDAVIT EXEMPT PURSUANT TO 

A.R.S. §§ 11-1134(A)(2) and (A)(3) 
 

UNDERGROUND POWER EASEMENT 
(XXXXXXXXXXXX) 

 
 
Maricopa County       Agt: WMJ 
Section 6, T2S, R5E                                                                    Job:  XXXXXXXXXX 
     
  

City of Chandler,  
an Arizona municipal corporation,  

 
 
hereinafter called “Grantor”, for and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar, and other valuable 
consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant and convey to SALT RIVER 
PROJECT AGRICULTURAL IMPROVEMENT AND POWER DISTRICT, an agricultural 
improvement district organized and existing under the laws of the State of Arizona, and its successors 
and assigns, hereinafter called “Grantee”, for use by Grantee and Grantee’s agents, employees, 
contractors, co-owners, participants, and permittees, an easement in, upon, over, under, across, through 
and along the lands hereinafter described (such lands hereinafter described being sometimes referred to 
herein as the “Easement Parcel” defined below), to construct, install, reconstruct, replace, remove, repair, 
operate and maintain underground conduits, conductors, pipes, cables, wires, fiber optic, concrete 
encasement, vaults, pads, switching equipment, enclosures, manholes and transformers and all other 
appliances, appurtenances and fixtures for the transmission and distribution of electricity, 
communication signals and data, and for all other purposes connected therewith (collectively 
“Facilities”) at such locations and elevations, in, upon, over, under, across and along the Easement 
Parcel, as Grantee may now or hereafter deem convenient or necessary from time to time, together with 
the right of ingress and egress to, from, across and along the Easement Parcel.   
 
 The lands in, upon, over, under, across, through and along which this easement is granted are 
situated in the County of Maricopa, State of Arizona, and are more particularly described as: 
 
 

Easement Parcel: 
 

See Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof. 
 
CAUTION:  Facilities placed within the Easement Parcel may contain high voltage electrical 
equipment.  Notice is hereby given that the location of underground electrical conductors or facilities 
must be verified as required by Arizona Revised Statutes, Section 40-360.21, et. seq., Arizona Blue 
Stake Law, prior to any excavation. 



  

 

 
 

 
 
Grantor and Grantee agree that this Underground Power Easement shall be governed by the 

following terms and conditions: 
 
1. Grantor shall maintain a Grantee approval area that consists of the portion of the subsurface 

of the Easement Parcel beginning at the bottom limit of the aggregate base course (ABC) for the road 
pavement, not to exceed twenty inches (20") below ground level, and ending at two feet (2') below the 
lowest point of the Facilities (the “Grantee Approval Area”).  Grantor shall not, whether directly or 
indirectly through the granting of permission, install improvements or perform any other construction 
activities within the Grantee Approval Area without Grantee’s prior written consent, which will not be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed.  Without limiting Grantee’s consent rights hereunder, it 
shall be deemed reasonable for Grantee to withhold such consent if the proposed improvements or 
construction activities (A) are within the two-foot area located above or below of the Facilities, (B) are not 
installed perpendicular to the Facilities, or (C) are installed within sixty feet of the splice vaults.  Grantor 
shall provide, or require applicant to provide, Grantee with the following minimum information to allow 
Grantee to review any proposed utility crossings within the Grantee Approval Area: (T) type of utility, (U) 
size and planned minimum depth of the proposed utility, (V) pipe and conduit material, (W) whether the 
proposed utility is a heat generating facility, (X) pressure of the proposed utility, (Y) the construction 
methodology, and (Z) location of crossing.   Notwithstanding the foregoing, Grantor may perform, or 
authorize other public utilities to perform soft digging within the Grantee Approval Area for the purpose of 
locating the Facilities, provided that a representative of Grantee is on-site for such soft digging.   

 
2. Consistent with Grantee’s approval rights set forth in the previous paragraph, Grantee 

hereby approves the existing utilities listed on Exhibit B (attached hereto and made a part hereof), as 
described and depicted in those certain City of Chandler XXXXX Road Utility Relocation Plans, City 
Project No. XX-XXXXXX, Wilson Engineers Project No. XXXXXX, dated XXXXX 20XX (“Relocation 
Plans”).   

 
 3. Grantor acknowledges that Grantee intends to install the same type of Facilities approved 
through City of Chandler Encroachment Permit No. XXXXXX, issued on XXXXX  X, 20xx, SRP Job No. 
XXXX (              ) within the Easement Area (the “Installation Work”).  Based on Grantor’s knowledge of 
the Installation Work and the location of the Easement Parcel, Grantor has determined that the Installation 
Work will have minimal impact on the adjacent drainage area.  Grantor, therefore, agrees that no drainage 
report or mitigation work will be required for Grantor’s approval of and issuance of any permits for the 
Installation Work.   
  
 4. Except as expressly set forth herein, Grantor shall not construct, install or place, or permit 
to be constructed, installed or placed any building or other structure, plant any additional trees, drill any 
well, store materials of any kind, or alter ground level by cut or fill, to a depth not to exceed eight inches 
above or below existing grade, within the area of the Easement Parcel.  Any landscape restoration associated 
with the Installation Work shall not include any trees or any other improvements which violate the 
provisions of this paragraph.      
 
 5. Subject to the provisions set forth herein, Grantor reserves the right to use and occupy the 
Easement Parcel for any purpose consistent with the rights and privileges herein granted and which will not 
interfere with or endanger any of the Facilities or the use thereof.  Grantor and Grantee acknowledge that 
the Facilities shall be installed within Grantor’s existing right-of-way and, in some instances, at the option 
and discretion of Grantee, may cross over other existing utilities, including but not limited to existing utilities 
of Grantor located within the Grantee Approval Area, as described and depicted in the Relocation Plans, or 
as otherwise approved by Grantee in accordance with the requirements of paragraph 1 of this instrument 



  

 

 
 

(“Authorized Utilities”).  Notwithstanding Grantee’s rights within the Grantee Approval Area, Grantor may 
perform, or may authorize a public utility to perform, construction and maintenance activities on the 
Authorized Utilities within the Grantee Approval Area, provided that all such construction or maintenance 
activities comply with all the requirements set forth in this paragraph.  The following requirements shall 
apply to construction and maintenance activities within the Grantee Approval Area:  (a) no construction or 
maintenance activities shall be performed within (i) the five-foot area horizontally adjacent to, (ii) the two-
foot area above, (iii) the two-foot area below, or (iv) the area between the concrete encasements in which 
the duct banks are located, (b) any thermal backfill disturbed by construction or maintenance activities shall 
be replaced with Grantee approved thermal rated backfill, and (c) Grantor shall provide prior notification 
to, and coordination with Grantee before undertaking or authorizing, as applicable, any construction or 
maintenance activities within the Grantee Approval Area.  Prior to authorizing any third party to conduct 
work within the Grantee Approval Area, Grantor shall obtain such party’s agreement to comply with the 
above requirements.  Grantor further agrees that Grantor shall not (y) install, or authorize the installation of, 
any utilities within the Easement Area parallel to the Facilities, or (z) perform or authorize construction or 
maintenance activities within the Easement Area that adversely impact the Facilities or Grantee’s access 
thereto.    
 
 6. Grantee shall have the right (but not the obligation) to trim, cut and clear away trees, brush 
or other vegetation on the Easement Parcel whenever in its judgment the same shall be necessary for the 
convenient and safe exercise of the rights herein granted.  
 
 7. Any and all Grantee construction activities within the XXXXX Road or XXXXX Road 
rights-of-way will comply with City of Chandler ordinances, rules and regulations pertaining to the conduct 
of construction activities within City right-of-way, to the extent applicable.  After the construction and 
installation of the Facilities within the Easement Parcel, the City of Chandler will issue a blanket annual 
City Authorization for all Grantee maintenance activities within the Easement Parcel.  If there is a conflict 
between this Underground Power Easement (including, without limitation, the right to access the Facilities) 
and any permit or other City Authorization issued after construction with respect to the Facilities or the 
Easement Parcel, the terms and provisions of this Underground Power Easement will control, provided, 
however, that Grantee shall not allow other parties to use the Easement Parcel for the installation of 
additional Facilities for such other parties’ use, whether jointly or separately from Grantee, unless such other 
parties comply with applicable City ordinances and permit and/or licensing requirements.  “City 
Authorization” means any instrument, whether denominated as a permit, a license, or otherwise, by which 
the City authorizes a person or entity to use the City right-of-way.   
 
 8. Grantee will be responsible (at Grantee’s sole cost and expense) for maintaining and 
repairing the Facilities in a good, safe, clean, and commercially reasonable condition and in accordance with 
all applicable laws.  Grantee agrees not to unreasonably disturb Grantor’s use of the Easement Parcel during 
any such maintenance or repairs.  In connection with any work performed by or on behalf of Grantee under 
this Easement, Grantee agrees (at Grantee’s sole cost and expense) (i) to repair or replace any damaged 
Grantor improvements located within the Easement Parcel, including, without limitation, pavement, 
sidewalks, and landscaping (softscape and hardscape) in a commercially reasonable manner, and (ii) to 
perform all such work free and clear of any mechanics’ or materialmen’s liens.  
 
 9. The easement and other rights granted to Grantee hereunder, shall be perpetual, and shall 
not terminate until, and unless abandoned through the recordation of a document executed and 
acknowledged by Grantee specifically terminating this instrument.  Upon such recordation, all Grantee's 
rights hereunder shall cease, except the right to remove any and all property placed upon the Easement 
Parcel within a reasonable time subsequent to such termination.  To induce Grantee to accept this instrument 
and the easement granted herein for the installation of the Facilities, Grantor warrants that this instrument 
creates a permanent easement for the construction, installation, reconstruction, replacement, removal, repair, 



  

 

 
 

operation, and maintenance of the Facilities.  If Grantor requires Grantee to relocate or modify the Facilities, 
Grantor will (i) pay and/or reimburse Grantee any and all costs incurred for such relocation or modification 
and (ii) provide a reasonable new location for the Facilities, and easement rights therefor, that meets the 
standards set forth in this instrument.  Notwithstanding anything in this instrument, or laws, statutes, 
ordinances, rules, or regulations to the contrary, the City of Chandler, or any successor in interest, including 
without limitation any subsequent “Grantor” under this instrument, shall allow Grantee to abandon the 
Facilities in place within the Easement Parcel, and not require their removal.  Grantor acknowledges that 
the Facilities are being located within public right-of-way at the request of Grantor, and that Grantee 
materially relied on the provisions of this paragraph in agreeing to Grantor’s request. Grantee acknowledges 
that Grantor relocated its facilities to pass underneath Grantee’s Facilities at the request and direction of 
Grantee.   
 
 10. The benefits and burdens, and the covenants and agreements herein set forth shall run with 
and burden the land and shall extend and inure in favor and to the benefit of, and shall be binding on Grantor 
and Grantee and their successors and assigns.  Grantee shall have the right to assign the Easement, in whole 
or in part, to one or more assignees and, upon the assignment, any such assignee hereby assumes the rights 
and obligations of the Grantee hereunder with respect to the portion of the Easement assigned.  
 
 11. The provisions of this Underground Power Easement are not intended to and do not 
constitute a grant, dedication, or conveyance for public use of the Easement Parcel.  The rights herein created 
are private and for the benefit only of Grantor and Grantee and their successors and assigns. 
 
 12. The rights and remedies hereunder are cumulative, and the exercise of any one or more of  
such rights or remedies shall not preclude the exercise, at the same or different times, of any other right or  
remedy available. 
 
 13.  When this Easement will be used by Grantee in place of an existing overhead easement 
located in Grantor’s right-of-way and which is used for the transmission and distribution of electricity 
(“Existing Overhead Easement”), Grantee will convey to Grantor simultaneously with the grant of this 
Easement Grantee’s interests and rights in the Existing Overhead Easement as additional consideration for 
this Easement.  In addition, except for any Facilities Grantor may permit to be abandoned in place, Grantee 
agrees to remove any Facilities in the Existing Overhead Easement at Grantee’s sole cost.  
 
 

[Signatures appear on following page] 
 
 
Final Exhibit 5 Underground Power Easement Dated 6-23-2021 230 PM 
 
  



  

 

 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Chandler,  an Arizona municipal corporation  has 
caused this instrument to be executed by its duly authorized representative(s), this ____ day of 
_______________, 2021. 

 
 

   City of Chandler 
   an Arizona municipal corporation 

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ By_________________________________ 
Clerk                Kevin Hartke, Mayor  
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
City Attorney 
                   
   
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss 
County of Maricopa  ) 
 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ______________, 2019, 
by Kevin Hartke, Mayor of the City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, on behalf of such 
corporation. 
  
    ______________________________________ 
    Notary Public  
My commission expires: 
 
___________________ 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Signature page to Agreement and Grant of Underground Power Easement, City of Chandler to SRP.  
  



  

 

 
 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description of Easement Parcel 
 

[consisting of ____ pages] 
 
  



  

 

 
 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Existing Utilities with the Grantee Approval Area 
 
 

1. 
 
2. 
 
3. 
 
4. 
 
5. 
 
6. 
 
 



Exhibit 6 
Permanent Right-of-Way Overhead Easement Form 

  
  



WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:  
 
SALT RIVER PROJECT 
Land Department/PAB350 
PO Box 52025 
Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2025 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT EXEMPT PURSUANT TO 
A.R.S. §§ 11-1134(A)(2) and (A)(3) 

 
HIGH VOLTAGE EASEMENT (Chandler Right of Way Overhead Easement) 

 
Maricopa County    R/W #:  Agt: WMJ 
Parcel # Price Road R/W    Job # xxxx Corridor 
NW4 Sec. 6, T2S, R5E    W_________ C __________ 
  
 

City of Chandler,  
an Arizona municipal corporation,  

 
hereinafter called Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars and other valuable 
consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant and 
convey to SALT RIVER PROJECT AGRICULTURAL IMPROVEMENT AND POWER 
DISTRICT, an agricultural improvement district organized and existing under the laws of the State 
of Arizona, hereinafter called Grantee, and Grantee’s employees, contractors, co-owners, participants, 
licensees, invitees, successors and assignees, a non-exclusive easement to construct, install, 
reconstruct, replace, remove, repair, operate and maintain: a line or lines of poles, towers, or other 
supporting structures; conductors, cables, wires, communication and signal lines; guys, anchorage, 
crossarms, braces, transformers, vaults, manholes, and pad-mounted equipment; underground 
conduits, conductors, pipes, cables, wires; fiber optic, microwave, and antennae for communication 
or data transmission purposes; and other appliances, appurtenances, and fixtures (collectively, 
“Facilities”) for the transmission and distribution of electricity, communication signals and data, and 
for all other purposes connected therewith at such locations and elevations in, upon, over, under, 
across, through and along the Easement Parcel (defined below), as Grantee may now or in the future 
deem convenient or necessary from time to time, together with the right of vehicular and pedestrian 
access to, from, over, across, and along the Easement Parcel, including at any intersection of the 
Easement Parcel and a public road or right of way (collectively, the “Easement”).  
 
The lands in, upon, over, under, across, through and along which the Easement is granted are situated 
in the County of Maricopa, State of Arizona, and are more particularly depicted and described as: 
 

Grantor’s Property: 
 
SEE EXHIBIT “A”, attached hereto, and 
incorporated herein with this reference. 

 
 
 



2 
 

Easement Parcel: 
 
The vertical space (air space) above Grantor’s 
Property beginning at an elevation of fifteen (15) feet 
(“Aerial Easement”) and the ground area located 
within the full easement width on Grantor’s Property 
(“Ground Easement”), and which are in Grantor’s 
right-of-way for a total width of eighty (80) feet 
(collectively the “Easement Parcel”) 

 
CAUTION: Facilities placed within the Easement Parcel may contain high voltage electrical 
equipment. Notice is given that the location of underground electrical conductors and other 
facilities must be verified as required by the Arizona Blue Stake Law, A.R.S. Sections 40-360.21-
32, prior to any excavation.  Notice is also given that any activity performed within the 
Easement Parcel shall comply with the Arizona Overhead Powerline Safety Law, A.R.S. 
Sections 40-360.41-45. 
 
 
 The Easement is governed by the following terms and conditions: 
 
1.  Use by Grantor or Third Parties.  Grantor reserves the right to use and occupy the Easement 
Parcel for any purposes which will not interfere with the rights and privileges granted to Grantee 
hereunder or endanger the Facilities, in compliance with the requirements and obligations set forth in 
this instrument.  Such right to use and occupy the Easement Parcel includes the right to dedicate any 
portion of the Easement Parcel for perpendicular crossing(s) of public rights-of-way, subject to 
Grantor’s compliance with the requirements of this instrument.  Grantee shall not allow other parties 
to use the Easement Parcel for the installation of additional Facilities for such other parties’ use, 
whether jointly or separately from Grantee, unless such other parties comply with applicable City 
ordinances and permit and/or licensing requirements. 
 
 
2. Use Approval Procedures. Grantor may, with the prior written consent, which may be granted 
or denied through the exercise of Grantee’s reasonable discretion, use (or permit third party use of) 
the Easement Parcel for specific purposes, provided that it shall be deemed reasonable for Grantee to 
deny or condition such use to (i) prevent or minimize any actual or potential conflict with the Facilities 
or access thereto, or (ii) comply with all other terms and conditions of this instrument.  Prior to the 
commencement of any construction or development activity on, or any other use of the Easement 
Parcel, Grantor or Grantor’s permittee or licensee, as applicable, shall provide Grantee with plans 
describing the proposed use.  Such plans shall include without limitation all construction and other 
development plans showing all proposed improvements to be located within, and activities to be 
conducted on the Easement Parcel, or any proposed alterations thereto.  Any Grantee consent to the 
use of the Easement Parcel shall be documented in writing and is hereby subject to all such uses 
complying with Grantee’s clearance, access, and construction standards, as well as National Electrical 
Safety Code (NESC), Arizona law, Federal law (including OSHA), and all other applicable rules, 
codes or regulations.    
 
3. Development Standards. Unless agreed to in writing in each instance, the entirety of the 
Easement Parcel shall be drivable by Grantee’s line maintenance vehicles. Any and all below-ground 



3 
 

facilities located within the Easement Parcel shall be designed to meet Grantee’s then current 
minimum loading standards.  As of the recordation date, such below-ground facilities must be 
designed to withstand a minimum loading of 320 pounds per square inch (PSI) applied to the ground 
surface under a crane outrigger pad measuring 27 inches in diameter.  Notwithstanding anything 
herein to the contrary, under no circumstances may any use of the Easement Parcel (by Grantor or 
any third party) interfere with Grantee’s right and ability to construct, access, maintain and use the 
Facilities, or endanger any of the Facilities or the use thereof.   
 
4. Prohibited Activities.  Without limiting Grantee’s approval rights under paragraph 2 above:  
(i) Grantor shall not construct, install or place, or permit to be constructed, installed or placed, any 
building or other structure, plant any trees, drill any well, store materials of any kind, alter the ground 
level, or allow the installation of utilities or private or public roadways within the Easement Parcel, 
or its associated airspace; and (ii) no plants may be installed within the Easement Parcel unless such 
plants are on Grantee’s list of plants approved for use within easements. Notwithstanding the 
provisions of this paragraph 4, Grantor may obtain prior written approval from Grantee, in accordance 
with the requirements of paragraph 2, to grade within the limits of the Easement Parcel. 
 
5. Fences. Grantee, at its expense, may construct, modify, and maintain access openings and 
gates at such locations and of such dimensions as determined by Grantee in consultation with 
Grantor,, in all existing fences and walls across or within the Easement Parcel.  If Grantor constructs 
fences or walls across the Easement Parcel, Grantor shall, at its expense, provide Grantee with 
openings at locations and of such dimensions as determined by Grantee in consultation with Grantor.  
Grantor, at its expense, may install gates across such openings and, if such gates are locked, shall 
install a multiple locking device, accessible by both Grantor and Grantee.  Nothing set forth in this 
paragraph 5 restricts or otherwise modifies Grantee’s approval rights under paragraph 2, and Grantor 
shall obtain prior written approval for any proposed fences and walls within the Easement Parcel.   
 
6. Vegetation.  Grantee shall have the right (but not the obligation) to trim, cut and clear away 
trees, brush or other vegetation on, or which encroaches into, the Easement Parcel, whenever in its 
judgment the same shall be necessary for Grantee’s use, operation or maintenance of, or access to the 
Facilities, or for safety or system reliability reasons.    
 
7.  Relocation of Grantee’s Facilities. If Grantor requires Grantee to relocate or modify the 
Facilities, Grantor will (i) pay and/or reimburse Grantee any and all costs incurred for such relocation 
or modification and (ii) provide a reasonable new location for the Facilities, and easement rights 
therefor, that meets the standards set forth in this instrument 
 
8.   Perpetual Nature of Easement.  This Easement and Grantee’s rights hereunder, shall be 
perpetual, and shall not terminate until and unless abandoned through the recordation of a document 
formally abandoning the Easement, which references this instrument and is executed and 
acknowledge by Grantee.  Upon such recordation, all Grantee's rights hereunder shall cease, except 
the right to remove any and all property placed upon the Easement Parcel within a reasonable time 
subsequent to such abandonment.    
 
9. Successors and Assigns.  The benefits and burdens, and the covenants and agreements herein 
set forth shall run with and burden the land and shall extend and inure in favor and to the benefit of, 
and shall be binding on Grantor and Grantee and their successors and assigns.  Grantee shall have the 
right to assign the Easement, in whole or in part, to one or more assignees and, upon the assignment, 



4 
 

any such assignee hereby assumes the rights and obligations of the Grantee hereunder with respect to 
the portion of the Easement assigned.     
 
10. Rights and Remedies Cumulative.  The rights and remedies hereunder are cumulative, and 
the exercise of any one or more of such rights or remedies shall not preclude the exercise, at the same 
or different times, of any other right or remedy available. 
 
11. Additional Consideration for Easement. When this Easement will be used by Grantee in place 
of an existing overhead easement located in Grantor’s right-of-way and which is used for the 
transmission and distribution of electricity (“Existing Overhead Easement”), Grantee will convey to 
Grantor simultaneously with the grant of this Easement Grantee’s interests and rights in the Existing 
Overhead Easement as additional consideration for this Easement.  In addition, except for any 
Facilities Grantor may permit to be abandoned in place, Grantee agrees to remove any Facilities in 
the Existing Overhead Easement at Grantee’s sole cost. 
 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Final Exhibit 6 High Voltage Right-of-Way Overhead Easement Dated 6-23-2021 2PM 
  



5 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation has 
caused this instrument to be executed by its duly authorized representative(s), this ____ day of 
_______________, 2019. 

 
  City of Chandler 

  an Arizona municipal corporation 
 

Attest: 
 
 
______________________________  By_________________________________ 
City Clerk   Kevin Hartke, Mayor  
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Attorney 
                   
   
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss 
County of Maricopa  ) 
 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ______________, 
2019, by Kevin Hartke, Mayor of the City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, on behalf 
of such corporation. 
  
    _________________________________ 
    Notary Public  
My commission expires: 
 
___________________ 
 
 
 
Note:   This instrument is exempt from the real estate transfer fee and affidavit of legal 
value required under A.R.S. Sections 11-1132 and 11-1133 pursuant to the exemptions set 
forth in A.R.S. Sections 11-1134(A)(2) and (A)(3). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Legal Approved Form_10-22-2014_mcm 



  

 

 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF GRANTOR’S PROPERTY 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit 7 
Permanent Water Reclamation Facilities Overhead Easement Form 

  
 

  



WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:  
 
SALT RIVER PROJECT 
Land Department/PAB350 
PO Box 52025 
Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2025 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT EXEMPT PURSUANT TO 
A.R.S. §§ 11-1134(A)(2) and (A)(3) 

 
HIGH VOLTAGE EASEMENT (City of Chandler Water Reclamation Facilities) 

 
Maricopa County    R/W #:  Agt:  
Parcel #    Job #  
[SE4] Sec.  , T  ,  R    W_________ C __________ 
  
CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, an Arizona municipal corporation, hereinafter called 
Grantor, for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars and other valuable consideration, the 
receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant and convey to SALT 
RIVER PROJECT AGRICULTURAL IMPROVEMENT AND POWER DISTRICT, an 
agricultural improvement district organized and existing under the laws of the State of Arizona, its 
successors and assigns, hereinafter called Grantee, for use by Grantee and Grantee’s employees, 
contractors, co-owners, participants, licensees, and invitees, a non-exclusive easement to construct, 
install, access, reconstruct, replace, remove, repair, operate and maintain: poles, towers, or other 
supporting structures (collectively “Poles”); and conductors, cables, wires, communication and 
signal lines; and other appliances, appurtenances, and fixtures (collectively “Aerial Facilities”) 
(Poles and Aerial Facilities are collectively “Facilities”) for the transmission and distribution of 
electricity, communication signals and data, and for all other purposes connected therewith at such 
locations and elevations in, across, through and along the Easement Parcel (defined below), as 
Grantee may now or in the future deem convenient or necessary from time to time, together with the 
right of vehicular and pedestrian access to, from, over, across, and along Grantor’s Property for the 
purpose of trimming, cutting, or clearing trees, brush or other vegetation, or remove any other 
obstacles encroaching within the Easement Parcel as provided herein (collectively, the Easement).  
The lands in, upon, over, across, through and along which the Easement is granted are situated in 
the County of Maricopa, State of Arizona, and are more particularly depicted and described as: 
 

Grantor’s Property: 
 
SEE EXHIBIT “A”, attached hereto, and 
incorporated herein with this reference. 
 

 
Easement Parcel:  
 

The vertical space (air space) above Grantor’s 
Property beginning at an elevation of fifteen (15) feet 
(“Aerial Easement”) and the ground area located 
within the full easement width and fifty (50) feet 



2 
 

north/south of a Pole on Grantor’s Property 
(“Ground Easement”), and which are located fifty 
(50) feet west of the eastern boundary of Old Price 
Road right-of-way to thirty (30) feet east of the 
eastern boundary of Old Price Road right-of-way for 
a total width of eighty (80) feet (collectively the 
“Easement Parcel”) 

 
 
CAUTION: Facilities placed within the Easement Parcel may contain high voltage electrical 
equipment or water reclamation facilities and infrastructure. Notice is given that the location 
of underground electrical conductors and other facilities must be verified as required by the 
Arizona Blue Stake Law, A.R.S. Sections 40-360.21-32, prior to any excavation.  Notice is also 
given that any activity performed within the Easement Parcel shall comply with the Arizona 
Overhead Powerline Safety Law, A.R.S. Sections 40-360.41-45. 
 
 The Easement is governed by the following terms and conditions: 
 
1. Additional Consideration for Easement. When this Easement will be used by Grantee in place 
of an existing overhead easement located in Grantor’s right-of-way and which is used for the 
transmission and distribution of electricity (“Existing Overhead Easement”), Grantee will convey to 
Grantor simultaneously with the grant of this Easement Grantee’s interests and rights in the Existing 
Overhead Easement as additional consideration for this Easement.  In addition, except for any 
Facilities Grantor may permit to be abandoned in place, Grantee agrees to remove any Facilities in 
the Existing Overhead Easement at Grantee’s sole cost.  
 
2.  Use by Grantor or Third Parties.  Grantor and any third parties reserve the right to use and 
occupy the Easement Parcel for any purposes, which will not interfere with the rights and privileges 
granted to Grantee hereunder or endanger the Facilities, in compliance with the requirements and 
obligations set forth in this instrument.  Such right to use and occupy the Easement Parcel includes 
the right to use and dedicate any portion of the Easement Parcel for perpendicular crossing(s) of public 
rights-of-way, subject to Grantor’s compliance with the requirements of this instrument.  Grantee 
shall not allow other parties to use the Easement Parcel for the installation of additional Facilities for 
such other parties’ use, whether jointly or separately from Grantee, unless such other parties comply 
with applicable City ordinances and permit and/or licensing requirements.  
 
3. Use Procedures. Grantor may use (or permit third party use of) the Easement Parcel for 
specific purposes if Grantor and Grantee mutually consent to Grantor’s or a third party’s use, which 
consent must not be unreasonably withheld by Grantee. Such use should: (i) prevent or minimize any 
actual or potential conflict with the Facilities or access thereto, and (ii) comply with all other terms 
and conditions of this instrument.  Prior to the commencement of any construction or development 
activity on, or any other use of the Easement Parcel, Grantor or third party, as applicable, shall provide 
Grantor and Grantee with plans describing the proposed use.  Such plans shall include without 
limitation all construction and other development plans showing all proposed improvements to be 
located within, and activities to be conducted on the Easement Parcel, or any proposed alterations 
thereto.  Grantor’s and Grantee’s consent to the use of the Easement Parcel shall be documented in 
writing and is subject to all such uses complying with Grantor’s and Grantee’s clearance, access, and 
construction standards, as well as National Electrical Safety Code (NESC), Arizona law, Federal law 



3 
 

(including OSHA), and all other applicable rules, codes, or regulations.  To minimize interference 
with and disruption of Grantor’s and Grantee’s use of the Easement Parcel, Grantor and Grantee will 
provide the other party with the name and contact information of a representative who is available 
twenty-four (24) hours a day seven (7) days a week. 
       
4. Development Standards. For the portions of the Easement Parcel located within the Ground 
Easement, all below-ground facilities must be designed to meet Grantee’s then current minimum 
loading standards.  As of the recordation date, such below-ground facilities must be designed to 
withstand a minimum loading of 320 pounds per square inch (PSI) applied to the ground surface 
under a crane outrigger pad measuring 27 inches in diameter.  This design standard does not apply to 
Aerial Facilities or the Aerial Easement. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, under no 
circumstances may any use of the Easement Parcel (by Grantor or any third party) interfere with 
Grantee’s right and ability to construct, access, maintain, and use the Facilities, or endanger any of 
the Facilities or the use thereof.   
 
5. Clearance of Vegetation.  Grantee possesses the right (but not the obligation) to trim, cut, and 
clear away trees, brush, or other vegetation within, or which does or may encroach, the Ground 
Easement or Aerial Easement, whenever in Grantee’s judgment the same shall be necessary for 
Grantee’s use, operation, or maintenance of, or access to the Facilities, or for safety or system 
reliability reasons.    
 
6.  Relocation of Grantee’s Facilities. After the initial installation or relocation of Facilities 
within the Easement Parcel, if Grantor requires Grantee to relocate or modify the Facilities within the 
Ground Easement or Aerial Easement, Grantor will: (i) pay and/or reimburse Grantee all costs 
incurred for such relocation or modification; and (ii) provide a reasonable new location for the 
Facilities, and easement rights therefor, that meets the standards set forth in this instrument.     
 
7. Perpetual Nature of Easement.  This Easement, and Grantee’s rights hereunder, shall be 
perpetual, and shall not terminate until, and unless abandoned through the recordation of a document 
formally abandoning the Easement, which references this instrument and is executed and 
acknowledged by Grantee.  Upon such recordation, all Grantee's rights hereunder shall cease, except 
the right to remove any and all property placed upon the Easement Parcel within a reasonable time 
subsequent to such abandonment.    
 
8. Successors and Assigns.  The benefits and burdens, and the covenants and agreements herein 
set forth shall run with and burden the land and shall extend and inure in favor and to the benefit of, 
and shall be binding on Grantor and Grantee and their successors and assigns.  Grantee shall have the 
right to assign the Easement, in whole or in part, to one or more assignees and, upon the assignment, 
any such assignee hereby assumes the rights and obligations of the Grantee hereunder with respect to 
the portion of the Easement assigned.     
 
9. Rights and Remedies Cumulative.  The rights and remedies hereunder are cumulative, and 
the exercise of any one or more of such rights or remedies shall not preclude the exercise, at the same 
or different times, of any other right or remedy available. 
 
10. Private Use.  The provisions of this Easement Agreement are not intended to and do not 
constitute a public utility easement or any other grant, dedication, or conveyance for public use of the 
Easement Parcel.   



4 
 

 
11. Warranty of Title.  Grantor represents and warrants that Grantor has full power and authority 
to grant the Easement and to perform its obligations under this document. 
 
12. Authority to Bind Grantor.  The individual executing this document represents and warrants: 
(i) that he or she is authorized to do so on behalf of Grantor; (ii) that he or she has full legal power 
and authority to bind Grantor in accordance with the terms herein and, if necessary, has obtained all 
required consents or delegations of such power and authority. 
 
13. Fences. Grantee, at its expense, may construct, modify, and maintain access openings and 
gates at such locations and of such dimensions as determined by Grantee in consultation with Grantor, 
in all existing fences and walls across or within the Easement Parcel.  If Grantor constructs fences or 
walls across the Easement Parcel, Grantor shall, at its expense, provide Grantee with openings at 
locations and of such dimensions as determined by Grantee in consultation with Grantor.  Grantor, at 
its expense, may install gates across such openings and, if such gates are locked, shall install a multiple 
locking device, accessible by both Grantor and Grantee.  Nothing set forth in this paragraph 13 
restricts or otherwise modifies Grantee’s approval rights under paragraph 3, and Grantor shall obtain 
prior written approval for any proposed fences and walls within the Easement Parcel.   
 
14. Public Emergency.  Grantor and Grantee acknowledge the Easement Parcel contains critical 
infrastructure to both parties. Accordingly, both Grantor and Grantee shall have the right (but not the 
obligation), because of a public emergency, to dig-up or otherwise damage Facilities without prior 
notice to the other party, if the action is deemed reasonably necessary by Grantee, or Grantor’s City 
Manager, Fire Chief, Police Chief, City Street Transportation Director, Public Works Director, or 
Water Services Director.  A public emergency may be any condition which, in the opinion of Grantee 
or any of the officials named, poses an immediate threat to the lives or property of the residents of the 
City of Chandler or others caused by any natural or man-made disaster including, but not limited to, 
storms, floods, fire, accidents, explosions, major water main breaks, or hazardous material spills.  
Grantor or Grantee, as appropriate, will notify the other party as soon as reasonably possible of the 
public emergency and the action taken.  
 
 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Final Exhibit 7 Water Reclamation Facilities Overhead Easement Dated 6-23-2021 1PM 
  



5 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, has 
caused this instrument to be executed by its duly authorized representative(s), this ____ day of 
_______________, 202__. 

 
  City of Chandler 

  an Arizona municipal corporation 
 

Attest: 
 
 
______________________________  By_________________________________ 
City Clerk   Mayor  
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Attorney 
                   
   
STATE OF ARIZONA ) 
    ) ss 
County of Maricopa  ) 
 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ______________, 
202___, by _____________, Mayor of the City of Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation, on 
behalf of such corporation. 
  
    _________________________________ 
    Notary Public  
My commission expires: 
 
___________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, _________________, a ___________________,  has caused its name 
to be executed by its duly authorized representative(s), this ____ day of _______________, ________. 

 
 

_______________________________,  a _________________  
               
 
  By ___________________________________ 
         
   
 
  By: ___________________________________ 
                    
   
State of Arizona ) 
   ) ss 
County of Maricopa ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ______________, 
________, by ___________________, _____________________ of 
___________________________________, a _____________,  on behalf of such company. 
  
 
My Commission Expires: _____________________________________ 
   Notary Public  
_____________________ 
 
 
 
_____________________ 
  (Notary Stamp/Seal) 
 
 
 
Note:   This instrument is exempt from the real estate transfer fee and affidavit of legal value required 
under A.R.S. Sections 11-1132 and 11-1133 pursuant to the exemptions set forth in A.R.S. Sections 
11-1134(A)(2) and (A)(3).  
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF GRANTOR’S PROPERTY 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit 8 
Remaining Canceled 12kV Distribution Projects   



 

 

 

 CANCELLED AESTHETICS 12KV PROJECTS WITH SRP INCURRED COSTS 

 

SRP JOB # SRP COSTS 

T2089484 $146,132.88 

T2089480 $24,528.37 

T2092863 $66,628.28 

T2092861 $6,631.23 

T2092941 $39,223.26 

T2092936 $18,237.97 

T2093024 $122,958.07 

T2092998 $26,741.59 

T2101544 $92,090.89 

T2101549 $21,951.09 

T2099303 $92,424.63 

T2099298 $26,521.50 

T2105041 $6,691.94 

T2105134 $6,341.65 

T3003639 $5,157.43 

TOTAL COSTS INCURRED BY SRP $702,160.78 

 

 



Exhibit 9 
Temporary Construction Easement Form 

  



WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO:  
 
SALT RIVER PROJECT 
Land Department/PAB350 
PO Box 52025 
Phoenix, Arizona 85072-2025 
 
 

AFFIDAVIT EXEMPT PURSUANT TO 
A.R.S. §§ 11-1134(A)(2) and (A)(3) 

 
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 

 (Old Price Road at City of Chandler Water Reclamation Facilities) 
 
Maricopa County    R/W #:  Agt:  
Parcel #    Job #  
[SE4] Sec.  , T  ,  R    W_________ C __________ 
 
 
 
  
CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, an Arizona municipal corporation, hereinafter called Grantor, for 
and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars and other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which are hereby acknowledged, does hereby grant and convey to SALT RIVER PROJECT 
AGRICULTURAL IMPROVEMENT AND POWER DISTRICT, an agricultural improvement district 
organized and existing under the laws of the State of Arizona, its successors and assigns, hereinafter called 
Grantee, a temporary construction easement in connection with the construction of 230kV facilities used 
for the transmission and distribution of electricity, communication signals and data, and for other related 
purposes connected therewith as part of the expansion of the Intel Ocotillo campus (collectively the 
“Project”). The purpose of this temporary construction easement is to allow the use of the Easement Parcel 
(defined below) by Grantee and Grantee’s employees, contractors, co-owners, participants, licensees, and 
invitees, an easement to construct, install, and access the Easement Parcel at such locations and elevations 
in, across, through and along the Easement Parcel (defined below) as Grantee may now or in the future 
deem convenient or necessary together with the unrestricted right of vehicular and pedestrian access to, 
from, over, across, and within the Easement Parcel for purposes of  the Project (collectively, the 
“Easement”).  The lands in, upon, over, across, through and along which the Easement is granted are situated 
in the County of Maricopa, State of Arizona, and are more particularly depicted and described in Exhibit 
“A” attached hereto and made a part hereof by this reference: 
 

Easement Legal Description: 
 
SEE EXHIBIT “A”, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein with this reference 
 

 
 



2 
 

Easement Parcel:  
 

The portion of Grantor’s property located thirty (30) feet 
east of the eastern boundary of Old Price Road right-of-
way.  
 

 
CAUTION: Facilities placed within the Easement Parcel may contain high voltage electrical 
equipment or large water reclamation infrastructure.  Notice is given that the location of 
underground electrical conductors and other facilities must be verified as required by the Arizona 
Blue Stake Law, A.R.S. Sections 40-360.21-32, prior to any excavation.  Notice is also given that any 
activity performed within the Easement Parcel shall comply with the Arizona Overhead Powerline 
Safety Law, A.R.S. Sections 40-360.41-45. 
 
 This temporary construction easement is governed by the following terms and conditions: 
 
1. Temporary Construction Easement Term. The term of this easement begins on the easement 
recordation date and ends on the first to occur: (i) two years from the recordation date; or (ii) substantial 
completion of the Project.  
 
2. Grantee’s Use of Easement. Grantee shall repair and restore the Easement Property to a like or 
equivalent condition as existed prior to the construction activity and shall be responsible for any damages, 
claims or losses occurring on the Easement Property during the term of this easement caused by Grantee’s 
negligent use of the Easement Property or by the negligent acts, errors, or omissions, or willful conduct, of 
Grantee’s employees, agents, contractors or assigns. 
 
3.  Use by Grantor or Third Parties.  Grantor reserves the right to use and occupy the Easement Parcel 
for any purposes which will not interfere with the rights and privileges granted to Grantee hereunder or 
endanger the Facilities, in compliance with the requirements and obligations set forth in this instrument.  
Such right to use and occupy the Easement Parcel includes the right to use and dedicate any portion of the 
Easement Parcel for perpendicular crossing(s) of public rights-of-way, subject to Grantor’s compliance with 
the requirements of this instrument.  Grantee shall not allow other parties to use the Easement Parcel for the 
installation of additional Facilities for such other parties’ use, whether jointly or separately from Grantee, 
unless such other parties comply with applicable City ordinances and permit and/or licensing requirements.  
To minimize interference with and disruption of Grantor’s and Grantee’s use of the Easement Parcel, 
Grantor and Grantee will provide the other party with the name and contact information of a representative 
who is available twenty-four (24) hours a day seven (7) days a week during Project construction. 
 
4.  Relocation of Grantor’s Facilities During Construction. During  construction of the Project and as 
provided in the certain agreement dated June 24, 2021 between Grantor and Grantee (the “Agreement”), if 
Grantor requires Grantee to relocate or modify Grantor’s facilities as part of the Project, Grantee will (i) pay 
and/or reimburse Grantor any and all costs incurred for such relocation or modification and (ii) provide a 
reasonable new location for the facilities, and easement rights therefor, that meets the standards set forth in 
this instrument and the Agreement.     
 
.     



3 
 

 
5. Rights and Remedies Cumulative.  The rights and remedies hereunder are cumulative, and the 
exercise of any one or more of such rights or remedies shall not preclude the exercise, at the same or different 
times, of any other right or remedy available. 
 
6. Private Use.  The provisions of this Easement Agreement are not intended to and do not constitute 
a public utility easement or any other grant, dedication, or conveyance for public use of the Easement Parcel.   
 
7. Warranty of Title.  Grantor represents and warrants that Grantor has full power and authority to 
grant the Easement and to perform its obligations under this document. 
 
8. Authority to Bind Grantor.  The individual executing this document represents and warrants: (i) that 
he or she is authorized to do so on behalf of Grantor; (ii) that he or she has full legal power and authority to 
bind Grantor in accordance with the terms herein and, if necessary, has obtained all required consents or 
delegations of such power and authority. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Final Exhibit 9 Temporary Construction Easement Dated 6-23-2021 230 PM 
 
  



4 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, _________________, a ___________________,  has caused its name 

to be executed by its duly authorized representative(s), this ____ day of _______________, ________. 
 

 
_______________________________,  a _________________  

               
 
  By ___________________________________ 
         
   
 
  By: ___________________________________ 
                    
   
State of Arizona ) 
   ) ss 
County of Maricopa ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ______ day of ______________, 
________, by ___________________, _____________________ of 
___________________________________, a _____________,  on behalf of such company. 
  
 
My Commission Expires: _____________________________________ 
   Notary Public  
_____________________ 
 
 
 
_____________________ 
  (Notary Stamp/Seal) 
 
 
 
Note:   This instrument is exempt from the real estate transfer fee and affidavit of legal value required 
under A.R.S. Sections 11-1132 and 11-1133 pursuant to the exemptions set forth in A.R.S. Sections 
11-1134(A)(2) and (A)(3).  
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF GRANTOR’S PROPERTY 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Maricopa County 
Jack Se llers 
Superviso r, Dis trict l -

101 West .J efferson .'trcct 
IOth Floor 
l'hocnix, .\Z HSIKJ.1-2143 
Phone: 602-StJC.- I 77(, 

June 21, 2021 

City of Chandler 
Mayor, Kevin Hartke 
& Members of the City Council 
88 E. Chicago St. 
Chandler, AZ 85225 

Subject: Resolution No. 5496 SRP 230kV Transmission Project Agreement 

Dear Mayor & Counci l Members, 

This letter is to express my support of the proposed Resolution No. 5496 authorizing 
an Agreement with Salt River Project Agricultura l Improvement and Power District 
(SRP) regarding the location and under-grounding of the 230kV transmission system 
in South Chandler. 

The City of Chandler is the heart of the East Valley and continues to attract high-tech 
and innovative compan ies. The proposed Resolution No. 5496 would allow SRP to 
meet the power demands of Intel 's planned plant expansion, demonstrating once 
again, how your leadership makes Chandler a significant asset in the East Valley. 

On behalf of Maricopa County, I again would lil<e to express my full support of 
Resolution No. 5496. 

Siuu~ 
d_ck Sellers 

f ~a~ricopa County Supervisors , District 1 

Additional Information #3
                          June 24, 2021



ITEM  3 

City Council Memorandum      Cultural Development  Memo No. CD 21-045
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
Kim Moyers, Cultural Development Director

From: John Owens, Downtown Redevelopment Specialist
Subject: Purchase of Downtown Sidewalk Re-Coating Services

Proposed Motion:
Move that City Council approve the purchase of downtown sidewalk re-coating services, from Creative
Paving Solutions, Inc., utilizing the City of Scottsdale Contract No. 20PB033, in an amount not to
exceed $200,000, and authorize the City Manager or designee to sign a linking agreement with
Creative Paving Solutions, Inc.  

Background/Discussion:
In 2015, the City of Chandler used Creative Paving to coat the sidewalks throughout the Historic Square
in Downtown Chandler in an effort to beautify and enhance the area. Working with the Downtown
Chandler Community Partnership, downtown stakeholders, and the wider community, the coating
material and color were selected through a survey and test application process. The Historic Square
has experienced significant growth and an increase in foot traffic. As a result, the coating has
deteriorated and is in need of re-coating. This work will take place over the course of the summer.
Downtown Redevelopment staff will work with business owners, property owners, and the Downtown
Chandler Community Partnership to coordinate the timing of work and to minimize the impact on
businesses. The re-coating itself will take place in the early morning, prior to the opening of downtown
businesses, to further mitigate impacts. 

Evaluation:
The City of Scottsdale, a member of the Strategic Alliance for Volume Expenditures (S.A.V.E.),
competitively solicited and awarded a contract for decorative pavement maintenance. The City is a
member of S.A.V.E. and is eligible to utilize S.A.V.E. contracts cooperatively. The term of the City of
Scottsdale contract is valid through May 28, 2022, and contains provisions for extensions through May
28, 2025. 

Financial Implications:
Cost: Not to exceed $200,000

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar CIP Funded



Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

401.4320.5818.0.6CA619 General Gov't Capital
Projects

Downtown
Redevelopment

$200,000 Y



ITEM  4 

City Council Memorandum      Cultural Development  Memo No. CD 21-043
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 
Kim Moyers, Cultural Development Director

From: John Owens, Downtown Redevelopment Specialist
Subject: Resolution No. 5493, authorizing the Enhanced Municipal Services District (EMSD) Agreement for

Fiscal Year 2021-2022 between the City of Chandler and the Downtown Chandler Community
Partnership, and authorizing the City’s voluntary contribution to the EMSD in the amount of $118,804.
 

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5493, authorizing the Enhanced Municipal Services District
(EMSD) Agreement for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 between the City of Chandler and the Downtown Chandler
Community Partnership, and authorizing the City’s voluntary contribution to the EMSD in the amount of $118,804.

Background:
At the City Council meetings of March 25, 2021, and May 13, 2021, the Mayor and City Council took all actions
necessary to renew the EMSD. Staff is requesting approval of an EMSD Agreement with the Downtown Chandler
Community Partnership (DCCP). Through this action, the DCCP is designated as the entity to manage and
operate programs in the EMSD.  

Discussion:
The DCCP’s primary responsibilities include representing EMSD rate payers, preparing an annual EMSD
budget, and developing a work plan outlined from the goals in the attached Exhibit B.

The agreement also details the City’s participation in the EMSD. Financially, the City of Chandler voluntarily
contributes $118,804 to the EMSD. The agreement also identifies how payments will be made from the City to
the DCCP, both for City funds and for funds obtained through the assessment of private property owners through
the Maricopa County Assessor's Office. Finally, the agreement outlines the baseline of City-provided services
that will be delivered during the term of the agreement.

The DCCP participated in the development of the agreement, including providing a budget and work plan for the
upcoming year. The DCCP Executive Board has officially approved the content of this agreement and looks
forward to continuing as the administrator of the EMSD.

Should Mayor and Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5493, staff will process a check to the DCCP in order
to provide them with the first City voluntary payment prior to July 15, 2021, as specified by the agreement.
 

Financial Implications:



Assessments for privately-owned property in the District total $186,497. Staff has forwarded the Assessment Roll
to Maricopa County for inclusion in the fall property tax bills. The City's voluntary contribution of $118,804 has
been included in the Downtown Redevelopment budget for Fiscal Year 2021-2022. The total amount of the
EMSD budget for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 is $305,301.

Attachments
Resolution No. 5493 with Contract and Exhibits 



RESOLUTION NO.  5493 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING THE ENHANCED MUNICIPAL SERVICES 
DISTRICT AGREEMENT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022, BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF CHANDLER AND THE DOWNTOWN CHANDLER 
COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIP, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY’S 
VOLUNTARY CONTRIBUTION IN THE AMOUNT OF $118,804. 

 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona (the “City”), initiated a 
district known as City of Chandler, Arizona, Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municpal Services 
District (the “District”) by the adoption of Resolution No. 3905 (the “Resolution of Intention”); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and Council did make an annual statement and estimate of the expenses 
of the District for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022; and did 
assess the total sum upon the several lots within the District; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mayor and Council adopted Resolution No. 5475 approving the 2021-2022 annual 
assessment for the Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services District; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Downtown Chandler Community Partnership (“DCCP”) is designated the entity 
to manage and operate programs in the District through the annual renewal of the Downtown 
Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services Agreement (the “Agreement”); and  
  
WHEREAS, the Enhanced Municipal Services District functions of representing district 
ratepayers, developing the annual District budget and work plan, and monitoring performance 
and provision of District services have been maintained; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Agreement has been modified from the prior year contract to change how 
reserves are accounted for, and how unused funds from the prior year are programmed; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Agreement describes a work program to be performed by the District and City 
maintained baseline service levels for the period beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 
2022; and 
 
WHEREAS, said Agreement pledges the City’s commitment to pay a voluntary contribution to 
the District and identifies two equal installments to be made to the DCCP on or before July 15, 
2021 and January 15, 2022; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Chandler, 
Arizona, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Approves the annual Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services 

Agreement for Fiscal Year 2021-2022, in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A, 
and authorizes the Mayor to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City. 



Resolution No. 5493  
Page 2 

  

 
 
Section 2. Authorizes the City to pay to the DCCP, as a voluntary contribution to the 

District, the total sum of $118,804.00 in two equal installments in accordance 
with the schedule of payments set forth in the Agreement. 

 
Section 3. Directs the City Clerk to certify the fact and date of such approval on the 

duplicate copies of the Downtown Chandler Enhanced Municipal Services 
Agreement. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of June, 2021. 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________      ____________________________ 
CITY CLERK     MAYOR 
            
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No. 5493 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
_______  day of June, 2021, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
 ___________________________________ 
            CITY CLERK 
    
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
 





















































ITEM  5 

 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 21-028
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director

From: Susan Fiala, Senior Planner
Subject: ANX20-0004 Annexation and Initial City Zoning

Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 4974
Request: Annexation and Initial City Zoning of approximately 5 acres
Location: Southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Appleby Road
Applicant: Sean Lake, Pew & Lake PLC

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4974 approving the annexation and
initial City zoning of approximately 5 acres located at the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and
Appleby Road, as recommended by Planning staff. 

Background Data:
Currently zoned Rural-43 (RU-43) within Maricopa County
Annexation public hearing held at March 25, 2021, City Council regular meeting
Upon Annexation, initial City zoning will be Agricultural (AG-1) District
Rezoning and Preliminary Development Plan approval for townhomes (PLH20-0051 The Ashley)
accompanies this request as a subsequent item on the Council Agenda

Surrounding Land Use Data:

North Church and single-family
residential (La Costera)  South Single-family residential (Paseo Lindo)

East Union Pacific Railroad West School and public library (Hamilton High
and Chandler Hamilton library)

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:
  Existing Proposed
General Plan Employment No change



Chandler Airpark
Area Plan (CAAP) Commercial/Office/Business Park HDR (12.1-18 DU/ACRE

Utility Service
Existing municipal water service and wastewater service are available in Arizona Avenue and Appleby
Road.  Reclaimed water is available in Arizona Avenue.

Staff Comments

Attachments
Ordinance No. 4974 
Vicinity map 



 

ORDINANCE NO. 4974 
 

   AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, EXTENDING AND INCREASING THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF 
THE CITY PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF ARIZONA REVISED 
STATUTES TITLE 9, CHAPTER 4, ARTICLE 7, BY ANNEXING THERETO 
TERRITORY COMPRISING APPROXIMATELY FIVE ACRES LOCATED AT 
THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF ARIZONA AVENUE AND APPLEBY ROAD. 

 
WHEREAS, a petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of Chandler signed by the 
property owners of at least one-half of the value of the real and personal property as would be subject 
to taxation by the City in the event of annexation and by more than one-half of the property owners 
within the territory and land hereinafter described as shown by the last assessment of said property, 
asking that the property be annexed to the City of Chandler; and 
 
WHEREAS, the territory proposed for annexation is contiguous to the City of Chandler and not now 
embraced within its limits; and 
 
WHEREAS, a blank petition was filed on February 25, 2021, with the Maricopa County Recorder, 
the 30-day waiting period ended on March 27, 2021, a Public Hearing was held on March 25, 2021 
after proper notice was given, and the petition was circulated thereafter and signed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council desires to comply with the petition and extend the corporate limits of 
the City to include the proposed territory; and 
 
WHEREAS, the petition sets forth a true and correct description of all the exterior boundaries of the 
entire area proposed to be annexed by the City and had attached thereto at all times an accurate map 
of the territory proposed to be annexed; and 
  
WHEREAS, no additions or alterations increasing or decreasing the territory sought to be annexed 
have been made after the petition had been signed by any owner of real and/or personal property in 
the territory; and 
 
WHEREAS, proper and sufficient certification and proof of the foregoing facts are now on file in the 
Office of the City Clerk, together with the original petition; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City may elect to provide regular fire department services to a newly annexed area 
under A.R.S. § 48-813(A). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, as 
follows: 
 

 Section 1. That the following described territory is annexed to the City of Chandler and that the 
present corporate limits are extended and increased to include the following described 
territory contiguous to the present City limits: 

 



Ordinance No. 4974 
Page 2 of 5 

 
See Attached Exhibit ‘A’ Annexation Map and Legal Description 

 
Section 2. Pursuant to A.R.S. § 48-813(A), the City will provide fire department services to 

the property depicted in Exhibit A as is generally provided to other residents within 
the city.  The services shall take effect in July following the date on which this 
annexation becomes final as set forth in Section 6 below, without further action by 
the City Council. 

 
Section 3. The existing zoning of the territory annexed is Rural-43 (RU-43) in Maricopa 

County, and the territory upon annexation is hereby zoned Agricultural (AG-1) 
District within the City of Chandler, which provides for densities and uses no 
greater than those permitted within the RU-43 District of Maricopa County.  

 
Section 4. The Clerk is hereby instructed to file and record a copy of this Ordinance, together 

with an accurate map of the annexed territory, certified by the Mayor, in the Office 
of the County Recorder of Maricopa County, Arizona. 

 
Section 5. The Development Services Department of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to 

enter such changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of the 
Zoning Code in compliance with this ordinance. 

 
Section 6. This ordinance shall take effect, and the annexation of the subject property shall 

become final, 30 days after this Ordinance is adopted. 
 

INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, 
Arizona, this _____ day of ___________ 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________________   __________________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR  
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona this _____ day 
of _____________________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________   __________________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 

 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 4974 
Page 3 of 5 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 4974 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
_____ day of _____________________, 2021, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY      
 
 
Published: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 4974 
Page 4 of 5 

 
Exhibit ‘A’ Legal Description 

 



Ordinance No. 4974 
Page 5 of 5 

 
 
 

Exhibit ‘A’ 
 
 

 



Exhibit A

4
A n n e x a t i o n   M a p

Unincorporated Area
Incorporated Area

Southeast Corner of Arizona Avenue and
Appleby Road

0 300 600 900 1,200150
Feet

Proposed Annexation

City of Chandler 5/13/2021

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

2s5esec15

2s5esec22

2s5esec16

2s5esec21

Ocotillo Rd.

Appleby Rd.

Ordinance No. 4974

Proposed Annexation



Exhibit A

4
A n n e x a t i o n   M a p

Unincorporated Area
Incorporated Area

Southeast Corner of Arizona Avenue and
Appleby Road

0 300 600 900 1,200150
Feet

Proposed Annexation

City of Chandler 5/13/2021

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

2s5esec15

2s5esec22

2s5esec16

2s5esec21

Ocotillo Rd.

Appleby Rd.

Ordinance No. 4974

Proposed Annexation



ITEM  6 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 21-029
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director

From: Susan Fiala, Senior Planner
Subject: PLH20-0050/PLH20-0051/PLT21-0015 The Ashley

Adoption of Resolution No. 5484
Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 4975

Request: Area Plan Amendment to the Chandler Airpark Area Plan from Commercial/Office/Business Park to
High Density Residential (HDR 12.1-18 DU/ACRE)
Rezoning from Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development for multi-family residential
(PAD/MF-2)
Preliminary Development Plan for site layout and building architecture
Preliminary Plat for townhouse dwellings
 

Location: Southeast corner of Arizona Ave. and Appleby Rd.
Applicant: Sean Lake, Pew & Lake PLC

Proposed Motion:
Area Plan
Move City Council adopt Resolution No. 5484 Chandler Airpark Area Plan (CAAP) amendment,
PLH20-0050 The Ashley, located at the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Appleby Road, as
recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Rezoning
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No.4975 approving PLH20-0051 The
Ashley, Rezoning from Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development for multi-family
residential (PAD/MF-2) located at the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Appleby Road, subject to
the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Preliminary Development Plan 
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH20-0051 The Ashley for site layout and
building architecture located at the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Appleby Road, subject to
the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Preliminary Plat
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT21-0015 The Ashley, located at the southeast corner of
Arizona Avenue and Appleby Road, subject to the condition recommended by Planning and Zoning
Commission.



Background Data:
Approximately 5 net acres
Site currently contains a single-family residence
The property is currently zoned Rural-43 in unincorporated Maricopa County.  A public hearing for
potential annexation was held on March 25, 2021.
A request for annexation and initial City zoning of Agricultural District (AG-1) precedes this item
on the Council Agenda. 

Surrounding Land Use Data:

North
Church and single-family
residential (La Costera) across
Appleby Road

South
Single-family residential (Paseo Lindo)

East
Union Pacific Railroad

West
School and public library (Hamilton High
and Chandler Hamilton library) across
Arizona Avenue

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:
  Existing Proposed
General Plan Employment No change
Chandler Airpark Area
Plan

Commercial/Office/Business
Park

High Density Residential HDR (12.1 - 18
DU/ACRE)

Proposed Development
  Gated multi-family residential (for-sale townhomes)
# of Units  78 units in 3-, 4-, and 8-unit buildings 

1 bedroom – 20 units
2 bedroom – 29 units
3 bedroom – 29 units

Density  15.7 dwelling units per acre
Building Setbacks (min.)  Arizona Ave. – 50 ft.

 Appleby Rd. – 26 ft.
 South – 10 ft.
 East – 30 ft.

Building Height  Two story units, max. 30 ft.
Building Architecture

Contemporary
Materials: stucco, composite decking/fiber wood, metal
Trellis beamed balconies
Enclosed landscaped rear patios

Parking
Unit parking 

154 parking spaces required
156 parking spaces provided in 2 car garages

 Guest/open parking 
20 spaces required
24 spaces provided



Amenities
Airport-themed tot lot
Clubhouse
Pool
Dog park
BBQ and ramada

Review and Recommendation
Planning staff finds the proposal is consistent with the General Plan designation of Transitional
Employment Corridor which allows residential to be considered when determining compatibility with
existing and future surrounding uses. The site is located between two single-family residential
subdivisions, Paseo Lindo to the south and La Costera to the north. The narrow, elongated rectangular
site does not lend itself to function as either employment or commercial uses which may negatively
impact existing residential. The site is approximately one quarter mile north of the Paseo Lindo
commercial center, and approximately one-half mile north of larger commercial centers located on the
south side of Ocotillo Road which currently provide sufficient commercial/retail uses in the proximate
area. For these reasons, staff supports the area plan amendment from Commercial/Office/Business
Park to High Density Residential (HDR 12.1-18 DU/ACRE) land use.

The proposed multi-family residential development is a compatible land use on an infill site that creates
a transition between single family developments and provides another housing type to the surrounding
area. For these reasons, staff finds the proposal to be consistent with the goals of the General Plan and
the CAAP, as amended, and recommends approval subject to conditions.

Economic Analysis
An economic and fiscal impact analysis was conducted based on project details provided by the
applicant and staff assumptions. The analysis determined the project will generate a positive net fiscal
impact for the City. Net income to the City resulting from the project is estimated at approximately
$438,566 over 10 years. This includes revenues from property taxes, building permit and plan review
fees, transaction privilege tax on construction, real property rental tax, state shared revenues, and local
spending by residents. For the analysis, it was assumed the developer will lease the townhomes;
however, the developer has since expressed that the individual units will be for sale.

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Zoning Code.
A neighborhood meeting sign was posted on the site and on social media via NextDoor.
Virtual neighborhood meetings were held on August 3, 2020, with three residents in attendance
and on March 16, 2021, with 16 residents attending, including Councilmembers Ellis and Harris.
Comments and questions related to the landscape buffer between Paseo Lindo homes, balconies
and privacy to their backyards, as well as the amenity area. The applicant responded there is a
green belt on the Paseo Lindo side providing a buffer as well as landscape on the south side of
the pool amenity. Proposed balconies are adjacent to the master bedrooms.
As of writing this memo, Planning staff is not aware of opposition to the request.

Airport Commission Conflict Evaluation
Airport Commission meeting held on April 14, 2021
Motion to find a conflict with existing or planned airport operations.
In Favor: 5      Opposed: 1 (Bozelli) 
 
The Airport Commission reviewed the request in accordance with the Airport Conflicts Evaluation
Process. The Airport Manager has issued a conflicts evaluation report indicating that the Airport
Commission determined that the proposed development does constitute a conflict with existing or



planned airport uses. A copy of the Airport Planning Administrator's report detailing the Airport
Commission’s findings is attached to this memo. The Airport Commission's recommended mitigation
measures to address the operational conflict are included as stipulations of the rezoning.

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting of June 2, 2021.
Motion to Approve:

In Favor: 6   Opposed: 0    

The Planning and Zoning Commission added preliminary development plan stipulations 10 -
12 effectively increasing the size of trees at the time of planting along Arizona Avenue and the
southeast corner of the site, and directing the applicant to work with staff to enhance the side elevations
of the buildings facing Arizona Avenue.

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Area Plan Amendment 
Planning staff finds the request is in compliance with the General Plan.  Planning and Zoning
Commission recommends City Council approve of the Area Plan Amendment to the Chandler Airpark
Area Plan from Commercial/Office/Business Park to HDR (12.1-18 DU/ACRE).

Rezoning 
Planning staff finds the request is in compliance with the General Plan.  Planning and Zoning
Commission recommends City Council approve the rezoning from Agricultural District (AG-1) to
Planned Area Development for multi-family residential (PAD/MF-2), subject to the following conditions:

1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled “The
Ashley” and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0051,
modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City
Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified, or supplemented by the Chandler City Council.
 
2. Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements including but not
limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, median improvements , and street
lighting to achieve conformance with City codes, standard details, and design manuals.
 
3. Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and deceleration
lanes, per the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan.
 
4. Multi-family residential shall be permitted with a maximum density of 16 dwelling units per acre.
 
5. Minimum building setbacks shall be as provided below and further detailed in the development
booklet:      

Property Line Location Minimum Building Setback
Arizona Ave. 50 ft.
Appleby Rd. 26 ft.

East Property Line 30 ft.
South Property Line 10 ft.

 



 

6. Prior to the execution of any lease, all prospective renters shall be given written disclosure in
their lease and in a separately signed disclosure statement fully acknowledging that this
development lies within the Chandler Municipal Airport Impact Overlay District, as specified in the
Chandler Zoning Code. The disclosure statement shall acknowledge the proximity of this
development to the Chandler Municipal Airport that includes a heliport and an aircraft storage
facility, and that an avigational easement exists and/or is required on the property, and further,
shall acknowledge that the property is subject to aircraft noise, overflight activity, and other
externalities. The requirement for such disclosure shall be confirmed in an avigation notice
covenant that runs with the land and shall be recorded with Maricopa County Recorder prior to
the issuance of the first building permit for this development.
 
7. The subdivider/homebuilder/developer/multi-family manager shall display, in a conspicuous
place within the sales or leasing office, a map illustrating the location of the subdivision within the
Airport Impact Overlay District, as well as the noise contours and overflight patterns, as identified
and depicted in the document entitled Chandler Municipal Airport, F. A. R. Part 150, Noise
Compatibility Study, Noise Compatibility Program, Exhibit 6A (Potential Airport Influence Area),
as adopted by the Chandler City Council (Resolution No. 2950, 11-5-98). Such map shall be a
minimum size of 24” x 36”.  Compliance with this condition shall be demonstrated by the
subdivider/homebuilder/developer/multi-family manager by submittal to the Zoning Administrator
of a signed affidavit and photograph that acknowledges this disclosure and map display prior to
beginning any lease or sales activity. Failure to comply with this condition will result in revocation
of the Administrative Use Permit for the temporary sales office in the event the multi-family
development is platted to allow unit ownership. All requirements as set forth in this condition are
the obligation of the subdivider/homebuilder/developer/multi-family manager and shall not be
construed as a guarantee of disclosure by the City of Chandler.
 
8. The above referenced information shall also be included within any Subdivision Public Report
that is filed with the State of Arizona Department of Real Estate, as required by Arizona Revised
Statute 28-8486 and Arizona Revised Statute 28-8464.
 
9. The subdivider/homebuilder/developer shall provide the City with an avigational easement over
the subject property in accordance with Section 3004 of the City of Chandler Zoning Code.
 
10. All townhouses and buildings shall be designed and built to achieve an interior noise level not
to exceed 45 decibels (Ldn) from aircraft noise. A professional acoustical consultant, architect or
engineer shall certify that the project’s construction plans are in conformance with this condition.
 
11. The Final Plat shall contain the following statement on the cover sheet in a prominent location
and in large text:  “This property is located within the Chandler Municipal Airport Impact Overlay
District and is subject to aircraft noise and overflight activity and is encumbered by an avigational
easement to the City of Chandler.”
 
12. In the event the multi-family residential development is platted to allow unit ownership, prior to
the time of making any purchase agreements, the subdivider/homebuilder/developer shall provide
a written disclosure statement, for the signature of each buyer, acknowledging that this
development lies within the Chandler Municipal Airport Impact Overlay District, as specified in the
Chandler Zoning Code. The disclosure statement shall acknowledge the proximity of this
development to the Chandler Municipal Airport and that an avigational easement exists and/or is
required on the property, and further, shall acknowledge that the property is subject to aircraft
noise and overflight activity and other externalities. This document signed by the homebuyer shall
be recorded with Maricopa County Recorder’s Office upon sale of the property. The “Public
Subdivision Report”, “Purchase Contracts”, CC&R’s, and the individual lot/unit property deeds



shall include a disclosure statement outlining that the site is adjacent to or nearby an existing
municipal airport, and the disclosure shall state that such uses are legal and should be expected
to continue indefinitely. This responsibility for notice rests with the
subdivider/homebuilder/developer and shall not be construed as an absolute guarantee by the
City of Chandler for receiving such notice.
 
13. In the event the multi-family residential development is platted to allow unit ownership, prior to
the time of making any lot reservations or subsequent sales agreements, the
subdivider/homebuilder/developer shall provide a written disclosure statement, for the signature
of each buyer, acknowledging that the subdivision is located adjacent to or nearby existing
railroad tracks and railroad right-of-way that may cause adverse noise, odors, and other
externalities. The “Public Subdivision Report”, “Purchase Contracts”, CC&R’s, and the individual
lot/unit property deeds shall include a disclosure statement outlining that the site is adjacent to or
nearby an existing railroad track and railroad right-of-way, and the disclosure shall state that such
uses are legal and should be expected to continue indefinitely. This responsibility for notice rests
with the subdivider/homebuilder/developer and shall not be construed as an absolute guarantee
by the City of Chandler for receiving such notice.
 
14. All leases shall state that all questions, concerns, or complaints any tenant may have about
the Chandler Municipal Airport or the operation of aircraft landing at, taking off from, or operating
at or on Chandler Municipal Airport shall be directed solely to the manager of The Ashley
development and not to the Chandler Municipal Airport, the City of Chandler, the FAA, any aircraft
owner, or any pilot. All lease agreements shall also provide that it shall be within the sole and
absolute discretion of the manager of The Ashley (and not the tenant) to determine (after the
manager’s due consideration of all airport related acknowledgments and disclosures that are
required by the Zoning Stipulations and consideration of all information known to The Ashley’s
manager) whether or not, when, and how to communicate any tenant’s questions, concerns, or
complaints to the Chandler Municipal Airport manager.
 
15. Prior to building permit issuance for any structures the developer shall provide a
DETERMINATION OF NO HAZARD TO AVIATION approval as issued by the FAA after filing an
FAA Form 7460, Notice of Proposed Construction or Alteration.

Preliminary Development Plan
Planning staff finds the request is in compliance with the General Plan and Planning and Zoning
Commission recommends City Council approve the Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the
following conditions: 

1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled “The
Ashley” and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0051,
modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City
Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified, or supplemented by the Chandler City Council.
 
2. The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner.
 
3. The landscaping in all open spaces shall be maintained by the property owner or property
owners' association and shall be maintained at a level consistent with or better than at the time of
planting. 
 
4. The landscaping in all rights-of-way shall be maintained by the adjacent property owner or
property owners' association.
 
5. Landscaping plans (including for open spaces, rights-of-way, and street medians) and
perimeter walls shall be approved by the Planning Administrator.



 
6. All mechanical equipment, including HVAC, utility meters, etc. shall be screened from view by
material(s) that are architecturally integrated and consistent with the proposed buildings.
 
7. Sign packages, including free-standing signs as well as wall-mounted signs, shall be designed
in coordination with landscape plans, planting materials, storm water retention requirements, and
utility pedestals, so as not to create problems with sign visibility or prompt the removal of required
landscape materials.
 
8. Preliminary Development Plan approval does not constitute Final Development Plan approval;
compliance with the details required by all applicable codes and conditions of the City of Chandler
and this Preliminary Development Plan shall apply.
 
9. Roadway-style signs shall be installed at each driveway entrance identifying the presence of
low flying aircraft.
10. The applicant shall work with staff to install minimum 36-inch box and 12 feet high trees
where necessary to provide a meaningful buffer along the south property line east of Colorado
Street.
11. Trees along Arizona Avenue shall be a minimum 36-inch box and 12 feet high.
12. The applicant shall work with staff to enhance the side elevations facing Arizona Avenue.

Preliminary Plat
 Planning staff finds the request is in compliance with the General Plan and Planning and Zoning
Commission recommends City Council approve the Preliminary Plat, subject to the following condition: 

Approval by the City Engineer and Planning Administrator with regard to the details of all
submittals required by code or condition.

1.

Attachments
Resolution No 5484 
Ordinance No 4975 
Vicinity maps 
Airport Conflict Evaluation 
Development Booklet 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 5484 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, ADOPTING AN AMENDMENT TO THE “CHANDLER AIRPARK 
AREA PLAN” FROM COMMERCIAL/OFFICE/BUSINESS PARK TO HIGH-
DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (HDR 12.1 – 18 DU/ACRE), ON PROPERTY 
LOCATED AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF ARIZONA AVENUE AND 
APPLEBY ROAD. 

WHEREAS, the property owner seeks approval of a rezoning request, pending approval of an Area 
Plan amendment, for a particular development proposal located at the southeast corner of Arizona 
Avenue and Appleby Road; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Land Use policies within the Chandler General Plan adopted by the City Council 
on April 14, 2016, encourage the preparation of Area Plans that address distinct characteristics and 
support unique land use planning for each area; and 

WHEREAS, an existing area plan, the “Chandler Airpark Area Plan,” has been adopted for the 
area generally bounded by Pecos Road, Gilbert Road, Ocotillo Road, and Arizona Avenue; and 

WHEREAS, the applicant has proposed an amendment to the existing Chandler Airpark Area Plan, 
including a map prepared by the applicant, for consideration by the City Council after having 
received public input from the Planning and Zoning Commission and property owners at a 
previous public hearing. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona 
as follows: 

Section 1. Approves an amendment to the “Chandler Airpark Area Plan” as 
depicted in the map attached to this resolution as Exhibit “A,” and adopts 
the map as the guideline for future rezoning and development for the area 
described within it. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this ______ day 
of __________, 2021.  

ATTEST: 

___________________________________            ____________________________________ 
CITY CLERK                      MAYOR 
 
  



Resolution No. 5484 
Page 2 

 
CERTIFICATION 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No. 5484 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting was held on the 
____ day of _______, 2021, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
                  ___________________________________ 
        CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________________   
CITY ATTORNEY  
 
 

 

 

 

  



Resolution No. 5484 
Page 3 

 

 



ORDINANCE NO.  4975 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE ZONING CODE AND MAP ATTACHED THERETO, BY REZONING A 
PARCEL FROM AGRICULTURAL (AG-1) DISTRICT TO PLANNED AREA 
DEVELOPMENT FOR MULTI-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL (PAD/MF-2) AS 
REPRESENTED IN CASE PLH20-0051 (THE ASHLEY) LOCATED AT THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF ARIZONA AVENUE AND APPLEBY ROAD 
WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; AND PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES. 

 
WHEREAS, the application for rezoning certain property within the corporate limits of Chandler, 
Arizona, has been filed in accordance with Article XXVI of the Chandler Zoning Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application has been published in a local newspaper with general circulation in 
the City of Chandler, giving fifteen (15) days’ notice of time, place, and date of public hearing; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a notice of such hearing was posted on the property at least seven (7) days prior to 
said public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Planning and Zoning Commission as required by 
the Zoning Code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Legal Description of Property: 
  As described in EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
 

Said property is hereby rezoned from AG-1 to PAD for multi-family residential subject to 
the following conditions: 

1. Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development 
Booklet, entitled “The Ashley” and kept on file in the City of Chandler 
Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0051, modified by such conditions 
included at the time the Booklet was approved by the Chandler City Council 
and/or as thereafter amended, modified, or supplemented by the Chandler 
City Council. 

2. Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements 
including but not limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, 
median improvements, and street lighting to achieve conformance with City 
codes, standard details, and design manuals. 

 



Ordinance No. 4975 
Page 2 

3. Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes 
and deceleration lanes, per the standards of the Chandler Transportation 
Plan.

4. Multi-family residential shall be permitted with a maximum density of 16 
dwelling units per acre.

5. Minimum building setbacks shall be as provided below and further detailed 
in the development booklet:

Property Line Location Minimum Building Setback 

Arizona Ave. 50 ft. 

Appleby Rd. 26 ft. 

East Property Line 30 ft. 

South Property Line 10 ft. 

6. Prior to the execution of any lease, all prospective renters shall be given
written disclosure in their lease and in a separately signed disclosure
statement fully acknowledging that this development lies within the
Chandler Municipal Airport Impact Overlay District, as specified in the
Chandler Zoning Code. The disclosure statement shall acknowledge the
proximity of this development to the Chandler Municipal Airport that
includes a heliport and an aircraft storage facility, and that an avigational
easement exists and/or is required on the property, and further, shall
acknowledge that the property is subject to aircraft noise, overflight activity,
and other externalities. The requirement for such disclosure shall be
confirmed in an avigation notice covenant that runs with the land and shall
be recorded with Maricopa County Recorder prior to the issuance of the first
building permit for this development.

7. The subdivider/homebuilder/developer/multi-family manager shall display,
in a conspicuous place within the sales or leasing office, a map illustrating
the location of the subdivision within the Airport Impact Overlay District,
as well as the noise contours and overflight patterns, as identified and
depicted in the document entitled Chandler Municipal Airport, F. A. R. Part
150, Noise Compatibility Study, Noise Compatibility Program, Exhibit 6A
(Potential Airport Influence Area), as adopted by the Chandler City Council
(Resolution No. 2950, 11-5-98). Such map shall be a minimum size of 24”
x 36”.  Compliance with this condition shall be demonstrated by the
subdivider/homebuilder/developer/multi-family manager by submittal to
the Zoning Administrator of a signed affidavit and photograph that
acknowledges this disclosure and map display prior to beginning any lease
or sales activity. Failure to comply with this condition will result in
revocation of the Administrative Use Permit for the temporary sales office



Ordinance No. 4975 
Page 3 

in the event the multi-family development is platted to allow unit 
ownership. All requirements as set forth in this condition are the obligation 
of the subdivider/homebuilder/developer/multi-family manager and shall 
not be construed as a guarantee of disclosure by the City of Chandler.  

8. The above referenced information shall also be included within any 
Subdivision Public Report that is filed with the State of Arizona Department 
of Real Estate, as required by Arizona Revised Statutes § 28-8486 and 
Arizona Revised Statutes § 28-8464.  

9. The subdivider/homebuilder/developer shall provide the City with an 
avigational easement over the subject property in accordance with Section 
3004 of the City of Chandler Zoning Code. 

10. All townhouses and buildings shall be designed and built to achieve an 
interior noise level not to exceed 45 decibels (Ldn) from aircraft noise. A 
professional acoustical consultant, architect or engineer shall certify that the 
project’s construction plans are in conformance with this condition. 

11. The Final Plat shall contain the following statement on the cover sheet in a 
prominent location and in large text:  “This property is located within the 
Chandler Municipal Airport Impact Overlay District and is subject to 
aircraft noise and overflight activity and is encumbered by an avigational 
easement to the City of Chandler.”  

12. In the event the multi-family residential development is platted to allow unit 
ownership, prior to the time of making any purchase agreements, the 
subdivider/homebuilder/developer shall provide a written disclosure 
statement, for the signature of each buyer, acknowledging that this 
development lies within the Chandler Municipal Airport Impact Overlay 
District, as specified in the Chandler Zoning Code. The disclosure statement 
shall acknowledge the proximity of this development to the Chandler 
Municipal Airport and that an avigational easement exists and/or is required 
on the property, and further, shall acknowledge that the property is subject 
to aircraft noise and overflight activity and other externalities. This 
document signed by the homebuyer shall be recorded with Maricopa 
County Recorder’s Office upon sale of the property. The “Public 
Subdivision Report,” “Purchase Contracts,” “Covenants, Codes, & 
Restrictions (CC&R’s),” and the individual lot/unit property deeds shall 
include a disclosure statement outlining that the site is adjacent to or nearby 
an existing municipal airport, and the disclosure shall state that such uses 
are legal and should be expected to continue indefinitely. This responsibility 
for notice rests with the subdivider/homebuilder/developer and shall not be 
construed as an absolute guarantee by the City of Chandler for receiving 
such notice. 

13. In the event the multi-family residential development is platted to allow unit 
ownership, prior to the time of making any lot reservations or subsequent 



Ordinance No. 4975 
Page 4 

sales agreements, the subdivider/homebuilder/developer shall provide a 
written disclosure statement, for the signature of each buyer, 
acknowledging that the subdivision is located adjacent to or nearby existing 
railroad tracks and railroad right-of-way that may cause adverse noise, 
odors, and other externalities. The “Public Subdivision Report”, “Purchase 
Contracts”, CC&R’s, and the individual lot/unit property deeds shall 
include a disclosure statement outlining that the site is adjacent to or nearby 
an existing railroad track and railroad right-of-way, and the disclosure shall 
state that such uses are legal and should be expected to continue indefinitely. 
This responsibility for notice rests with the 
subdivider/homebuilder/developer and shall not be construed as an absolute 
guarantee by the City of Chandler for receiving such notice. 

14. All leases shall state that all questions, concerns, or complaints any tenant 
may have about the Chandler Municipal Airport or the operation of aircraft 
landing at, taking off from, or operating at or on Chandler Municipal Airport 
shall be directed solely to the manager of The Ashley development and not 
to the Chandler Municipal Airport, the City of Chandler, the FAA, any 
aircraft owner, or any pilot. All lease agreements shall also provide that it 
shall be within the sole and absolute discretion of the manager of The 
Ashley (and not the tenant) to determine (after the manager’s due 
consideration of all airport related acknowledgments and disclosures that 
are required by the Zoning Stipulations and consideration of all information 
known to The Ashley’s manager) whether or not, when, and how to 
communicate any tenant’s questions, concerns, or complaints to the 
Chandler Municipal Airport manager. 

15. Prior to building permit issuance for any structures the developer shall 
provide a DETERMINATION OF NO HAZARD TO AVIATION approval 
as issued by the FAA after filing an FAA Form 7460, Notice of Proposed 
Construction or Alteration. 

 
Section 2. The Planning Division of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to enter such 

changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of said Zoning 
Code in compliance with this Ordinance.  

 
Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance, or any parts hereof, are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 4. In any case, where any building, structure, or land is used in violation of this 

Ordinance, the Planning Division of the City of Chandler may institute an 
injunction or any other appropriate action in proceeding to prevent the use of such 
building, structure, or land.  

 
Section 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of 



Ordinance No. 4975 
Page 5 

competent jurisdiction, then this entire ordinance is invalid and shall have no force 
or effect. 

 
Section 6. A violation of this Ordinance shall be a Class 1 misdemeanor subject to the 

enforcement and penalty provisions set forth in Section 1-8.3 of the Chandler City 
Code.  Each day a violation continues, or the failure to perform any act or duty 
required by this Ordinance or the Zoning Code, shall constitute a separate offense. 

 
INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, 
Arizona, this ____ day of ______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of _______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 

 
CERTIFICATION 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 4975 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
____ day of _____________, 2021, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
      __________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
CITY ATTORNEY  
 
Published: 
 

 
 
 
 



Ordinance No. 4975 
Page 6 

Exhibit ‘A’  Legal Description 

 



Ordinance No. 4975 
Page 7 

 
Exhibit ‘A’ 

 
 

 

 



S A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

E APPLEBY RD

E QUEEN CREEK RD

W APPLEBY RD

S CALYPSO BL

S S
UN

LA
ND

 D
R

W ASTER DR

W QUEEN CREEK RD

E BALSAM DR

E ASTER DR

W HACKBERRY DR

E MARKWOOD DR

E AZALEA DR

E WISTERIA DR

E DESERT BROOM DR

E RALEIGH DR

E BLUEJAY DR

E LANTANA DR

E DOGWOOD DR

E SHAMROCK DR

S A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

S J
AS

MI
NE

 D
R E INDIGO DR

E HACKBERRY DR

E JADE DR

S W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N 

ST

E HONEYSUCKLE PL

S D
EL

AW
AR

E 
ST

S C
OL

OR
AD

O 
ST

S E
ILE

EN
 D

R

W AZALEA DR

E INDIGO DR

S A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

S D
EL

AW
AR

E 
ST

S S
UN

LA
ND

 D
R

S J
AS

MI
NE

 D
R

S J
AS

MI
NE

 D
R

S C
OL

OR
AD

O 
ST

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

Proposed Project Details
AREA PLAN AMENDMENT TO THE CHANDLER
AIRPARK AREA PLAN/REZONE/PDP/PRE-PLAT
5 Net Acres Approximately
78 Multi-Family Unit Townhomes
15.7 dwelling units per acre (du/ac)

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Queen Creek Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PAD
Camden 
Chandler

Apartments

PLH20-0050/PLH20-0051/PLT21-0015 The Ashley ´

^

PAD
Paseo Lindo

PAD
Chandler Creek LP
Industrial (Future)

PAD
Queen Creek

Commerce Center
Industrial (Future)

PAD

PAD
Carino Estates

PAD
Enclave

at
Hamilton Ranch

School
Hamilton

High
School

PAD
Church Expansion

(Future)

PAD
Paseo Place

PAD
Chandler Center

Commercial (Future)

CO
UN

TY

PAD
Cadence

at
Chandler

Commercial (Future) COUNTY

COUNTY

COUNTY

COUNTY

ANO-1
55ldn-6-ldn

PAD
Hamilton
Heights

PAD
Liv Avenida
Apartments

PAD
Village at

Carino Commons
Commercial (Future)

C-1
PAD

PADAG
-1

PAD
La Costera



S A
RI

ZO
NA

 AV

E APPLEBY RD

E QUEEN CREEK RD

W APPLEBY RD

S CALYPSO BL

S S
UN

LA
ND

 D
R

W ASTER DR

W QUEEN CREEK RD

E BALSAM DR

E ASTER DR

W HACKBERRY DR

E MARKWOOD DR

E AZALEA DR

E WISTERIA DR

E DESERT BROOM DR

E RALEIGH DR

E BLUEJAY DR

E LANTANA DR

E DOGWOOD DR

E SHAMROCK DR

S A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

S J
AS

MI
NE

 D
R E INDIGO DR

E HACKBERRY DR

E JADE DR

S W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N 

ST

E HONEYSUCKLE PL

S D
EL

AW
AR

E 
ST

S C
OL

OR
AD

O 
ST

S E
ILE

EN
 D

R

W AZALEA DR

E INDIGO DR

S A
RI

ZO
NA

 P
L

S D
EL

AW
AR

E 
ST

S S
UN

LA
ND

 D
R

S J
AS

MI
NE

 D
R

S J
AS

MI
NE

 D
R

S C
OL

OR
AD

O 
ST

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Ar
izo

na
 A

ve
.

Proposed Project Details
AREA PLAN AMENDMENT TO THE CHANDLER
AIRPARK AREA PLAN/REZONE/PDP/PRE-PLAT
5 Net Acres Approximately
78 Multi-Family Unit Townhomes
15.7 dwelling units per acre (du/ac)

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Queen Creek Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PAD
Camden 
Chandler

Apartments

PLH20-0050/PLH20-0051/PLT21-0015 The Ashley ´

^

PAD
Paseo Lindo

PAD
Chandler Creek LP
Industrial (Future)

PAD
Queen Creek

Commerce Center
Industrial (Future)

PAD

PAD
Carino Estates

PAD
Enclave

at
Hamilton Ranch

School
Hamilton

High
School

PAD
Church Expansion

(Future)

PAD
Paseo Place

PAD
Chandler Center

Commercial (Future)

CO
UN

TY

PAD
Cadence

at
Chandler

Commercial (Future) COUNTY

COUNTY

COUNTY

COUNTY

ANO-1
55ldn-6-ldn

PAD
Hamilton
Heights

PAD
Liv Avenida
Apartments

PAD
Village at

Carino Commons
Commercial (Future)

C-1
PAD

PADAG
-1

PAD
La Costera



 
 
 
MEMORANDUM    Airport - Memo No. 21-033 
 
DATE:  April 15, 2021 
 
TO:  Kevin Mayo, Planning Administrator 
 
FROM: Chris Andres, Airport Planning Administrator 
 
SUBJECT: Airport Conflict Evaluation 

PLH20-0051 The Ashley 
 Southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Appleby Road 
 
At their April 14, 2020 meeting, the Chandler Airport Commission ("Commission") discussed 
The Ashley multifamily residential project located at the southeast corner of Arizona 
Avenue and Appleby Road. 
 
Finding: The Commission determined the proposed development constitutes a conflict 
with existing or planned airport uses.  
 
Conflict(s) Cited:  The proposed development contains 78 single family residential units and 
the site will experience aviation noise and vibration impact from aircraft in the normal 
traffic pattern and arrival and departure routes.  Approximately 156 residents would be 
expected to be exposed to aircraft noise at this location. 
 
Conflict Resolution(s): If the development is approved, physical and administrative 
corrective actions should be employed including, without limitation:   

 
Physical corrective actions: (1) construction of all units built with noise attenuation 
construction materials and techniques to reduce the ambient interior noise levels to less 
than 45 decibels; (2) installation of roadway-style signs at each driveway entrance identifying 
the presence of low flying aircraft (this stipulation was added in the final motion); 
 
Administrative corrective actions:  
If the development will be for unit ownership, or will be converted to condominiums in the 
future, then administrative corrective actions are: (1) all prospective purchasers of property 
in the subdivision should be required to sign separate disclosure statements, 
acknowledging (i) the proximity to the Chandler Airport (including the heliport), and (ii) the 



Memo No. AP21-033 
April 15, 2021 
Page 2 
 
potential for impact from aviation noise and vibrations; (2) all prospective purchasers of 
property should be required to sign the disclosure statements before a purchase contract 
is signed and again at the transaction closing; (3) dedication of an avigational easement to 
the City; (4) display of a large size map in the onsite sales office identifying the Airport 
Impact Overlay District, the noise contours and overflight patterns as depicted in Exhibit 6A 
in the FAR Part 150 Noise Compatibility Study document as adopted by the Chandler City 
Council (Resolution No. 2950, 11-5-98), and the noise contours as identified in the Chandler 
Airpark Area Plan; (5) submittal of a signed affidavit and photograph of the prior referenced 
map display to the Zoning Administrator; (6) inclusion of an affirmative disclosure 
statement on the final plat; (7) inclusion of the physical and administrative corrective 
actions in the Subdivision Public Report that is submitted to the Arizona Department of 
Real Estate. 

 
If the development is for unit rental, then administrative corrective actions are: (1) all 
prospective tenants should be required to sign separate disclosure statements, 
acknowledging (i) the proximity to the Chandler Airport, including the heliport, (ii) the 
potential for impact from aircraft noise and vibrations, and (iii) proximity to an aircraft 
engine testing facility and aircraft storage; (2) dedication of an avigational easement to the 
City; (3) display of a large size map in the management/sales office identifying the Airport 
Impact Overlay District, the noise contours and overflight patterns as depicted in Exhibit 6A 
in the FAR Part 150 Noise Compatibility Study document as adopted by the Chandler City 
Council (Resolution No. 2950, 11-5-98), and the noise contours as identified in the Chandler 
Airpark Area Plan; (4) submittal of a signed affidavit and photograph of the prior referenced 
map display; (5) inclusion of an affirmative disclosure statement on the final plat; (6) 
requirement that all rental leases shall provide that all questions, concerns, or complaints 
any tenant may have about airport operations shall be directed solely at the multifamily 
apartment manager; (7) requirement that all rental leases shall provide that it shall be 
within the sole and absolute discretion of the multifamily apartment manager (and not the 
tenant) to determine whether or not, when and how to communicate any tenant's question 
concern, or complaint to the Chandler Municipal Airport Manager.  
 
Commission Members in Attendance:  Chairman David Sperling, Vice Chair Chris Hawley, 
Sherri Koshiol, Alicia Kruse, Dave Siegel, Robert Bozelli and Sky McCorkle were in 
attendance.  This attendance represented a quorum.  The Commission voted 6-1 to 
forward a report to the Planning Administrator indicating the finding noted above.  
Commissioner Bozelli cast the lone dissenting vote. 
 
cc:   David De La Torre, Planning Manager 
 Susan Fiala, Senior City Planner 
 
Attachment: Airport Conflict Evaluation AP21-032 



 
 

 
 

Prepared for: 
 

Porter-Kyle Builders 
 

Submitted by: 
 

Sean B. Lake 
Pew & Lake, PLC 

1744 S. Val Vista Drive, Suite 217 
Mesa, AZ 85204 

 
Submitted to: 

 
The City of Chandler 

 
May 10, 2021 

The Ashley 
SEC of Arizona Avenue and Appleby Road  

Chandler, Arizona 
Area Plan Amendment, Rezoning, Preliminary 

Development Plan and Preliminary Plat 
PLH20-0050, PLH20-0051 and PLT21-0015 



The Ashley Development Team 
 
Applicant       Mr. Sean B. Lake 
        Pew & Lake, PLC 

 1744 South Val Vista Drive 
 Suite 217 

        Mesa, AZ  85204 
        Sean.lake@pewandlake.com 
 
Property Owner      Gwen D. Farmer 
        21205 S. Arizona Avenue 
        Chandler, AZ  85248 
         
Developer       Mr. Michael Stephan 
        Porter Kyle Builders 
        8149 East Evans Road, Suite 8 
        Scottsdale, AZ  85260 
        mstephan@porterkyle.com 
 
Architect       Mr. Andrew Hesse 
        Porter Kyle Builders 
        8149 East Evans Road, Suite 8 
        Scottsdale, AZ  85260 
        ahesse@porterkyle.com 
      
Engineer       Mr. Daniel “Ox” Auxier 
        EPS Group 

1130 North Alma School Road 
Suite 120 

        Mesa, AZ  85201 
        dan.auxier@epsgroupinc.com 
 
Landscape Architecture     Mr. Jesse Westad 
        WERK Urban Design 
        455 N. 3rd Street, Suite 1010 
        Phoenix, AZ  85004 
        jesse@werkurbandesign.com 
 



 

Table of Contents 
Project Overview ........................................................................................................................................................2 

About Porter Kyle Builders .........................................................................................................................................2 

Relationship to Surrounding Properties .....................................................................................................................2 

Existing Area Plan Designation and Zoning Classification ..........................................................................................3 

Our Requests ..............................................................................................................................................................4 

General Plan and Chandler Airpark Area Plan ............................................................................................................4 

Zoning Analysis ...........................................................................................................................................................5 

The Development Plan ...............................................................................................................................................6 

Design Intent ..........................................................................................................................................................6 

Development Standards .........................................................................................................................................8 

Landscaping and Open Spaces ...............................................................................................................................9 

Parking ................................................................................................................................................................. 10 

Neighborhood Outreach.......................................................................................................................................... 10 

Conclusion ............................................................................................................................................................... 11 

 

Table of Exhibits 
A Site Plan 
B Perspective Renderings 
C Elevations 
D Unit Floor Plans 
E Clubhouse Floorplans 
F Wall Plan 
G Material and Color Palette 
H Preliminary Landscape Plan 
I Signage 
J Site Details and Amenities 
K Preliminary Grading and Drainage 
L Preliminary Plat 
M Miscellaneous 

 

 



[2] 
 

Project Overview 
 

On behalf of Porter Kyle Builders, Pew & Lake, PLC is pleased to submit this project narrative and 
Conceptual Site Plan for The Ashley, a proposed multifamily development on 4.96 net acres 
located at the southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Appleby Roads in the City of Chandler. 
The small, infill site is known as Maricopa County Parcel Number 303-041-017 and the 
approximate boundaries of the proposed development site are shown below. 
 

 

About Porter Kyle Builders 
Based in Scottsdale, Arizona, Porter Kyle builders is a vertically integrated, multifamily developer 
that specializes in the design and build of contemporary and sustainable townhome 
communities. The Porter Kyle team has been involved in the development and construction of 
over 5,000 multi-family units with construction values in excess of $500 million.  

Relationship to Surrounding Properties 
 
As shown on the next page, the site is currently a single residential home on a property that lies 
within unincorporated Maricopa County.  It is surrounded by a residential subdivision to the 
south, railroad tracks to the east, a residential subdivision is currently being developed on the 
north and Hamilton High School is across Arizona Avenue to the west.   



[3] 
 

 
 

 Area Plan Designation Zoning 
Classification 

Existing Use 

North LMDR PAD Church, Residential 
South MDR PAD Residential 
East Industrial RU-43 (County) RR Tracks, 

Maricopa County 
Residential 

West N/A PAD Hamilton High 
School 

Project Site Commercial/Office/ 
Business Park 

RU-43 (County) Single residential 
home 

 

Existing Area Plan Designation and Zoning Classification 
 
As shown above and in the graphic below, the site is currently designated for 
Commercial/Office/Business Park in the Chandler Airpark Area Plan and has no zoning designation.  

 
Chandler Airpark Area Plan 

 
 
 
 
 



[4] 
 

Our Requests 
 

Our requests to the City of Chandler are: 
 

1. Annexation of the property into the City’s jurisdictional boundaries (under a separate process). 
2. An amendment to the Chandler Airpark Area Plan from Commercial/Office/Business Park to 

HDR (12.1 to 18 DU/AC). 
3. Rezoning of the property from Maricopa County RU-43 to MF-2 with a Planned Area 

Development (PAD) Overlay. 
4. Preliminary Development Plan. 
5. Preliminary Plat. 

 
If approved, these requests will allow for the development of a 78-unit townhome development.  
 

General Plan and Chandler Airpark Area Plan 
 

The site is designated on the City of Chandler’s General Plan as Employment. The Employment 
designation in the General Plan specifically states that the area between Arizona Avenue and the 
Union Pacific Railroad is unique as it is characterized by a mix of land uses including industrial, 
commercial, institutional, recreation, neighborhoods and a range of residential densities 
(emphasis added). The appropriate land use is determined by the adjacent uses, parcel size, and 
transitioning techniques.  
 
The site is also within the Chandler Airpark Area Plan. The Area Plan designates the site as 
Commercial/Office/Business Park. This request will amend the Chandler Airpark Area Plan from 
Commercial/ Office/Business Park to High Density Residential (HDR). Given the size of this parcel, 
the setbacks required from residential properties and the related parking requirements, the 
development of the site as Commercial, Office, or Business Park is not viable.  Additionally, an 
employment/commercial office business park use would not be compatible with the adjacent 
residential development. 
 
The proposed residential use is compatible with the existing uses of the surrounding properties, 
as much of the surrounding area has been developed, or is being developed, as residential. North 
of the site, La Costera Landing is currently under development, and south of the site is the 
existing Cachet at Paseo Lindo residential subdivision. On the east side of the property, the Union 
Pacific Railroad buffers the site from the County land designated in the Airpark Area Plan as 
Industrial.  While the proposed density for the Ashley is higher than the nearby residential 
subdivisions, it is worth noting that the unique parcel shape and configuration allows this density 
to be achieved at a building height of 28-feet, which is less than the 45-feet allowed in the MF-
2 zoning district, and the “multiple story structures” allowed in the HDR land use category.  The 



[5] 
 

Airpark Plan specifically mentions that “densities achieved will be predicated on available 
infrastructure and development impacts.”  The HDR land use designation allows densities that 
fall between 12.1 du/ac to 18 du/ac.  The density proposed for The Ashley, at 15.72 net du/ac, is 
necessary for the viability of the project, given the extensive amount of offsite improvements 
that must be installed with the development of this property.  This proposed density falls within 
the middle of the allowable density range. 
 

Chandler Airpark Area Plan:  Land Use Designations

Existing Designation: 
Commercial/Office/Business Park

Proposed Designation:
High Density Residential 

 
 
 
Finally, the development site is outside of the 55-decibel noise contour shown in the Area Plan 
making it suitable for residential development. 
 

 Zoning Analysis 
 
As proposed, The Ashley will feature 78 dwelling units at a resulting density of 15.72 net du/ac. 
This density falls squarely within the Planned Area Development for multi-family (PAD/MF-2) 
zoning district and the HDR area plan category we are seeking. As expressed in Section 35-901 
of the Chandler Municipal Code, the MF-2 zoning district is “intended to provide a diversity of 
dwelling units at an appropriate density which will enable Chandler to offer a balanced housing 
market.” As previously noted, this small, infill parcel presents the perfect opportunity for a unique 
multi-family development that will provide a transitional use between the existing single-family 
residential development south of the parcel, and the church and residential use north of the 
development site. The Ashley will bring a modern, unique housing product to the City of 



[6] 
 

Chandler that is not currently available in this part of the City. 
 
The proposed development meets or exceeds the development standards contained in the 
requested zoning district, and the community has been designed to capitalize on the shape of 
the site, without requesting the 45-foot allowed height in the underlying zoning district. The 
two-story height proposed in The Ashley is consistent with some of the homes in Paseo Lindo, 
and is also less than the height that would be allowed in a commercial district. 
 
It is also important to note that, with regards to the subdivision to the south, Conditions of 
Approval from the original Paseo Lindo zoning case (Ord. No. 3866) required: 1) a 35-foot 
setback on the north property line, 2) a double-row of trees and 3) allows development of this 
parcel to measure building setbacks from the nearest residential homes in Paseo Lindo, rather 
than the parcel’s south property line.   
  

The Development Plan                                     
 
Porter Kyle is excited to introduce The Ashley, a proposed multi-family development at the 
southeast corner of Arizona Avenue and Appleby Road.  This small, infill parcel presents the 
perfect opportunity for a unique multi-family development that will provide a transitional use 
between the existing single-family residential development south of the parcel, and the church 
and residential use north of the development site. The Ashley will bring a unique housing product 
that is not currently available in this part of Chandler.  The Ashley will feature 78 townhomes in 
a gated community.   
 
As shown on the Site Plan, The Ashley is designed to take advantage of the long, rectilinear 
configuration of the site.  It has a main entry off Appleby Road, that is directly opposite the 
clubhouse, pool and main amenity area.   A single, meandering, 25’ drive aisle proceeds down 
the center of the rectangular property that provides access to twelve different residential 
buildings, as well as secondary points of egress. The townhome buildings contain three to eight 
units apiece. The homes in The Ashley range in size from 750 to 1,500  livable square feet and 
each home features a two-car direct-access garage, a private backyard and upper-level balcony. 

Design Intent 
 
Porter Kyle designs and builds contemporary, energy efficient townhome communities that exude 
style. Designed by award winning architects, their new construction luxury townhomes live more 
like a single-family home than a traditional garden-style building. Porter Kyle is known for 
authentic and innovative design and quality construction.  Some of the features found in Porter 
Kyle communities include: 



[7] 
 

• Swimming Pools in every Community 
• Outdoor living in private backyards 
• Thoughtful landscape designs 
• Interiors that include 10-foot ceilings, elegant hardwood style flooring, stainless steel 

appliances and attached garages 
• Sustainable and environmentally friendly building materials 
• Energy efficient LED fixtures throughout the property.  

 
Shown on the next page are examples of the overall design aesthetic and quality finishes 
proposed for The Ashley: 
 

 
 

 
 



[8] 
 

 

Development Standards 
 
The Ashley community has been thoughtfully designed with the following development 
standards.  Shown on the next page are the required MF-2 standards, and the manner in which 
The Ashley meets or exceeds those standards. The design of this subdivision will enhance the 
living experience for residents of The Ashley, and also mitigate impacts to the surrounding 
neighborhoods. 
 

 Standard Required- MF-2   Proposed- 
PAD/MF-2 

Front Setback (Arizona Avenue) 50’ 50’ 
Rear Setback (East Side) 10’ 30’ 
Street Side Setback (Appleby Rd) 30’ 26’ 
Side Setback (Paseo Lindo) 10’ 10’ 
   
Building Height 45’ 26’ 
   
Density (maximum) 18 du/ac 15.72 net du/ac 
   
Common Open Space  24,750 s.f. 

(150 s.f. per 
bedroom) 

36,093 s.f. 
(421 s.f. per 
bedroom) 

   
Private Open Space  8,814 s.f. 

(113 s.f. per unit) 
21,450 s.f. 

(275 s.f. per unit) 
Lot Coverage (maximum) 45% 32% 



[9] 
 

It is worth noting that the while this development meets the building setbacks required for an 
arterial/collector intersection, the perimeter walls along Arizona Avenue encroach into the 
landscape setback.  This encroachment is to ensure the continuity of the gated community and 
provide security to residents in the Ashley.  Along Arizona Avenue, the perimeter fencing has 
been designed to provide steel view fencing atop a solid base as shown below.  This will provide 
visual transparency while providing the security necessary to an adjacent arterial street. 
 

 
 
 
Appleby Road is designated as a collector and requires a 30-foot building setback.  However, 
since the street dead-ends at the railroad crossing, this development is providing a 26-foot 
building setback.  Additionally, the fences that create the private yards that back onto Appleby 
Road vary from 12-feet to 14-feet from the property line.  This variation provides visual interest 
along Appleby and breaks up the vast expanse of wall along Appleby Road. 

Landscaping and Open Spaces 
As shown in the chart above, The Ashley provides an abundance of private and common open 
space.  Similarly, the landscaping proposed in this community exceeds the code requirement.  
Where 73 trees and 434 shrubs are required, The Ashley will have 106 trees and 665 shrubs.  The 
caliper and container sizes for the chosen plants and trees are also in compliance with the code.  
The landscaping in The Ashley allows for a lot coverage that is well below the coverage allowed 
in the MF-2 zoning district.  Finally, the amenities provided in The Ashley include a fitness center, 
pool, outdoor barbecues, three pocket parks and a dog park creating a modern, livable 
multifamily community. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



[10] 
 

Parking 
As shown below, The Ashley provides more than the amount of parking required for multifamily 
developments in the City of Chandler. Each home has a two-car garage, and 35 of the units have 
full-size, two-car driveways.  Where there are three-bedroom units without a driveway, there is 
surface parking to accommodate a possible third car.  Additionally, the surface parking is 
sufficient to accommodate visitors to the community. 
 

Parking Analysis 
Resident Parking Required # of Units Required Spaces The Ashley PAD- Provided 
1 Bedroom (1.5 spaces per 
unit) 

20 30 40 garage spaces 
 

2 Bedroom (2 per unit) 29 58 58 garage spaces 
 

3 Bedroom (2.25 Spaces 
per unit) 

29 66 58 garage spaces 
 

    
Sub Total  154 156 Spaces 
Visitor/Guest Parking 
Required 

.25 Spaces per Unit 20 Spaces   24 spaces 

Total Required Parking  178 Spaces  180 Spaces 
    
Garage Parking    156 spaces 
Surface  Parking   24 spaces 
Total Parking Provided   180 spaces 

Neighborhood Outreach 
 
As required by the City’s Municipal Code, a virtual neighborhood meeting was held on August 
3, 2020 via GoToMeeting. The required 1320’ notification distance yielded a notification list of 
257 property owners. The developer attended the meeting along with land use Counsel. Three 
neighbors attended the meeting. A second neighborhood meeting was held on March 16, 2021.  
Sixteen individuals participated in the virtual meeting, including members of the development 
team and City staff.  The primary interest of the neighbors is the landscaping on the south side 
of the development and how it relates to the existing Paseo Lindo subdivision. 
 
 
Additionally, the Developer and Applicant  attended a virtual meeting of the Cachet at Paseo 
Lindo Homeowner’s Association on January 14, 2021.  The proposed development was presented 
to the Board of Directors and approximately six to eight homeowner attendees, a few of whom 
had participated in the neighborhood meeting.  The overall attitude toward The Ashley 
development was positive, and the neighbors indicated that they are looking forward to the 
development of this property for this proposed use. 



[11] 
 

Conclusion 
Porter Kyle has identified the City of Chandler as a dynamic community in need of a diversity of 
housing options for its current and future residents and is excited to develop a multifamily 
residential community at this unique, infill location. We look forward to gathering input from 
City staff that will allow us to make our vision for this site a reality. 
 

 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A- 
Site Plan 

 
 







 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit B- 
Perspective 
Renderings 

 
 

















 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit C- 
Elevations 

 
 















 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit D- 
Unit Floorplans 

 
 









 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit E- 
Clubhouse 
Floorplan 

 
 





 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit F- 
Wall Plan 

 
 





 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit G- 
Material and Color 

Palette 
 

 





 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit H- 
Preliminary 

Landscape Plan 
 

 







COLOR: MESA BEIGE OR SIMILAR



 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit I- 
Signage 

 
 





 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit J- 
Site Details and 

Amenities 
 

 







THE ASHLEY PLAY SPACE AMENITY EXHIBIT
04/09/2021

NAVIGATION TEXT 
CONCRETE SANDBLAST 

PROPELLER PLANE
CONCRETE SANDBLAST

AVIATION STAR
CONCRETE SANDBLAST





 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit K- 
Preliminary 
Grading and 

Drainage Plan 
 

 







 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit L- 
Preliminary Plat 

 
 



1257.44'

MOTOR

N89°04'26"E  1289.81'

N89°04'26"E  1257.44'

N89°04'26"E  2634.82'
1322.86'

25
.0

'

8.0'
P.U.E.

8.0'
P.U

.E.

16.5'
B.S.L STBK

25
.0

'

20.0'

4"
 F

IR
EL

IN
E

8" WATER
8" WATER8" WATER8" WATER

8"
 W

A
T

ER

4" FIRELINE

4"
 F

IR
EL

IN
E

8" SEWER
8" SEWER

8" SEWER

8"
 S

EW
ER

6" SEWER

E.APPLEBY ROAD

N
. A

R
IZ

O
N

A
 A

V
EN

U
E

PR
O

P.30.0'
R

/W

EX
.33.0'

R
/W

12.0'
SEWER ESMT.

20.0'
TCE.

S44°20'17"W  35.52'

N89°04'26"E  65.00'

S0°23'56"E  58.01'

N89°04'29"E  57.00'

S0°23'56"E  8.00'

CITY OF CHANDLER

MARICOPA COUNTY

FIRE SPRINKLER
CONNECTION

FIRE SPRINKLER
CONNECTION

FIRE SPRINKLER
CONNECTION

FIRE SPRINKLER
CONNECTION

FH (TYP)

FH (TYP)

25.0'
B.S.L.
ST

BK

EX.65.0'
R/W

EX. BUILDING
(TO BE DEMOLISHED)

EX. STRUCTURES
(TO BE DEMOLISHED)

10.0'

49
.0

'

REFUSE
ENCLOSURE

25
.0

'
BU

IL
D

IN
G

SE
T

BA
C

K

50.0'
BUILDING
SETBACK

CITY OF CHANDLER

MARICOPA COUNTY

VEHICLE ACCESS
ROLLING GATE

1

2

1

3 UNITS

8 UNITS
8 UNITS

8 UNITS

8 UNITS8 UNITS

3 UNITS

BARBED WIRE FENCE
TO BE REMOVED

FENCING
(TYP)

TO BE REMOVED

18.1'
FIBER

 O
PT

IC

APN. 303-41-002N
FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH

CHANDLER
ZONING: PAD

N
0°

23
'5

5"
W

  2
64

5.
76

'

24
43

.7
5'

20
2.

01
'

CACHET AT PASEO LINDO
COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

BK. 977, PG. 17, MCR
CHANDLER

ZONING: PAD

EXIT ONLY
ROLLING GATE

PROP. 71.0'
R/W

PROP. DECLARATION LANE

EX. DRIVEWAY
TO BE REMOVED

13
.0

'

49
.0

'

38.8'
25.0'

26.0'

26.0'

16.0'
DW16.0'

DW16.0'
DW

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
C

H
A

N
D

LE
R

M
A

R
IC

O
PA

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

30
.0

'

5.0'
S/W

REMOVE EXISTING
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

6.0'
S/W

REMOVE EXISTING
BARBED WIRE FENCE

REMOVE EXISTING
BARBED WIRE FENCE

10.0'

13.0'

16
.5

'
2.

5'
O

.H
.

16
.5

'
2.

5'
O

.H
.

REMOVE EXISTING
FENCING (TYP)

CACHET AT PASEO LINDO
COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

BK. 977, PG. 17, MCR
CHANDLER

ZONING: PAD

APN. 303-41-002N
FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH

CHANDLER
ZONING: PAD

STORM DRAIN
EQUALIZAR PIPE (TYP)

STORM DRAIN
EQUALIZAR PIPE (TYP)

FDC (TYP)

M
A

T
C

H
 S

H
E

E
T

  2

10.0'
WAT
ESMT

30.0'

30
.0

'

VISIBILITY
EASEMENT

N89°04'29"E  1320.42'

N89°04'29"E  2640.84'

E. OCOTILLO ROAD

N
0°31'45"W

  2645.74'

S.
 H

A
M

IL
T

O
N

 S
T

R
EE

T
 A

LI
G

N
M

EN
T

P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t

PP01

130

scale

0 30 60

feet

PRELIMINARY PLAT
FOR

THE ASHLEY PROJECT DATA

A PORTION OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4  OF SECTION 15, TOWNSHIP 2
SOUTH, RANGE 5 EAST OF THE GILA AND SALT RIVER MERIDIAN

MARICOPA COUNTY, ARIZONA

A.P.N.: 303-41-017
CURRENT LAND USE: RESIDENTIAL
EXISTING GENERAL PLAN: EMPLOYMENT

EXISTING ZONING: PAD/MF-2
PROPOSED ZONING: MF-2

GROSS AREA: ± 6.13 ACRES  (± 267,173.70 SQ. FT.)
NET AREA: ± 4.95 ACRES  (± 215,035.49 SQ. FT.)

DENSITY: 15.76 DU/ACRE (OF NET AREA)

NO. OF UNITS
1 BEDROOM 20 UNITS (26%)
2 BEDROOM 30 UNITS (38%)
3 BEDROOM 28 UNITS (36%)
TOTAL 78 UNITS (100%)

OPEN SPACE: ± 1.76 ACRES  (± 76,665.6 SQ. FT.)
OPEN SPACE (%): 36% OF NET AREA

PROJECT TEAM
N.T.S.

VICINITY MAP
DEVELOPER
PORTER KYLE BUILDERS
8149 E. EVANS ROAD, STE 8
SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85260
TEL:  (480)-939-3330
CONTACT:  MIKE STEPHAN

mstephan@porterkyle.com

CIVIL ENGINEERING:
EPS GROUP, INC.
1130 N. ALMA SCHOOL ROAD, STE 120
MESA, AZ 85201
TEL:  (480)-503-2250
FAX:  (480)-503-2258
CONTACT:  DANIEL AUXIER, P.E.

dan.auxier@epsgroupinc.com

QUEEN CREEK RD

A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 A
V

E

SEC. 15,
T.2 S., R.5 E.

PROJECT
SITE

N.T.S.

PARKING SUMMARY
PARKING REQUIRED

1 BR UNITS 30 SPACES (1 PER UNIT)
2 BR UNITS 60 SPACES (2 PER UNIT)
3 BR UNIT 63 SPACES (2.25 SPACES PER UNIT)
COMMUNITY CENTER (2400SF) 12 SPACES (1 PER 200 SF)
TOTAL REQUIRED 165 SPACES

PARKING PROVIDED
1 BR UNITS 30 SPACES
2 BR UNITS 60 SPACES
3 BR UNITS 63 SPACES
COMMUNITY CENTER 23 SPACES (2 ADA STALL)
TOTAL PROVIDED 176 SPACES

ENCLOSED/COVERED PARKING 153 SPACES
UNCOVERED PARKING 23  SPACES ( 2 ADA STALL)
TOTAL PARKING 176 SPACES

Designer:
Drawn by:

Pr
oj

ec
t:

Sheet No.

Job No.

Call at least two full working days

before you begin excavation.

Dial 8-1-1 or 1-800-STAKE-IT (782-5348)

In Maricopa County: (602)263-1100

w
 
w

 
w

 
.
 
e
 
p
 
s
 
g
 
r
 
o
 
u
 
p
 
i
 
n
 
c
 
.
 
c
 
o
 
m

T
:
4
8
0
.
5
0
3
.
2
2
5
0

F
:
4
8
0
.
5
0
3
.
2
2
5
8

2
0
4
5
 
S
.
 
V
i
n
e
y
a
r
d
 
A
v
e
,
 
S
u
i
t
e
 
1
0
1

|

M
e
s
a
,
 
A
Z
 
8
5
2
1
0

20
-0

50
4 

- 
T

he
 A

sh
le

y

T
he

 A
sh

le
y

G
ilb

er
t, 

A
ri

zo
na

DHC

JAJ

20-0504

of 2 C
.O

.C
. L

og
 N

o.
 P

L2
1-

00
15

SE
PT

EM
BE

R
 2

02
0 

- 
1S

T
 P

R
EL

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
T

 S
U

B.

OCOTILLO RD

M
C

Q
U

EE
N

 R
D

S.W. COR., SEC. 15, T2S, R5E
FOUND REBAR W/CAP IN HANDHOLE
RLS 49097.

S. 1/4 COR., SEC. 15, T2S, R5E
FOUND REBAR W/CAP IN

HANDHOLE RLS 49097.

CENTER OF SEC. 15, T2S, R5E
FOUND MDOT BRASS CAP IN

HANDHOLE W/SECTION MARKERS
PLS 48362.

1. ALL SITE IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING LANDSCAPE AND SITE CLEANUP, MUST BE
COMPLETED PRIOR TO CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FOR ANY BUILDING WITHIN A
PHASE.

2. ALL ROOF MOUNTED MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT SHALL BE FULLY SCREENED BY PARAPET
WALLS EQUAL TO, OR GREATER THAN, THE HIGHEST POINT ON THE MECHANICAL
EQUIPMENT.

3. SOLID MASONRY WALLS AND GATES EQUAL TO, OR GREATER THAN, THE HIGHEST
POINT ON THE MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT SHALL SCREEN ALL GROUND MOUNTED
MECHANICAL EQUIPMENT.

4. ALL EXTERNAL LIGHTING SHALL BE LOCATED AND DESIGNED TO PREVENT RAYS FROM
BEING DIRECTED OFF OF THE PROPERTY UPON WHICH THE LIGHTING IS LOCATED.

5. THE FIRE DEPARTMENT DOUBLE CHECK ASSEMBLY SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE
ADJACENT WALL COLOR.

6. SIGNS REQUIRE SEPARATE PERMIT.
7. THERE SHALL BE NO OBSTRUCTION OF SITE SIGNAGE BY LANDSCAPE PLANT MATERIAL,

AND THAT SUCH MUST BE RELOCATED/CORRECTED BEFORE THE FIELD INSPECTION
WILL ACCEPT/PASS THE SIGN IN THE FIELD OR ISSUE A CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FOR
A PROJECT.

8. ALL TRANSFORMER BOXES, METER PANELS AND ELECTRIC EQUIPMENT, BACKFLOW
DEVICES OR ANY OTHER UTILITY EQUIPMENT NOT ABLE TO BE OR REQUIRED TO BE
SCREENED BY LANDSCAPING OR WALLS, SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE BUILDING
COLOR.

9. ALL WALLS OVER 7’ IN HEIGHT, SITE LIGHTING, SIGNAGE, RAMADAS AND SHADE
STRUCTURES REQUIRE SEPARATE SUBMITTAL AND PERMITS.

GENERAL SITE PLAN NOTES

W. 1/4 COR., SEC. 15, T2S, R5E
FOUND CITY OF CHANDLER BRASS CAP FLUSH

FOUND PK NAIL
UNTAGGED
APPOXIED SHINER RLS 15573

- THIS SUBDIVISION IS WITHIN CHANDLER MUNICIPAL AIRPORT; AIRPORT
IMPACT OVERLAY DISTRICT.  AN AVIATION OR AVIGATION EASEMENT
SHALL BE PROVIDED AT THE TIME OF FINAL PLATTING.

- THE IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT WILL NOT BE FULLY
APPROVED BY THE CITY AND THE CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY OR
ACCEPTANCE WILL NOT BE ISSUED UNTIL THE OVERHEAD UTILITY LINE
UNDERGROUNDING REQUIREMENT HAS BEEN SATISFIED.

- THE IMPROVEMENTS SHOWN ON THE SET OF PLANS WILL NOT BE FULLY
APPROVED BY THE CITY AND THE CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY WILL
NOT BE ISSUED UNTIL THE IRRIGATION FACILITY UNDERGROUNDING
REQUIREMENT HAS BEEN SATISFIED.

- VISIBILITY EASEMENTS RESTRICTIONS: ANY
OBJECT, WALL, STRUCTURE, MOUND OR
LANDSCAPING (MATURE) OVER 24” IN HEIGHT IS NOT ALLOWED
WITHIN THE EASEMENT EXCEPT TREES TRIMMED TO NOT LESS THAN 6'
ABOVE GROUND. TREES SHALL BE SPACED NOT LESS THAN 8' APART.

NOTES



N
. A

R
IZ

O
N

A
 A

V
EN

U
E

N89°04'26"E  65.00'

N
0°

23
'5

5"
W

  2
64

5.
76

'

24
43

.7
5'

20
2.

01
'

0+00 1+00

6.0'

41.8'

2.3'

65.2'

8.0'

5.2'

60.0'

71.0'

N89°04'29"E  1320.42'

N89°04'29"E  2640.84'

E. OCOTILLO ROAD

N
0°31'45"W

  2645.74'

S.
 H

A
M

IL
T

O
N

 S
T

R
EE

T
 A

LI
G

N
M

EN
T

1257.44'

MOTOR

M
A

T
C

H
 S

H
E

E
T

  1 S0°16'41"E  177.01'

N89°04'26"E  1311.96'

25
.0

'

25
.0

'

21.0'

4" FIRELINE

6" SEWER

8" WATER

8"
 W

A
T

ER

8" WATER
8" WATER

4"
 F

IR
EL

IN
E

4"
 F

IR
EL

IN
E

4"
 F

IR
EL

IN
E

8" SEWER

S0°16'41"E  25.00'

15.0'
ELECTRIC ESMT.
DOC. 10-0007249

& DOC. 10-0007250,MCR

SO
U

T
H

ER
N

 P
A

C
IF

IC
 C

O
/O

PE
R

A
T

IV
E

A
PN

 3
03

-4
1-

97
0

Z
O

N
IN

G
: R

U
-4

3

FIRE SPRINKLER
CONNECTION

FH (TYP)

FIRE SPRINKLER
CONNECTION

FIRE SPRINKLER
CONNECTION

PR
O

P.30.0'
R

/W

EX
.33.0'

R
/W

C
IT

Y
 O

F 
C

H
A

N
D

LE
R

M
A

R
IC

O
PA

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

RAILROAD TRACKS

25.0'

49
.0

'

FH (TYP)

9.0'

17.0'

2.
5'

O
V

ER
H

A
N

G

REFUSE
ENCLOSURE16

.5
'

9.0'

A.D.A
PARKING

9.5'

8.0'

8.0'
P.U

.E.

25.0'
B.S.L.
ST

BK

AMENITY
(SEE LS PLANS)

DOG PARK

POOL CLUBHOUSE

VEHICLE ACCESS
ROLLING GATE

6 4

4

2

1

8 UNITS
8 UNITS

8 UNITS
4 UNITS

4 UNITS

REMOVE EXISTING
WOOD FENCE

BARBED WIRE FENCE
TO BE REMOVED

REMOVE EXISTING
FENCING (TYP)

REMOVE
EXISITNG
BARBED

WIRE FENCE

LA COSTERA LLC
BK. 1509,  PG, 42, MCR

CHANDLER
ZONING: PAD

20.0'

20.0'

EXIT ONLY

CITY OF CHANDLER

MARICOPA COUNTY

CITY OF CHANDLER

MARICOPA COUNTY

13.0'

13.0'
24.0'

6.3'

25.0'

26.0'

28.0' 28
.0

'

29.7'

26
.0

'

13.0'

16.0'
DW

16.0'
DW

16.0'
DW

18.6'
FIBER

 O
PT

IC

N89°04'26"E  2634.82'

1322.86'

N89°04'26"E  1257.44'

30.1'

35.8'

5.0'
S/W

CONCRETE
DITCH TO BE ABANDONED

OR REMOVED

10.0'

5.
0'

S/
W

2.
5'

O
.H

.

4.
0'

C
RO

SS
W

A
LK

APN. 303-68-502
LA COSTERA LLC

CHANLDER
ZONING: PAD

CACHET AT PASEO LINDO
COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

BK. 977, PG. 17, MCR
CHANDLER

ZONING: PAD

CACHET AT PASEO LINDO
COMMUNITY ASSOCIATION

BK. 977, PG. 17, MCR
CHANDLER

ZONING: PAD

STORM DRAIN
EQUALIZAR PIPE (TYP)

STORM DRAIN
EQUALIZAR PIPE (TYP)

FDC (TYP)

10.0'
WAT
ESMT

6.0'
EX. S/W

42.5'
EX. B/C

65.0'
B/C 6.0'

S/W

71.0'
PROPOSED R/W

8.0'
L/S

6" EXISTING VERTICAL
CURB & GUTTER

6" EXISTING
VERTICAL CURB 6" VERTICAL

CURB & GUTTER

HORZ. SCALE: 1"=10'
VERT. SCALE: 1"=5'

SECTION       (Looking North)1

ARIZONA AVE

65.0'
EX. R/W

8.0'
PUE

5.0'
EX. SW

6" EXISTING VERTICAL
CURB & GUTTER

22.0'
EX. B/C

30.0'
PROPOSED R/W

32.8'
EX. R/W

8.0'
PUE

5.0'
S/W

22.0'
B/C

6" VERTICAL
CURB & GUTTER

HORZ. SCALE: 1"=10'
VERT. SCALE: 1"=5'

SECTION       (Looking East)2

APPLEBY ROAD

P
re

lim
in

ar
y 

P
la

t

SP02

230

scale

0 30 60

feet

Designer:
Drawn by:

Pr
oj

ec
t:

Sheet No.

Job No.

Call at least two full working days

before you begin excavation.

Dial 8-1-1 or 1-800-STAKE-IT (782-5348)

In Maricopa County: (602)263-1100

w
 
w

 
w

 
.
 
e
 
p
 
s
 
g
 
r
 
o
 
u
 
p
 
i
 
n
 
c
 
.
 
c
 
o
 
m

T
:
4
8
0
.
5
0
3
.
2
2
5
0

F
:
4
8
0
.
5
0
3
.
2
2
5
8

2
0
4
5
 
S
.
 
V
i
n
e
y
a
r
d
 
A
v
e
,
 
S
u
i
t
e
 
1
0
1

|

M
e
s
a
,
 
A
Z
 
8
5
2
1
0

20
-0

50
4 

- 
T

he
 A

sh
le

y

T
he

 A
sh

le
y

G
ilb

er
t, 

A
ri

zo
na

DHC

JAJ

20-0504

of 2 C
.O

.C
. L

og
 N

o.
 P

L2
1-

00
15

SE
PT

EM
BE

R
 2

02
0 

- 
1S

T
 P

R
EL

IM
IN

A
R

Y
 P

LA
T

 S
U

B.

S.W. COR., SEC. 15, T2S, R5E
FOUND REBAR W/CAP IN HANDHOLE
RLS 49097.

S. 1/4 COR., SEC. 15, T2S, R5E
FOUND REBAR W/CAP IN

HANDHOLE RLS 49097.

CENTER OF SEC. 15, T2S, R5E
FOUND MDOT BRASS CAP IN

HANDHOLE W/SECTION MARKERS
PLS 48362.

NOT FOUND

W. 1/4 COR., SEC. 15, T2S, R5E
FOUND CITY OF CHANDLER BRASS CAP FLUSH



 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit M- 
Miscellaneous 

 
 





ITEM  7 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. CC21-030
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director

From: Kristine Gay, Senior Planner
Subject: PLH20-0030/PLT20-0020 Schrader Farms Business Park

Introduction and Tentative Adoption of Ordinance No. 4997
Request: Rezoning from Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for a light industrial

and office business park with a Mid-Rise Overlay and a commercial corner

Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) for site layout and building architecture

Preliminary plat approval 
 

Location: Northwest corner of McQueen and Queen Creek Roads 
Applicant: Brennan Ray, Burch & Cracchiolo, P.A.

Proposed Motion:
Rezoning
Move City Council introduce and tentatively adopt Ordinance No. 4997 approving PLH20-0030
Schrader Farms Business Park, located at the northwest corner of McQueen and Queen Creek roads,
rezoning from Agricultural District (AG-1) to Planned Area Development (PAD) for a light industrial and
office business park with a Mid-Rise Overlay and a commercial corner, subject to the conditions as
recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Preliminary Development Plan
Move City Council approve Preliminary Development Plan PLH20-0030 Schrader Farms Business
Park, located at the northwest corner of McQueen and Queen Creek roads, for site layout and building
architecture, subject to the conditions as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Preliminary Plat
Move City Council approve Preliminary Plat PLT20-0020 Schrader Farms Business Park, located at the
northwest corner of McQueen and Queen Creek roads, subject to the condition recommended by
Planning and Zoning Commission.

Background Data:
Site is currently zoned and used for agricultural land uses.
71.1 net-acre site



Surrounding Land Use Data:
North Agriculture South Queen Creek Road then City of Chandler Solid Waste

Services
East McQueen Road then dairy

farm
West Faith Family Church and agriculture

General Plan and Area Plan Designations:
  Existing Proposed
General Plan Growth Area 3:

Chandler Airpark - Employment
No Change

Chandler Airpark Area Plan  Light Industrial and Neighborhood Commercial No Change

Proposed Development
Industrial Business Park
Size

67.65 net-acres in area

Land Use
Light industrial and business park land uses

Buildings
Six single-story buildings
91,900 sq. ft. – 277,700 sq.ft. in size
46 feet in height to the top of parapet

Site Design
Truck loading courts located on the interior of the site
Berming and screen walls used along perimeter
Angled parking and landscaping to support campus aesthetic along street frontages
Stained concrete thematic entrances
Architecturally coordinated monument signage

Phasing
Two phases are proposed
Phase 1 consists of:
3 eastern business park buildings
Street improvements along perimeter of entire site (Phases 1 & 2)
Street frontage landscaping along perimeter of Phase 1 and commercial lot
Phase 2 consists of:
Three western business park buildings and remaining street frontage landscaping.

  
Commercial Corner
Size

3.46 net acres

Land Use
C-2 Commercial land uses per the City of Chandler Land Use Code
Auto-related uses, (fuel stations, oil change services, etc.) will not be permitted
Up to one drive-through establishment may be developed on-site



Building & Site
Design
and Future PDP

No specific building design or site layout is proposed at this time
A future PDP will be reviewed by Council prior to development of the corner
The design of the buildings and site layout of the commercial corner will
coordinate with the business park site

Phasing
The corner parcel will be developed at a separate time and is not included in
Phase 1or 2 of the business park

Review and Recommendation
Staff finds that the proposed rezoning, mid-rise overlay, preliminary development plan, and preliminary
plat aligns with the goals of the 2016 General Plan and Chandler Airpark Area Plan.

The 2016 General Plan identifies the site as being located within Growth Area 3, Chandler Airpark,
where the future land use is designated as “Employment”. The Chandler Airpark Area Plan more
specifically calls for light industrial land uses and neighborhood commercial land uses at the corner. 

To align with both the Chandler Airpark Area Plan and the Employment guidance of the 2016 Chandler
General Plan, the applicant revised the site plan to avoid proposing buildings that appeared to support
distribution as a primary land use.  Staff believes the resulting building footprints will better
accommodate land uses that will generate employment opportunities and therefore align with the goals
of the General Plan.

To ensure the proposed corner site is sized and dimensioned appropriately, the applicant has shown
staff how the corner could successfully accommodate vehicular access, retention, landscaping, and
commercial land uses that are coordinated with the adjacent business park.  Since the applicant will not
be the developer of the commercial corner site, it is left empty in the proposed site exhibits. A future
preliminary development plan will need to be approved by Council prior to it being developed. 

Traffic Analysis
A Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) was prepared to analyze potential impacts of the proposed
development.  Based on the analysis, McQueen and Queen Creek roads have adequate capacity to
handle the expected traffic generated by the proposed development. As part of this project, the
developer will be required to construct half-street improvements on adjacent collector streets, including
Hamilton Street on the west side of the property and the Canary Way alignment on the north side of the
property. These additional collector streets will help to facilitate vehicular circulation, including truck
traffic, from Queen Creek and McQueen roads. Beyond the collector street improvements, the
developer will also be required to construct, or contribute to, several roadway improvements (e.g.
additional right turn lanes at driveways on McQueen Road and Queen Creek Road as determined by
the TIA, changes to signal timing, etc.) to minimize the impact of the development on the surrounding
streets. 

Public / Neighborhood Notification
This request was noticed in accordance with the requirements of the Chandler Land Use and
Zoning Code.
To comply with CDC social distancing guidelines, the applicant hosted digital neighborhood
meetings via Zoom on February 18th and April 12th, 2021. The applicant also created a website
to share further information with residents.
Residents had concerns regarding the building height, the land uses and associated traffic
concerns. The applicant explained how the site has been planned for employment and
commercial land uses by the Chandler Airpark Area Plan and 2016 General Plan. At the time of
the meetings, the traffic study had not been reviewed by the City’s Traffic Engineer. The applicant



explained that a traffic impact analysis would need to be approved prior to moving forward. After
sharing perspectives of the buildings, no further concerns for building design were received.
As of writing this memo, Planning staff has not received further opposition from residents
regarding the proposal.

Airport Commission Conflict Evaluation
Airport Commission meeting April 14, 2021 
Motion to find no conflict with existing or planned airport operations.

In Favor: 7   Opposed: 0      Absent: 0  

Planning and Zoning Commission Vote Report
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting June 16, 2021
Motion to Approve

In Favor: 6     Opposed: 0     

The Planning and Zoning Commission requested design changes to the site landscaping and building
design. The applicant submitted revisions and agreed to two additional Preliminary Development Plan
stipulations (11 & 12) at the Planning and Zoning Commission hearing.

Chairman Heumann expressed concerns the site may become a warehouse and distribution center and
wanted to ensure that future tenants align with the City's targeted economic development goals.
In response, the applicant shared that the development is anticipated to support 1,543 on-site jobs. Per
the applicant, the projected 65-72 cents per square foot lease rate aligns with job-creating high-end
manufacturing land uses as compared with the 40-45 cents per square foot lease rate typically
associated with distribution land uses. In addition, where the City Code requires 1 parking space per
1,000 square feet of manufacturing and 1 space for every 5,000 square feet of warehousing, the
development includes 1.78 spaces per 1,000 square feet, which facilitates non-distribution land uses.

The amended exhibits that were presented to Planning and Zoning Commission are included as an
attachment.

Recommended Conditions of Approval
Rezoning
Planning staff find the request is in compliance with the General Plan and Planning and Zoning
Commission recommends the City Council approve the rezoning from Agricultural District (AG-1) to
Planned Area Development (PAD) for a light industrial and office business park with a Mid-Rise
Overlay and a commercial corner subject to the following conditions:
  

For the parcel legally described in Exhibit “A,” permitted land uses shall be limited to office uses
and land uses permitted by-right in the I-1 Planned Industrial District per the Land Use and
Zoning Code of the City of Chandler. Showrooms shall also be permitted where they are provided
as an ancillary component of a primary use.

1.

For the parcel legally described in Exhibit “B,” permitted land uses shall be limited to land uses
permitted by-right in the C-2 Community Commercial District per the Land Use and Zoning Code
of the City of Chandler. Auto-related uses including but not limited to the sale, rental, repair,
fueling or washing of automobiles, motorcycles, trucks, boats, or related accessories shall not be
permitted.

2.

Development of the overall site shall be in substantial conformance with the Development
Booklet, entitled, “Schrader Farms Business Park” and kept on file in the City of Chandler
Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0030, modified by such conditions included at the time the

3.



Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0030, modified by such conditions included at the time the
Booklet was approved by the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified, or
supplemented by Chandler City Council.  
Prior to development of the corner parcel, as described in Exhibit “B,” a preliminary development
plan for site layout and building design shall be approved by City Council.  The architectural
design, landscaping, and pedestrian and vehicular access shall be coordinated with the business
park to create an integrated campus appearance.

4.

Building heights shall not exceed 50 (fifty) feet in height as measured to the top of parapet.5.
Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements including but not limited
to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, median improvements and street lighting, as
shown in the Phasing Exhibit to achieve conformance with City codes, standard details, and
design manuals.

6.

Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and deceleration lanes,
per the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan.

7.

When office is proposed to occupy more than ten percent of a tenant space, a parking analysis
shall be submitted for review by the Zoning Administrator. Said analysis shall clearly show the
amount of area occupied by all existing and proposed land uses and the amount of parking
spaces required by the City of Chandler Land Use and Zoning Code, and the amount of parking
spaces provided.

8.

Preliminary Development Plan
Planning staff find the request is in compliance with the General Plan and Planning and Zoning
Commission recommends City Council approve the Preliminary Development Plan, subject to the
following conditions: 

Development shall be in substantial conformance with the Development Booklet, entitled
“Schrader Farms Business Park” and kept on file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File
No. PLH20-0030, modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by
the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified or supplemented by the
Chandler City Council.

1.

The enhanced pavement design shown at the main Queen Creek Road entrance shall be
duplicated at the main entrances proposed on McQueen Road and Canary Way. 

2.

The site shall be maintained in a clean and orderly manner. 3.
The landscaping and all other improvements in all open-spaces shall be maintained by the
property owner or property owners' association and shall be maintained at a level consistent with
or better than at the time of planting.  

4.

The landscaping in all rights-of-way shall be maintained by the adjacent property owner or
property owners’ association. 

5.

Landscaping plans (including for open spaces, rights-of-way, and street medians) and perimeter
walls shall be approved by the Planning Administrator. 

6.

Signage shall be designed in coordination with landscape plans, planting materials, storm water
basins, site contours, utility pedestals, and other site appurtenances or features so as not to
create problems with sign visibility or prompt the removal of required or proposed landscaping. 
Building signage shall be architecturally coordinated with the respective façade.

7.

All mechanical equipment shall be fully screened on all sides. Said screening shall be
architecturally integrated with the building. 

8.

Preliminary Development Plan approval does not constitute Final Development Plan approval;
compliance with the details required by all applicable codes and conditions of the City of Chandler
and this Preliminary Development Plan shall apply. 

9.

Fifty percent of the trees planted along the arterial streets shall be a minimum of 36-inch box and
12-feet in height at the time of planting.

10.

The applicant shall work with staff to provide an accent material under the metal awnings.11.
The applicant shall work with staff to create a different paint color scheme for phase two.12.



Where staff determines that a request for Administrative Design Review does not meet the intect
of the approved Development Booklet or substantially conform with the approved exibits therein,
the request may be reverted to Council for approval of a revised Preliminiary Developement Plan.

13.

Preliminary Plat
Planning staff find the request is in compliance with the General Plan and Planning and Zoning
Commission recommends City Council approve the Preliminary Plat subject to the following condition:  

Approval by the City Engineer and Planning Administrator with regard to the details of all
submittals required by code or condition.

1.

Attachments
Ordinance No. 4997 
Vicinity Maps 
Development Booklet 1/3 
Development Booklet 2/3 
Development Booklet 3/3 
Preliminary Plat 
Revised Development Booklet Exhibits 



 
  

ORDINANCE NO.  4997 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
THE ZONING CODE AND MAP ATTACHED THERETO, BY REZONING A 
PARCEL FROM AGRICULTURAL (AG-1) TO  PLANNED AREA 
DEVELOPMENT (PAD) FOR LIGHT INDUSTRIAL AND OFFICE BUSINESS 
PARK AND COMMERCIAL LAND USES, WITH A MID-RISE OVERLAY AS 
SHOWN IN CASE PLH20-0030 (SCHRADER FARMS BUSINESS PARK) 
LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF MCQUEEN AND QUEEN 
CREEK ROADS WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
CHANDLER, ARIZONA; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING 
ORDINANCES; AND PROVIDING FOR PENALTIES. 

 
WHEREAS, an application for rezoning certain property within the corporate limits of Chandler, 
Arizona, has been filed in accordance with Article XXVI of the Chandler Zoning Code; and 
 
WHEREAS, the application has been published in a local newspaper with general circulation in 
the City of Chandler, giving fifteen (15) days’ notice of time, place, and date of public hearing; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, a notice of such hearing was posted on the property at least seven (7) days prior to 
the public hearing; and 
 
WHEREAS, a public hearing was held by the Planning and Zoning Commission as required by 
the Zoning Code. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows: 
 
Section 1. Legal Description of Property:  
   

EXHIBIT ‘A’ and EXHIBIT ‘B’ 
 
Said lots are hereby rezoned from AG-1 to PAD for light industrial and office 
business park and commercial land uses, with a mid-rise overlay, subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
1. For the parcel legally described in Exhibit “A,” permitted land uses shall be 

limited to office uses and land uses permitted by-right in the I-1 Planned 
Industrial District per the Land Use and Zoning Code of the City of Chandler. 
Showrooms shall also be permitted where they are provided as an ancillary 
component of a primary use. 

 
2. For the parcel legally described in Exhibit “B,” permitted land uses shall be 

limited to land uses permitted by right in the C-2 Community Commercial 
District per the Land Use and Zoning Code of the City of Chandler. Auto-



Ordinance No. 4997 
Page 2 of 3 

 
related uses including but not limited to the sale, rental, repair, fueling or 
washing of automobiles, motorcycles, trucks, boats, or related accessories shall 
not be permitted.  

 
3. Development of the overall site shall be in substantial conformance with the 

Development Booklet, entitled, “Schrader Farms Business Park” and kept on 
file in the City of Chandler Planning Division, in File No. PLH20-0030, 
modified by such conditions included at the time the Booklet was approved by 
the Chandler City Council and/or as thereafter amended, modified, or 
supplemented by Chandler City Council.   

 
4. Prior to development of the corner parcel described in Exhibit “B,” a 

preliminary development plan for site layout and building design shall be 
approved by City Council.  The architectural design, landscaping, and 
pedestrian and vehicular access shall be coordinated with the business park to 
create an integrated campus appearance.  

 
5. Building heights shall not exceed 50 (fifty) feet in height as measured to the top 

of parapet. 
 
6. Completion of the construction of all required off-site street improvements 

including but not limited to paving, landscaping, curb, gutter and sidewalks, 
median improvements and street lighting, as shown in the Phasing Exhibit to 
achieve conformance with City codes, standard details, and design manuals. 

 
7. Right-of-way dedications to achieve full half-widths, including turn lanes and 

deceleration lanes, per the standards of the Chandler Transportation Plan. 
 
8. When office is proposed to occupy more than ten percent of a tenant space, a 

parking analysis shall be submitted for review by the Zoning Administrator. 
Said analysis shall clearly show the amount of area occupied by all existing 
and proposed land uses and the amount of parking spaces required by the City 
of Chandler Zoning Code, and the amount of parking spaces provided.

 
Section 2. The Planning Division of the City of Chandler is hereby directed to enter such 

changes and amendments as may be necessary upon the Zoning Map of said Zoning 
Code in compliance with this Ordinance.  

 
Section 3. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions of this 

Ordinance, or any parts hereof, are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 4. In any case, where any building, structure, or land is used in violation of this 

Ordinance, the Planning Division of the City of Chandler may institute an 
injunction or any other appropriate action in proceeding to prevent the use of such 
building, structure, or land.  



Ordinance No. 4997 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
Section 5. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is 

for any reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of 
competent jurisdiction, then this entire ordinance is invalid and shall have no force 
or effect. 

 
Section 6. A violation of this Ordinance shall be a Class 1 misdemeanor subject to the 

enforcement and penalty provisions set forth in Section 1-8.3 of the Chandler City 
Code.  Each day a violation continues, or the failure to perform any act or duty 
required by this Ordinance or the Zoning Code, shall constitute a separate offense. 

 
 
INTRODUCED AND TENTATIVELY APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, 
Arizona, this ____ day of ______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of _______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Ordinance No. 4997 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
____ day of _____________, 2021, and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
      __________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
      
CITY ATTORNEY 
 
Published: 



HUNTER

3$R&E/�/E*$/�'E6&R,3T,2N

3$*E���2)��

....

Exhibit "A" Page 1 of  2



QUEEN CREEK ROAD

PARCEL

NOT
A

PART

M
C

Q
U

E
E

N
 R

O
A

D
HUNTER

PA*E � O) �
....

PARCEL E;H,%,T

Exhibit "A" Page 2 of  2



HUNTER

3$R&E/�/E*$/�'E6&R,3T,2N

3$*E���2)��

....

Exhibit "B" Page 1 of 2



QUEEN CREEK ROAD

M
C

Q
U

E
E

N
 R

O
A

D

PARCEL

HUNTER
PA*E � O) �

....

PARCEL E;H,%,T

Exhibit "B" Page 2 of  2



E RYAN RD

S M
CQ

UE
EN

 R
D

E QUEEN CREEK RD

S A
IR

PO
RT

 BL

E BLUEBIRD DR

S P
IO

NE
ER

 PW

E ORIOLE WY

E KINGBIRD PL

S A
NV

IL 
DR

S 1
18

TH
 P

L

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d.

Proposed Project Details
Rezone/PDP/Mid-Rise
70.52 Acres
Future Business Park Uses

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Queen Creek Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0030 Schrader Farms Business Park ´

^

PAD
La

Costera
Landing

AG-1

PAD
Avalon at Chandler Airpark

PARK
Nozomi Park (Future)

AG-1

PAD
Enclave

at
Hamilton

Ranch

COUNTY

COUNTY

COUNTY

COUNTY

AG-1COUNTY

PAD

PAD

PADPAD

PAD

PAD
Noria

PAD
Sky
at

Chandler
Airpark

PARK
Tumbleweed Park

PARK
Los Arboles ParkI-1

AG-1

AP-1

AP-1

PAD

AG-1

AG-1

PAD
PAD

Archstone
Village



E RYAN RD

S M
CQ

UE
EN

 R
D

E QUEEN CREEK RD

S A
IR

PO
RT

 BL

E BLUEBIRD DR

S P
IO

NE
ER

 PW

E ORIOLE WY

E KINGBIRD PL

S A
NV

IL 
DR

S 1
18

TH
 P

L

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Mc
Qu

ee
n R

d.

Proposed Project Details
Rezone/PDP/Mid-Rise
70.52 Acres
Future Business Park Uses

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Queen Creek Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0030 Schrader Farms Business Park ´

^

PAD
La

Costera
Landing

AG-1

PAD
Avalon at Chandler Airpark

PARK
Nozomi Park (Future)

AG-1

PAD
Enclave

at
Hamilton

Ranch

COUNTY

COUNTY

COUNTY

COUNTY

AG-1COUNTY

PAD

PAD

PADPAD

PAD

PAD
Noria

PAD
Sky
at

Chandler
Airpark

PARK
Tumbleweed Park

PARK
Los Arboles ParkI-1

AG-1

AP-1

AP-1

PAD

AG-1

AG-1

PAD
PAD

Archstone
Village



 
 

Planned Area Development, 
Preliminary Development Plan, 

and 

Preliminary Plat 
 

 
Schrader Farms 
Business Park 

 
Northwest Corner of  

McQueen Road and Queen Creek Road 
 

by: 
 

Core5 Schrader Farm BP, LLC 
 
 

Case No: PLH20-0030 
 

Submitted:  June 4, 2020 
Update: December 18, 2020 

Update: April 16, 2021 
Update: May 12, 2021



 i 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
I. Introduction ............................................................................................................................. 1 

II. Site, Surrounding Area, and Existing Zoning ......................................................................... 1 

III. Proposed Planned Area Development and Mid-Rise Overlay ............................................ 2 

IV. Proposed Preliminary Development Plan ........................................................................... 2 

A. Site Layout and Architecture .............................................................................................. 2 

B. Design Guidelines ............................................................................................................... 3 

C. Landscaping ........................................................................................................................ 4 

D. Walls and Entry Monumentation ........................................................................................ 4 

E. Development Standards ...................................................................................................... 5 

F. Circulation ........................................................................................................................... 5 

G. Parking ................................................................................................................................ 6 

V. Core5 Corporate Background ................................................................................................. 6 

VI. Miscellaneous ..................................................................................................................... 6 

A. Grading and Drainage ......................................................................................................... 6 

B. Utilities ................................................................................................................................ 6 

C. Phasing ................................................................................................................................ 6 

VII. Preliminary Plat .................................................................................................................. 6 

VIII. Project Team ....................................................................................................................... 7 

IX. Conclusion .......................................................................................................................... 7 

 



 ii 

 
TABLE OF EXHIBITS 

 
 

Exhibit No.  Description 

1 Aerial 

2 Building Perspectives 
Queen Creek Road Perspective 

3 Conceptual Site Plan 

4 Landscape Plan 

5 Arterial Street Enlargements 

6 Building Elevations 
Floor Plans 

7 Color & Materials Palette 

8 Screen Wall Plan & Elevations 

9 Comprehensive Sign Plan 

10 Conceptual Grading & Drainage 

11 Phasing Plan 

12 Preliminary Plat 
 



 1 

 
SCHRADER FARMS BUSINESS PARK 

I. INTRODUCTION 
Core5 Schrader Farms BP, LLC (“Core5”) is the proposed developer of Schrader Farms 

Business Park (the “Schrader Farms BP”), an exciting development on approximately 80.25± 
gross (70.52± net) acres (the “Site”) at the northwest corner of McQueen Road and Queen Creek 
Road.  Core5 is proposed to develop the Site as a high-quality business park in an area of 
Chandler that has been designated for employment uses for close to 30 years.  Schrader Farms 
BP will be a strong, viable development for Chandler given its location proximate to the 
Chandler Municipal Airport and Loop 202, will be compatible with the surrounding area, and 
will provide a recognizable presence within Chandler.  See Exhibit 2, Perspectives.  The 
proposed development creates additional employment opportunities in the immediate area and is 
anticipated to improve the City’s jobs-to-population ratio. 

As is described in greater detail below, the proposed development is also consistent with 
the City of Chandler’s (the “City”) General Plan and Airpark Area Plan.  The proposed 
development is likewise compatible with the Chandler Municipal Airport and its uses.  Core5 
requests the Site be zoned Planned Area Development (PAD) for Employment uses as described 
below in Section III, along with Preliminary Development Plan (PDP) for the Site’s layout, 
landscaping, architecture, etc., Preliminary Plat, and Mid-Rise Overlay approvals. 

II. SITE, SURROUNDING AREA, AND EXISTING ZONING 
 The Site is located at the northwest corner of McQueen Road and Queen Creek Road and 
is currently being used for agricultural operations.  The Site is zoned AG-1 as it has been 
traditionally used for agricultural purposes.  An aerial of the Site is attached as Exhibit 1. 

The Site is designated on the City’s General Plan as Employment and lies within the 
Chandler Airpark Area Plan.  Since approximately 1982, the City has generally reserved the 
areas located south and west of the Airport for employment uses to protect the Airport from 
incompatible land uses and to promote economic development.  The General Plan Employment 
designation encourages major employers, knowledge-based industries, and industrial/business 
parks.  Schrader Farms BP complies with the General Plan and is supported by the following 
goals and policies of the General Plan: 

• 1.1.1 Land Use and Development: Protect employment land use areas to support 
economic development goals. 

• 1.2.3 Chandler Airpark Policies: Protect the Chandler Municipal Airport and 
Airpark as a major employment center and the Airport’s flight corridors from 
incompatible land uses. 

• 1.5 Building a World-Class Economy Policies:  
o Continue to optimally use remaining vacant land to ensure the highest and 

best use for economic opportunities. 
o Improve the City’s jobs-to-housing ratio with a long-term goal to continue 

exceeding the County’s average jobs-to-housing balance. 
The Airpark Area Plan identifies the Site as Light Industrial and Commercial.  The Light 

Industrial designation encourages small manufacturing, warehousing and distribution, and back 
office spaces.  The Chandler Municipal Airport and Airpark represent developing assets that 



 2 

contain the largest inventory of vacant land in the City that has been planned for employment 
purposes.  The Airpark Area Plan is intended to ensure land use compatibility and protect 
employment opportunities, which Schrader Farms BP does.  

III. PROPOSED PLANNED AREA DEVELOPMENT AND MID-RISE OVERLAY 
Core5 requests the Site be zoned PAD for a mix of employment uses, including: 

Employment.  Any use or similar use in the I-1 District of the City’s Zoning Ordinance. 
Office.  Offices, including, professional, business, administrative, executive, and other 

offices. 1 
Showroom. Showroom use is defined as uses that are primarily warehouse uses but may 

include up to 10% of the floor area devoted to display of goods and products.  Showroom will 
provide the region with bulk related uses, such as tile, flooring, paint, furniture, or similar 
materials.  These uses will support both the residential base as well as the business uses around 
the airport.   

Commercial.  Any use or similar use in the C-2 District of the City’s Zoning Ordinance. 
Core5 additionally requests a Mid-Rise Overlay for the proposed 50 feet building height.  

Consistent with the City’s Mid-Rise Development Policy (the “Policy”), the additional height is 
appropriate as the Site is located within an area that is designated on the City’s General Plan as 
Employment and the Airpark Area Plan as Light Industrial.  The additional height will allow 
Core5 to create a development that meets the Policy’s intent to provide needed viability and 
long-term sustainability.  Additional height will allow Core5 to provide appropriate amounts of 
clear height and structure in the buildings to ensure that adequate amounts of area and space is 
available to meet the anticipated needs of future tenants.  The proposed development will 
provide new job opportunities for area residents.  Furthermore, the additional height is 
appropriate in the context of the surrounding area, with the City’s wastewater treatment, solid 
waste, and recycling facility and future Ferguson building (approx. 50 feet in height) along the 
Site’s Queen Creek Road frontage.   

IV. PROPOSED PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN 
A. Site Layout and Architecture 
Schrader Farms BP is designed as a high-quality mixed-use development that will create 

additional employment opportunities and is compatible with the Airport and its operations and 
uses.  Schrader Farms BP is expected to consist of approximately seven buildings, ranging in 
size between approximately 91,600 square feet and 234,320 square feet and a commercial 
building (on the future commercial pad).  See Exhibit 3, Conceptual Site Plan.  Consistent with 
good planning principles, the Site has been laid out with multi-tenant buildings along the public 
streets (McQueen Road, Queen Creek Road, and Hamilton Road) to allow for higher public 
visibility.  The McQueen Road employment building is currently planned with a setback of 
approximately 117 feet while the closest employment building on Queen Creek Road is currently 
planned with a setback of approximately 201 feet.  The considerable setbacks allow Core5 to 

 
1 The percentage of office uses within each respective building can be the maximum amount the parking 
requirements will allow.  Should the percentage of proposed office use in a given Lot exceed the Code required 
parking, the Zoning Administrator will consider and may allow an administrative modification to expeditiously deal 
with such a situation up to 10% more office square footage than the parking provided would typically allow or 
through a shared parking agreement between the lots/uses. 
 



 3 

provide a lushly landscaped frontage (See Exhibit 2, Queen Creek Road Perspective and 
Exhibit 4, Landscape Plan and as is discussed in more detail below in Section IV.C and Exhibit 
5, Arterial Street Enlargements) and parking areas that, when coupled with the buildings’ 
design creates a high-quality development that is compatible with the adjacent area. 

The proposed architectural design leans towards contemporary southwest architecture, 
reflecting a timeless design that is respectful of the central Arizona desert climate.  See Exhibit 
2, Perspectives.  The size and scale of the buildings are broken up through four-sided 
architectural design, quality materials, and professional workmanship.  All architectural features 
are presented as an integral part of the overall design.  Distinct areas are visible in each elevation 
and each area is distinguished through the use of color, texture, and vertical and horizontal 
offsets where functionally allowed.  Contemporary architectural vocabulary is present with 
strong horizontal canopies, deep-set fenestration, and rich texturing of facade materials at the 
two-story entry elements.  The building masses are simple in form and strong in geometry. 
Variations in the roof height and profile are used with discretion to conceal mechanical 
equipment. Facade components are utilized to establish human scale building design and provide 
interest through the use of light, shadow and texture. 

 The initial phase is planned on the eastern approximately 31.34 acres and is currently 
expected to consist of three employment buildings.  See Exhibit 6, Building Elevations and 
Floor Plans.  These buildings along McQueen Road and Queen Creek Road are designed to 
provide prominent office entries with both clear and spandrel glazing with two story vertical 
massing. A mixture of smooth concrete, textured concrete, metal canopies and tile create an 
attractive facade.  See Exhibit 6 and Exhibit 7, Colors and Materials.  Functionally, these 
buildings will contain state-of-the-art features users require in modern facilities, such as 
abundant power, current industry standard clear heights, natural light through skylights or 
clerestory windows and storefront systems, advanced fire suppression, and efficient loading 
dimensions.  

This PDP depicts the general layout (Site Plan) and appearance (Elevations) of buildings 
at Schrader Farms BP, but it does not restrict buildings to the building locations or square 
footages as depicted on the Site Plan or appearance as depicted by the building elevations.  
Building movements, adjustments in square footage, and changes in the architecture will be 
allowed as long as the final buildings: (1) meet the general intent of the layout; (2) meet the 
general intent of the elevations; (3) comply with the below Design Guidelines; (4) use the colors 
and materials identified on the Color and Materials Palette; (5) provide code required parking 
stalls; and (6) meet building setbacks as required by the City’s Zoning Ordinance or as otherwise 
identified in this PAD.  Actual building footprints within lot’s developable area shall be 
determined administratively through the Final Development Plan approval processes. 

B. Design Guidelines 
To ensure the future buildings are designed consistent with the expectations set forth in 

the PDP, Core5 proposes the following design guidelines.  These design guidelines are intended 
to create a cohesive, attractive, and appropriate architectural statement.  The guidelines provided 
in this document are not absolute, but are general statements aimed at setting forth the design 
expectations: 

• All elevations should maintain the same visual integrity, cohesiveness, and design 
detail.   



 4 

• All designs should be textural and consider the use of multiple heights, wall 
planes, masses, and exterior materials along with natural elements, and 
complementing colors and texture. 

• All building facades should incorporate elements of the elevations approved in 
this PDP.  Where buildings might expand simple relief may be used by including 
various types of architectural techniques such as an EIFS relief, a wainscot 
system, change in material or color on the surface that will be expanded (where 
one building plane meets another a change in material or color will add interest). 

• Buildings should be designed to respond to the harsh southwest climate and 
oriented to recognize the value of appropriate landscaping and cooling 
requirements in harmony with the environment. 

• Human scale massing and proportions should complement the buildings’ function 
and the design should be harmonious with adjoining developments. 

• Canopies, arcades, and overhangs should be designed to create places of refuge 
for pedestrians and to create interest within the building design. 

• Landscape buffers will be designed for the street edges and to emphasize the 
points of entry into the development. 

• Identify internal crosswalks with changes in paving materials, signs, or paint 
striping. 

• Service entrances and loading docks should be located to mitigate their visual 
impact and not interfere with the circulation of service vehicles. 

The design of the future employment buildings may be administratively approved by 
Staff upon a finding that the proposed elevations are substantially consistent with the Design 
Guidelines.  A PDP will need to be processed for the design and layout of the Commercial pad. 

C. Landscaping 
The overall landscape theme incorporates low water use, regionally appropriate plant 

material that is suitable for the Sonoran Desert to create an attractive experience for those who 
work at Schrader Farms BP as well as those travelling along McQueen Road and Queen Creek 
Road.  See Exhibit 2, Queen Creek Road Perspective.  The design has a hierarchy of plant 
material at entries and nodes as well as other hybrid plant material that leads one into the site 
down the main boulevards. See Exhibit 4, Landscape Plan.  The design and materials create a 
sense of place within the Site, while adding a fresh approach to a timeless desert environment for 
the surrounding communities. The landscaping theme draws from the lush desert look and feel of 
an adapted Sonoran landscape tempered for the Arizona climate through the use of drought 
tolerant elements.  Trees will be appropriately placed along the public streets to create a visually 
pleasing experience for vehicles and pedestrians.  The street frontages will additionally contain 
large massings of colorful shrubs and accents.  See Exhibit 5, Arterial Street Enlargements.  All 
of the plant species proposed adhere to the Arizona Department of Water Resources, “Low 
Water Use Plant List” in order to incorporate native and hybrid arid region vegetation into the 
landscape. All of the landscape within the boundary of the Site will be watered on an automatic 
drip irrigation system. 



 5 

D. Walls and Entry Monumentation 
Proper screening of the parking areas will be accomplished through earthen berms and 

decorative walls that have been designed to complement the building and utilizing varying colors 
and textures arranged in an attractive design.  See Exhibit 8, Screen Wall Plan and Elevations. 

E. Development Standards 
Core5 is proposing the following development standards: 

Regulation Development Standard 
Building Height (max.) 50 ft., inclusive of parapet walls, mechanical 

equipment, and screening 
Building Setback (min.) 
- Front (Queen Creek Rd.) 

- Side (McQueen Rd.) 

- Side (west) 

- Rear (north) 

30 ft. 
20 ft. 
20 ft. 
20 ft. 

Landscape Setback (min.) 
- Front (Queen Creek Rd.) 

- Side (McQueen Rd.) 

- Side (west) 

- Rear (north) 

30 ft. 
20 ft. 
20 ft. 
20 ft. 

Lot Coverage (max.) 55 % 
Perimeter Parking Screen Wall Height (max.) 4 ft. 
Interior Wall Height (max.) 16 ft. 
Additional Standards: 
Landscape Setback  
     Queen Creek Road and Hamilton Road 

-- 50 ft. x 250 ft. along Queen Creek Road 
-- 30 ft. x 100 ft. along Hamilton Road 

     McQueen Road and future collector street 
-- 50 ft. x 100 ft. along McQueen Road 
-- 30 ft. x 100 ft. along future collector street 

F. Circulation 
Schrader BP has been planned to ensure efficient on-site circulation and appropriate 

access to the public street system surrounding the Site.  Access to Site will occur as follows: 

• Three driveways along McQueen Road (east), four driveways along Queen Creek 
Road (south), three driveways along the future collector ½ street (north), and two 
along the future Hamilton Street ½ street (west).   

• McQueen Road is an arterial street with three lanes in each direction, a center 
median, bike lanes, and sidewalks contained within an approximately 130 feet 
right-of-way.   

• Queen Creek Road is also an arterial street with three lanes in each direction, a 
center median, bike lanes, and sidewalks contained within an approximately 160 
feet right-of-way.   



 6 

• The future collector ½ street (north) and Hamilton Street ½ street (west) will have 
one lane of traffic in each direction and sidewalks within an approximately 33 feet 
right-of-way. 

The surrounding regional roadway network includes Arizona Avenue (SR-87), Germann 
Road, and the Loop 202 San Tan Freeway. 

G. Parking 
The proposed parking provides a total of 1,592 spaces where 946 are required for a 

parking rating of 1.78 spaces per 1,000 square feet.  See Exhibit 3, Conceptual Site Plan.  The 
additional parking spaces allow Core5 to attract a variety of employment users, such as high-tech 
advanced manufacturing with high wage employees.  The additional parking also allows Core5 
greater flexibility to meet the demands of future tenants with higher numbers of employees than 
has historically been considered for these types of employment uses.   

V. CORE5 CORPORATE BACKGROUND 
Core5 is a national owner, developer and manager of prestigious commercial real estate 

properties.  The company’s capabilities are broad, having been applied to an array of real estate 
developments, including corporate headquarters, landmark properties, multi-use complexes, 
multinational distribution facilities, mixed-use suburban business parks, and foreign trade zones.  
Core5 currently has properties in ten different states with over 14,000,000 square feet of 
employment developments in various stages of development and approximately 3,700,000 
square feet under management.   

VI. MISCELLANEOUS 
A. Comprehensive Sign Plan 
The Comprehensive Sign Plan is attached as Exhibit 11.   

B. Grading and Drainage 
The Conceptual Grading and Drainage Plan is attached as Exhibit 10.  Development of 

the Site will provide retention for the 100-year, 2-hour storm event plus 10% in accordance with 
City of Chandler standards for site development. 

C. Utilities 
The onsite water, fire and sewer lines will be private, complying with the City’s 

requirements. These lines will be serviced by the existing and proposed public water and public 
sewer lines within the adjacent public streets.   

D. Phasing 
The employment buildings within Schrader Farms BP are preliminarily anticipated 

developing in two different phases as illustrated on the Phasing Plan included at Exhibit 11.  
Development of the future commercial pad will be a separate phase that is not connected to the 
employment buildings.  Improvements to the future commercial pad, including the arterial street 
frontage, will be made by the commercial developer.   Deviations from the proposed phasing 
schedule may be administratively approved by Staff. 

VII. PRELIMINARY PLAT 
The Preliminary Plat is attached as Exhibit 12. 



 7 

VIII. PROJECT TEAM 
Owner/Builder:    Core5 Schrader Farms BP, LLC 

Attn: Jon Kelly  
300 Spectrum Center Drive, Suite 880 
Irvine, California  92618 
Phone: (949) 467-3290 

 
Architect:     Deutsch Architecture Group 
      Attn:  Randy Hilleboe 
       David Calcaterra 
      4600 East Indian School Road 
      Phoenix, Arizona  85018 
      Phone: (602) 840-2929 
 
Landscape Architect:    G.K. Flanagan Associates, Inc. 
      Attn: Justin Meyer 
      4626 North 44th Street 
      Phoenix, Arizona  85018 
      Phone: (602) 912-9691 
 
 Civil Engineer:    Hunter Engineering  
      Attn: Larry Talbott 
      10450 North 74th Street, Suite 200 
      Scottsdale, Arizona  85258 
      Phone: (480) 991-3985 
 
Traffic Engineer:    CivTech 
      Attn: Dawn Cartier 
      8590 East Shea Boulevard, Suite 130 

Scottsdale, Arizona  85260 
      Phone: (480) 659-4250 
 
Zoning:     Burch & Cracchiolo, P.A. 
      Attn: Brennan Ray 
      1850 North Central Avenue, 17th Floor 
      Phoenix, Arizona  85004 
      Phone: (602) 234-8794 

IX. CONCLUSION 
Schrader Farms Business Park is a high-quality, exciting employment and commercial 

mixed-use development that will complement the surrounding area and provide a recognizable 
presence in the rapidly developing employment area.  The development presents the opportunity 
to create a business park with a variety of compatible and supportive uses.  The development will 
provide a strong base for attracting employment-based businesses. We request your approval. 

     Core5 Schrader Farms BP, LLC 



QUEEN CREEK RD.

LOOP 202

CHANDLER MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

M
c

Q
U

E
E

N
 R

D
.

GERMANN RD.

C
O

O
P

E
R

 R
D

.

CITY OF CHANDLER 

SOLID WASTE 

SERVICES

SUBJECT SITE

A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 A
V

E
.

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

BERNARD

DEUTSCH

11377

Expires 09/30/20

05/13/20CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN CONCEPT.  THEY ARE 
PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS 
INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC 
DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

A
E

R
IA

L

S
C

H
R

A
D

ER
 F

A
R

M
S

 B
U

S
IN

ES
S

 P
A

R
K

1
9

1
8

3
.0

0

5
/1

3
/2

0
2

0









VICINITY MAP

N

SITE

E GERMANN RD

E QUEEN CREEK RD

S
 G

IL
B

E
R

T
 R

D

S
 M

C
Q

U
E

E
N

 R
D

S
 C

O
O

P
E

R
 R

D

C
H
A
N
D
LE
R
 
M
U
N
IC
IP
A
L 
A
IR
P
O
R
T

CITY OF CHANDLER: 
RECYCLING -SOLID 
WASTE COLLECTION 
CENTER

660' 662' 660'

R
O

W

33 '

PUE
8'

520'

24
0'

13
5'

122928 SF

BUILDING D
172045 SF

BUILDING B

91906 SF

BUILDING A

38
7'

27
9'

30
3'

35
7'

660' 655'

13
25

'

30
'

30
'

R.O.W.

33'

LSB

20'

S89°21'01"W 2573.57'

LSB

250'

8'
P

U
E

10 0'

10
0'

LSB

30'

LSB

100'

LS
B

30 ' 20
'

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

COMMERCIAL PAD

RETENTION BASIN

40'-0"

40'-0"

P
H

A
S

E
 1

P
H

A
S

E
 2

CANARY WAY

S
 M

C
Q

U
E

E
N

 R
D

QUEEN CREEK ROAD

H
A

M
IL

T
O

N
 S

T
.

20
'

50'-0"

720'

LSB

30'

8'
 P

U
E

MONUMENT SIGN

ACCENT CONCRETE - REFER 
TO SITE EXHIBITS

24
2'

168041 SF

BUILDING C

19
0'

52
0'

-0
"

130'-0" 180'-0"

650'-6"
1080'-0"

26
0'

19
0'

277688 SF

BUILDING F

20 0'- 0"

40 '-0 "
40 '-0 "

480'

113328 SF

BUILDING E

60
'

60
'

60
'

60
'

TYP.

60'-0"

70
'

60
'

60
'

70
'

TYP.

54'-0"

60' 60' 60'

TYP.

54'-0"

TYP.

52'-0"
TYP.

60'-0"

T
Y

P
.

52
'-0

"

71
'

60
'

60
'

13
0'

60
'

60
'

60
'

60
'

24
0'

60
'

60
'

60
'

62
'

40
'

40'

40'

30'
40'

R
O

W

71 '-0 "

R
O

W

65 '-0 "

R
O

W

71 '-0 "

R
O

W

65 '-0 "

R
O

W

71 '-0 "

R
O

W

65 '-0 "

R
O

W

71 '-0 "

BUS BAY

75'

26
0'

10
0'

R
O

W

33 '

ROW

33'

A-5

7
UTILITY 
COURTYARD

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 

C
O

U
R

T
Y

A
R

D

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 

C
O

U
R

T
Y

A
R

D

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 

C
O

U
R

T
Y

A
R

D

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 

C
O

U
R

T
Y

A
R

D

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 

C
O

U
R

T
Y

A
R

D

G
A

T
E

G
A

T
E

G
A

T
E

G
A

T
E

G
A

T
E

G
A

T
E

G
A

T
E

G
A

T
E

G
A

T
E

GATE

MONUMENT SIGN

MONUMENT 
SIGN

MONUMENT SIGN
MONUMENT SIGN

BERMING

BERMING

GATE

BERMING
BERMINGBERMING

RETENTION BASINB
E

R
M

IN
G

B
E

R
M

IN
G

B
E

R
M

IN
G

RETENTION BASIN

B
E

R
M

IN
G

B
E

R
M

IN
G

B
E

R
M

IN
G

B
E

R
M

IN
G

BERMING

BERMING

RETENTION

BERMING BERMING
BERMING

BERMING

BERMING BERMING BERMING BERMING BERMING
BERMING BERMING BERMING

BERMING

BERMING BERMING
BERMING

B
E

R
M

IN
G

R
E

T
E

N
T

IO
N

 B
A

S
IN

B
E

R
M

IN
G

R
E

T
E

N
T

IO
N

 B
A

S
IN

B
E

R
M

IN
G

RETENTION BASIN

RETENTION BASIN

RETENTION BASIN

R
E

T
E

N
T

IO
N

 B
A

S
IN

B
E

R
M

IN
G

B
E

R
M

IN
G

R
E

T
E

N
T

IO
N

 
B

A
S

IN

BERMING

RETENTION BASIN

BERMING
BERMINGBERMINGBERMINGBERMING

RETENTION BASIN
RETENTION BASIN

30 '-0 "

20
1'

R.O.W.

65'-0"

R.O.W.

71'-0"

117'-8"

88
'

13
7'

51'

138'

13
6'

20
3'

101'

96'
111' 103'

TYP.
9'-0"

T
Y

P
.

16
'-6

"

32 '-7 "

8' -0"50
'

R
 3

0
'-
0
"

R
 3

0
'-0

"

R
 3

0
'-0

"

R
 3

0
'-
0
" R

 3
0
'-0

"

R
 3

0
'-
0
"

R 30'-0"

R 30'-0"

R 30'-0"

R
 25'-0"R

 2
5
'-
0
"

R
 2

5
'-0

"R
 2

5
'-
0
"

R
 2

5
'-
0
" R

 2
5
'-0

"

R
 3

0'-0
"

R 30'-0"

R 30'-0
"

R 30'-0"

PARKING SCREENWALL

PARKING SCREEN WALLS

PARKING SCREEN WALLS

P
A

R
K

IN
G

 S
C

R
E

E
N

 W
A

LL
S

TRUCK COURT SCREEN WALLS TRUCK COURT SCREEN WALLS

TRUCK COURT SCREEN WALLS

TRUCK COURT SCREEN WALLSTRUCK COURT SCREEN WALLS TRUCK COURT SCREEN WALLS

TRUCK COURT SCREEN WALLS TRUCK COURT SCREEN WALLS

TRUCK COURT SCREEN WALLS

TRUCK COURT 
SCREEN WALLS

TRUCK COURT 
SCREEN WALLS

4"

8'LS
B

P
U

E

LS
B 50

'

LS
B

LSB

50'

LSB

250'-0"

25
0'

LS
B

PUE
8'

BSL
20'

214'

STEEL SECURITY FENCING

STEEL SECURITY FENCING

MONUMENT 
SIGN

R 30'-0
"

SCALE 1" = 80'-0"
1

MASTER SITE PLAN

0' 80' 160' 240' 320'

N

PROJECT TEAM

CIVIL ENGINEER:

HUNTER ENGINEERING

10450 N. 74TH STREET, SUITE 200
SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85258
PHONE: (480) 991-3985
E-MAIL: LTALBOTT@HUNTERENGINEERINGPC.COM
CONTACT: LARRY TALBOTT, P.E.

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT:

G.K. FLANAGAN ASSOCIATES

4626 N. 44TH STREET
PHOENIX, AZ 85018
PHONE: (602) 912-9691
E-MAIL: JUSTIN@GKASSOCIATES.COM
CONTACT: JUSTIN MEYER

OWNER:

CORE5 SCHRADER FARMS BP, LLC

300 SPECTRUM CENTER DRIVE
SUITE 880
IRVINE, CA 92618
PHONE: (949) 467-3290
E-MAIL: JKELLY@C5IP.COM
CONTACT: JON KELLY

ARCHITECT:

DEUTSCH ARCHITECTURE GROUP

4600 E INDIAN SCHOOL RD
PHOENIX, AZ 85018
PHONE: 602-840-2929 x144
E-MAIL: RHILLEBOE@2929.COM
CONTACT: RANDY HILLEBOE

GENERAL CONTRACTOR:

NITTI BUILDERS, LLC

4248 N. CRAFTSMAN COURT
SUITE 100
SCOTTSDALE, AZ 85251
PHONE: (480) 459-2110
E-MAIL: RNITTI@NITTIBLDRS.COM
CONTACT: RAY NITTI

PROJECT NARRATIVE

THE PROPOSED PROJECT CONSISTS OF A MULTI-PHASE BUSINESS CENTER LOCATED ON 
APPROXIMATELY 70 ACRES AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF QUEEN CREEK ROAD AND MCQUEEN 
ROAD IN CHANDLER, ARIZONA. THE MASTER PLANNED DEVELOPMENT WILL CONSIST OF 
APPROXIMATELY SIX BUILDINGS DESIGNED FOR A WIDE VARIETY OF USES CONSISTENT WITH THE 
CHANDLER AIRPARK AREA PLAN

CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN CONCEPT.  THEY ARE 

PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS 

INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC 

DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

M
A

ST
ER

 S
IT

E 
PL

A
N

S
C

H
R

A
D

ER
 F

A
R

M
S

 B
U

S
IN

ES
S

 P
A

R
K

19
18

3.
00

05
/1

0/
20

21

ELECTRICAL ENGINEER:

SOLUTIONS AEC

1414 W. BROADWAY, SUITE 142
TEMPE, AZ 85282
PHONE: (480) 568-3166
E-MAIL: JREMSON@SOLUTIONS-AEC.COM
CONTACT: JOE REMSON, PE 



FUTURE 
DEVELOPMENT

05
/1
0/
20
21



QUEEN CREEK ROADQUEEN CREEK ROAD QUEEN CREEK ROAD

M
cQ

U
EE

N
 R

O
A

D
M

cQ
U

EE
N

 R
O

A
D

M
cQ

U
EE

N
 R

O
A

D

H
A

M
IL

TO
N

 R
O

A
D

H
A

M
IL

TO
N

 R
O

A
D

CANARY WAY

QUEEN CREEK ROAD

CANARY WAYCANARY WAYCANARY WAY

A

DG

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

GROUNDCOVER

PROPOSED PLANT PALETTE
TREES

SHRUBS

GROUNDCOVER

SIZE/COMMENTS/QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
2,765 QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,867 QTY
1 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,653 QTY
5 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,367 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,105 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,566 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
991 QTY
1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,100 QTY

EREMOPHILA GLABRA
OUTBACK SUNRISE EMU

JUSTICIA CALIFORNICA
CHUPAROSA

ACACIA REDOLENS 'DESERT CARPET'
TRAILING ACACIA

ERICAMERIA LARICIFOLIA 'AGUIRRE'
TURPENTINE

CERCIDIUM PRAECOX 'AZT HYBRID'
AZT HYBRID PALO BREA

PISTACIA CHINENSIS 'RED PUSH'
RED PUSH PISTACHE

LEUCOPHYLLUM LANGMANIAE
RIO BRAVO SAGE

SENNA ARTEMISOIDES
FEATHERY CASSIA

LEUCOPHYLLUM ZYGOPHYLLUM
CIMARRON SAGE

RUELLIA PENINSULARIS
BAJA RUELLIA

PROSOPIS 'AZT PODLESS HYBRID'
AZT PODLESS MESQUITE

LANTANA 'NEW GOLD'
TRAILING YELLOW LANTANA

ROSMARINUS 'HUNTINGTON CARPET'
TRAILING ROSEMARY

HESPERALOE PARVIFLORA
RED YUCCA

ULMUS PARVIFOLIA
EVERGREEN ELM

LANTANA MONTEVIDENSIS 'PURPLE'
PURPLE LANTANA

EREMOPHILA CARNOSA
WINTER BLAZE EMU

1/2" MINUS
2" DEPTH

DECOMPOSED GRANITE
GOLD COLOR AS SELECTED

NOTE:
ALL TREES ARE TO COMPLY WITH THE LATEST AMENDED EDITION OF THE
ARIZONA NURSERY ASSOCIATION RECOMMENDED TREE SPECIFICATIONS.

OLEA EUROPAEA 'LITTLE' OLLIE'
LITTLE OLLIE OLIVE

1"-3" SCREENED
4" DEPTH

FRACTURED GRANITE
BROWN COLOR AS SELECTED

FG

PISTACIA LENTISCUS
MASTIC TREE

36" BOX /  144 QTY /
2" CAL. / 9' H x 6' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

24" BOX /  73 QTY /
1" CAL. / 5' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  1,325 QTY

5 GAL /  118 QTY

5 GAL /  761 QTY

5 GAL /  641 QTY

24" BOX /  302 QTY /
1" CAL. / 9' H x 7' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  331 QTY

24" BOX / 72 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W/
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  924 QTY

24" BOX / 71 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

PHOENIX DACTYLIFERA
DATE PALM

25' HEIGHT / 10 QTY/
DIAMOND CUT /
MATCHED

GENERAL NOTES
ALL PLANTING AREAS TO HAVE DECOMPOSED GRANITE, SIZE
AND COLOR AS CALLED FOR ON PLANS, 2" THICK, TYP.
GRANITE EXPRESS OR EQUAL, APPLIED OVER PRE-EMERGNET,
PRE MFG. SPECS, 2 APPLICATIONS MIN.

1.

VERIFY ALL CONDITIONS IN FIELD PRIOR TO BIDDING/
INSTALLATION.DISCRPANCIES SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT'S ATTENTION, IN WRITING.

2.

NO PLANT SUBSTITUTION ALLOWES UNLESS
APPROVED BY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT.

3.

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT TO APPROVE ALL TREES
AND SHRUBS PRIOR TO DELIVERY TO SITE.

4.

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT OR HIS REP RESERVE THE RIGHT TO
REFUSE ANY PLANT MATERIAL HE/ SHE DEEMS UNACCEPTABLE.

5.

FOR CLARIFICATION OF DISCREPANCIES BETWEEN THE DWGS
AND THE SITE, THEY SHOULD BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION
OF THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK.

6.

LANDSCAPE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO TAKE
PRECAUTIONS TO PROTECT ANY EXISTING IMRPOVEMENTS.

7.

PLANT LIST/ QTY'S PROVIDED FOR CONTRACTOR'S
CONVENIENCE ONLY. PLANS TAKE PRECEDENCE.

8.

FINISHED GRADE BELOW ALL PLANTERS SHALL BE 1 1/2"
BELOW ADJACENT HEADER, PAVING, CURBING, ETC.

9.

GROUNDCOVER AND/ OR DG SHALL
EXTEND UNDER SHRUBS UNLESS NOTED.

10.

ALL EARTHWORK IS TO BE DONE SO THAT ALL
WATER DRAINS AWAY FROM ALL STRUCTURES.

11.

ALL UNDERGROUND CONDUITS/ PIPES/ UTILITIES ARE
TO BE LOCATED PRIOR TO DIGGING.

12.

ALL MATERIAL TO BE GUARANTEED PER WARRANTY13.
CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL REQUIRED
SLEEVING WHETHER IT IS SHOWN ON THE PLANS OR NOT.

14.

ALL TREES ARE TO COMPLY WITH THE LATEST
AMENDED EDITION OF THE ARIZONA NURSERY
ASSOCIATION RECOMMENDED TREE SPECIFICATIONS.

15.

1. ALL SITE IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING LANDSCAPE AND SITE CLEANUP, MUST BE 
COMPLETED PRIOR TO CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FOR ANY BUILDING WITHIN A
PHASE.

2. NO OBSTRUCTIONS TO VIEW SHALL BE ERECTED, CONSTRUCTED OR PARKED 
WITHIN THE SIGHT VISIBILITY AREA. ALL TREES WITHIN THE LINE OF SIGHT WILL
MAINTAIN A CANOPY HEIGHT OF 6' ABOVE CURB ELEVATION. ALL SHRUBS IN THIS
AREA MAY NOT REACH A MATURE HEIGHT OVER 24".

3. ALL PLANT MATERIALS ARE GUARANTEED FOR A MINIMUM PERIOD OF SIXTY (60) DAYS
FROM THE DATE OF FINAL APPROVAL BY THE CITY. ANY PLANT MATERIALS, 
WHICH ARE NOT APPROVED BY THE CITY PRIOR TO OCTOBER 1 OF THE CALENDAR
YEAR IN WHICH THEY ARE INSTALLED, SHALL BE FURTHER GUARANTEED UNTIL 
MAY 20 OF THE FOLLOWING CALENDAR YEAR.

4. TREES, SHRUBS, VINES, GROUND COVER AND TURF THAT HAVE TO BE REPLACED UNDER
TERMS OF THE GUARANTEE SHALL BE GUARANTEED FOR AN ADDITIONAL 60 DAYS
FROM THE DATE OF REPLACEMENT.

5. ALL PLANT MATERIALS SHALL BE MAINTAINED IN HEALTH AND VIGOR AND BE 
ALLOWED TO ATTAIN NATURAL SIZE AND SHAPE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
ORIGINALLY APPROVED LANDSCAPE PLAN.

6. PARKING LOT TREES MUST HAVE A MINIMUM CLEAR CANOPY HEIGHT OF 5'.
7. ALL LANDSCAPE AREAS SHALL BE GRADED SO THAT FINISHED GRADE SURFACES OF

ALL NON-LIVING MATERIALS(IE. DECOMPOSED GRANITE, CRUSHED ROCK, 
MULCH, ET.) ARE ONE AND ONE HALF (1 12") INCHES BELOW CONCRETE OR OTHER 
PAVED SURFACES.

8. TREES MUST BE PLANTED A MINIMUM OF 5' FROM SIDEWALKS AND PUBLIC ACCESS
WAYS. SHRUBS MUST BE AT MATURITY, 3' FROM ALL SIDES OF A FIRE HYDRANT, 
PIV, OR FDC.

9. ALL LANDSCAPING SHALL BE MAINTAINED BY THE LANDOWNER OR THE LESSOR IN
COMPLIANCE WITH THE ZONING CODE.

10. THERE SHALL BE NO OBSTRUCTION OF SITE SIGNAGE BY LANDSCAPE PLANT 
MATERIAL, AND THAT SUCH MUST BE RELOCATED AND OR CORRECTED BEFORE THE
FIELD INSPECTION WILL ACCEPT/ PASS THE SIGN IN THE FIELD OR ISSUE A 
CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY FOR A PROJECT.

11. ALL TRANSFORMER BOXES, METER PANELS, ELECTRICAL EQUIPMENT, BACKFLOW 
DEVICES OR ANY OTHER UTILITY EQUIPMENT NOT ABLE OR REQUIRED TO BE 
SCREENED BY LANDSCAPING OR WALLS, SHALL BE PAINTED TO MATCH THE 
BUILDING COLOR.

12. ALL WALLS OVER 7' IN HEIGHT, SITE LIGHTING, SIGNAGE, RAMADAS AND SHADE 
STRUCTURES REQUIRE SEPARATE SUBMITTALS AND PERMITS.

CITY OF CHANDLER NOTES

 L-1  L-3  L-5  L-7

 L-2  L-4  L-6  L-8

BUILDING F
280,800 SF

BUILDING C
168,480 SF

BUILDING E
115,200 SF

BUILDING D
124,800 SF

BUILDING B
172,800 SF

BUILDING A
93,600 SF

FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

05.10.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
contents:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet no.

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 6 2 6   N .   4 4 t h   S T R E E T 

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.K. FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N D S C A P E   A R C H I T E C T U R E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 3  

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 1  

AutoCAD SHX Text
P H O E N I X ,   A Z     8 5 0 1 8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A S S O C I A T E S,     I N C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N N I N G 

AutoCAD SHX Text
f a x

AutoCAD SHX Text
t e l

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-0

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHRADER FARMS BUSINESS PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NWC McQUEEN AND QUEEN CREEK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANDLER, ARIZONA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
05.10.2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPE COVER SHEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: NTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ref. North

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGORY K.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20086

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES 12/31/2023



FF

D

E

F

F

F

E

E

E

H

DG

DG DG

DG

DG

DG

H
A

M
IL

TO
N

 R
O

A
D

G

D

B

G

B

F

D

D

D

A

B

C

A

B

C

G
G

B

H

B

B

B

F A

B
C

A

B C

E DD

F

D

FG

A

DG

F

DG

B

DG

FG
B

DG

AA

FGDG

B B

ED DED D

F

ED D

F

E
D D

G

G

DG

FG
F

B

DG

B

DG

DG

DG

DG

G

G

BG
DG

DDBG
DG

D D B G
DG

B G BG

D

D

D

CANARY WAY

A

DG

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

GROUNDCOVER

PROPOSED PLANT PALETTE
TREES

SHRUBS

GROUNDCOVER

SIZE/COMMENTS/QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
2,765 QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,867 QTY
1 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,653 QTY
5 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,367 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,105 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,566 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
991 QTY
1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,100 QTY

EREMOPHILA GLABRA
OUTBACK SUNRISE EMU

JUSTICIA CALIFORNICA
CHUPAROSA

ACACIA REDOLENS 'DESERT CARPET'
TRAILING ACACIA

ERICAMERIA LARICIFOLIA 'AGUIRRE'
TURPENTINE

CERCIDIUM PRAECOX 'AZT HYBRID'
AZT HYBRID PALO BREA

PISTACIA CHINENSIS 'RED PUSH'
RED PUSH PISTACHE

LEUCOPHYLLUM LANGMANIAE
RIO BRAVO SAGE

SENNA ARTEMISOIDES
FEATHERY CASSIA

LEUCOPHYLLUM ZYGOPHYLLUM
CIMARRON SAGE

RUELLIA PENINSULARIS
BAJA RUELLIA

PROSOPIS 'AZT PODLESS HYBRID'
AZT PODLESS MESQUITE

LANTANA 'NEW GOLD'
TRAILING YELLOW LANTANA

ROSMARINUS 'HUNTINGTON CARPET'
TRAILING ROSEMARY

HESPERALOE PARVIFLORA
RED YUCCA

ULMUS PARVIFOLIA
EVERGREEN ELM

LANTANA MONTEVIDENSIS 'PURPLE'
PURPLE LANTANA

EREMOPHILA CARNOSA
WINTER BLAZE EMU

1/2" MINUS
2" DEPTH

DECOMPOSED GRANITE
GOLD COLOR AS SELECTED

NOTE:
ALL TREES ARE TO COMPLY WITH THE LATEST AMENDED EDITION OF THE
ARIZONA NURSERY ASSOCIATION RECOMMENDED TREE SPECIFICATIONS.

OLEA EUROPAEA 'LITTLE' OLLIE'
LITTLE OLLIE OLIVE

1"-3" SCREENED
4" DEPTH

FRACTURED GRANITE
BROWN COLOR AS SELECTED

FG

PISTACIA LENTISCUS
MASTIC TREE

36" BOX /  144 QTY /
2" CAL. / 9' H x 6' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

24" BOX /  73 QTY /
1" CAL. / 5' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  1,325 QTY

5 GAL /  118 QTY

5 GAL /  761 QTY

5 GAL /  641 QTY

24" BOX /  302 QTY /
1" CAL. / 9' H x 7' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  331 QTY

24" BOX / 72 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W/
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  924 QTY

24" BOX / 71 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

PHOENIX DACTYLIFERA
DATE PALM

25' HEIGHT / 10 QTY/
DIAMOND CUT /
MATCHED

0 15' 30' 60'

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L-
3

MATCHLINE SHEET L-2

BUILDING F
280,800 SF

05.10.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
contents:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet no.

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 6 2 6   N .   4 4 t h   S T R E E T 

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.K. FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N D S C A P E   A R C H I T E C T U R E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 3  

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 1  

AutoCAD SHX Text
P H O E N I X ,   A Z     8 5 0 1 8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A S S O C I A T E S,     I N C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N N I N G 

AutoCAD SHX Text
f a x

AutoCAD SHX Text
t e l

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHRADER FARMS BUSINESS PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NWC McQUEEN AND QUEEN CREEK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANDLER, ARIZONA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
05.10.2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=30'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ref. North

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGORY K.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20086

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES 12/31/2023



A
A

A

A

B

B

B

C

C

G

G

D D
D DE

EEE

D

D

F

D D
E

FF

B

B

H

H

G

C

F

D

DG
DG

DG

DGDG

DG

DG

DG

QUEEN CREEK ROAD

H
A

M
IL

TO
N

 R
O

A
D

B

B

D

G

B

G

B

G

B

G B D D
B G

D

B
A

E

D

E

D

DG

D

D

E

E

D
F

H

D

D

H

H

D

D

H

G

B

G

B

A

B

C

G H

A

B

B

A
B

C

F

B
B

DG
G

G

F F F F

D
D

F

F

FG

F
FF

DG

DG

DG

DGDG DG

GB G B

D D

D

A

DG

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

GROUNDCOVER

PROPOSED PLANT PALETTE
TREES

SHRUBS

GROUNDCOVER

SIZE/COMMENTS/QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
2,765 QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,867 QTY
1 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,653 QTY
5 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,367 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,105 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,566 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
991 QTY
1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,100 QTY

EREMOPHILA GLABRA
OUTBACK SUNRISE EMU

JUSTICIA CALIFORNICA
CHUPAROSA

ACACIA REDOLENS 'DESERT CARPET'
TRAILING ACACIA

ERICAMERIA LARICIFOLIA 'AGUIRRE'
TURPENTINE

CERCIDIUM PRAECOX 'AZT HYBRID'
AZT HYBRID PALO BREA

PISTACIA CHINENSIS 'RED PUSH'
RED PUSH PISTACHE

LEUCOPHYLLUM LANGMANIAE
RIO BRAVO SAGE

SENNA ARTEMISOIDES
FEATHERY CASSIA

LEUCOPHYLLUM ZYGOPHYLLUM
CIMARRON SAGE

RUELLIA PENINSULARIS
BAJA RUELLIA

PROSOPIS 'AZT PODLESS HYBRID'
AZT PODLESS MESQUITE

LANTANA 'NEW GOLD'
TRAILING YELLOW LANTANA

ROSMARINUS 'HUNTINGTON CARPET'
TRAILING ROSEMARY

HESPERALOE PARVIFLORA
RED YUCCA

ULMUS PARVIFOLIA
EVERGREEN ELM

LANTANA MONTEVIDENSIS 'PURPLE'
PURPLE LANTANA

EREMOPHILA CARNOSA
WINTER BLAZE EMU

1/2" MINUS
2" DEPTH

DECOMPOSED GRANITE
GOLD COLOR AS SELECTED

NOTE:
ALL TREES ARE TO COMPLY WITH THE LATEST AMENDED EDITION OF THE
ARIZONA NURSERY ASSOCIATION RECOMMENDED TREE SPECIFICATIONS.

OLEA EUROPAEA 'LITTLE' OLLIE'
LITTLE OLLIE OLIVE

1"-3" SCREENED
4" DEPTH

FRACTURED GRANITE
BROWN COLOR AS SELECTED

FG

PISTACIA LENTISCUS
MASTIC TREE

36" BOX /  144 QTY /
2" CAL. / 9' H x 6' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

24" BOX /  73 QTY /
1" CAL. / 5' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  1,325 QTY

5 GAL /  118 QTY

5 GAL /  761 QTY

5 GAL /  641 QTY

24" BOX /  302 QTY /
1" CAL. / 9' H x 7' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  331 QTY

24" BOX / 72 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W/
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  924 QTY

24" BOX / 71 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

PHOENIX DACTYLIFERA
DATE PALM

25' HEIGHT / 10 QTY/
DIAMOND CUT /
MATCHED

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L-
4

MATCHLINE SHEET L-1

0 15' 30' 60'

BUILDING E
115,200 SF

05.10.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
contents:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet no.

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 6 2 6   N .   4 4 t h   S T R E E T 

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.K. FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N D S C A P E   A R C H I T E C T U R E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 3  

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 1  

AutoCAD SHX Text
P H O E N I X ,   A Z     8 5 0 1 8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A S S O C I A T E S,     I N C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N N I N G 

AutoCAD SHX Text
f a x

AutoCAD SHX Text
t e l

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHRADER FARMS BUSINESS PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NWC McQUEEN AND QUEEN CREEK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANDLER, ARIZONA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
05.10.2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=30'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ref. North

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGORY K.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20086

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES 12/31/2023



A
BDDDE E

D

D

C

A

C

B

FF

D

H

D

F

DE
D

F

D
E

H

H

H

H

G

B

B

DG DG

DG

CD D

H

F

B

D

D

G

B

B

B

E

HH

DG

D D

C D

DG

DG

D D CC

D

BB

A

A

DGA

A

B AA

AA B B

DG DG

D

G

H

H

H

H

D E
FA DG

DG
F

D

D

DG

DG

DGDG

DGDG

DG
D D B G

DG
DD B G BG

CANARY WAY

D

D

ENHANCED 
PAVING TYP.

MONUMENT 
SIGNAGE TYP.

A

DG

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

GROUNDCOVER

PROPOSED PLANT PALETTE
TREES

SHRUBS

GROUNDCOVER

SIZE/COMMENTS/QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
2,765 QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,867 QTY
1 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,653 QTY
5 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,367 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,105 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,566 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
991 QTY
1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,100 QTY

EREMOPHILA GLABRA
OUTBACK SUNRISE EMU

JUSTICIA CALIFORNICA
CHUPAROSA

ACACIA REDOLENS 'DESERT CARPET'
TRAILING ACACIA

ERICAMERIA LARICIFOLIA 'AGUIRRE'
TURPENTINE

CERCIDIUM PRAECOX 'AZT HYBRID'
AZT HYBRID PALO BREA

PISTACIA CHINENSIS 'RED PUSH'
RED PUSH PISTACHE

LEUCOPHYLLUM LANGMANIAE
RIO BRAVO SAGE

SENNA ARTEMISOIDES
FEATHERY CASSIA

LEUCOPHYLLUM ZYGOPHYLLUM
CIMARRON SAGE

RUELLIA PENINSULARIS
BAJA RUELLIA

PROSOPIS 'AZT PODLESS HYBRID'
AZT PODLESS MESQUITE

LANTANA 'NEW GOLD'
TRAILING YELLOW LANTANA

ROSMARINUS 'HUNTINGTON CARPET'
TRAILING ROSEMARY

HESPERALOE PARVIFLORA
RED YUCCA

ULMUS PARVIFOLIA
EVERGREEN ELM

LANTANA MONTEVIDENSIS 'PURPLE'
PURPLE LANTANA

EREMOPHILA CARNOSA
WINTER BLAZE EMU

1/2" MINUS
2" DEPTH

DECOMPOSED GRANITE
GOLD COLOR AS SELECTED

NOTE:
ALL TREES ARE TO COMPLY WITH THE LATEST AMENDED EDITION OF THE
ARIZONA NURSERY ASSOCIATION RECOMMENDED TREE SPECIFICATIONS.

OLEA EUROPAEA 'LITTLE' OLLIE'
LITTLE OLLIE OLIVE

1"-3" SCREENED
4" DEPTH

FRACTURED GRANITE
BROWN COLOR AS SELECTED

FG

PISTACIA LENTISCUS
MASTIC TREE

36" BOX /  144 QTY /
2" CAL. / 9' H x 6' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

24" BOX /  73 QTY /
1" CAL. / 5' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  1,325 QTY

5 GAL /  118 QTY

5 GAL /  761 QTY

5 GAL /  641 QTY

24" BOX /  302 QTY /
1" CAL. / 9' H x 7' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  331 QTY

24" BOX / 72 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W/
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  924 QTY

24" BOX / 71 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

PHOENIX DACTYLIFERA
DATE PALM

25' HEIGHT / 10 QTY/
DIAMOND CUT /
MATCHED

MATCHLINE SHEET L-4

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L-
5

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L-
1

0 15' 30' 60'

BUILDING F
280,800 SF

05.10.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
contents:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet no.

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 6 2 6   N .   4 4 t h   S T R E E T 

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.K. FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N D S C A P E   A R C H I T E C T U R E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 3  

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 1  

AutoCAD SHX Text
P H O E N I X ,   A Z     8 5 0 1 8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A S S O C I A T E S,     I N C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N N I N G 

AutoCAD SHX Text
f a x

AutoCAD SHX Text
t e l

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-3

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHRADER FARMS BUSINESS PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NWC McQUEEN AND QUEEN CREEK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANDLER, ARIZONA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
05.10.2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=30'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ref. North

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGORY K.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20086

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES 12/31/2023



A

A

A

B

CC

BB

F

E

F

EEE
DD D

HH

F
F

F

B

D

D

B

DG

DG

DG

DG

DG

DG

DG

DG

DG

DG

B

B

B

H

E

DG

F

G

D

H

D

DGDG

D

F

DD
D D

B

B

B

B

B

B

B

H

DGDG

DG

DG

G

D

BB

B

AA
B

B

G

D

DG

D D

H

H

B

BB

BH

B

DG

FG FG

E D

F

F

F

F

DG

DG

DG

F

DG DG

DG

H

H

D GBDD
BG

D G BGB

G

D

QUEEN CREEK ROAD

F

DGDG

F

D

D

MONUMENT 

ENHANCED 

SIGNAGE TYP.

PAVING TYP.

A

DG

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

GROUNDCOVER

PROPOSED PLANT PALETTE
TREES

SHRUBS

GROUNDCOVER

SIZE/COMMENTS/QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
2,765 QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,867 QTY
1 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,653 QTY
5 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,367 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,105 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,566 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
991 QTY
1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,100 QTY

EREMOPHILA GLABRA
OUTBACK SUNRISE EMU

JUSTICIA CALIFORNICA
CHUPAROSA

ACACIA REDOLENS 'DESERT CARPET'
TRAILING ACACIA

ERICAMERIA LARICIFOLIA 'AGUIRRE'
TURPENTINE

CERCIDIUM PRAECOX 'AZT HYBRID'
AZT HYBRID PALO BREA

PISTACIA CHINENSIS 'RED PUSH'
RED PUSH PISTACHE

LEUCOPHYLLUM LANGMANIAE
RIO BRAVO SAGE

SENNA ARTEMISOIDES
FEATHERY CASSIA

LEUCOPHYLLUM ZYGOPHYLLUM
CIMARRON SAGE

RUELLIA PENINSULARIS
BAJA RUELLIA

PROSOPIS 'AZT PODLESS HYBRID'
AZT PODLESS MESQUITE

LANTANA 'NEW GOLD'
TRAILING YELLOW LANTANA

ROSMARINUS 'HUNTINGTON CARPET'
TRAILING ROSEMARY

HESPERALOE PARVIFLORA
RED YUCCA

ULMUS PARVIFOLIA
EVERGREEN ELM

LANTANA MONTEVIDENSIS 'PURPLE'
PURPLE LANTANA

EREMOPHILA CARNOSA
WINTER BLAZE EMU

1/2" MINUS
2" DEPTH

DECOMPOSED GRANITE
GOLD COLOR AS SELECTED

NOTE:
ALL TREES ARE TO COMPLY WITH THE LATEST AMENDED EDITION OF THE
ARIZONA NURSERY ASSOCIATION RECOMMENDED TREE SPECIFICATIONS.

OLEA EUROPAEA 'LITTLE' OLLIE'
LITTLE OLLIE OLIVE

1"-3" SCREENED
4" DEPTH

FRACTURED GRANITE
BROWN COLOR AS SELECTED

FG

PISTACIA LENTISCUS
MASTIC TREE

36" BOX /  144 QTY /
2" CAL. / 9' H x 6' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

24" BOX /  73 QTY /
1" CAL. / 5' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  1,325 QTY

5 GAL /  118 QTY

5 GAL /  761 QTY

5 GAL /  641 QTY

24" BOX /  302 QTY /
1" CAL. / 9' H x 7' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  331 QTY

24" BOX / 72 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W/
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  924 QTY

24" BOX / 71 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

PHOENIX DACTYLIFERA
DATE PALM

25' HEIGHT / 10 QTY/
DIAMOND CUT /
MATCHED

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L-
6

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L-
2

MATCHLINE SHEET L-3

0 15' 30' 60'

BUILDING D
124,800 SF

05.10.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
contents:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet no.

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 6 2 6   N .   4 4 t h   S T R E E T 

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.K. FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N D S C A P E   A R C H I T E C T U R E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 3  

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 1  

AutoCAD SHX Text
P H O E N I X ,   A Z     8 5 0 1 8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A S S O C I A T E S,     I N C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N N I N G 

AutoCAD SHX Text
f a x

AutoCAD SHX Text
t e l

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHRADER FARMS BUSINESS PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NWC McQUEEN AND QUEEN CREEK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANDLER, ARIZONA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
05.10.2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=30'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ref. North

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGORY K.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20086

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES 12/31/2023



A

DG

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

GROUNDCOVER

PROPOSED PLANT PALETTE
TREES

SHRUBS

GROUNDCOVER

SIZE/COMMENTS/QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
2,765 QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,867 QTY
1 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,653 QTY
5 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,367 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,105 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,566 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
991 QTY
1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,100 QTY

EREMOPHILA GLABRA
OUTBACK SUNRISE EMU

JUSTICIA CALIFORNICA
CHUPAROSA

ACACIA REDOLENS 'DESERT CARPET'
TRAILING ACACIA

ERICAMERIA LARICIFOLIA 'AGUIRRE'
TURPENTINE

CERCIDIUM PRAECOX 'AZT HYBRID'
AZT HYBRID PALO BREA

PISTACIA CHINENSIS 'RED PUSH'
RED PUSH PISTACHE

LEUCOPHYLLUM LANGMANIAE
RIO BRAVO SAGE

SENNA ARTEMISOIDES
FEATHERY CASSIA

LEUCOPHYLLUM ZYGOPHYLLUM
CIMARRON SAGE

RUELLIA PENINSULARIS
BAJA RUELLIA

PROSOPIS 'AZT PODLESS HYBRID'
AZT PODLESS MESQUITE

LANTANA 'NEW GOLD'
TRAILING YELLOW LANTANA

ROSMARINUS 'HUNTINGTON CARPET'
TRAILING ROSEMARY

HESPERALOE PARVIFLORA
RED YUCCA

ULMUS PARVIFOLIA
EVERGREEN ELM

LANTANA MONTEVIDENSIS 'PURPLE'
PURPLE LANTANA

EREMOPHILA CARNOSA
WINTER BLAZE EMU

1/2" MINUS
2" DEPTH

DECOMPOSED GRANITE
GOLD COLOR AS SELECTED

NOTE:
ALL TREES ARE TO COMPLY WITH THE LATEST AMENDED EDITION OF THE
ARIZONA NURSERY ASSOCIATION RECOMMENDED TREE SPECIFICATIONS.

OLEA EUROPAEA 'LITTLE' OLLIE'
LITTLE OLLIE OLIVE

1"-3" SCREENED
4" DEPTH

FRACTURED GRANITE
BROWN COLOR AS SELECTED

FG

PISTACIA LENTISCUS
MASTIC TREE

36" BOX /  144 QTY /
2" CAL. / 9' H x 6' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

24" BOX /  73 QTY /
1" CAL. / 5' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  1,325 QTY

5 GAL /  118 QTY

5 GAL /  761 QTY

5 GAL /  641 QTY

24" BOX /  302 QTY /
1" CAL. / 9' H x 7' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  331 QTY

24" BOX / 72 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W/
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  924 QTY

24" BOX / 71 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

PHOENIX DACTYLIFERA
DATE PALM

25' HEIGHT / 10 QTY/
DIAMOND CUT /
MATCHED

D D E DED D E

F

D

F

DE

DG DG

D

FF F

D E D

DG
DDDB

DG

D

DG

DG

B G
DG

D D DBG

CANARY WAY

MATCHLINE SHEET L-6

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L-
7

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L-
3

0 15' 30' 60'

BUILDING C
168,480 SF

05.10.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
contents:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet no.

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 6 2 6   N .   4 4 t h   S T R E E T 

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.K. FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N D S C A P E   A R C H I T E C T U R E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 3  

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 1  

AutoCAD SHX Text
P H O E N I X ,   A Z     8 5 0 1 8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A S S O C I A T E S,     I N C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N N I N G 

AutoCAD SHX Text
f a x

AutoCAD SHX Text
t e l

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-5

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHRADER FARMS BUSINESS PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NWC McQUEEN AND QUEEN CREEK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANDLER, ARIZONA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
05.10.2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=30'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ref. North

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGORY K.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20086

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES 12/31/2023



A

DG

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

GROUNDCOVER

PROPOSED PLANT PALETTE
TREES

SHRUBS

GROUNDCOVER

SIZE/COMMENTS/QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
2,765 QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,867 QTY
1 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,653 QTY
5 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,367 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,105 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,566 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
991 QTY
1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,100 QTY

EREMOPHILA GLABRA
OUTBACK SUNRISE EMU

JUSTICIA CALIFORNICA
CHUPAROSA

ACACIA REDOLENS 'DESERT CARPET'
TRAILING ACACIA

ERICAMERIA LARICIFOLIA 'AGUIRRE'
TURPENTINE

CERCIDIUM PRAECOX 'AZT HYBRID'
AZT HYBRID PALO BREA

PISTACIA CHINENSIS 'RED PUSH'
RED PUSH PISTACHE

LEUCOPHYLLUM LANGMANIAE
RIO BRAVO SAGE

SENNA ARTEMISOIDES
FEATHERY CASSIA

LEUCOPHYLLUM ZYGOPHYLLUM
CIMARRON SAGE

RUELLIA PENINSULARIS
BAJA RUELLIA

PROSOPIS 'AZT PODLESS HYBRID'
AZT PODLESS MESQUITE

LANTANA 'NEW GOLD'
TRAILING YELLOW LANTANA

ROSMARINUS 'HUNTINGTON CARPET'
TRAILING ROSEMARY

HESPERALOE PARVIFLORA
RED YUCCA

ULMUS PARVIFOLIA
EVERGREEN ELM

LANTANA MONTEVIDENSIS 'PURPLE'
PURPLE LANTANA

EREMOPHILA CARNOSA
WINTER BLAZE EMU

1/2" MINUS
2" DEPTH

DECOMPOSED GRANITE
GOLD COLOR AS SELECTED

NOTE:
ALL TREES ARE TO COMPLY WITH THE LATEST AMENDED EDITION OF THE
ARIZONA NURSERY ASSOCIATION RECOMMENDED TREE SPECIFICATIONS.

OLEA EUROPAEA 'LITTLE' OLLIE'
LITTLE OLLIE OLIVE

1"-3" SCREENED
4" DEPTH

FRACTURED GRANITE
BROWN COLOR AS SELECTED

FG

PISTACIA LENTISCUS
MASTIC TREE

36" BOX /  144 QTY /
2" CAL. / 9' H x 6' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

24" BOX /  73 QTY /
1" CAL. / 5' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  1,325 QTY

5 GAL /  118 QTY

5 GAL /  761 QTY

5 GAL /  641 QTY

24" BOX /  302 QTY /
1" CAL. / 9' H x 7' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  331 QTY

24" BOX / 72 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W/
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  924 QTY

24" BOX / 71 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

PHOENIX DACTYLIFERA
DATE PALM

25' HEIGHT / 10 QTY/
DIAMOND CUT /
MATCHED

A

B

DG

DG

QUEEN CREEK ROAD

DG

E
E

DG
F

DB D D
B G

D DBG
D DD

D
E

D D D
E

D D D D D

G G G

C

B

F F F

DGDG

DG

DG

DG

F

DG

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L-
8

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L-
4

MATCHLINE SHEET L-5

0 15' 30' 60'

BUILDING B
172,800 SF

05.10.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
contents:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet no.

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 6 2 6   N .   4 4 t h   S T R E E T 

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.K. FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N D S C A P E   A R C H I T E C T U R E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 3  

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 1  

AutoCAD SHX Text
P H O E N I X ,   A Z     8 5 0 1 8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A S S O C I A T E S,     I N C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N N I N G 

AutoCAD SHX Text
f a x

AutoCAD SHX Text
t e l

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-6

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHRADER FARMS BUSINESS PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NWC McQUEEN AND QUEEN CREEK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANDLER, ARIZONA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
05.10.2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=30'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ref. North

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGORY K.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20086

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES 12/31/2023



A

DG

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

GROUNDCOVER

PROPOSED PLANT PALETTE
TREES

SHRUBS

GROUNDCOVER

SIZE/COMMENTS/QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
2,765 QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,867 QTY
1 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,653 QTY
5 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,367 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,105 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,566 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
991 QTY
1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,100 QTY

EREMOPHILA GLABRA
OUTBACK SUNRISE EMU

JUSTICIA CALIFORNICA
CHUPAROSA

ACACIA REDOLENS 'DESERT CARPET'
TRAILING ACACIA

ERICAMERIA LARICIFOLIA 'AGUIRRE'
TURPENTINE

CERCIDIUM PRAECOX 'AZT HYBRID'
AZT HYBRID PALO BREA

PISTACIA CHINENSIS 'RED PUSH'
RED PUSH PISTACHE

LEUCOPHYLLUM LANGMANIAE
RIO BRAVO SAGE

SENNA ARTEMISOIDES
FEATHERY CASSIA

LEUCOPHYLLUM ZYGOPHYLLUM
CIMARRON SAGE

RUELLIA PENINSULARIS
BAJA RUELLIA

PROSOPIS 'AZT PODLESS HYBRID'
AZT PODLESS MESQUITE

LANTANA 'NEW GOLD'
TRAILING YELLOW LANTANA

ROSMARINUS 'HUNTINGTON CARPET'
TRAILING ROSEMARY

HESPERALOE PARVIFLORA
RED YUCCA

ULMUS PARVIFOLIA
EVERGREEN ELM

LANTANA MONTEVIDENSIS 'PURPLE'
PURPLE LANTANA

EREMOPHILA CARNOSA
WINTER BLAZE EMU

1/2" MINUS
2" DEPTH

DECOMPOSED GRANITE
GOLD COLOR AS SELECTED

NOTE:
ALL TREES ARE TO COMPLY WITH THE LATEST AMENDED EDITION OF THE
ARIZONA NURSERY ASSOCIATION RECOMMENDED TREE SPECIFICATIONS.

OLEA EUROPAEA 'LITTLE' OLLIE'
LITTLE OLLIE OLIVE

1"-3" SCREENED
4" DEPTH

FRACTURED GRANITE
BROWN COLOR AS SELECTED

FG

PISTACIA LENTISCUS
MASTIC TREE

36" BOX /  144 QTY /
2" CAL. / 9' H x 6' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

24" BOX /  73 QTY /
1" CAL. / 5' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  1,325 QTY

5 GAL /  118 QTY

5 GAL /  761 QTY

5 GAL /  641 QTY

24" BOX /  302 QTY /
1" CAL. / 9' H x 7' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  331 QTY

24" BOX / 72 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W/
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  924 QTY

24" BOX / 71 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

PHOENIX DACTYLIFERA
DATE PALM

25' HEIGHT / 10 QTY/
DIAMOND CUT /
MATCHED

A

B

B

C

C

DD

D

D

D

E

E

E

E

F

D

D
E

D
E E

F F

F

F

A

AA

C

D

D

B

D

G

G

G

B

B

DG

DG

DG

DG

DG

DG

DG

DG

M
cQ

U
EE

N
 R

O
A

D

CANARY WAY

D

G

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

D

B

B

B

B

FDG

D

D

A

B

B

C

C

DG

E

D

C

A

B
C

DG

D

D

D

D

D

D

B

B

A

A

DE D

F
B

H

DG

DG

DG

DG
G

G

DG

DG

DG

DGDG

B G

A

A
B

C

MATCHLINE SHEET L-8

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L-
5

0 15' 30' 60'

BUILDING A
93,600 SF

05.10.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
contents:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet no.

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 6 2 6   N .   4 4 t h   S T R E E T 

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.K. FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N D S C A P E   A R C H I T E C T U R E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 3  

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 1  

AutoCAD SHX Text
P H O E N I X ,   A Z     8 5 0 1 8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A S S O C I A T E S,     I N C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N N I N G 

AutoCAD SHX Text
f a x

AutoCAD SHX Text
t e l

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHRADER FARMS BUSINESS PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NWC McQUEEN AND QUEEN CREEK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANDLER, ARIZONA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
05.10.2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=30'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ref. North

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGORY K.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20086

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES 12/31/2023



A

DG

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

GROUNDCOVER

PROPOSED PLANT PALETTE
TREES

SHRUBS

GROUNDCOVER

SIZE/COMMENTS/QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
2,765 QTY

1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,867 QTY
1 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,653 QTY
5 GAL, 5' O.C.
1,367 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,105 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
1,566 QTY

1 GAL, 3' O.C.
991 QTY
1 GAL, 4' O.C.
1,100 QTY

EREMOPHILA GLABRA
OUTBACK SUNRISE EMU

JUSTICIA CALIFORNICA
CHUPAROSA

ACACIA REDOLENS 'DESERT CARPET'
TRAILING ACACIA

ERICAMERIA LARICIFOLIA 'AGUIRRE'
TURPENTINE

CERCIDIUM PRAECOX 'AZT HYBRID'
AZT HYBRID PALO BREA

PISTACIA CHINENSIS 'RED PUSH'
RED PUSH PISTACHE

LEUCOPHYLLUM LANGMANIAE
RIO BRAVO SAGE

SENNA ARTEMISOIDES
FEATHERY CASSIA

LEUCOPHYLLUM ZYGOPHYLLUM
CIMARRON SAGE

RUELLIA PENINSULARIS
BAJA RUELLIA

PROSOPIS 'AZT PODLESS HYBRID'
AZT PODLESS MESQUITE

LANTANA 'NEW GOLD'
TRAILING YELLOW LANTANA

ROSMARINUS 'HUNTINGTON CARPET'
TRAILING ROSEMARY

HESPERALOE PARVIFLORA
RED YUCCA

ULMUS PARVIFOLIA
EVERGREEN ELM

LANTANA MONTEVIDENSIS 'PURPLE'
PURPLE LANTANA

EREMOPHILA CARNOSA
WINTER BLAZE EMU

1/2" MINUS
2" DEPTH

DECOMPOSED GRANITE
GOLD COLOR AS SELECTED

NOTE:
ALL TREES ARE TO COMPLY WITH THE LATEST AMENDED EDITION OF THE
ARIZONA NURSERY ASSOCIATION RECOMMENDED TREE SPECIFICATIONS.

OLEA EUROPAEA 'LITTLE' OLLIE'
LITTLE OLLIE OLIVE

1"-3" SCREENED
4" DEPTH

FRACTURED GRANITE
BROWN COLOR AS SELECTED

FG

PISTACIA LENTISCUS
MASTIC TREE

36" BOX /  144 QTY /
2" CAL. / 9' H x 6' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

24" BOX /  73 QTY /
1" CAL. / 5' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  1,325 QTY

5 GAL /  118 QTY

5 GAL /  761 QTY

5 GAL /  641 QTY

24" BOX /  302 QTY /
1" CAL. / 9' H x 7' W
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  331 QTY

24" BOX / 72 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W/
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

5 GAL /  924 QTY

24" BOX / 71 QTY /
1" CAL. / 7' H x 3' W /
LOW BREAKING /
MATCHED

PHOENIX DACTYLIFERA
DATE PALM

25' HEIGHT / 10 QTY/
DIAMOND CUT /
MATCHED

A
A

A

B

B CC

D

D

D

D

G

G

DDDD

E

E

E

EEE

E

F F

F

H

B

DG

DG

DG

DG

QUEEN CREEK ROAD

M
cQ

U
EE

N
 R

O
A

D
M

cQ
U

EE
N

 R
O

A
D

D

B G

D

F

G

FG

A

F

A
DB

H H

H

DG

DG

DG

F

DG

D

E

D

E

D

F

F

D

D D

FF

DG
DG

F

DG

F
F F

DG

H

DG

DG

D

H

DG

E

E

E

E
DG

DG

DG

F

A
B

B

DG

C A

A

B

B

B DG

MONUMENT 

ENHANCED 

SIGNAGE TYP.

PAVING TYP.

M
AT

C
H

LI
N

E 
SH

EE
T 

L-
6

MATCHLINE SHEET L-7

0 15' 30' 60'

BUILDING B
172,800 SF

FUTURE
DEVELOPMENT

05.10.21

AutoCAD SHX Text
contents:

AutoCAD SHX Text
sheet no.

AutoCAD SHX Text
date:

AutoCAD SHX Text
revisions:

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 6 2 6   N .   4 4 t h   S T R E E T 

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.K. FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
L A N D S C A P E   A R C H I T E C T U R E

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 3  

AutoCAD SHX Text
6 0 2   .   9 1 2   .   9 6 9 1  

AutoCAD SHX Text
P H O E N I X ,   A Z     8 5 0 1 8 

AutoCAD SHX Text
A S S O C I A T E S,     I N C 

AutoCAD SHX Text
P L A N N I N G 

AutoCAD SHX Text
f a x

AutoCAD SHX Text
t e l

AutoCAD SHX Text
L-8

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHRADER FARMS BUSINESS PARK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NWC McQUEEN AND QUEEN CREEK ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHANDLER, ARIZONA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
05.10.2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=30'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Ref. North

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLANAGAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREGORY K.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20086

AutoCAD SHX Text
t

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
,

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
Z

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
g

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPIRES 12/31/2023



McQUEEN ROAD ENLARGEMENT

QUEEN CREEK RD ENTRY ENLARGEMENT

QUEEN CREEK RD / McQUEEN RD  ENLARGEMENT

QUEEN CREEK ROAD

QUEEN CREEK ROAD

M
cQ
U
EE
N
 R
O
A
D

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT



FFE

0"

5 6 7

T.O.P.

42'-0"

60'-0" 60'-0"

A B E

E

G

A F B F A E
E B A

H

12
'-0

"
6'

-0
"

12
'-0

"

30
'-0

"

EXTERIOR MATERIAL LEGEND

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET649 CARRARA

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA 
(WITH REVEALS)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE 
(WITH REVEALS)

TILE:  DALTILE SLIMLITE 
"DISTRESSED COPPER" TP48(4), 
20x59 STACKBOND PATTERN

STOREFRONT SYSTEM:  1" INSULATED GLAZING, PPG 
SOLARBAN 70 (2) + OPTIGRAY, IN DARK BRONZE ANNODIZED 
ALUMINUM FRAME

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY 
(WITH REVEALS)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA

J

5 6 7

E

3'
-1

0"

6'
-1

0"

17'-2" 20'-0" 45'-8" 20'-0" 17'-2"

2'
-0

"

SCALE 1/16" = 1'-0"
1

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - BUILDING A CENTER ENTRY



EXTERIOR MATERIAL LEGEND

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET649 CARRARA

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA 
(WITH REVEALS)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE 
(WITH REVEALS)

TILE:  DALTILE SLIMLITE 
"DISTRESSED COPPER" TP48(4), 
20x59 STACKBOND PATTERN

STOREFRONT SYSTEM:  1" INSULATED GLAZING, PPG 
SOLARBAN 70 (2) + OPTIGRAY, IN DARK BRONZE ANNODIZED 
ALUMINUM FRAME

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY 
(WITH REVEALS)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA

J

FFE

0"

1 2 3

T.O.P.

42'-0"

2'
-0

"
2'

-0
"

2'
-0

"

F A E

B AE

H

C

60'-0" 60'-0"

G

4'
-0

"

1 2 3

E

6'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

28'-7" 20'-0" 38'-4" 24'-11" 1'-11 7/8"

T
Y

P
.

8"

2'
-0

"

SCALE 1/16" = 1'-0"
1

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - BUILDING A CORNER

ENTRY



FFE
0"

FFE
0"

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
520'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

2'
-0

"

F A E

52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0"

B

H G

E E F A E

G

B E B

H

E

G

A F

F

H

TYP.

05-008

JB

G

E

G

E

B

H

B

TYP.

03-005

C

E G

B B A F J C

J

B

F

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

B.O.C.
30'-0"

B.O.C.
30'-0"

2'
-0

"2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

" E

E

A A

J

A A

46'-0"

T.O.P.

46'-0"

T.O.P.

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

1234567891011

T.O.P.
42'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

B E
A

E E E B J

TYP.

03-003
TYP.

03-003

520'-0"

52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"

BA J

TYP.

08-001
B E

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

" B

B

B D C E C D B

B

A

E

B

B

TYP.

08-002
TYP.

05-002

A

B.O.C.
30'-0"

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

2'
-0

"

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

BCD

T.O.P.
42'-0"

60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0"

F A E

G

B E C

TYP.

03-005

A

TYP.

08-001

E

TYP.

05-008

TYP.

08-003
H

J B A J

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

" 4'
-0

"

A A

J J

2'
-0

"

46'-0"

T.O.P.

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

B C D

T.O.P.
42'-0"

E

60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0"

C E B E

GH

A F

H TYP.

08-003

TYP.

05-008

A

E

TYP.

08-001
J

JAJ

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

2'
-0

"4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

A

J

A

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

46'-0"

T.O.P.

EXTERIOR MATERIAL LEGEND

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET649 CARRARA

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA 
(WITH REVEALS)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE 
(WITH REVEALS)

TILE:  DALTILE SLIMLITE 
"DISTRESSED COPPER" TP48(4), 
20x59 STACKBOND PATTERN

STOREFRONT SYSTEM:  1" INSULATED GLAZING, PPG 
SOLARBAN 70 (2) + OPTIGRAY, IN DARK BRONZE ANNODIZED 
ALUMINUM FRAME

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H
DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY 
(WITH REVEALS)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA

J

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

BERNARD

DEUTSCH

11377

Expires 09/30/23

4/13/21CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN CONCEPT.  THEY ARE 
PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS 
INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC 
DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

C
O

L
O

R
E

D
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

S
C

H
R

A
D

ER
 F

A
R

M
S

 B
U

S
IN

ES
S

 P
A

R
K

 -
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

19
18

3.
00

04
/1

3/
20

21

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
1

COLORED EXTERIOR ELEVATION - EAST

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
2

COLORED EXTERIOR ELEVATION - WEST

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
4

COLORED EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NORTH

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
3

COLORED EXTERIOR ELEVATION - SOUTH

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

KEYNOTES
03-003 NEW CONCRETE BUILDING ACCESS RAMP - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

03-005 CONCRETE TILT PANEL WITH VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL REVEALS - PAINTED

05-002 METAL STAIRS AND HANDRAIL - PAINTED

05-008 DECORATIVE METAL CANOPY - PAINTED - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

08-001 HOLLOW METAL DOOR AND FRAME - PAINTED

08-002 OVERHEAD SECTIONAL DOOR - PAINTED

08-003 DOUBLE PANE GLASS STOREFRONT SYSTEM WITH ANNODIZED ALUM. FRAME

McQUEEN FRONTAGE



1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

B

C

D

520'-0"

6
0
'-
0
"

6
0
'-
0
"

6
0
'-
0
"

52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0"

ELEC

103

TYP.

08-003

TYP.

03-003

A

1
8
0
'-
0
"

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R C
H

I
T

E
C

T

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R C
H

I
T

E
C

T

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

BERNARD

DEUTSCH

11377

Expires 09/30/23

CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN CONCEPT.  THEY ARE 
PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS 
INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC 
DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

4/13/21

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

S
C

H
R

A
D

E
R

 F
A

R
M

S
 B

U
S

IN
E
S

S
 P

A
R

K
 -

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 A

1
9

1
8

3
.0

0

0
4

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

N
SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"

1
OVERALL FLOOR PLAN

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

KEYNOTES
03-003 NEW CONCRETE BUILDING ACCESS RAMP - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

08-003 DOUBLE PANE GLASS STOREFRONT SYSTEM WITH ANNODIZED ALUM. FRAME



FFE
0"

FFE
0"

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
720'-0"

60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

2'
-0

"

F

F

E ? A
C

E

A E B F
E

A

G B
B

?

G G

EA

HH

G

E

B B B A C

E

A ?B E A F

E

G

H G

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

4'
-0

" 2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

4'
-0

" 2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

1 13

B.O.C.
30'-0"

B.O.C.
30'-0"

E

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

B

AC

EE

TYP.

05-008

TYP.

03-005

A

TYP.

05-008T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

46'-0"

T.O.P.

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

23456789101112
720'-0"

60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"

A E B B C

TYP.

05-002 TYP.

03-005

T.O.P.
42'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

B

E

E C E C C B B BB A
E B A

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

113

T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

E

B
TYP.

03-003

2'
-0

"B

B

BBB E

B

B A A

E E

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

TYP.

03-003

TYP.

08-001

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

ABCDE

60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

240'-0"

JJ?G

A
CA?EAF

E

G

H

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

J JAB

2'
-0

"

46'-0"

T.O.P.

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

A B C D E
240'-10"

60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

08-001

C E FAA

GGJ

A ?

?J

F

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

E

TYP.

05-008

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"B

E TYP.

08-003

JABJ

2'
-0

"

46'-0"

T.O.P.

EXTERIOR MATERIAL LEGEND

STOREFRONT SYSTEM:  1" INSULATED GLAZING, PPG 
AZURIA/SOLARBAN 70, IN DARK BRONZE ANNODIZED 
ALUMINUM FRAME

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET648 WHITE PICKET FENCE

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA 
(WITH REVEALS)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE 
(WITH REVEALS)

TILE:  DALTILE SLIMLITE 
"DISTRESSED COPPER" TP48(4), 
20x59 STACKBOND PATTERN

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY 
(WITH REVEALS)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA

J

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

BERNARD

DEUTSCH

11377

Expires 09/30/23

4/13/21CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN CONCEPT.  THEY ARE 
PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS 
INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC 
DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

C
O

L
O

R
E

D
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

S
C

H
R

A
D

ER
 F

A
R

M
S

 B
U

S
IN

ES
S

 P
A

R
K

 -
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 B

18
18

3.
00

04
/1

3/
20

21

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
1

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - SOUTH

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
2

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NORTH

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
4

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - EAST

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
3

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - WEST

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

KEYNOTES
03-003 NEW CONCRETE BUILDING ACCESS RAMP - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

03-005 CONCRETE TILT PANEL WITH VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL REVEALS - PAINTED

05-002 METAL STAIRS AND HANDRAIL - PAINTED

05-008 DECORATIVE METAL CANOPY - PAINTED - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

08-001 HOLLOW METAL DOOR AND FRAME - PAINTED

08-003 DOUBLE PANE GLASS STOREFRONT SYSTEM WITH ANNODIZED ALUM. FRAME



2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

A

B

C

D

E

ELECTRICAL

103

RISER

102

EMPLOYMENT

100

60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0"

660'-0"

6
0
'-
0
"

6
0
'-
0
"

6
0
'-
0
"

6
0
'-
0
"

2
4
0
'-
0
"

TYP.

03-005

TYP.

03-003

1 13

7'-8" 26'-0" 20'-0" 40'-0" 24'-0" 25'-0" 25'-0" 20'-0" 20'-0" 25'-0" 25'-0" 24'-0" 40'-0" 20'-0" 38'-4" 20'-0" 40'-0" 24'-0" 50'-0" 20'-0" 20'-0" 50'-0" 24'-0" 40'-0" 20'-0"

10" 10"10"

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R C
H

I
T

E
C

T

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R C
H

I
T

E
C

T

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

BERNARD

DEUTSCH

11377

Expires 09/30/23

CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN CONCEPT.  THEY ARE 
PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS 
INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC 
DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

4/13/21

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

S
C

H
R

A
D

E
R

 F
A

R
M

S
 B

U
S

IN
E
S

S
 P

A
R

K
 -

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 B

1
8

1
8

3
.0

0

0
4

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

SCALE 1" = 30'-0"
1

OVERALL FLOOR PLAN

0' 30' 60' 90' 120'

KEYNOTES
03-003 NEW CONCRETE BUILDING ACCESS RAMP - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

03-005 CONCRETE TILT PANEL WITH VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL REVEALS - PAINTED

N



FFE
0"

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
648'-0"

54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

2 12 131

TYP.

03-003

AE

B

BBA BE

B

BAB
C

C

B

EC

B

BA BE

B

ABBE

B

A

TYP.

08-001

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

3'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

FFE
0"

34567891011
648'-0"

54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

21213 1

G

E

FAE

G HH

B

E

AC

JJ

A

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

4'
-0

"BE EE

H

AFBF

G EG

E

E

BAC

JJ

ABE

EHG

EAF

E

G

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

TYP.

05-008

TYP.

05-008

B.O.C.
30'-0"

46'-0"

T.O.P.46'-0"

T.O.P.

46'-0"

T.O.P.

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

BCDE

70'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 70'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

A

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

TYP.

05-008

F EA

E

G

AG

EB

E H

AC

JJJ

A

2'
-0

"4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"B

E A E

B J

A A

B

E A

B

E

46'-0"

T.O.P.

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

B C D E

70'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 70'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

A

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

TYP.

05-008

E

G

F A E BB

2'
-0

" 4'
-0

"

H E

A C

J J J

A

B

E A E

B

A

J

A

B

E A

B

E

46'-0"

T.O.P.

EXTERIOR MATERIAL LEGEND

STOREFRONT SYSTEM:  1" INSULATED GLAZING, PPG 
AZURIA/SOLARBAN 70, IN DARK BRONZE ANNODIZED 
ALUMINUM FRAME

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET648 WHITE PICKET FENCE

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA 
(WITH REVEALS)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE 
(WITH REVEALS)

TILE:  DALTILE SLIMLITE 
"DISTRESSED COPPER" TP48(4), 
20x59 STACKBOND PATTERN

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY 
(WITH REVEALS)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA

J

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

BERNARD

DEUTSCH

11377

Expires 09/30/23

4/13/21CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN CONCEPT.  THEY ARE 
PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS 
INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC 
DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

C
O

L
O

R
E

D
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

S
C

H
R

A
D

ER
 F

A
R

M
S

 B
U

S
IN

ES
S

 P
A

R
K

 -
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 C

18
18

3.
00

04
/1

3/
20

21

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
1

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - SOUTH

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
2

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NORTH

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
4

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - EAST

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
3

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - WEST

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

KEYNOTES
03-003 NEW CONCRETE BUILDING ACCESS RAMP - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

05-008 DECORATIVE METAL CANOPY - PAINTED - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

08-001 HOLLOW METAL DOOR AND FRAME - PAINTED



3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11

B

C

D

E

ELECTRICAL

103
RISER

102

EMPLOYMENT

100

54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0"

648'-0"

7
0
'-
0
"

6
0
'-
0
"

6
0
'-
0
"

7
0
'-
0
"

TYP.

03-003

2 12 131

A

2
6
0
'-
0
"

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R C
H

I
T

E
C

T

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R C
H

I
T

E
C

T

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

BERNARD

DEUTSCH

11377

Expires 09/30/23

CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN CONCEPT.  THEY ARE 
PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS 
INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC 
DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

4/13/21

O
V

E
R

A
L

L
 F

L
O

O
R

 P
L

A
N

S
C

H
R

A
D

E
R

 F
A

R
M

S
 B

U
S

IN
E
S

S
 P

A
R

K
 -

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C

1
8

1
8

3
.0

0

0
4

/1
3

/2
0

2
1

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
1

OVERALL FLOOR PLAN

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

KEYNOTES
03-003 NEW CONCRETE BUILDING ACCESS RAMP - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

N



DUNN EDWARDS "BLACK" DEA187

DUNN EDWARDS "WHITE PICKET FENCE" DET648

DUNN EDWARDS "POROUS STONE" DE6220

DUNN EDWARDS "BARNWOOD GRAY" DET620

DUNN EDWARDS "CHERRY COLA" DEA156

STOREFRONT SYSTEM:  1" 
INSULATED GLAZING, PPG 
SOLARBAN 70 (2) + 
OPTIGRAY, IN DARK BRONZE 
ANNODIZED ALUMINUM 
FRAME

DAVIS CONCRETE -
BRICK RED 160

DAVIS CONCRETE -
SIERRA 61078

DALTILE SLIMLITE 
"DISTRESSED COPPER" 
TP48(4), 20x59 
STACKBOND PATTERN

CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN 

CONCEPT.  THEY ARE PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE 

INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT 

DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY 

THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S

S
C

H
R

A
D

E
R

 F
A

R
M

S
 B

U
S

IN
E
S

S
 P

A
R

K

19
18

3.
00

12
/0

8/
20

20



122928 SF

BUILDING D

172045 SF

BUILDING B

91906 SF

BUILDING A

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

COMMERCIAL PAD

40'-0"

P
H

A
S

E
 1

P
H

A
S

E
 2

NEW PUBLIC ROAD

S
 M

C
Q

U
E

E
N

 R
D

QUEEN CREEK ROAD

H
A

M
IL

T
O

N
 S

T
.

113328 SF

BUILDING E

277688 SF

BUILDING F 168041 SF

BUILDING C

DOCK SCREEN WALL - 14'-0" MINIMUM 

ABOVE TRUCK COURT SURFACE

PARKING SCREEN WALL - 34" - 42" IN 

HEIGHT ABOVE PARKING SURFACE

STEEL SECURITY FENCING - 8'-0" 

MINIMUM

PARKING SCREEN BERM CONTOUR 

LINE - REFER TO CIVILCONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN CONCEPT.  THEY ARE 

PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS 

INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC 

DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

S
IT

E
 S

C
R

E
E

N
 W

A
L

L
S

S
C

H
R

A
D

ER
 F

A
R

M
S

 B
U

S
IN

ES
S

 P
A

R
K

1
9

1
8

3
.0

0

0
5

/1
0

/2
0

2
1

SCALE 1" = 80'-0"
1

OVERALL SCREEN WALL SITE PLAN

0' 80' 160' 240' 320'

N

SCREEN WALL LEGEND



M
IN

.

14
'-0

"

P.U.E.

8'

BUILDING / LANDSCAPE SET BACK

20'

BUILDING A
TRUCK COURT

NEW PUBLIC ROAD

33'-0"
RIGHT OF WAY

BUILDING
PARKING

34
" 

- 
42

"

V
A

R
IE

S

34
" 

- 
42

"

V
A

R
IE

S

BUILDING A
PARKING P.U.E.

8'
BUILDING / LANDSCAPE SETBACK

20'

MCQUEEN ROAD

71'-0"
RIGHT OF WAY

34
" 

- 
42

"

V
A

R
IE

S

P.U.E.

8'

BUILDING / LANDSCAPE SETBACK

30'

BUILDING
PARKING

QUEEN CREEK ROAD

6'-0" 30'-0" 6'-0"

R
 4

0'-0
"

R 35'-0"

26
'

40'

50'

COLORED CONCRETE -
DAVIS COLORS "BRICK RED" 
160 OR EQUAL

COLORED CONCRETE -
DAVIS COLORS "SIERRA" 
61078 OR EQUAL

COLORED CONCRETE -
DAVIS COLORS "BRICK 
RED" 160 OR EQUAL

COLORED CONCRETE -
DAVIS COLORS "SIERRA" 
61078 OR EQUAL

10
'

COLORED CONCRETE -
DAVIS COLORS "SIERRA" 
61078 OR EQUAL

3'-6"

2'-10"

ABOVE PARKING 
SURFACE

ABOVE PARKING 
SURFACE

PARKING SURFACE BEYOND

8x8x16 MASONRY - PAINTED 
DUNN EDWARDS "CARRARA" 
DET649

8x8x16 MASONRY - PAINTED DUNN 
EDWARDS "BARNWOOD GRAY" DET620

8x8x16 MASONRY - PAINTED DUNN EDWARDS 
"CHERRY COLA" DEA156

8x8x16 MASONRY - PAINTED 
DUNN EDWARDS "CARRARA" 
DET649

BERMS - REFER TO CIVIL

TRUCK COURT PARKING SURFACE

CONCRETE WALL WITH REVEALS OR 
MASONRY - PAINTED DUNN EDWARDS 
"BARNWOOD GRAY" DET620

CONCRETE WALL WITH REVEALS OR  
MASONRY - PAINTED DUNN EDWARDS 
"CHERRY COLA" DEA156

CONCRETE WALL WITH REVEALS 
OR MASONRY - PAINTED DUNN 
EDWARDS "CARRARA" DET649

ADJACENT GRADE - REFER TO CIVIL

CONCRETE WALL WITH 
REVEALS OR  MASONRY -
PAINTED DUNN EDWARDS 
"BARNWOOD GRAY" DET620

CONCRETE WALL WITH 
REVEALS OR  MASONRY -
PAINTED DUNN EDWARDS 
"CHERRY COLA" DEA156

M
IN

.

14
'-0

"

1'-0" 6'-0" 1'-0"

R
E

F
E

R
 T

O
 S

IT
E

 P
LA

N

V
A

R
IE

S

T
Y

P
.

4'
-0

"
2'

-0
"

T
Y

P
.

4'
-0

"

COLORED CONCRETE -
DAVIS COLORS "BRICK 
RED" 160 OR EQUAL

COLORED CONCRETE -
DAVIS COLORS "SIERRA" 
61078 OR EQUAL

POST  2 1/2" x 14 ga

RAIL 1 1/2"

PICKET 3/4"

2"
 N

O
M

.

8'
-0

"

8'-0" NOM.

3 15/16" TYP.

NOTE: FENCE TO BE PREFINISHED OR 
PAINTED BLACK TO MATCH BUILDING 
STEEL ACCENTS

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R C
H

I
T

E
C

T

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R C
H

I
T

E
C

T

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

BERNARD

DEUTSCH

11377

Expires 09/30/23

CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN CONCEPT.  THEY ARE 
PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS 
INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC 
DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

5/11/21

S
IT

E
 E

X
H

IB
IT

S

S
C

H
R

A
D

E
R

 F
A

R
M

S
 B

U
S

IN
E
S

S
 P

A
R

K

19
18

3.
00

05
/1

1/
21

SCALE 1/4" = 1'-0"
1

SECTION AT BERM @ TRUCK PARKING

SCALE 1/4" = 1'-0"
2

SECTION AT BERM @ PARKING SCREEN

SCALE 1/4" = 1'-0"
3

SECTION AT BERM WALL

SCALE 1" = 20'-0"
4

ACCENT CONCRETE

SCALE 1/4" = 1'-0"
7

PARKING SCREENWALL ELEVATION

SCALE 1/4" = 1'-0"
6

TRUCK COURT SCREENWALL ELEVATION

SCALE 1" = 10'-0"
5

ACCENT CONCRETE AT ENTRANCES

SCALE 1/2" = 1'-0"
8

STEEL SECURITY FENCING



1205 NORTH MILLER ROAD
TEMPE, ARIZONA 85281
(P) 480-966-6565
(F) 480-699-5668
SIGNS@AIRPARKSIGNS.COM

Prepared By

SCHRADER FARMS
B U S I N E S S  P A R K

Conceptual
Comprehensive Sign Plan

January 19, 2021
May 10, 2021	 Rev. 1	 Version 2 



1
Schrader Farms Business Park Conceptual Comprehensive Sign Plan			   January 19, 2021/Rev 1, May 10, 2021       V.2

PROJECT INFORMATION
PROJECT
Schrader Farms Business Park
Northwest Corner 
McQeen & Queen Creek Roads

ZONING
Planned Area Development 
(PAD)

OWNER
Core5 Industrial Partners
300 Spectrum Center Drive
Suite 880
Irvine, Ca 92618
(949) 467-3290

Contact Information
Jon Kelly
Jkelly@C5ip.com

SIGNAGE CONSULTANT
Airpark Signs & Graphics
1205 N. Miller Rd.
Tempe, AZ 85281
480.966.6565

Contact Information
Gretchen Wilde
gretchen@airparksigns.com  

PROJECT OVERVIEW
Schrader Farms Business Park is a 70.52 acre development located at 
the northwest corner of McQueen and Queen Creek Roads. The project 
consists of a multi-phase business center will consist of approximately 
eight buildings designed for a wide variety of uses consistent with the 
Chandler Airpark Area Plan.

The site has been zoned by the City of Chandler as PAD for a master 
planned development with a wide variety of uses. Phase I of the 
development consists of three buildings on the eastern parcels of the 
development. The buildings may consist of single or multi-tenant users, 
depending upon their lease contract.
 

NARRATIVE
Requested is to establish a Comprehensive Sign Plan (CSP) for Schrader 
Farms Business Park.

Project signs include an entry monument, freestanding monuments 
with tenant identity, tenant wall signs, and building entry standards. 
All signage within the proposed CSP has been designed to meet City 
of Chandler Sign Ordinances. The proposed signage has been designed 
with the architecture of the development in mind through the use of 
materials, color and vertical elements that echo the building features 
and makes use of the same, or similar materials as the buildings to 
maintain continuity of the project theme. 

In addition to meeting standards for 39-9.16.C.2 and C.3, additional 
standards per 39-9.16.D are met by limiting wall signs to no more than 
15% of the building height, not allowing cabinet signs, integrating 
landscaping with the signs, and limiting freestanding signs to one on 
Queen Creek Road and one on the as yet to be named new public road.

As new buildings are built they will be regulated by the standards within 
this document.

Please refer to the following documentation for further details.

Project Site

M
cQ

u
e
e
n

 R
o

a
d

Queen Creek Road

Germann Road

Chandler Municipal
Airport

N

PROJECT 
INFORMATION



2

PROJECT SIGN MATRIX

Sign 
Type

Sign Name Sign Function Qty Dimensions Materials Notes

A1 Perimeter Monument  Provide Project Identity, Site 
Address

3 16'-4" x 6'-0"
————————
Project Identity
7'-10 1/2" x2'-11 1/2"

Aluminum, acrylic, LED internal 
lighting.

A2 Primary Entry 
Monument

Provide Project & Tenant 
Identity

1 7’-6” x 14’-0”
————————
Tenant Panels (x5)
6’-0” x1‘-10”

Aluminum, acrylic, LED internal 
lighting.

A3 Secondary Entry 
Monument

Provide Project & Tenant 
Identity

3 4’-4” x 8’-0”
————————
Tenant Panels (x5)
3’-6” x1 ‘-0”

Aluminum, acrylic, LED internal 
lighting.

W1 Building Address  Site Address Numbers 2 2'-0" x 12'-0" (approx) Aluminum

W2 Tenant Identities Beam Mounted Tenant 
Identity

–––––––––––––––––––––
Wall Mounted Tenant 
Identity

1¹ Varies per tenant entry. Maximum 80% 
width of steel beam sign is attached to. 
Maximum height can be no more than 
4’-0”.
––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––––
Varies per sign envelope location. 
Maximum 80% width of space sign is 
attached to. Maximum height can be no 
more than 5’-0”.

Aluminum, acrylic, vinyl, LED 
internal & halo illumination.

––––––––––––––––––––
Wall signs shall NOT be 
mounted across dissimilar 
wall materials and/or 
colors.

Footnotes 1 One sign maximum per facade adjacent to area occupied by Tenant, unless otherwise approved by Planning Administrator.

Schrader Farms Business Park Conceptual Comprehensive Sign Plan			   January 19, 2021/Rev 1, May 10, 2021       V.2

SIGN MATRIX



3
Schrader Farms Business Park Conceptual Comprehensive Sign Plan			   January 19, 2021/Rev 1, May 10, 2021       V.2
























































  


 

































 



























 











  


































































 















 













  

  
  




































  


































































  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  

 
  











 
 












































































 



 
 






















 




























































  



       



 



























































































 































 











   













  
























 



































 


 

 


















 



































 


    










 
 
 






 
 
 







 
 
 






 
 
 







 

 
























































 
 
 

CANARY WAY

Sign Location Plan
Scale: 1"=250'

1
5
0
'-
0
"

1
5
0
'-
0
"

1
5
0
'-
0
"

150'-0"

150'-0"

150'-0"

A1 Perimeter
Monument

Note: For visibility, signs are not
drawn to scale.

A1 Perimeter
Monument

A3 8' 
Multi-Tenent
Monument

A3 8' 
Multi-Tenent
Monument

A1 Perimeter
Monument

A3 8' Multi-Tenent
Monument

A2 Primary Entry
Monument

N

3
0
0
'-
0
"

3
5
2
'-
0
"

SIGN LOCATION
PLAN



4
Schrader Farms Business Park Conceptual Comprehensive Sign Plan			   January 19, 2021/Rev 1, May 10, 2021       V.2

1234-2345

SCHRADER FARMS
B U S I N E S S  P A R K

PERIMETER MONUMENT

CRITERIA
All Tenant ID Signs shall be approved by the Landlord & permitted by 
the City of Chandler.

FABRICATION
Aluminum structure and cabinets with freestanding & routed, push-thru 
letters/logos. Text to be white.

COLORS & FINISHES
All colors to be Matthews Acrylic Polyurethane to match: 
Header Panel:   Black
Primary Cabinet:   Dunn Edwards DET620 Barnwood Gray
Middle Cabinet:   Weathered copper finish over aluminum  
    to emulate DalTile TP-48
Tenant Panels:   Dunn Edwards DE6220 Porous Stone 

ILLUMINATION
Internal LED illumination.

LOCATION
Northeast, southeast, and southwest project corners.

Perimeter Monument Southwest Location Plan
Scale: 1"=50'

Queen Creek Road

Ha
m

ilt
on

 R
oa

d

Ha
m

ilt
on

 R
oa

d
N

6
'-
0
"

2
'-
1
1
 1

/2
"

16'-4"

12'-0"

2
1
'-
3
"

Perimeter Monument Northeast Location Plan
Scale: 1"=50'

Canary Way

Canary Way

N

Perimeter Monument Northwest Location Plan
Scale: 1"=50'

M
cQ

ue
en

 R
oa

d

N

5'-7 1/2" 7'-10 1/2" 2'-10"

14'-6"

1
5
'-
0
"

622'-6 1/8" 33'-3"

1
5
'-
0
"

A1
MONUMENT
SIGN DETAILS



5
Schrader Farms Business Park Conceptual Comprehensive Sign Plan			   January 19, 2021/Rev 1, May 10, 2021       V.2

SCHRADER FARMS
B U S I N E S S  P A R K

SCHRADER FARMS
B U S I N E S S  P A R K

PRIMARY ENTRY MONUMENT

CRITERIA
All Tenant ID Signs shall be approved by the Landlord & permitted by 
the City of Chandler.

FABRICATION
Aluminum structure and cabinets with freestanding & routed, push-thru 
letters/logos. Text to be white. Logos may have corporate colors.

COLORS & FINISHES
All colors to be Matthews Acrylic Polyurethane to match: 
Primary Cabinet:   Dunn Edwards DET620 Barnwood Gray
Header Panel:   Black
Middle Cabinet:   Weathered copper finish over aluminum  
    to emulate DalTile TP-48
Tenant Panels:   Dunn Edwards DE6220 Porous Stone 

ILLUMINATION
Internal LED illumination.

LOCATION
Primary entrance, Queen Creek Road.

NOTES
Additional size to fourteen (14) feet , and five (5) tenant panels is 
requested. Rationales per City Code:

Additional height meets 33-9.16.C.2 by being a center located on the 
northwest corner of the intersection of Queen Creek and McQueen 
Roads.

Additional tenant panels meets 33-9.16.C.3a by the multi-layered and 
multi-colored design, and the use of horizontal reveals that mimic the 
layers, colors, and reveals of the the building architecture; C.3c by the 
integration of the landscaping with the monument's locations; C3.d by 
the use of aluminum to avoid rust, and by using Matthews Acrylic 
Polyurethane to provide a long-lasting and durable finish; and by C3.e 
by making all tenant panels the same color to provide a cohesive field, 
and non-illuminated, with routed letters and logos that will illuminate, 
which will minimize the amount of light to be transmitted.

Despite having 2533 feet ± of frontage along Queen Creek Road, this 
will be the only monument sign with tenant panels on that road.

Primary Entry Monument
Scale: 3/8"=1'-0"

Monument Location Plan 
Scale: 1"=50'

Queen Creek Road N

7'-6"

6'-0"

1
4
'-
0
"

1
'-
1
0
"

2
'-
5
"

9
'-
8
"

West Elevation South ElevationNorth Elevation East Elevation

1'-10"1'-10"

2
9
'-
0
"

45'-3"

A2
MONUMENT
SIGN DETAILS



6
Schrader Farms Business Park Conceptual Comprehensive Sign Plan			   January 19, 2021/Rev 1, May 10, 2021       V.2

SCHRADER FARMS
B U S I N E S S  P A R K

SCHRADER FARMS
B U S I N E S S  P A R K

SECONDARY ENTRY MONUMENT

CRITERIA
All Tenant ID Signs shall be approved by the Landlord & permitted by 
the City of Chandler.

FABRICATION
Aluminum structure and cabinets with freestanding & routed, push-thru 
letters/logos. Text to be white. Logos may have corporate colors.

COLORS & FINISHES
All colors to be Matthews Acrylic Polyurethane to match: 
Header Panel:   Black
Primary Cabinet:   Dunn Edwards DET620 Barnwood Gray
Middle Cabinet:   Weathered copper finish over aluminum  
    to emulate DalTile TP-48
Tenant Panels:   Dunn Edwards DE6220 Porous Stone 

ILLUMINATION
Internal LED illumination.

LOCATIONS
McQueen Road (2 signs), Canary Way (1 sign)

NOTES
Additional size to eight (8) feet , and five (5) tenant panels is requested. 
Rationales per City Code:

The additional height and tenant panels request meets 33-9.16.C.3a by 
the multi-layered and multi-colored design, and the use of horizontal 
reveals that mimic the layers, colors, and reveals of the the building 
architecture; C.3c by the integration of the landscaping with the 
monument's locations; C3.d by the use of aluminum to avoid rust, and 
by using Matthews Acrylic Polyurethane to provide a long-lasting and 
durable finish; and by C3.e by making all tenant panels the same color 
to provide a cohesive field, and non-illuminated, with routed letters and 
logos that will illuminate, which will minimize the amount of light to be 
transmitted.

Despite having 2544 feet ± of frontage along Canary Way, this will be 
the only monument sign with tenant panels on that road.

Secondary Entry Monument
Scale: 3/8"=1'-0"

Canary Way Monument
Scale: 1"=50'

Canary Way

N N N

McQeen Monument 1
Scale: 1"=50'

McQeen Monument 2
Scale: 1"=50'

1
2
'-
0
"

East Elevation South ElevationNorth Elevation West Elevation

4'-4"

3'-6"

8
'-
0
"

5
'-
4
"

1'
-7

 1
/2

"

1
'-
0
"

1
2
'-
2
"

26'-0"

2
0
'-
1
0
"

21'-7"

17'-6"

2
7
'-
1
"

A3
MONUMENT
SIGN DETAILS



7
Schrader Farms Business Park Conceptual Comprehensive Sign Plan			   January 19, 2021/Rev 1, May 10, 2021       V.2

1234 1234

REVERSE PAN CHANNEL BUILDING ADDRESS 
EXTERNALLY ILLUMINATED

CRITERIA
All Tenant ID Signs shall be approved by the Landlord & permitted by the 
City of Chandler.

FABRICATION
Pan-channel letters/logos shall be constructed of metal faces and 3" 
returns. Signs must be mounted flush to fascia with appropriate anchors.

COLORS & FINISHES
Painted to provide contrast and visibility from wall finishes.

ILLUMINATION
External illumination only.

LOCATION
Opposite ends of buildings

SECTION DETAIL - TYP.
Scale: NTS

ADDRESS PLACEMENT - TYP.
Scale: 1/16"=1'-0"

Aluminum Return

Aluminum Angle

Existing Wall

Aluminum Face

Anchor TBD in the field

1/4" Ø Weep Hole 

This sign is intended to be installed in accordance with the requirements of 
Article 600 of the National Electrical Code and/or other applicable local codes. 
This includes proper grounding and bonding of the sign. All signs fabricated as 
per 2008 N.E.C. standards. 

2'-0" 2'-0"

4
0
'-
0
"

W1
BUILDING 
ADDRESS 
DETAILS



8
Schrader Farms Business Park Conceptual Comprehensive Sign Plan			   January 19, 2021/Rev 1, May 10, 2021       V.2

1234

ABC COMPANY Star & Co. Axis

SINGLE TENANT ENTRY SIGN PLACEMENT - TYP.
Scale: 1/16"=1'-0"

DOUBLE TENANT ENTRY SIGN PLACEMENT - TYP.
Scale: 1/16"=1'-0"

BEAM MOUNTED ILLUMINATED PAN-CHANNEL 
LETTERS/LOGOS

CRITERIA
All Tenant ID Signs shall be approved by the Landlord & permitted by 
the City of Chandler.

FABRICATION
Pan-channel letters/logos shall be constructed of 5" metal returns and 
backs with translucent acrylic or polycarbonate faces. Raceways to be 
minimal size to be inconspicuous. Raceways must be mounted flush to 
top of beams with appropriate anchors.

COLORS & FINISHES
Corporate colors & finishes are permitted with Landlord approval. 
Raceways painted to match beams.

ILLUMINATION
Internal LED illumination, LED module quantities must provide proper 
illumination.

LOCATION
To be placed above steel beams at building entrances.

NOTES
May be no wider than 80% of beam width. For joint entries, signs may 
be no wider than 80% of appointed beam space width. Signs can be no 
more than 4'-0" in height. Logos will be allowed, but cabinet signs will 
not be allowed.

SECTION DETAIL - TYP.
Scale: NTS

Aluminum Return

Trim Cap

LED Module

Aluminum Back

Acrylic Face

Disconnect Switch

Power to Disconnect 
Switch (By Others)

12V Power Supply

Anchor TBD in the field

1/4" Ø Weep Hole 
w/Light Shield

Steel beam (By Others)

This sign is intended to be installed in accordance with the requirements of 
Article 600 of the National Electrical Code and/or other applicable local codes. 
This includes proper grounding and bonding of the sign. All signs fabricated as 
per 2008 N.E.C. standards. 

X

80% X

EQ

80% X

EQ

X

80% X

EQ

X

W2
BEAM SIGN 
DETAILS



9
Schrader Farms Business Park Conceptual Comprehensive Sign Plan			   January 19, 2021/Rev 1, May 10, 2021       V.2

1234
Teapots &

Banjos
Star 
& Co. AxisTeapots &

Banjos
Star 
& Co. Axis AxisAxis

WALL MOUNTED ILLUMINATED PAN-CHANNEL 
LETTERS/LOGOS 

CRITERIA
All Tenant ID Signs shall be approved by the Landlord & permitted by 
the City of Chandler.

FABRICATION
Pan-channel letters/logos shall be constructed of 5" metal returns and 
backs with translucent acrylic or polycarbonate faces. Signs must be 
mounted flush to fascia with appropriate anchors.

COLORS & FINISHES
Corporate colors & finishes are permitted with Landlord approval.

ILLUMINATION
Internal LED illumination, LED module quantities must provide proper 
illumination.

LOCATION
May be no wider than 80% of space sign is attached to. For joint 
entries, signs may be no wider than 80% of appointed space width. 
Signs can be no more than 5'-0" in height. Logos will be allowed, but 
cabinet signs will not be allowed.

Wall mounted signs shall be coordinated with facade designs, as 
approved by the Planning Administrator. SECTION DETAIL - TYP.

Scale: NTS

Existing Wall

Aluminum Return

Trim Cap

Anchor TBD in the field

LED Module

12V Power Supply

Aluminum Back

Low Voltage Wire

Acrylic Face

Disconnect Switch

1/4" Ø Weep Hole 
w/Light Shield

Power to Disconnect 
Switch (By Others)

This sign is intended to be installed in 
accordance with the requirements of Article 
600 of the National Electrical Code and/or 
other applicable local codes. This includes 
proper grounding and bonding of the sign. 
All signs fabricated as per 2008 N.E.C. 
standards. 

SINGLE TENANT ENTRY SIGN PLACEMENT - TYP.
Scale: 1/16"=1'-0"

DOUBLE TENANT ENTRY SIGN PLACEMENT - TYP.
Scale: 1/16"=1'-0"

X

80% X

Equal

X

80% X

Equal

X

Equal

80% X 

WALL SIGN PLACEMENT - TYP.
Scale: 1/16"=1'-0"

X

Equal

80% X
Red Dashed Line
Indicates Max. 
Height & Width

Red Dashed Line
Indicates Max. 
Height & Width



10
Schrader Farms Business Park Conceptual Comprehensive Sign Plan			   January 19, 2021/Rev 1, May 10, 2021       V.2

100

100
TENANT NAME

Mon-Fri
8:00 AM - 6:00 PM

Saturday
8:00 AM - Noon

Sunday
Closed

Mon-Fri
8:00 AM - 6:00 PM
Saturday
8:00 AM - Noon
Sunday
ClosedStar

Enterprises

Mon-Fri
8:00 AM - 6:00 PM
Saturday
8:00 AM - Noon
Sunday
ClosedStar

Enterprises

SUITE IDENTITY/WINDOW GRAPHICS

CRITERIA
Such signs shall not exceed twenty five (25) percent of the front glass 
area, and must be approved by the Landlord. Suite numbers are to be 
12" tall.

FABRICATION
Information to be first surface applied vinyl.

COLORS & FINISHES
Recommended designs should be subtle and sophisticated. White or 
frosted vinyl is recommended. If using color, it should be muted and have 
a transparency of a minimum fifty (50) percent. Logos may be included in 
the overall design, provided that design does not exceed the established 
limits. 

ILLUMINATION
External illumination only.

FONTS
Text to be Brandon Grotesque Medium

ABCDEFGHIJKLMNOPQRSTUVWXYZ  
0123456789 
LOCATION
Suite numbers to be placed over entry doors. Business identity, hours of 
operation and contact information should be placed adjacent to the door.

ENTRY DOOR - TYP.
Scale: 1/4"=1'-0"

Entry Door ID - Examples
Scale: 1"=1'-0"

BUSINESS 
ENTRY SIGN 
DETAILS



11
Schrader Farms Business Park Conceptual Comprehensive Sign Plan			   January 19, 2021/Rev 1, May 10, 2021       V.2

1234 1234

1234 1234

Building A, East Elevation (McQueen Road)
Scale: 1"=50'

Building A, West Elevation
Scale: 1"=50'

Building A, North Elevation
Scale: 1"=50'

Building A, South Elevation
Scale: 1"=50'

520'-0"

520'-0"

180'-0"

180'-0"

Green dashed line indicates wall mounted sign
Note: Wall signs shall NOT be mounted across dissimilar 
wall materials and/or colors.

Red dashed line indicates steel beam mounted sign

BUILDING A
CONCEPTUAL
ELEVATIONS,
WALL SIGN
LOCATIONS



12
Schrader Farms Business Park Conceptual Comprehensive Sign Plan			   January 19, 2021/Rev 1, May 10, 2021       V.2

1234 1234

1234

1234

1234

Building B, South Elevation (Queen Creek Road)
Scale: 1"=60'

Building B, North Elevation
Scale: 1"=60'

Building B, East Elevation
Scale: 1"=60'

Building B, West Elevation
Scale: 1"=60'

720'-0"

720'-0"

240'-0"

240'-0"

Green dashed line indicates wall mounted sign
Note: Wall signs shall NOT be mounted across dissimilar 
wall materials and/or colors.

Red dashed line indicates steel beam mounted sign

BUILDING B
CONCEPTUAL 
ELEVATIONS,
WALL SIGN
LOCATIONS



13
Schrader Farms Business Park Conceptual Comprehensive Sign Plan			   January 19, 2021/Rev 1, May 10, 2021       V.2

1234

12341234

12341234

1234

Building C, East Elevation
Scale: 1"=50'

Building C, North Elevation (New Public Road)
Scale: 1"=50'

Building C, West Elevation
Scale: 1"=50'

Building C, South Elevation
Scale: 1"=50'

260'-0"

260'-0"

648'-0"

648'-0"

Green dashed line indicates wall mounted sign
Note: Wall signs shall NOT be mounted across 
dissimilar wall materials and/or colors.

Red dashed line indicates steel beam mounted sign

BUILDING C
CONCEPTUAL 
ELEVATIONS,
WALL SIGN
LOCATIONS



3
C9

1
C9

2
C9

FF=1224.20

CANARY WAY

LOT 7
PROPOSED
BUILDING F

P
U

R
P

O
SE

:

H
U

N
T

E
R

AR ZONA811
BLUE STAKE,INC

PROJECT NAME:

CO
N

CE
PT

U
AL

 G
R

AD
IN

G
 A

N
D

 D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

PL
AN

FO
R

C1

3R
D

 C
IT

Y 
CO

N
CE

PT
 S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L

C
O

R
E5

 C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
 P

H
A

SE
S 

1 
&

 2
N

W
C 

M
CQ

U
EE

N
 R

D
. &

 Q
U

EE
N

 C
R

EE
K

 R
D

.
C

H
A

N
D

LE
R

, A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 8
52

86
C

.O
.C

 L
O

G
 N

O
.P

LT
20

-0
02

0

CORE5
CHANDLER

CONCEPTUAL GRADING AND DRAINAGE  PLAN

M
A

TC
H

 L
IN

E 
- 

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
C

2

MATCH LINE SEE SHEET C3

LEGEND

1
C1

FOR CORE-5 CHANDLER PHASES 1 AND 2
N.W.C. SOUTH MCQUEEN ROAD & EAST QUEEN CREEK ROAD CHANDLER, ARIZONA 85286

HUNTER ENGINEERING, INC.

CORE5 SCHRADER FARMS BP, LLC

DEUTSCH ARCHITECTURE GROUP

OWNER/DEVELOPER

ARCHITECT

CIVIL ENGINEER

VICINITY MAP

SITE
SHEET C1, C5

SHEET C3, C7

SHEET C2, C6

SHEET C4, C8

SHEET INDEX

NOTE

FEMA CLASSIFICATION

H
A

M
IL

TO
N

 R
O

A
D

M
C

Q
U

EE
N

 R
O

A
D

CANARY WAY

QUEEN CREEK ROAD

BLDG A
LOT 1

BLDG B
LOT 3

BLDG C
LOT 4

BLDG D
LOT 5

BLDG E
LOT 6

BLDG F
LOT 7

PHASE 2 PHASE 1

COMMERCIAL
LOT 2

RETENTION CALCULATIONS

PHASE I
PHASE II

P
H

A
SE

 I
P

H
A

SE
 I

I
P

H
A

SE
 I

P
H

A
SE

 I
I

PHASE I
PHASE II

P
H

A
SE

 I
P

H
A

SE
 I

I
P

H
A

SE
 I

P
H

A
SE

 I
I

G
:\C

O
R

E
00

1\
C

on
ce

pt
\C

O
01

C
O

N
G

R
D

.d
w

g,
 4

/1
4/

20
21

 5
:5

2:
07

 P
M

, j
or

tiz



S.
 M

C
Q

U
EE

N
  R

O
A

D

4
C9

6
C9

5
C9

FF=1227.55

FF=1224.80

M
C

Q
U

EE
N

 R
O

A
D

LOT 4
PROPOSED

BUILDING C

CANARY WAY

LOT 1
PROPOSED
BUILDING

A

P
U

R
P

O
SE

:

H
U

N
T

E
R

AR ZONA811
BLUE STAKE,INC

PROJECT NAME:

CO
N

CE
PT

U
AL

 G
R

AD
IN

G
 A

N
D

 D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

PL
AN

FO
R

C2

3R
D

 C
IT

Y 
CO

N
CE

PT
 S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L

C
O

R
E5

 C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
 P

H
A

SE
S 

1 
&

 2
N

W
C 

M
CQ

U
EE

N
 R

D
. &

 Q
U

EE
N

 C
R

EE
K

 R
D

.
C

H
A

N
D

LE
R

, A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 8
52

86
C

.O
.C

 L
O

G
 N

O
.P

LT
20

-0
02

0

CORE5
CHANDLER

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E 
- 

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
C

1

MATCHLINE - SEE SHEET C4

CONCEPTUAL GRADING AND DRAINAGE  PLAN
FOR CORE-5 CHANDLER PHASES 1 AND 2

N.W.C. SOUTH MCQUEEN ROAD & EAST QUEEN CREEK ROAD CHANDLER, ARIZONA 85286

G
:\C

O
R

E
00

1\
C

on
ce

pt
\C

O
01

C
O

N
G

R
D

.d
w

g,
 4

/1
4/

20
21

 5
:5

2:
25

 P
M

, j
or

tiz



9
C10

8
C10

7
C9

FF=1224.20
FF=1224.20

QUEEN CREEK ROAD

S.
 H

A
M

IL
TO

N
 S

TR
EE

T

LOT 5
PROPOSED

BUILDING D

LOT 6
PROPOSED
BUILDING E

P
U

R
P

O
SE

:

H
U

N
T

E
R

AR ZONA811
BLUE STAKE,INC

PROJECT NAME:

CO
N

CE
PT

U
AL

 G
R

AD
IN

G
 A

N
D

 D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

PL
AN

FO
R

C3

3R
D

 C
IT

Y 
CO

N
CE

PT
 S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L

C
O

R
E5

 C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
 P

H
A

SE
S 

1 
&

 2
N

W
C 

M
CQ

U
EE

N
 R

D
. &

 Q
U

EE
N

 C
R

EE
K

 R
D

.
C

H
A

N
D

LE
R

, A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 8
52

86
C

.O
.C

 L
O

G
 N

O
.P

LT
20

-0
02

0

CORE5
CHANDLER

MATCH LINE - SEE SHEET C1

CONCEPTUAL GRADING AND DRAINAGE  PLAN
FOR CORE-5 CHANDLER PHASES 1 AND 2

N.W.C. SOUTH MCQUEEN ROAD & EAST QUEEN CREEK ROAD CHANDLER, ARIZONA 85286

M
A

TC
H

 L
IN

E 
- 

 S
EE

 S
H

EE
T 

C
4

G
:\C

O
R

E
00

1\
C

on
ce

pt
\C

O
01

C
O

N
G

R
D

.d
w

g,
 4

/1
4/

20
21

 5
:5

2:
40

 P
M

, j
or

tiz



S.
  M

C
Q

U
EE

N
  R

O
A

D

11
C10

10
C10 13

C10

M
C

Q
U

EE
N

 R
O

A
D

LOT 3
PROPOSED

BUILDING B

PROP BLDG

FF=1224.80

FF=1226.35

FF=1226.40

PROP BLDG

QUEEN CREEK ROAD

COMMERICAL LOT 2

P
U

R
P

O
SE

:

H
U

N
T

E
R

AR ZONA811
BLUE STAKE,INC

PROJECT NAME:

CO
N

CE
PT

U
AL

 G
R

AD
IN

G
 A

N
D

 D
R

AI
N

AG
E 

PL
AN

FO
R

C4

3R
D

 C
IT

Y 
CO

N
CE

PT
 S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L

C
O

R
E5

 C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
 P

H
A

SE
S 

1 
&

 2
N

W
C 

M
CQ

U
EE

N
 R

D
. &

 Q
U

EE
N

 C
R

EE
K

 R
D

.
C

H
A

N
D

LE
R

, A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 8
52

86
C

.O
.C

 L
O

G
 N

O
.P

LT
20

-0
02

0

CORE5
CHANDLER

MATCHLINE - SEE SHEET C2

CONCEPTUAL GRADING AND DRAINAGE  PLAN
FOR CORE-5 CHANDLER PHASES 1 AND 2

N.W.C. SOUTH MCQUEEN ROAD & EAST QUEEN CREEK ROAD CHANDLER, ARIZONA 85286

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E 
- 

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
C

3

G
:\C

O
R

E
00

1\
C

on
ce

pt
\C

O
01

C
O

N
G

R
D

.d
w

g,
 4

/1
4/

20
21

 5
:5

2:
55

 P
M

, j
or

tiz



S.
 H

A
M

IL
TO

N
 S

TR
EE

T

CANARY WAY

FFE=1224.20

P
H

A
SE

 I
I

P
H

A
SE

 ILOT 7
PROPOSED
BUILDING F

PHASE I
PHASE IIPHASE I

PHASE II

P
H

A
SE

 I
P

H
A

SE
 I

I

P
U

R
P

O
SE

:

H
U

N
T

E
R

AR ZONA811
BLUE STAKE,INC

PROJECT NAME:

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

A
L 

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N
FO

R

C5

3R
D

 C
IT

Y 
CO

N
CE

PT
 S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L

C
O

R
E5

 C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
 P

H
A

SE
S 

1 
&

 2
N

W
C 

M
CQ

U
EE

N
 R

D
. &

 Q
U

EE
N

 C
R

EE
K

 R
D

.
C

H
A

N
D

LE
R

, A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 8
52

86
C

.O
.C

 L
O

G
 N

O
.P

LT
20

-0
02

0

CORE5
CHANDLER

CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E 
- 

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
C

6

MATCHLINE - SEE SHEET C7

CIVIL ENGINEER
HUNTER ENGINEERING, INC.

NOTE

LEGEND

VICINITY MAP

SITE

FOR

CHANDLER, ARIZONA 85286
NWC MCQUEEN RD. & QUEEN CREEK RD.

CORE5 CHANDLER PHASES 1 & 2
DEVELOPER/ARCHITECT

CORE5 SCHRADER FARMS BP, LLC

DEUTSCH ARCHITECTURE GROUP

OWNER/DEVELOPER

G
:\C

O
R

E
00

1\
C

on
ce

pt
\C

O
01

C
O

N
U

TL
.d

w
g,

 4
/1

4/
20

21
 5

:5
3:

18
 P

M
, j

or
tiz



CANARY WAY

S.
  M

C
Q

U
EE

N
  R

O
A

D

FFE=1227.55

FFE=1224.80

LOT 4
PROPOSED

BUILDING C

LOT 1
PROPOSED

BUILDING A

P
U

R
P

O
SE

:

H
U

N
T

E
R

AR ZONA811
BLUE STAKE,INC

PROJECT NAME:

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

A
L 

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N
FO

R

C6

3R
D

 C
IT

Y 
CO

N
CE

PT
 S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L

C
O

R
E5

 C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
 P

H
A

SE
S 

1 
&

 2
N

W
C 

M
CQ

U
EE

N
 R

D
. &

 Q
U

EE
N

 C
R

EE
K

 R
D

.
C

H
A

N
D

LE
R

, A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 8
52

86
C

.O
.C

 L
O

G
 N

O
.P

LT
20

-0
02

0

CORE5
CHANDLER

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E 
- 

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
C

5

MATCHLINE - SEE SHEET C8

CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN
FOR

CHANDLER, ARIZONA 85286
NWC MCQUEEN RD. & QUEEN CREEK RD.

CORE5 CHANDLER PHASES 1 & 2

G
:\C

O
R

E
00

1\
C

on
ce

pt
\C

O
01

C
O

N
U

TL
.d

w
g,

 4
/1

4/
20

21
 5

:5
3:

28
 P

M
, j

or
tiz



S.
 H

A
M

IL
TO

N
 S

TR
EE

T

E. QUEEN CREEK ROAD

FFE=1224.20
FFE=1224.20

P
H

A
SE

 I

P
H

A
SE

 I
I

LOT 5
PROPOSED

BUILDING D

LOT 6
PROPOSED
BUILDING E

PHASE I
PHASE II

PHASE I
PHASE II

P
H

A
SE

 I
P

H
A

SE
 I

I

P
U

R
P

O
SE

:

H
U

N
T

E
R

AR ZONA811
BLUE STAKE,INC

PROJECT NAME:

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

A
L 

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N
FO

R

C7

3R
D

 C
IT

Y 
CO

N
CE

PT
 S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L

C
O

R
E5

 C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
 P

H
A

SE
S 

1 
&

 2
N

W
C 

M
CQ

U
EE

N
 R

D
. &

 Q
U

EE
N

 C
R

EE
K

 R
D

.
C

H
A

N
D

LE
R

, A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 8
52

86
C

.O
.C

 L
O

G
 N

O
.P

LT
20

-0
02

0

CORE5
CHANDLER

MATCHLINE - SEE SHEET C5

CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN
FOR

CHANDLER, ARIZONA 85286
NWC MCQUEEN RD. & QUEEN CREEK RD.

CORE5 CHANDLER PHASES 1 & 2

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E 
- 

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
C

8

G
:\C

O
R

E
00

1\
C

on
ce

pt
\C

O
01

C
O

N
U

TL
.d

w
g,

 4
/1

4/
20

21
 5

:5
3:

38
 P

M
, j

or
tiz



E. QUEEN CREEK ROAD

S.
  M

C
Q

U
EE

N
  R

O
A

D

FFE=1224.80

LOT 3
PROPOSED

BUILDING B

PROP BLDG

PROP BLDG
FF=1226.35

FF=1226.40

COMMERCIAL LOT 2

P
U

R
P

O
SE

:

H
U

N
T

E
R

AR ZONA811
BLUE STAKE,INC

PROJECT NAME:

C
O

N
C

EP
TU

A
L 

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N
FO

R

C8

3R
D

 C
IT

Y 
CO

N
CE

PT
 S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L

C
O

R
E5

 C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
 P

H
A

SE
S 

1 
&

 2
N

W
C 

M
CQ

U
EE

N
 R

D
. &

 Q
U

EE
N

 C
R

EE
K

 R
D

.
C

H
A

N
D

LE
R

, A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 8
52

86
C

.O
.C

 L
O

G
 N

O
.P

LT
20

-0
02

0

CORE5
CHANDLER

MATCHLINE - SEE SHEET C6

CONCEPTUAL UTILITY PLAN
FOR

CHANDLER, ARIZONA 85286
NWC MCQUEEN RD. & QUEEN CREEK RD.

CORE5 CHANDLER PHASES 1 & 2

M
A

TC
H

LI
N

E-
 S

EE
 S

H
EE

T 
C

7

G
:\C

O
R

E
00

1\
C

on
ce

pt
\C

O
01

C
O

N
U

TL
.d

w
g,

 4
/1

4/
20

21
 5

:5
3:

48
 P

M
, j

or
tiz



1 TYPICAL SECTION

2 TYPICAL SECTION

3 TYPICAL SECTION

4 TYPICAL SECTION

7 TYPICAL SECTION

5 TYPICAL SECTION

P
U

R
P

O
SE

:

H
U

N
T

E
R

AR ZONA811
BLUE STAKE,INC

PROJECT NAME:

TY
P

IC
A

L 
SE

C
TI

O
N

S
FO

R

C9

3R
D

 C
IT

Y 
CO

N
CE

PT
 S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L

C
O

R
E5

 C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
 P

H
A

SE
S 

1 
&

 2
N

W
C 

M
CQ

U
EE

N
 R

D
. &

 Q
U

EE
N

 C
R

EE
K

 R
D

.
C

H
A

N
D

LE
R

, A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 8
52

86
C

.O
.C

 L
O

G
 N

O
.P

LT
20

-0
02

0

CORE5
CHANDLER

G
:\C

O
R

E
00

1\
C

on
ce

pt
\C

O
01

C
O

N
S

E
C

.d
w

g,
 4

/1
4/

20
21

 5
:5

4:
16

 P
M

, j
or

tiz



6 TYPICAL SECTION

8 TYPICAL SECTION

9 TYPICAL SECTION

10 TYPICAL SECTION

11 TYPICAL SECTION

P
U

R
P

O
SE

:

H
U

N
T

E
R

AR ZONA811
BLUE STAKE,INC

PROJECT NAME:

TY
P

IC
A

L 
SE

C
TI

O
N

S
FO

R

C10

3R
D

 C
IT

Y 
CO

N
CE

PT
 S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L

C
O

R
E5

 C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
 P

H
A

SE
S 

1 
&

 2
N

W
C 

M
CQ

U
EE

N
 R

D
. &

 Q
U

EE
N

 C
R

EE
K

 R
D

.
C

H
A

N
D

LE
R

, A
R

IZ
O

N
A

 8
52

86
C

.O
.C

 L
O

G
 N

O
.P

LT
20

-0
02

0

CORE5
CHANDLER

G
:\C

O
R

E
00

1\
C

on
ce

pt
\C

O
01

C
O

N
S

E
C

.d
w

g,
 4

/1
4/

20
21

 5
:5

4:
26

 P
M

, j
or

tiz



FUTURE DEVELOPMENT
COMMERCIAL PAD

“P
H

A
SI

N
G

 E
XH

IB
IT

” 
RE

FE
RE

N
CE

D
 B

Y 
RE

ZO
N

IN
G

 S
TI

PU
LA

TI
O

N







E. QUEEN CREEK ROAD

CANARY WAY

M
C

Q
U

EE
N

 R
O

A
D

LOT 4

LOT 3

COMMERCIAL
LOT 2

LOT 1

PHASE I

524,832.87SQ. FT.±, 12.05 AC

520,400.50 SQ. FT.±, 11.95 AC 323,627.49 SQ. FT.±, 7.43 AC

150,544.64 SQ. FT.±, 3.46 AC

PROPOSED
TEMPORARY

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

P
U

R
P

O
SE

:

H
U

N
T

E
R

AR ZONA811
BLUE STAKE,INC

PROJECT NAME:

P
R

EL
IM

IN
A

R
Y

 P
LA

T
FO

R

C1.2

4T
H

 C
IT

Y 
CO

N
CE

PT
 S

U
B

M
IT

TA
L

SC
HR

AD
ER

 F
AR

M
S 

BU
SI

N
ES

S 
PA

RK
 P

HA
SE

S 
1 

&
 2

N
W

C 
M

CQ
U

EE
N

 R
D

. &
 Q

U
EE

N
 C

R
EE

K
 R

D
.

C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
, A

R
IZ

O
N

A
 8

5
2

8
6

C
.O

.C
 L

O
G

 N
O

.P
LT

2
0

-0
0

2
0

SCHRADER FARMS
BUSINESS PARK

M
A

TC
H

 L
IN

E 
- 

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
C

1
.1



 5 

D. Walls and Entry Monumentation 
Proper screening of the parking areas will be accomplished through earthen berms and 

decorative walls that have been designed to complement the building and utilizing varying colors 
and textures arranged in an attractive design.  See Exhibit 8, Screen Wall Plan and Elevations. 

E. Development Standards 
Core5 is proposing the following development standards: 

Regulation Development Standard 
Building Height (max.) 50 ft., inclusive of parapet walls, mechanical 

equipment, and screening 
Building Setback (min.)* 
- Front (Queen Creek Rd.) 

- Side (McQueen Rd.) 

- Side (west) 

- Rear (north) 

30 ft. 
20 ft. 
20 ft. 
20 ft. 

Landscape Setback (min.) 
- Front (Queen Creek Rd.) 

- Side (McQueen Rd.) 

- Side (west) 

- Rear (north) 

30 ft. 
20 ft. 
20 ft. 
20 ft. 

Lot Coverage (max.) 55 % 
Perimeter Parking Screen Wall Height (max.) 4 ft. 
Interior Wall Height (max.) 16 ft. 
Additional Standards: 
Landscape Setback  
     Queen Creek Road and Hamilton Road 

-- 50 ft. x 250 ft. along Queen Creek Road 
-- 30 ft. x 100 ft. along Hamilton Road 

     McQueen Road and future collector street 
-- 50 ft. x 100 ft. along McQueen Road 
-- 30 ft. x 100 ft. along future collector street 

*Building setbacks shall apply to parking canopies.  Primary building setbacks shall 
substantially conform to Exhibit 3, Conceptual Site Plan. 

F. Circulation 
Schrader BP has been planned to ensure efficient on-site circulation and appropriate 

access to the public street system surrounding the Site.  Access to Site will occur as follows: 

• Three driveways along McQueen Road (east), four driveways along Queen Creek 
Road (south), three driveways along the future collector ½ street (north), and two 
along the future Hamilton Street ½ street (west).   

• McQueen Road is an arterial street with three lanes in each direction, a center 
median, bike lanes, and sidewalks contained within an approximately 130 feet 
right-of-way.   

• Queen Creek Road is also an arterial street with three lanes in each direction, a 
center median, bike lanes, and sidewalks contained within an approximately 160 
feet right-of-way.   



6/15/21 

CONCRETE ENTRY FEATURE (TYPICAL) 



6/14/21 

TILT PANEL REVEAL PROFILE (TYPICAL) 

PROPOSED TILT PANEL HORIZONTAL REVEAL AT 12” O.C. IN ACCENT AREAS: 



FFE
0"

FFE
0"

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
520'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

2'
-0

"

F A E

52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0" 52'-0"

B

H G

E E F A E

G

B E B

H

E

G

A F

F

H

TYP.

05-008

EB

G

E

G

E

B

H

B

TYP.

03-005

C

E G

B B A F E C

E

B

F

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

B.O.C.
30'-0"

B.O.C.
30'-0"

2'
-0

"2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

" E

E

A A

E

A A

46'-0"

T.O.P.

46'-0"

T.O.P.

26-00926-00926-009

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

1234567891011

T.O.P.
42'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

B E
A

J J E B J

TYP.

03-003
TYP.

03-003

520'-0"

52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"52'-0"

BA J

TYP.

08-001
B E

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

" B

B

B D C J C D B

B

A

E

B

B

TYP.

08-002
TYP.

05-002

A

B.O.C.
30'-0"

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

2'
-0

"

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

BCD

T.O.P.
42'-0"

60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0"

F A E

G

B E C

TYP.

03-005

A

TYP.

08-001

E

TYP.

05-008

TYP.

08-003
H

J B A J

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

" 4'
-0

"

A A

J J

2'
-0

"

46'-0"

T.O.P.

26-009

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

B C D

T.O.P.
42'-0"

E

60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0"

C E B E

GH

A F

H TYP.

08-003

TYP.

05-008

A

E

TYP.

08-001
J

JAJ

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

2'
-0

"4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

A

J

A

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

46'-0"

T.O.P.

26-009

EXTERIOR MATERIAL LEGEND

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET649 CARRARA

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA 
(WITH REVEALS AT 12" O.C.)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE 
(WITH REVEALS AT 12" O.C.)

TILE:  DALTILE SLIMLITE 
"DISTRESSED COPPER" TP48(4), 
20x59 STACKBOND PATTERN

STOREFRONT SYSTEM:  1" INSULATED GLAZING, PPG 
SOLARBAN 70 (2) + OPTIGRAY, IN DARK BRONZE ANNODIZED 
ALUMINUM FRAME

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H
DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY 
(WITH REVEALS AT 12" O.C.)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA

J

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

BERNARD

DEUTSCH

11377

Expires 09/30/23

6/10/21CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN CONCEPT.  THEY ARE 
PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS 
INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC 
DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

C
O

L
O

R
E

D
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

S
C

H
R

A
D

ER
 F

A
R

M
S

 B
U

S
IN

ES
S

 P
A

R
K

 -
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 A

19
18

3.
00

06
/1

0/
20

21

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
1

COLORED EXTERIOR ELEVATION - EAST

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
2

COLORED EXTERIOR ELEVATION - WEST

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
4

COLORED EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NORTH

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
3

COLORED EXTERIOR ELEVATION - SOUTH

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

KEYNOTES
03-003 NEW CONCRETE BUILDING ACCESS RAMP - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

03-005 CONCRETE TILT PANEL WITH VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL REVEALS - PAINTED

05-002 METAL STAIRS AND HANDRAIL - PAINTED

05-008 DECORATIVE METAL CANOPY - PAINTED - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

08-001 HOLLOW METAL DOOR AND FRAME - PAINTED

08-002 OVERHEAD SECTIONAL DOOR - PAINTED

08-003 DOUBLE PANE GLASS STOREFRONT SYSTEM WITH ANNODIZED ALUM. FRAME

26-009 WALL SCONCE REFER TO ELECTRICAL

McQUEEN FRONTAGE



FFE
0"

FFE
0"

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
720'-0"

60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

2'
-0

"

F

F

E B A
C

E

A E B F
E

A

G B
B

E

G G

EA

HH

G

E

B B B A C

E

A EB E A F

E

G

H G

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

4'
-0

" 2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

4'
-0

" 2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

1 13

B.O.C.
30'-0"

B.O.C.
30'-0"

E

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

B

AC

EE

TYP.

05-008

TYP.

03-005

A

TYP.

05-008T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

46'-0"

T.O.P.

E E

E 26-00926-009
26-009

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

23456789101112
720'-0"

60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"

A E B B C

TYP.

05-002 TYP.

03-005

T.O.P.
42'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

B

J

J C J C C B B BB A
J B A

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

113

T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

E

B
TYP.

03-003

2'
-0

"B

B

BBB E

B

B A A

E E

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

TYP.

03-003

TYP.

08-001

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

ABCDE

60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

240'-0"

JJEG

A
CABEAF

E

G

H

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

J JAB

2'
-0

"

46'-0"

T.O.P.

26-008

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

A B C D E
240'-10"

60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

08-001

C E FAA

GGJ

A B

EJ

F

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

E

TYP.

05-008

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"B

E TYP.

08-003

JABJ

2'
-0

"

46'-0"

T.O.P.

26-009

EXTERIOR MATERIAL LEGEND

STOREFRONT SYSTEM:  1" INSULATED GLAZING, PPG 
AZURIA/SOLARBAN 70, IN DARK BRONZE ANNODIZED 
ALUMINUM FRAME

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET648 WHITE PICKET FENCE

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA 
(WITH REVEALS AT 12" O.C.)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE 
(WITH REVEALS AT 12" O.C.)

TILE:  DALTILE SLIMLITE 
"DISTRESSED COPPER" TP48(4), 
20x59 STACKBOND PATTERN

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY 
(WITH REVEALS AT 12" O.C.)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA

J

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

BERNARD

DEUTSCH

11377

Expires 09/30/23

6/10/21CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN CONCEPT.  THEY ARE 
PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS 
INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC 
DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

C
O

L
O

R
E

D
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

S
C

H
R

A
D

ER
 F

A
R

M
S

 B
U

S
IN

ES
S

 P
A

R
K

 -
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 B

18
18

3.
00

06
/1

0/
20

21

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
1

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - SOUTH

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
2

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NORTH

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
4

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - EAST

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
3

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - WEST

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

KEYNOTES
03-003 NEW CONCRETE BUILDING ACCESS RAMP - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

03-005 CONCRETE TILT PANEL WITH VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL REVEALS - PAINTED

05-002 METAL STAIRS AND HANDRAIL - PAINTED

05-008 DECORATIVE METAL CANOPY - PAINTED - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

08-001 HOLLOW METAL DOOR AND FRAME - PAINTED

08-003 DOUBLE PANE GLASS STOREFRONT SYSTEM WITH ANNODIZED ALUM. FRAME

26-008 NEW TRANSFORMER - REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

26-009 WALL SCONCE REFER TO ELECTRICAL



FFE
0"

FFE
0"

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
720'-0"

60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

2'
-0

"

F

F

E B A
C

E

A E B F
E

A

G B
B

E

G G

EA

HH

G

E

B B B A C

E

A EB E A F

E

G

H G

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

4'
-0

" 2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

4'
-0

" 2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

1 13

B.O.C.
30'-0"

B.O.C.
30'-0"

E

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

B

AC

EE

TYP.

05-008

TYP.

03-005

A

TYP.

05-008T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

46'-0"

T.O.P.

E E

E 26-00926-009
26-009

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

23456789101112
720'-0"

60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"60'-0"

A E B B C

TYP.

05-002 TYP.

03-005

T.O.P.
42'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

B

J

J C J C C B B BB A
J B A

3'
-0

"

3'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

113

T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

E

B
TYP.

03-003

2'
-0

"B

B

BBB E

B

B A A

E E

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

TYP.

03-003

TYP.

08-001

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

ABCDE

60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

240'-0"

JJEG

A
CABEAF

E

G

H

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

J JAB

2'
-0

"

46'-0"

T.O.P.

26-008

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

A B C D E
240'-10"

60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

08-001

C E FAA

GGJ

A B

EJ

F

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

E

TYP.

05-008

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"B

E TYP.

08-003

JABJ

2'
-0

"

46'-0"

T.O.P.

26-009

EXTERIOR MATERIAL LEGEND

STOREFRONT SYSTEM:  1" INSULATED GLAZING, PPG 
AZURIA/SOLARBAN 70, IN DARK BRONZE ANNODIZED 
ALUMINUM FRAME

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET648 WHITE PICKET FENCE

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA 
(WITH REVEALS AT 12" O.C.)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE 
(WITH REVEALS AT 12" O.C.)

TILE:  DALTILE SLIMLITE 
"DISTRESSED COPPER" TP48(4), 
20x59 STACKBOND PATTERN

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY 
(WITH REVEALS AT 12" O.C.)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA

J

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

BERNARD

DEUTSCH

11377

Expires 09/30/23

6/15/21CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN CONCEPT.  THEY ARE 
PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS 
INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC 
DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

C
O

L
O

R
E

D
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

S
C

H
R

A
D

ER
 F

A
R

M
S

 B
U

S
IN

ES
S

 P
A

R
K

 -
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 B

18
18

3.
00

06
/1

5/
20

21

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
1

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - SOUTH

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
2

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NORTH

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
4

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - EAST

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
3

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - WEST

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

KEYNOTES
03-003 NEW CONCRETE BUILDING ACCESS RAMP - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

03-005 CONCRETE TILT PANEL WITH VERTICAL AND HORIZONTAL REVEALS - PAINTED

05-002 METAL STAIRS AND HANDRAIL - PAINTED

05-008 DECORATIVE METAL CANOPY - PAINTED - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

08-001 HOLLOW METAL DOOR AND FRAME - PAINTED

08-003 DOUBLE PANE GLASS STOREFRONT SYSTEM WITH ANNODIZED ALUM. FRAME

26-008 NEW TRANSFORMER - REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS

26-009 WALL SCONCE REFER TO ELECTRICAL



FFE
0"

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
648'-0"

54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0" 54'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

2 12 131

TYP.

03-003

AE

B

BBA BJ

B

BAB
C

C

B

JC

B

BA BJ

B

ABBE

B

A

TYP.

08-001

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

3'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

FFE
0"

34567891011
648'-0"

54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"54'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

21213 1

G

E

FAE

G HH

B

E

AC

JJ

A

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

4'
-0

"BE EE

H

AFBF

G EG

E

E

BAC

JJ

ABE

EHG

EAF

E

G

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

TYP.

05-008

TYP.

05-008

B.O.C.
30'-0"

46'-0"

T.O.P.46'-0"

T.O.P.

46'-0"

T.O.P.

26-009
26-009 26-009

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

BCDE

70'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 70'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

A

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL

16'-0"

TYP.

05-008

F EA

E

G

AG

EB

E H

AC

JJJ

A

2'
-0

"4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

4'
-0

"

2'
-0

"

2'
-0

"B

E A E

B J

A A

B

E A

B

E

46'-0"

T.O.P.

26-009

FFE
0"

FFE
0"

B C D E

70'-0" 60'-0" 60'-0" 70'-0"

T.O.P.
42'-0"

A

B.O.C.
30'-0"

T.O. SCREEN
WALL
16'-0"

TYP.

05-008

E

G

F A E BB

2'
-0

" 4'
-0

"

H E

A C

J J J

A

B

E A E

B

A

J

A

B

E A

B

E

46'-0"

T.O.P.

26-009

EXTERIOR MATERIAL LEGEND

STOREFRONT SYSTEM:  1" INSULATED GLAZING, PPG 
AZURIA/SOLARBAN 70, IN DARK BRONZE ANNODIZED 
ALUMINUM FRAME

A

B

C

D

E

F

G

H

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET648 WHITE PICKET FENCE

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA
(WITH REVEALS AT 12" O.C.)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DE6220 POROUS STONE
(WITH REVEALS AT 12" O.C.)

TILE:  DALTILE SLIMLITE 
"DISTRESSED COPPER" TP48(4), 
20x59 STACKBOND PATTERN

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DET620 BARNWOOD GRAY 
(WITH REVEALS AT 12" O.C.)

DUNN EDWARDS PAINT
DEA156 CHERRY COLA

J

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

R
E

G
I

S

T
E

R E D A R
C

H

I
T

E
C

T

C
E

R

T
I F I C A T E

N
O

.

D
a

t e
S i g n e d _ _ _ _ _ _ _

_

_
_

A

R
I Z O N A U . S

. A

.

BERNARD

DEUTSCH

11377

Expires 09/30/23

6/10/21CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC DESIGNS, INCLUDING RENDERINGS, ARE CREATED FOR THE SOLE PURPOSE OF DEVELOPING A DESIGN CONCEPT.  THEY ARE 
PART OF THE OVERALL DESIGN PROCESS THAT ULTIMATELY LEADS TO MORE DETAILD DRAWINGS, BUT THE INFORMATION DEPICTED IN THESE DESIGNS IS 
INCOMPLETE AND NOT INTENDED TO REPRESENT THE FULL SCOPE OF THE PROJECT DESIGN.  THE USE OF THESE CONCEPTUAL AND SCHEMATIC 
DESIGNS/RENDERINGS FOR ANY PURPOSE OTHER THAN AS INTENDED BY THE ARCHITECT IS PROHIBITED.

C
O

L
O

R
E

D
 E

L
E

V
A

T
IO

N
S

S
C

H
R

A
D

ER
 F

A
R

M
S

 B
U

S
IN

ES
S

 P
A

R
K

 -
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
 C

18
18

3.
00

06
/1

0/
20

21

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
1

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - SOUTH

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
2

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - NORTH

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
4

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - EAST

SCALE 3/64" = 1'-0"
3

EXTERIOR ELEVATION - WEST

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

0' 16' 32' 64' 80'

KEYNOTES
03-003 NEW CONCRETE BUILDING ACCESS RAMP - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

05-008 DECORATIVE METAL CANOPY - PAINTED - REFER TO STRUCTURAL

08-001 HOLLOW METAL DOOR AND FRAME - PAINTED

26-009 WALL SCONCE REFER TO ELECTRICAL



CORE 5 - BUILDING A
6/15/21

DEUTSCH PROJECT #: 19183.00

SCHRADER FARMS

SHOE STRING ACACIA OR COMPARABLE LARGE CANOPY SHADE TREE BETWEEN ENTRANCES



ITEM  8 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. CC21-033
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council

Thru:
Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager
Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
Derek Horn, Development Services Director
 

From: Lauren Schumann, Senior Planner
Subject: PLH20-0072/PLT21-0016 Chandler Airpark Technology Center  

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council continue PLH20-0072/PLT21-0016 Chandler Airpark Technology Center, located at
the southwest corner of Gilbert Road and Insight Way, to the August 12, 2021, City Council meeting, as
recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Background/Discussion
At the June 2, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, Commission continued the case to the
July 21, 2021, meeting for the purpose of holding a Design Review Committee meeting to address
designs concerns regarding building elevations and landscaping. 

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 



S G
ILB

ER
T R

D

E QUEEN CREEK RD

E INSIGHT WY E RYAN RD

E LARK DR

S R
IN

CO
N 

DR

S D
RA

GO
ON

 D
R

E BLUEBIRD PL

S F
OU

R 
PE

AK
S 

WY

S S
TE

AR
MA

N 
DR

E ORIOLE WY

S W
ILS

ON
 D

R

E GOLDFINCH WY

S B
EL

L P
L

E RAVEN CT

E CARDINAL CT

S F
OU

R 
PE

AK
S 

WY

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Gi
lbe

rt 
Rd

.

Proposed Project Details
PDP
26.2 acres
Industrial/Office (Future)

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Queen Creek Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0072 /PLT21-0016 Chandler AirparkTechnology Center ´

^

PAD
PAD

Abralee
Meadow

PAD

PAD
Paseo TrailPAD

PAD

PAD

PAD
Layton
Lakes

PAD

PAD COUNTY PA
D

PAD

PAD

PAD

PAD
Peterson Farms



S G
ILB

ER
T R

D

E QUEEN CREEK RD

E INSIGHT WY E RYAN RD

E LARK DR

S R
IN

CO
N 

DR

S D
RA

GO
ON

 D
R

E BLUEBIRD PL

S F
OU

R 
PE

AK
S 

WY

S S
TE

AR
MA

N 
DR

E ORIOLE WY

S W
ILS

ON
 D

R

E GOLDFINCH WY

S B
EL

L P
L

E RAVEN CT

E CARDINAL CT

S F
OU

R 
PE

AK
S 

WY

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Gi
lbe

rt 
Rd

.

Proposed Project Details
PDP
26.2 acres
Industrial/Office (Future)

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Queen Creek Rd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0072 /PLT21-0016 Chandler AirparkTechnology Center ´

^

PAD
PAD

Abralee
Meadow

PAD

PAD
Paseo TrailPAD

PAD

PAD

PAD
Layton
Lakes

PAD

PAD COUNTY PA
D

PAD

PAD

PAD

PAD
Peterson Farms



ITEM  9 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 21-031
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council

Thru:
Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager
Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
Derek D. Horn, Development Services Director

From: Benjamin Cereceres, City Planner
Subject: PLH20-0069 Chandler Corporate Center Lots 8 & 10

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council continue PLH20-0069 Chandler Corporate Center Lots 8 & 10, located north of the
northwest of Chandler Boulevard and McClintock Drive, to the August 12, 2021, City Council meeting,
as recommended by Planning and Zoning Commission.

Background/Discussion
At the June 2, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, Commission continued the case to the
July 21, 2021, meeting for the purpose of holding a Design Review Committee meeting to address
designs concerns regarding building elevations and landscaping. 

Attachments
Vicinity Maps 



W CHANDLER BL

N 
MC

CL
IN

TO
CK

 D
R

N JUNIPER DR

N 
LA

VE
EN

 D
R

W GALVESTON ST

N DESERT BREEZE BL E

W LAREDO ST

W ERIE ST

W TYSON ST

N 
EN

TE
RP

RI
SE

 P
L

N 
79

TH
 S

T

W TULSA ST

W CALLE PRIMERA

W OAKLAND ST

W BEECHCRAFT PL

W CARLA VISTA DR

W MERCURY WY

N 
JU

NI
PE

R 
DR

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Mc
Cl

int
oc

k D
r.

Proposed Project Details
Preliminary Development Plan (PDP)
6.05 Acres
Industrial (Future)

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Chandler Blvd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0069 Chandler Corporate Center Lots 8 & 10 ´

^

PAD
Stellar Airpark Estates

AG-1

AG-1
PAD

PAD

PARK
Desert

Breeze Park

SCHOOL
Kyrene de la Brisas PAD

Park Promenade

SF-8.5
Pepperwood

PAD

PAD
I-1

SF-8.5
Pueblo

Alto

PAD
Copperfield

Estates

C-2

PAD

PAD



W CHANDLER BL

N 
MC

CL
IN

TO
CK

 D
R

N JUNIPER DR

N 
LA

VE
EN

 D
R

W GALVESTON ST

N DESERT BREEZE BL E

W LAREDO ST

W ERIE ST

W TYSON ST

N 
EN

TE
RP

RI
SE

 P
L

N 
79

TH
 S

T

W TULSA ST

W CALLE PRIMERA

W OAKLAND ST

W BEECHCRAFT PL

W CARLA VISTA DR

W MERCURY WY

N 
JU

NI
PE

R 
DR

City of Chandler Planning Division

Project Site

Mc
Cl

int
oc

k D
r.

Proposed Project Details
Preliminary Development Plan (PDP)
6.05 Acres
Industrial (Future)

chandleraz.gov/planning
For more information visit:

Chandler Blvd.

https://gis.chandleraz.gov/planning

PLH20-0069 Chandler Corporate Center Lots 8 & 10 ´

^

PAD
Stellar Airpark Estates

AG-1

AG-1
PAD

PAD

PARK
Desert

Breeze Park

SCHOOL
Kyrene de la Brisas PAD

Park Promenade

SF-8.5
Pepperwood

PAD

PAD
I-1

SF-8.5
Pueblo

Alto

PAD
Copperfield

Estates

C-2

PAD

PAD



ITEM  10 

City Council Memorandum      Facilities and Fleet  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 
From: Mike Hollingsworth, Facilities & Fleet Manager
Subject: Agreement No. BF6-910-3566, Amendment No. 3, with Arizona Elevator Solutions, Inc., for Elevator

Maintenance Repair and Service

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. BF6-910-3566, Amendment No. 3, with Arizona Elevator
Solutions, Inc., for elevator maintenance repair and service, increasing the spending limit by $250,000,
for a revised amount not to exceed $315,150, for the existing term ending August 31, 2021. 

Background/Discussion:
Building and Facilities is responsible for the repair and maintenance of twenty-six (26) elevators located
in eighteen (18) buildings. These elevators require monthly inspections and maintenance to keep them
safe and performing to their optimum level. This contract will provide for repairs to
elevators as needed. In addition, this contract will provide for planned capital improvements to those
elevators needing major repair or refurbishment. Elevator capital improvement projects considered for
FY 2021/22 are the Main Library and Main Police Department buildings. All technicians are factory
trained on all elevators manufactures currently found in City buildings.

Evaluation:
On August 19, 2015, the City approved an agreement with Arizona Elevator Solutions, Inc., for elevator
maintenance repair and service, for a two-year term, with the option of up to two (2) two-year
extensions. City Council approved agreement extensions from September 1, 2017, through August 31,
2019, and September 1, 2019, through August 31, 2021.  The current term of the agreement is still in
effect, however, staff is requesting an increase to the spending limit that was previously approved. All
other terms of the original agreement remain unchanged. 

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP Funded
Y/N

101.3200.5410 General Fund N/A $65,000 N
401.3210.6210.6BF628 General Government

Capital Projects
Existing City Building
Renovations

$185,000 Y

Attachments



BF6-910-3566 Elevator Maintenance Amendment Three 



DocuSign Envelope ID: AC369276-C049-4E1E-AEC8-B9C54EF31121



DocuSign Envelope ID: AC369276-C049-4E1E-AEC8-B9C54EF31121

VP of Sales



ITEM  11 

City Council Memorandum      Facilities and Fleet  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 
From: Mike Hollingsworth, Facilities & Fleet Manager
Subject: Agreement No. FS2-928-4310, Auto Body Repair Service

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. FS2-928-4310, with Allard Collision, LLC, and Arizona
Truck and Coach, LLC, for auto body repair service, in a combined amount not to exceed $250,000, for
the period of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022, with the option of up to four one-year extensions. 

Background/Discussion:
Body repairs and painting services are important facets of automotive repair and maintenance. These
services repair collision damage caused by third parties and employees, as well as maintain the safe
operation and appearance of the City’s fleet.  Modern vehicle bodies require advanced shop
equipment, specialized fabrication, and technical skills due to the use of advanced materials and
components.

Evaluation:
On March 12, 2021, City Staff issued Request for Proposal No. FS2-928-4310 for auto body repair
service. Notification was sent to all registered vendors.  Four proposals were received from the
following offerors:

Ace Auto Collision, Inc.
Allard Collision, LLC
Arizona Truck and Coach, LLC
Autobahn Collision, LLC

The Evaluation Committee assessed each of the proposals and recommends the contract award to
Allard Collision, LLC, and Arizona Truck and Coach, LLC. Both submitted the most
advantageous proposals to the City in accordance with the evaluation criteria.

The term of this Agreement is one year, July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022, with the option of up to
four one-year extensions.

Financial Implications:
Funds for auto body repair service will come from Insured Liability Claims/Self-Insurance.



Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar Amount CIP Funded Y/N
737.1311.5414.0.0.0 Insured Liability Self Insurance N/A $250,000 N

Attachments
Arizona Truck & Coach Agreement 
Allard Agreement 



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A

Owner/Admin



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: D1FC4FA7-1B32-4496-97D9-EBFA912B346A



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148

Owner



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



DocuSign Envelope ID: C2ED1431-13DD-4FA6-8C80-D1ABFA97A148



ITEM  12 

City Council Memorandum      Fire  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua Wright, Acting City Manager

Thomas Dwiggins, Fire Chief
From: Stacy Meendering, Fire Accreditation & Data Coordinator
Subject: Resolution No. 5489 renewing an Agreement between the City of Chandler and Dignity Health to 

provide administrative medical direction from a base hospital for Chandler Fire Department (CFD) 
Certified Emergency Paramedics as required by Arizona law. 

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5489 renewing an Agreement between the City of Chandler
and Dignity Health to provide administrative medical direction from a base hospital for Chandler Fire Department
(CFD) Certified Emergency Paramedics as required by Arizona law.

Background:
By Arizona law, all Certified Emergency Paramedics must work under the license of a physician, through Administrative
Medical Direction, which is provided as a component of a Base Station Agreement with a hospital. Administrative Medical
Direction also allows paramedics in the field to contact an emergency physician for unique medical orders or questions
regarding patient care. To continue providing Emergency Medical Services in the City of Chandler, Chandler Fire
Department needs to comply with Arizona State Statute R9-25-201 by securing an agreement for Administrative Medical
Direction from an Emergency Base Station. This agreement is a renewal of an agreement CFD and Dignity Health have held
for over a decade. By renewing the Emergency Base Station Agreement, CFD will meet state requirements and continue to
provide life-saving measures to the citizens of Chandler. The term of the agreement is for three years and commences
July 1, 2021.

Attachments
Resolution No. 5489 Agreement 
Base Station Agreement Amendment 



RESOLUTION NO. 5489 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, AUTHORIZING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE EMERGENCY 
BASE STATION AGREEMENT WITH DIGNITY HEALTH. 

 
WHEREAS, Arizona law requires all Certified Emergency Paramedics work under the license of 
a physician for on-line medical supervision; and  
 
WHERAS, administrative medical control must be provided by a physician for the Chandler Fire 
Department’s emergency medical program; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Chandler Fire Department and Dignity Health, a California nonprofit public 
benefit corporation (“Dignity Health”), desire to extend the term of the existing Emergency Base 
Station Agreement to June 30, 2024. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows:  
 
Section 1. Approves the First Amendment to the Emergency Base Station Agreement with 

Dignity Health. 
 
Section 2. Authorizes the Acting City Manager, or designee, to sign the First Amendment to 

the Emergency Base Station Agreement with Dignity Health.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this ____ day 
of June, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________  _______________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
   

CERTIFICATION 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No. 5489 was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the _____ day of 
June, 2021 and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
       ____________________________  
       CITY CLERK 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY        





ITEM  13 

City Council Memorandum      Fire  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua Wright, Acting City Manager

Thomas Dwiggins, Fire Chief
From: Stacy Meendering, Fire Accreditation & Data Coordinator
Subject: Resolution No. 5491 Adopting an Agreement between the City of Chandler and Dignity Health to

provide required Neonatal Resuscitation Provider education for Chandler Fire Department (CFD)
paramedic students.

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council pass and adopt Resolution No. 5491 Adopting an Agreement between the City of Chandler
and Dignity Health to provide required Neonatal Resuscitation Provider education for Chandler Fire Department
(CFD) paramedic students.

Background:
For ten years, CFD has conducted a paramedic training program in conjunction with Phoenix College. Through a
rigorous 10-month course conducted within the Department, firefighters have become certified as paramedics.  

To reduce costs and provide CFD firefighters an optimal education, the Department is applying for accreditation
through the Commission on Accreditation of Allied Health Education Programs (CAAHEP) for its own paramedic
program. Currently, CFD has been approved by CAAHEP to begin the Letter of Review (LoR) process, which
requires CFD to comply with the current Maricopa Community College District’s (MCCCD) paramedic
educational curriculum. This curriculum requires paramedic students to become certified as a Neonatal
Resuscitation Provider. Resolution No. 5491 allows CFD to enter into an agreement with Dignity Health to
provide the educational requirements that CFD paramedic students need to become certified in the Neonatal
Resuscitation Program (NRP).

The term of the agreement is one year and commences on July 1, 2021.

Financial Implications:
The Chandler Fire Department will pay the educator $270 per two-hour classroom session taught. It is expected
that within fiscal year 2022, sixteen Chandler Fire paramedics will be fully trained in Neonatal Resuscitation
provided within the single two-hour classroom session, for a total overall cost of $270.  The training fee of $270
will be paid out of existing Chandler Fire funds in account line 101.2220.5814.0.0.0.

Attachments
Signed Agreement with Dignity Health 
Resolution 5491 Dignity Health Education Services Agreement 



Clic
k t

o buy N
OW!

PDF-XChange

w
w

w.tracker-software
.c

om Clic
k t

o buy N
OW!

PDF-XChange

w
w

w.tracker-software

.c
om

http://www.tracker-software.com/buy-now
http://www.tracker-software.com/buy-now






ITEM  14 

City Council Memorandum      Information Technology  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
Sandip Dholakia, Chief Information Officer

From: Andy Sandoval, IT Principal Systems Specialist
Subject: Purchase of Hardware and Software for Network Infrastructure 

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the purchase of hardware and software for network infrastructure from
Sentinel Technologies, Inc., utilizing 1GPA Contract No. 21-02PV-08, in the amount of $93,886, and
authorize the City Manager or designee to sign a linking agreement with Sentinel Technologies, Inc.

Background/Discussion:
Staff recommends the replacement of the hardware and software for the network infrastructure with the
latest technology to better support connectivity and the performance management of applications such
as Lucity, Oracle E-Business Suite, My Timekeeper, Geographic information System (GIS) and several
others. This purchase includes the cost of an annual subscription for a duration of three years.

Evaluation:
1GPA competitively solicited and awarded a contract for network equipment and services.  The City has
a current Intergovernmental Agreement with 1GPA that permits the cooperative use of its
contracts.  The term of the 1GPA contract is valid through November 19, 2021, and has options to
extend through November 19, 2025.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP Funded
Y/N

401.1287.6315.0.6IT097 General Government
Capital Projects

Citywide Technology
Infrastructure

$93,886 Y



ITEM  15 

City Council Memorandum      Law  Memo No. 
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
From: Kelly Schwab, City Attorney
Subject: Settlement in Jennifer Przybyla vs. City of Chandler 

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council to authorize the settlement in the matter of Jennifer Przybyla vs. City of Chandler in
full and final satisfaction of all claims asserted without admitting liability for the amount of $300,000 and
further authorize the City Attorney to sign any necessary documents in such forms as are approved by
the City Attorney to effectuate the terms and conditions of settlement in this action.



ITEM  16 

City Council Memorandum      Law  Memo No. 
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
From: Kelly Schwab, City Attorney
Subject: Settlement in Kathleen Renee Clum vs. City of Chandler

Settlement in Anthony Jose Cano, Sr. vs. City of Chandler   
 

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council to authorize the settlement in the matter of Kathleen Renee Clum and Anthony Jose
Cano, Sr.  vs. City of Chandler in full and final satisfaction of all claims asserted without admitting
liability for the amount of $1,125,000 and further authorize the City Attorney to sign any necessary
documents in such forms as are approved by the City Attorney to effectuate the terms and conditions of
settlement in this action.

Background/Discussion 
Staff recommends City Council authorize the settlement in the matter of Kathleen Renee Clum vs. City
of Chandler in the amount of $1,000,000.  Staff recommends City Council authorize the settlement in
the matter of Anthony Jose Cano, Sr. vs. City of Chandler in the amount of $125,000.00.



ITEM  17 

City Council Memorandum      Law  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
From: Kelly Schwab, City Attorney
Subject: Renewal of Commercial Insurance and Services for Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the renewal of commercial insurance and services with recommended
insurance carriers for FY 2021-22 to protect the City against financial loss in the total amount not to
exceed $2,308,258. 

Background/Discussion 
On March 23, 2017, City Council approved Agreement No. LW7-953-3735 with Arthur J. Gallagher Risk
Management Services, Inc., for insurance broker services. Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management
Services, Inc., acts as the Insurance Broker of Record for the City of Chandler’s workers’
compensation, casualty/liability, property, and automobile insurance coverage. They also advise and
coordinate with the City’s Risk Services Coordinator and City Attorney to obtain bids from insurers and
negotiate the best terms and coverage for the various exposure areas.  

The City self-insures and carries excess coverage in the areas and at the levels indicated below.  The
total premium cost of recommended coverage through commercial carriers for FY 2021-22 is estimated
at $2,308,258, compared to FY 2020-21 which was $1,392,451.  The estimated increase in rate
premium is due to the instability in the marketplace which is explained further in this memorandum.  

Excess Workers’ Compensation: 
Excess Workers’ Compensation Insurance is carried through Safety National. In FY 20-21 the City was
self-insured for the first $2,250,000 for Police and Fire, and $750,000 for the remainder of the City
employees. For the 2021 renewal, the City’s insurance broker submitted our account to Safety National,
Arch, and Midwest Employers. We received declinations from all carriers except Safety National
(current carrier). The reasons cited for the declinations are the City’s loss history and the strengthening
of presumptive injury laws. 

Safety National provided a renewal quote with a 10% increase in premium. This increase is being
driven by two recent fatality claims and a continued frequency and severity of claims on the police side
as well as increasing medical costs. Safety National increased the police and fire retention from
$2,250,000 to $3,000,000 and for the remainder of the City employees increased retention from
$750,000 to $1,000,000. In addition, an SIR for Wildland Firefighters was added. This SIR would cover
firefighters who were injured fighting a wildland fire. This SIR has no impact on the premium. 



Property Insurance: 
Property Insurance is carried through The Travelers Indemnity Company which provides broad
coverage for buildings, business personal property, fine arts, Electronic Data Processing (EDP), mobile
equipment, as well as boilers and machinery.  This policy has various deductibles including $50,000
per occurrence for most losses, $100,000 for earth movement, and $50,000 for flood. Premium for FY
2021-22 is $519,979.  Premium for FY 2020-21 was $479,008.

Due to the catastrophic losses that have continued to occur in the U.S. as well as internationally, the
property market has hardened.  As a result of the hard market, Travelers Insurance Company, who had
written the City's property and Auto Physical Damage (ADP) policy up to FY 2019/2020, will no longer
write the City’s ADP and equipment. The City has been unable to find a carrier that will write over the
road coverage for ADP and equipment that is licensed for road use. The City continues to self-insure all
City owned autos and equipment until a carrier is willing to write over the road coverage.,

Excess Liability Coverage:
Excess Liability Coverage is carried through Gemini and Hudson in $5 million increments.  Allied World
and Great American in $10 million increments for a total of $30 million excess liability coverage for FY
2021-22.  In FY 2020-21 the City had excess liability coverage through Argonaut, Allied World, and
Great American in $10 million increments.   

$5 million excess of $2,000,000 Self-Insured Retention – Insurance is carried through Gemini
Insurance Company Premium for FY 2021-22 is $417,960.  New Insurance carrier replacing
Argonaut Insurance Company*.  Premium FY 2021-22 is $417,960.  Premium for FY 2020-21
$317,788.
$5 million excess of $7,000,000 – Insurance is through Hudson.  New insurance carrier replacing
Argonaut Insurance Company*.  Premium FY 2021-22 is $250,000. 
$10 million excess of $12,000,000 – Insurance is through Allied World, Premium for FY 2021-22
is $370,000. Premium for FY 2020-21 $69,843.
$10 million excess of $22,000,000 – Insurance is through Great American Assurance Co.
Premium for FY 2021-2022 is $206,000.  Premium for FY 2020-21 was $50,000.

*Argonaut very recently lost its reinsurance to the surprise of the market, which means it cut its capacity
to write our primary liability coverage. The broker had to restructure the City’s primary layer of $10
million into two carriers each taking $5 million. 

Crime Insurance:
Crime Insurance is carried through National Union Fire Insurance Co. of Pittsburgh, PA.  Coverage
includes state required bonds for the City’s Management Services Director and Accounting Manager.
This policy also provides coverage for members of the City’s boards and commissions. Premium for FY
2021-22 is $15,462.  Premium for FY 2020-21 was $13,992.

Privacy/Security Liability Insurance (Cyber Insurance): 
Privacy/Security Liability Insurance also known as Cyber Insurance is carried through Cowbell
Insurance Co.  Privacy and Network Liability policy provides $5 million aggregate for Privacy, Network
Security, Internet Media, Network Extortion and Cyber Incident Response.  In FY 2020-21 the City had
Privacy/Security Liability through Ace Group that provided a $10 million aggregate policy.  Premium for
FY 2021-22 is $98,885.  Premium for FY 2020-21 was $101,908.

Storage Tank Liability Insurance:
Storage Tank Liability Insurance is carried through Mid-Continent.  Policy limits remain at $1,000,000
per tank, with a $25,000 per incident deductible.  Coverage complies with the financial responsibility
mandates of the Environmental Protection Agency. Premium for FY 2021-22 is $1,639.  Premium for
FY 2020-21 was $1,639. 

Airport Liability Insurance:



Airport Liability Insurance is carried through ACE Property & Casualty. Airport Owners and Operators
Liability policy provides $50 million in coverage per occurrence. Premium for FY 2021-22 is $11,485.
 Premium for FY 2020-21 was $11,485.

Fine Arts Insurance:
Fine Arts Insurance is carried through Axis Insurance Company.  This is purchased to cover the City’s
museum collection and temporary loans. Deductible per occurrence is $1,000.  Premium for FY
2021-22 is $8,820. Premium for FY 2020-21 was $8,820.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS: Funds for premiums are budgeted for payment from the following
accounts: 

Account Number  Fund Name Program
Name

CIP
Funded

Proposed
Renewal
Premiums

FY
2021-22    

Premiums
FY 2020-21 

736.1250.0000.5620  Worker's
Compensation 

Excess
Insurance   N/A $  381,028 $   349,467

737.1310.0000.5610  Insured Liability  Fire
Insurance  N/A $  519,979 $   479,008

737.1310.0000.5614  Insured Liability  Public
Liability  N/A $1,243,960* $   437,631

737.1310.0000.5618  Insured Liability  Crime
Insurance  N/A $    15,462 $     13,992

737.1310.0000.5618  Privacy/SecurityLiability 
Network
Liability  N/A $    98,855 $   101,908

737.1310.0000.5618  Insured Liability  Storage
Tanks Ins.  N/A $      1,639 $       1,639

635.4100.0000.5614  AirportOperating 
Public
Liability  N/A $    11,485 $     11,485

737.1310.0000.5610  Fine Arts  Fire
Insurance  N/A   $      8,820 $       8,820

737.1310.0000.5219 
Other
Professional
Services 

Broker
Fee  N/A $    27,000 $     27,000

      Total $2,308,258 $1,392,451  
*This amount includes estimated premiums for the $25 million additional Excess Liability coverage
($826,000).  It is anticipated that premiums will be less than or equal to the estimated, but we have not
received the final premium amounts as of the date of this memorandum.

Attachments
FY 2021-22 Self-Insurance Renewal Premium Chart 



Excess Workers' Compensation 2020 Expiring 2021 Renewal % Change

Carrier  Safety National  Safety National  
SIR - Police & Fire $2,250,000 $3,000,000 
SIR - All Other $750,000 $1,000,000 
SIR – Wildland Firefighters $1,000,000 
Estimated Payroll $136,853,788 $140,083,838 2%
Rate Per $100 of Payroll 0.2532 0.272 45%
Premium $349,467 $381,028 10%

Coverage Type 2020 Expiring Carrier 2021 Renewal Carrier
2020 Expiring 

Premium 
Terrorism

2021 Renewal 
Premium

Terrorism
% 

Change
Notes

Property Travelers Travelers 479,008$         Included 519,979$         14,303$    9%
21-22 includes 
Terrorism

Public Entity Liability Trident (Argonaut) Gemini* 317,788$         Rejected 417,960$         6,115$      32% 21-22 limit is $5M
Excess Liability ($5M xs $5m) N/A Hudson -$                 Rejected 250,000$         
Excess Liability (10M xs $10M) Allied World Allied World 69,843$           Rejected 370,000$         430%
Excess Liability )$10M xs $20M) Great American Great American 50,000$           Rejected 206,000$         312%
Crime AIG AIG 13,992$           N/A 15,462$           N/A 11%
Network Security & Privacy Liability Chubb Cowbell 101,894$         N/A 98,885$           N/A -3% 21-22 limit is $5M

Storage Tank (pollution) Mid-Continent Mid-Continent 1,639$             N/A 1,639$             N/A 0%
Includes $150 policy 
Fee

Fine Arts AXIS Ins. Co. Axis ins. Co 8,820$             Included 8,820$             Included 0%
1,042,984$     1,888,745$     81%

Airport Liability (7/1/22) 11,485$           Rejected 11,485$           
Three year Term; 
Annual installments

Fiduciary (9/20/21) 16,530$           -$                 
Three Year Term; 
prepaid

AJG Broker Fee 27,000$          27,000$          
*premium includes AZ Surplus Lines Taxes and Fees

These are rough 
estimates

TOTAL

Ace Property & Casualty

Travelers Casualty

City of Chandler Self-Insurnace Renewal 2021-2022



ITEM  18 

City Council Memorandum      Management Services  Memo No. MS 21-059
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Dawn Lang, Management Services Director
From: Matthew Dunbar, Budget Manager
Subject: Ordinance No. 4970, Levying Upon the Assessed Valuation of the Property Within the City of

Chandler, Arizona, Subject to Taxation a Certain Sum Upon Each One Hundred Dollars ($100) of
Assessed Valuation Sufficient to Raise the Amount Estimated to be Required in the Annual Budget,
Less the Amount to be Received From Other Sources of Revenue; Providing Funds for Various Bond
Redemption, for the Purpose of Paying Interest Upon Bonded Indebtedness and Providing Funds for
General Municipal Expenses, All for the Fiscal Year Ending the 30th day of June 2022

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council to pass and adopt Ordinance No. 4970, levying upon the assessed valuation of the
property within the City of Chandler, Arizona, subject to taxation a certain sum upon each one hundred
dollars ($100) of assessed valuation sufficient to raise the amount estimated to be required in the
annual budget, less the amount to be received from other sources of revenue; providing funds for
various bond redemptions, for the purpose of paying interest upon bonded indebtedness and providing
funds for general municipal expenses, all for the Fiscal Year ending the 30th day of June 2022.

Background:
State law requires that the tax levy necessary for funding the adopted budget be established by
ordinance and be adopted fourteen (14) days following the public hearing and the final adoption of the
budget and not later than the third Monday in August (August 16, 2021).  As this tax levy ordinance is
an administrative method of setting apart funds necessary for use and maintenance, it does not require
an extraordinary (3/4) vote to make it immediately effective.  This determination is based on a Supreme
Court decision and is fully explained in the Municipal Budget and Financial Manual provided by the
League of Arizona Cities and Towns. 

Discussion:
The City received notification of Chandler’s 2021 tax values from the Maricopa County Assessor on
February 8, 2021, as required by State law.  The City’s Total Assessed Value is $3,463,794,661, which
is a 6.8% increase from the 2020 Total Assessed Valuation, and includes valuation changes to the
existing property as well as the value of new growth.  Based on a legislative change implemented July
1, 2015, property owners are now assessed on the Limited Assessed Value versus Full Cash Value,
and residential property values cannot increase more than 5% in a given year.  City Council has
approved a 0.0075 cent reduction in the combined property tax rate from $1.1201 to $1.1126 per $100
of Assessed Valuation.

As part of the tax levy process, the County Assessor also establishes the maximum allowable primary



tax rate, which allows a 2% increase in the maximum tax levy each year.  Chandler’s maximum primary
tax rate for Tax Year 2021 is $0.6136 per $100 of assessed value. The Fiscal Year (FY) 2021-22
Adopted Budget sets the rate at $0.2426 per $100 of Assessed Valuation, which is significantly less
than the maximum.  In addition, the State Property Tax Oversight Commission establishes a maximum
primary rate that would require a Truth in Taxation notice, which requires special notice to citizens and
a roll call vote of City Council to levy the increased property taxes.   The rate calculated for FY 2021-22
is $0.2426 per $100 of assessed valuation.  Since the City of Chandler rate for the FY 2021-22 Budget
of $0.2426 per $100 of Assessed Valuation does not exceed the maximum primary rate that would
require a Truth in Taxation notice, the City is not subject to the Truth in Taxation provisions this year.

Ordinance No. 4970 follows the prescribed form recommended for adoption and establishes a tax levy
of an estimated $38,538,200, as set forth in the FY 2021-22 Budget.  In this ordinance, the Chandler
City Council directs the County of Maricopa to levy the amount allowed by law.  The total tax rate will be
$1.1126 per $100 of assessed valuation.  The property value estimates received from the County
Assessor's office are available for public inspection on the City’s website at
www.chandleraz.gov/budget or by calling the Budget Division at (480) 782-2254.
 

Attachments
Ordinance No. 4970 

http://www.chandleraz.gov/budget
tel:(480) 782-2254






ITEM  19 

City Council Memorandum      Management Services  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Dawn Lang, Management Services Director
From: Jon Sherrill, Environmental Program Manager
Subject: Agreement No. MS1-926-4312 for Emergency Environmental Response and Remediation

Proposed Motion:
Move that City Council award Agreement No. MS1-926-4312 to Emergency Environmental
Services; GrayMar Environmental Services, Inc.; and Kary Environmental Services for emergency
environmental response and remediation services, in a combined amount not to exceed $150,000, for
the period of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022.

Background/Discussion:
The Environmental Management Division of the Management Services Department manages
emergency response and clean-up of chemical releases to the environment on City-owned property.
 The Uninsured Liability (Environmental Liability) Fund was established to fund such emergency
responses and clean-up activities.  While Chandler has been fortunate not to have an excessive
number of these chemical releases from its operations or into its streets, chemical use and
transportation release risk require that the City be able to respond quickly when such incidents occur.
These contractors would be mobilized and managed by Environmental Management staff in such
emergencies.

These contracts will provide services for the City of Chandler Police Department, which regularly
responds to emergency events in City rights of way, where at some events, spills and releases of
bio-hazardous material occur.  These events are emergency scenes with clean-up including
traffic incidents, crime scenes, and high traffic areas of Police Facilities.  

These contracts will also provide services for assistance in contamination clean-up, and
hazardous waste characterization, packaging, transporting and disposal of waste generated by the City
as part of normal operations. These hazardous waste activities are heavily regulated and require
specialized training, equipment, and licensing to perform these tasks.

The combined amount of these agreements will not exceed $150,000 in overall spend annually, and
contractors will be utilized based on availability and expertise, depending on the type of response.  

Evaluation:
On April 6, 2021, City staff issued Request for Proposal (RFP) No. MS1-926-4312 for emergency



On April 6, 2021, City staff issued Request for Proposal (RFP) No. MS1-926-4312 for emergency
environmental response and remediation services. A notification was sent to all registered vendors.
Three proposals were received from the following offerers:

Emergency Environmental Services
GrayMar Environmental Services, Inc.
Kary Environmental Services

The Evaluation Committee reviewed the proposals and recommends award to all responders;
Emergency Environmental Services; GrayMar Environmental Services, Inc.; and Kary Environmental
Services to allow for adequate coverage and timely response to incidents.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar Amount CIP Funded Y/N
738.1266.5219 Uninsured Liability Fund N/A $150,000 N

Attachments
Agreement_Kary 
Agreement_GrayMar 
Agreement_EES 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D

Project Manager



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 458DE48E-EF96-44B7-ACDC-DB3087CF2D1D



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A

MG



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: 44CAE648-6AEA-4D53-A08F-75210052B42A



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B

Operations Manager



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



DocuSign Envelope ID: BF20648B-DADA-4B60-931A-D17838715F4B



ITEM  20 

City Council Memorandum      Management Services  Memo No. 21-056
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Dawn Lang, Management Services Director
From: Danielle Wells, Revenue and Tax Manager
Subject: New License Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License Application for James Xie, Agent, Ramen Hood

Chandler, LLC, DBA Ramen Hood

Proposed Motion:
Move for recommendation to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control for approval of the
State Liquor Job No. 149960, a Series 12 Restaurant Liquor License for James Xie, Agent, Ramen
Hood Chandler, LLC, DBA Ramen Hood, located at 1940 W. Chandler Boulevard, Suite 12, and
approval of the City of Chandler Series 12 Restaurant Liquor License No. 300794.

Discussion:
This application for a liquor license was posted for hearing on June 24, 2021.

The Police Department reports no objections to the issuance of this license, and no written protests
pursuant to A.R.S. 4-201(B) have been received. With a Series 12, Restaurant Liquor License, the
business may sell all liquors for on-premise consumption only, with a minimum of 40% of the gross
receipts from the sale of food.

Attachments
A-Map 
B-Floor Plan 











ITEM  21 

City Council Memorandum      Management Services  Memo No. 21-062
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager
From: Dawn Lang, Management Services Director
Subject: Resolution No. 5494, Designating the Chief Fiscal Officer for Officially Submitting the Fiscal Year 2022

Expenditure Limitation Report to the Arizona Auditor General

Proposed Motion:
Move to pass and adopt Resolution No. 5494, designating the Chief Fiscal Officer for officially
submitting the Fiscal Year 2022 Expenditure Limitation Report to the Arizona Auditor General.

Background/Discussion
A.R.S. §41-1279.07(E) requires each county, city, town, and community college district to annually
provide to the Auditor General by July 31 the name of the Chief Fiscal Officer (CFO) the governing
body designated to officially submit the current year’s annual expenditure limitation report (AELR) on
the governing body’s behalf. This action must be completed through an action of the governing body.
For the City of Chandler, Dawn Lang, Management Services Director and Chief Financial Officer, will be
designated as the Chief Fiscal Officer for this purpose.

Attachments
Resolution No. 5494 







ITEM  22 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Vice Mayor  and Council
From: Mayor Kevin Hartke
Subject: Employee Agreement for City Magistrate Patrick Gann

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the City Magistrate employment agreement with Patrick Gann for the term
of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2023, with an annual base salary of $170,881.08 for the first year, and
$176,007.51 for the second year.  

Background/Discussion
On June 10, 2021, the Mayor and Council met in executive session to discuss the terms and conditions
of the City Magistrate employment.  As a result, the Council directed staff to prepare an employment
agreement to be entered into, between the City and Patrick Gann. 

Attachments
City Magistrate Employment Agreement - Patrick Gann 















ITEM  23 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Vice Mayor  and Council
From: Mayor Kevin Hartke
Subject: Employment Agreement for City Magistrate Alexa Nolle

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the City Magistrate employment agreement with Alexa Nolle for the term of
July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2023, with an annual base salary of $170,881.08 for the first year, and
$176,007.51 for the second year.  

Background/Discussion
On June 10, 2021, the Mayor and Council met in executive session to discuss the terms and conditions
of the City Magistrate employment.  As a result, the Council directed staff to prepare an employment
agreement to be entered into, between the City and Alexa Nolle.

Attachments
City Magistrate Employment Agreement - Alexa Nolle 















ITEM  24 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Vice Mayor  and Council
From: Mayor Kevin Hartke
Subject: City Attorney Employment Agreement 

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the City Attorney Employment Agreement with Kelly Schwab for the term of
July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022, at an annual base salary of $213,690. 

Background/Discussion
On June 10, 2021, the Mayor and Council conducted the annual performance review for the City
Attorney.  As a result of the review, the Council directed staff to prepare an employment agreement to
be entered into, between the City and Kelly Schwab.

Attachments
City Attorney Employment Contract 











ITEM  25 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Vice Mayor  and Council
From: Mayor Kevin Hartke
Subject: Ctiy Clerk Employment Agreement

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the City Clerk Employment Agreement with Dana DeLong for the term of
July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022, at an annual base salary of $150,921.

Background/Discussion
On June 10, 2021, the Mayor and Council conducted the annual performance review for the City Clerk. 
As a result of the review, the Council directed staff to prepare an employment agreement to be entered
into, between the City and Dana DeLong.

Attachments
City Clerk Employment Contract 











ITEM  26 

City Council Memorandum      City Clerk's Office  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Vice Mayor  and Council
From: Mayor Kevin Hartke
Subject: Appointment of Presiding City Magistrate and Employment Agreement

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council appoint Alicia Skupin as Presiding City Magistrate and approve an Employment
Agreement for the term of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2023, with an annual base salary of $195,000,
and a three percent (3%) increase for the second year of the term.

Background/Discussion
On June 14, 2021, the Mayor and Council conducted interviews for the appointment of Presiding
Magistrate.  As a result of the interviews, the Council directed staff to prepare an employment
agreement to be entered into between the City and Alicia Skupin.

Attachments
Presiding Magistrate Employment Contract 



CHANDLER PRESIDING CITY MAGISTRATE 

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered by and between the CITY OF CHANDLER (the "City''), 
an Arizona municipal corporation, by its Mayor, and ALICIA MORRISON SKUPIN (the 
"Employee"), (the City and the Employee may individually be referred to as the "Party'' and 
collectively referred to as the "Parties'') on this __ day of _______ ~ 20 
(Effective Date). 

WITNESS ETH: 

WHEREAS, the City desires to employ the services of the Employee as Presiding City 
Magistrate of the City of Chandler, Arizona; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council to provide certain benefits, establish certain 
conditions of employment, and to set working conditions of the Employee; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City Council to (1) secure and retain the services of the 
Employee and to provide inducement for the Employee to remain in such employment, (2) 
to make possible full work productivity by assuring the Employee's morale and peace of 
mind with respect to future security, (3) to act as deterrent against malfeasance or 
dishonesty for personal gain on the part of the Employee, and (4) to provide a just means 
for terminating the Employee's services at such time as the Employee may be unable fully 
to discharge the Employee's duties or when the City may desire to otherwise terminate the 
Employee's employ; and 

WHEREAS, the Employee desires to accept employment as the Presiding City Magistrate of 
the City; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the parties 
agree as follows: 

AGREEMENT 

Section 1. Duties 

The City agrees to engage the Employee as the Presiding City Magistrate of the City tb 
perform the functions and duties specified in the City Charter and City Code and to 
perform such other legally permissible and proper duties and functions as the City Council 
shall from time to time assign. 

Section 2. Term 

A. The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2023. 



B. Nothing .in this Agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with the right · 
of the City Council to terminate the services of the Employee as provided by St.ate 
law, subject only to the provisions set forth in Section 4 of the Agreement. 

C. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with the right 
of the Employee to resign at any time from employment with the City, subject only 
to the provision set forth in Section 3 of the Agreement. 

D. The Employ.ee agrees to remain in the exclusive employ of the City and neither to 
accept, nor to become employed by any other employer. This provision does not 
prohibit the Employee from occasionally teaching on the Employee's time off with 
the advance approval of the Mayor. 

Section 3. Resignation 

In the event the Employee voluntarily resigns from employment with the City before the 
expiration of the Term of the Agreement set forth under Section 2, then Employee shall 
give the City a minimum of two months advance notice before the Employee's final date of 
employment, or such advance notice as may be otherwise mutually agreed upon. 

Section 4. Disciplinary Action 

The Employee shall be held to high standards of conduct that would be expected qf a 
Chandler Presiding City Magistrate and member of the Arizona judiciary. The Employee 
may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including dismissal for cause. Cause for 
disciplinary action includes violations of City rules, policies, and regulations that would 
result in disciplinary action if committed by other City employees; violations of the 
Chandler City Charter or City Code; violations of State or Federal law; and conduct that is 
inconsistent with the Code of Judicial Conduct, Administrative Order No. 2005-32 of the 
Supreme Court of Arizona, and any other Rule or law governing the conduct of judges in 
Arizona. The Employee shall be given notice and an opportunity to be heard in any 
disciplinary action. 

Section 5. Salary 

A. The City agrees to pay the Employee for services rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement an initial annual base salary of $195,000, payable in installments at the 
same time regular employees of the City are paid. 

B. The Employee's annual base salary shall increase by three percent (3%) for the 
period of July 1, 2022, through June 30, 2023. 

2 



C. Ongoing salary adjustments and merit increases approved for regular, 
unrepresented employees during the term of the Agreement shall not apply to the 
Employee. 

D. If during the term of the Agreement the City agrees to provide any payment to all 
regular, unrepresented employees that is not added to base salaries, the City shall 
pay the Employee the same amount or percentage approved for such employees. 

Section 6. Hours of Work 

A. The Employee shall work a full-time schedule of no fewer than 40 hours per week 
except when a City holiday occurs or when a leave is approved by the Mayor or a 
sick leave is taken as provided under the City Personnel Rules. 

B. In the event the Employee is required to work more than 40 hours in a week, the 
Employee shall not be compensated for the additional time. 

Section 7. Dues and Subscriptions 

The City agrees to budget and pay the professional dues and subscriptions of the 
Employee necessary for continuation and full participation in national, regional, state, and 
local associations and organizations necessary and desirable for continued professional 
participation, growth, and advancement, and for the good of the City subject to the City's 
determination as to what is necessary. 

Section 8. Professional Development 

The City hereby agrees to budget and pay for the travel and subsistence expenses of the 
Employee for professional and official travel, meetings, and occasions adequate to 
continue the professional development of the Employee and to adequately pursue 
necessary official and other national, regional, state, and local governmental groups, and 
committees thereof on which Employee serves as a member, subject to the City's 
determination as to what is necessary. 

Section 9. Other Terms and Conditions of Employment 

A. The City Council shall fix any such other terms and conditions of employment, as it 
may determine from time to time, relating to the performance of the Employe~, 
provided such terms and conditions do not interfere with the judicial integrity and 
independence of the Employee and are not inconsistent with or in conflict with the 
provisions of this Agreement, the City Charter and Code, or any other law. 

B. All provisions of the City Charter and Code, and the Personnel Rules, Policies, and 
Administrative Regulations of the City relating to vacation and sick leave, retirement 
and pension system contributions, holidays, and other fringe benefits and working 

3 



conditions as they now exist or hereafter may be amended, also shall apply to the 
Employee as they would to other employees of City, in addition to said benefits 
enumerated specifically for the benefit of the Employee. The Employee shall pay the 
same amount of employee and dependent premiums for the City health and dental 
plans as paid by other employees of the City. 

C. The Employee shall accrue vacation and sick leave benefits as follows: 

1. Vacation: The Employee shall accrue vacation hours as set forth under 
Personnel Rule 15, Section 4(C). Personnel Rule 15, Section 5 shall apply to 
the Employee's accrual of vacation credits in excess of 240 hours. Excess 
vacation hours may be contributed to the Retirement Health Savings Plan as 
provided in CC-Reg. CM-57. 

2. Sick Leave: The Employee shall accrue and use sick leave, including Statutory 
Sick Leave, as set forth in Personnel Rule 15 and may convert sick leave to 
vacation credits as provided under Rule 15 and the Sick Leave Conversion 
Program, CC-Reg. CM-71. 

, 

D. Payment of sick leave upon leaving City service or death: 

1. Upon leaving City service, the Employee shall be entitled to compensation for 
accumulated sick leave under the provisions of the Personnel Rules 
governing payment of sick leave for regular employees upon retirement. 

2. If the Employee dies prior to leaving City service, the Employee's beneficiaries 
shall be entitled to compensation pursuant to the Personnel Rules. 

E. The Employee shall be covered by the City's insurance for malpractice and errors 
and omissions. 

F. The Employee shall be entitled to annual deferred compensation in an amount 
equal to seven percent (7%) of the Employee's base salary. This amount shall be 
paid in equal bi-weekly amounts and deposited into the City's deferred . 
compensation plan on a bi-weekly basis. The Employee may contribute additional 
amounts up to the maximum allowed by law. 

' 
G. The City shall provide term life insurance in an amount equal to 1.5 times the 

Employee's annual salary payable to the Employee's designated beneficiaries. 

H. The City shall provide a $40 per month allowance for the use of the Employee's own 
personal cell phone for City business. This allowance will be paid on a bi-weekly 
basis. 

4 



Section 10. Residency Requirement 

Because of the extraordinary conditions affecting the local housing market, the Employee 
shall have up to 12 months from the commencement of the Agreement to become a 
resident of the city. 

Section 11. General Provisions 

A. The text herein shall constitute the entire agreement between parties. 

B. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the heirs at law 
and executors of the Employee. 

C. If any provisions or any portion thereof, contained in this Agreement are held to be 
unconstitutional, invalid, or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement, or 
portion thereof, shall be deemed severable, shall not be affected, and shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

Section 12. Reappointment 

Nothing in this Agreement shall give the Employee an employment right beyond the terms 
set forth herein. Pursuant to Chandler Charter Section 2.09{c) reappointment of the 
Employee shall be at the pleasure of the City Council. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement. 

FOR THE CITY FOR THE EMPLOYEE 

By: __________ _ By: 
MAYOR ALICIA MORRISON SKUPIN 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By: ________ -=-=---
City Attorney ;effl-

ATTEST: 

By: ___________ _ 

City Clerk 

5 



ITEM  27 

City Council Memorandum      Police  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Sean Duggan, Police Chief
From: Travis Feyen, Police Commander
Subject: Agreement No. PD9-200-4038, Amendment No. 3, for Police Uniforms

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. PD9-200-4038, Amendment No. 3, with Skaggs Companies
Inc., for police uniforms, in an amount not to exceed $150,000, for the period of July 1, 2021, through
June 30, 2022

Background/Discussion:
This agreement provides for the Police Department’s annual needs for uniforms for all patrol officers
(including reserves), motor officers, park rangers, cadets, motorist assist volunteers, detention officers,
and civilians, as well as some uniform-related accessories such as baseball caps and Class A hats. 
This agreement will also allow for replacement of worn or damaged uniforms, alterations, and related
needs.  

Evaluation:
On June 27, 2019, City Council approved an agreement with Skaggs Companies, Inc., for police
uniforms, for a one-year period, with the option of up to four one-year extensions. The Contractor has
agreed to extend for one additional year with minor price increases due to increased manufacturer
costs of materials, trim, and labor.  

Staff recommends extension of this Agreement for the term of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022.   

Financial Implications:
Funds for police uniforms will be from General Fund, Field Operations, Clothing and Uniforms, Account
No. 101-2030-5313.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar Amount CIP Funded Y/N
101.2030.5313.0.0.0 General N/A $150,000 N

Attachments
4038 Amendment 3 





DocuSign Envelope ID: ED2818DD-3A2C-4368-A2B0-60190342024B



DocuSign Envelope ID: ED2818DD-3A2C-4368-A2B0-60190342024B

General Manager



DocuSign Envelope ID: ED2818DD-3A2C-4368-A2B0-60190342024B



DocuSign Envelope ID: ED2818DD-3A2C-4368-A2B0-60190342024B



DocuSign Envelope ID: ED2818DD-3A2C-4368-A2B0-60190342024B



DocuSign Envelope ID: ED2818DD-3A2C-4368-A2B0-60190342024B



DocuSign Envelope ID: ED2818DD-3A2C-4368-A2B0-60190342024B



DocuSign Envelope ID: ED2818DD-3A2C-4368-A2B0-60190342024B



DocuSign Envelope ID: ED2818DD-3A2C-4368-A2B0-60190342024B



DocuSign Envelope ID: ED2818DD-3A2C-4368-A2B0-60190342024B



DocuSign Envelope ID: ED2818DD-3A2C-4368-A2B0-60190342024B



DocuSign Envelope ID: ED2818DD-3A2C-4368-A2B0-60190342024B



DocuSign Envelope ID: ED2818DD-3A2C-4368-A2B0-60190342024B



ITEM  28 

City Council Memorandum      Police  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Sean Duggan, Police Chief
From: Chris Perez, Police Commander
Subject: Purchase of Police Firearm Simulator Equipment

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the purchase of a police firearm simulator from VirTra, Inc., utilizing the
State of Arizona Contract No. ADPS17-152755, in the amount of $256,136.49, and authorize the City
Manager or designee to sign a linking agreement with VirTra, Inc.

Background/Discussion:
The Chandler Police Department is required to conduct Discretionary Use of Force and Judgment
Shooting scenario training and certifications for each officer on an annual basis. The current use of
force simulator is approximately 8 years old and the technology is antiquated compared to today's
standards. The current system has one screen and is limited in its ability to provide realistic scenarios.
Contemporary use of force simulator systems incorporate multiple screens to provide a much more
realistic training environment.

The proposed Virtra system provides 300 degrees of scenarios on five screens with 4k content. This
system is used by law enforcement world-wide and has a proven training record on decision-making,
instruction, scenario creation, and marksmanship skills with pistols and rifles. This system allows
officers to develop and train their use of force strategies based on video and interactive scenarios. All
Chandler Police use of force options can be utilized on the Virtra system to include both lethal and
non-lethal response to the simulated scenarios. The Virtra system comes with a complete library of
video scenarios, interactive course training, marksmanship courseware, and invaluable de-escalation
and debriefing opportunities.

Use of force simulation training is the most effective and safe training methodology for developing and
honing the use of force skill set and decision-making necessary for officers to provide the best service
to the citizens of Chandler. Purchase of the new Virtra system was planned as part of the second phase
of construction of the Public Safety Training Center. 

Evaluation:
The State of Arizona competitively solicited and awarded a contract for police firearm simulators and
accessories.  The City has a current Intergovernmental Agreement with the State of Arizona that
permits the cooperative use of the State's contracts.  The term of the State of Arizona contract is valid
through October 31, 2021. 



Financial Implications:
Purchase of police firearm simulator from VirTra, Inc. in the amount of $256,136.49.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP Funded
Y/N

401.2100.6419.0.6PD646 General Govt Capital
Projects

Public Safety Training
Facility

$256,136.49 Y



ITEM  29 

City Council Memorandum      Police  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Sean Duggan, Police Chief
From: Travis Feyen, Police Commander
Subject: Agreement No. PD8-680-3892, Amendment No. 3, for Outer Vest Carriers

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. PD8-680-3892, Amendment No. 3, with Universal Police
Supply, for outer vest carriers, in an amount not to exceed $78,625, for the period of July 1, 2021,
through June 30, 2022.   

Background/Discussion:
This agreement provides for the Police Department’s need to purchase outer vest carriers and provide
sworn officers with the option to wear the carrier, which will include ballistic panels as well as the ability
to carry other required equipment when an officer is on duty.

Evaluation:
On June 28, 2018, City Council approved an agreement with Universal Police Supply, for outer vest
carriers, for a one-year period, with the option of up to four one-year extensions. The Contractor has
agreed to extend for one additional year at the same terms, conditions, and pricing.

Staff recommends extension of this Agreement for the term of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022.   

Financial Implications:
Funds for the outer vest carriers will be from General Fund, Field Operations Clothing and Uniforms,
Account No. 101-2030-5313. 

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar Amount CIP Funded Y/N
101.2030.5313.0.0.0 General N/A $78,625 N

Attachments
Agreement Amendment 3 - Universal Police Supply Complany 



DocuSign Envelope ID: ABF95920-4E58-4E53-A1B5-61B847BB3136



DocuSign Envelope ID: ABF95920-4E58-4E53-A1B5-61B847BB3136

Account Manager



ITEM  30 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. UA21-053
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director

From: John Pinkston, Wastewater Facilities Manager
Subject: Sole Source Purchase of Wastewater Membrane Modules

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve the sole source purchase of wastewater membrane modules, from SUEZ
Water Technologies & Solutions, Inc., in an amount not to exceed $300,000.

Background/Discussion:
The Ocotillo Water Reclamation Facility (OWRF), located at 3333 S. Old Price Road, treats 18 million
gallons of the City’s wastewater every day. This plant uses two different methods of treatment to
produce A+ quality effluent for delivery to the City’s reclaimed water system. To meet the increasing
demand for wastewater treatment and the growing demand for reclaimed water, OWRF was expanded
in 2015 to the current 18 million gallons a day treatment capacity. This plant expansion was designed
and built to utilize microfiltration technology. Microfiltration uses an advanced membrane technology
that filters water through very fine laser-cut membranes which remove impurities down to the
microscopic level. Staff has determined that there is room for additional membrane filters that would
improve system capacity and reliability. This purchase will include additional filters to increase the
current capacity and reliability of the microfiltration system as well as installation and commissioning
assistance of the additional filters.

Evaluation:
The Public Works & Utilities Department utilizes SUEZ wastewater membrane modules at the Ocotillo
Water Reclamation Facility. SUEZ Water Technologies & Solutions, Inc., is the sole provider of these
membrane modules. Staff recommends the purchase of SUEZ membranes as a sole source. 

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP Funded
Y/N

615.3970.5219.0.0 Ocotillo Water Reclamation
Facility

Other Professional
Services

$300,000 N



ITEM  31 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. UA21-054
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director

From: Josef Kennis, Wastewater Facilities Superintendent 
Subject: Agreement No. WW0-885-4137, Amendment No. 1, with In-Pipe Technology, LLC, and USP

Technologies, for the Collection System Odor and Corrosion Control

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. WW0-885-4137, Amendment No. 1, with In-Pipe
Technology, LLC, and USP Technologies, for the collection system odor and corrosion control, in a
combined amount not to exceed $500,000, for a one-year period, July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022.

Background/Discussion:
The Public Works & Utilities Department’s sewage collection system consists of over 900 hundred miles
of pipe and eight sewage lift stations located throughout the City. These structures work together to
convey over 30 million gallons of sewage to the City’s three treatment plants every day. The sewage
collection system runs beneath most roads and streets throughout the City.

Wastewater in the collection system naturally produces noxious hydrogen sulfide gas causing odors
and deterioration of pipes, manholes, and concrete structures. Reduction of hydrogen sulfide in the
collection system can be accomplished by adding both chemical and microbial compounds at key
locations that impede the formation of gas and help reduce the cost to rehabilitate affected
structures. Lowering the concentration of hydrogen sulfide gas entering the Airport and Ocotillo water
reclamation facilities will also help to drive down the cost of odor control at these facilities. This odorous
gas is the main source of customer odor complaints associated with the City’s sewer system and
treatment facilities.  

The project scope of work consists of monthly service of microbial dosing units including repair, parts
replacement, and monitoring.

Over the past year, the chosen vendors have proven their efficiency and ability to reduce odor
complaints and corrosion in the system while enhancing staff safety. These vendors have shown their
ability to reduce the gas formation to acceptable levels while adapting to seasonal variations. Beyond
the improved conditions, a cost savings has been seen in chemicals, operation, and maintenance. 

Evaluation:
On July 16, 2020, City Council approved agreements with In-Pipe Technology, LLC, and USP



On July 16, 2020, City Council approved agreements with In-Pipe Technology, LLC, and USP
Technologies, for the collection system odor and corrosion control, for a one-year term, with the option
of up to two (2) one-year extensions. The contractors have agreed to extend the agreement for one
(1) year at the same terms, conditions, and pricing.

Staff recommends extension of this agreement for the term of July 1, 2021, through June 30, 2022. This
is the first extension of the original agreement.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP Funded
Y/N

611.3910.6817.6WW196 Wastewater
Bond

Collection System Facility
Improv.

$500,000 Y

Attachments
Amendment - In-Pipe Technology 
Amendment - USP Technologies 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4C09DB99-DE70-4A3C-85A8-0312156F0522



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4C09DB99-DE70-4A3C-85A8-0312156F0522

Chief Commercial Officer



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4C09DB99-DE70-4A3C-85A8-0312156F0522



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4C09DB99-DE70-4A3C-85A8-0312156F0522



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4C09DB99-DE70-4A3C-85A8-0312156F0522

Chief Commercial Officer



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4C09DB99-DE70-4A3C-85A8-0312156F0522



ITEM  32 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. ST21-023
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director

From: Kevin Lair, Transportation Manager
Subject: Agreement No. ST0-988-4175, Amendment No. 1, with Reyes & Sons Landscaping, LLC, for

Landscape Maintenance Areas 1 through 4

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. ST0-988-4175, Amendment No. 1, with Reyes & Sons
Landscaping, LLC, for landscape maintenance areas 1 through 4, in an amount not to exceed
$1,487,219.40, for a one-year period, July 6, 2021, through July 5, 2022. 

Background/Discussion:
The City’s Transportation Division is responsible for landscape maintenance of over 400 acres of
property within the City. Work under this agreement includes trash pickup, weed control, irrigation
repair, fertilization, tree trimming, mowing, and pruning/trimming for arterial street rights-of-way,
medians, City-owned lots, and retention basins. This agreement also includes landscape maintenance
for the Loop 101 Price Freeway frontage roads, Chandler Mall Transit Center, Chandler Airport terminal
area, bus rapid transit stations, and a large portion of the McQueen Yard, located at 975 E. Armstrong
Way. The areas described above are known as landscape areas 1 through 4.

Evaluation:
On June 25, 2020, City Council approved an agreement with Reyes & Sons Landscaping, LLC, for
Landscape Maintenance Areas 1-4, for a one-year term, with the option of up to four (4) additional
one-year extensions. The contractor has agreed to extend for one (1) year at the same terms,
conditions, and pricing.

Staff recommends extension of this agreement for the term of July 6, 2021, through July 5, 2022. This
is the first extension of the original agreement. 

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar Amount CIP Funded Y/N
101.3300.5219 General Fund Other Professional Services-Streets $1,429,902.00 N
101.1270.5219 General Fund Other Professional Services-Fleet $781.20 N
101.1225.5410 General Fund Buildings R&M-Central Supply $781.20 N
635.4100.5219 General Fund Other Professional Services-Airport $5,640.00 N



101.3340.5219 General Fund Other Professional Services-Transit $50,115.00 N

Attachments
Amendment - Reyes & Sons Landscaping 



Page 1 of 2 
 

                                                                
 

 
City Clerk Document No.     

 
City Council Meeting Date: June 24, 2021   

 
 

AMENDMENT TO CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT 
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE AREAS 1-4 

CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT NO. ST0-988-4175 
 
THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 (Amendment No. 1) is made and entered into by and between the City of 
Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation (City), and Reyes & Sons Landscaping, LLC, (Contractor), 
(City and Contractor may individually be referred to as Party and collectively referred to as Parties) 
and made   , 20  (Effective Date). 
 

RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties entered into an agreement for landscape services of areas 1-4 (Agreement); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement was July 6, 2020 through July 5, 2021, with the option of up to 
four one-year extensions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties wish to exercise the first option through this Amendment to extend the 
Agreement for one year. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 
 
1. The recitals are accurate and are incorporated and made a part of the Agreement by this 

reference.    
 
2. Section 4, Price is amended to read as follows: The City will pay the Contractor the per unit cost 

set forth in Exhibit B of the original Agreement, which is incorporated into and made a part of 
this Amendment No. 1 by this reference. Total payments made to the Contractor during the 
term of this Amendment No. 1 will not exceed $1,487,219.40. 
 

3.  Section 5, Term is amended to read as follows: The Agreement is extended for a one-year 
period July 6, 2021 through July 5, 2022. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 6F149E3C-545B-47C8-A6D2-8FEA21BFE278



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6F149E3C-545B-47C8-A6D2-8FEA21BFE278

Member/ Manager



ITEM  33 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. ST21-022
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director

From: Kevin Lair, Transportation Manager
Subject: Agreement No. ST0-988-4194, Amendment No. 1, with Brightview Landscape Services, Inc., for

Revegetation, Storm Repair, and Maintenance of City Streets

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. ST0-988-4194, Amendment No. 1, with Brightview
Landscape Services, Inc., for revegetation, storm repair, and maintenance of City streets, in an amount
not to exceed $500,000, for a one-year period, August 1, 2021, through July 31, 2022. 

Background/Discussion:
The City’s Transportation Division is responsible for landscape maintenance of over 450 acres of
property within the City. The maintained areas include rights-of-way, medians, City-owned lots, and
retention basins, including the Chandler Mall Transit Center, the Park and Ride at Germann Road and
Hamilton Street, the Airport terminal and surrounding areas, Bus Rapid Transit stations, a large portion
of the McQueen Yard, and the Western Canal pathway. Maintenance work includes replacement of
landscape material, irrigation system components, decomposed granite, header curbs, and the removal
and replacement of damaged, hazardous, or diseased trees.

Evaluation:
On June 25, 2020, City Council approved an agreement with Brightview Landscape Services, Inc., for
revegetation, storm repair, and maintenance of City streets, for a one-year term, with the option of up to
four (4) additional one-year extensions. The contractor has agreed to extend for one (1) year at the
same terms, conditions, and pricing.

Staff recommends extension of this agreement for the term of August 1, 2021, through July 31, 2022.
This is the first extension of the original agreement. 

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP Funded
Y/N

401.3310.5219.6ST014 General Government
Capital Projects

Landscape Repairs &
Upgrades

$500,000 Y



Attachments
Amendment - Brightview 







ITEM  34 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. UA21-056
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director

From: John Ardans, Utilities Maintenance Manager
Subject: Agreement No. PW1-925-4350, with Mechanical Solutions, Inc., for Vibration Diagnostic Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. PW1-925-4350, with Mechanical Solutions, Inc., for
vibration diagnostic services, in an amount not to exceed $120,000. 

Background/Discussion:
The City provides wastewater services to over 260,000 residents. Wastewater is delivered to two
reclamation facilities where it is treated to produce A+ quality effluent for delivery to the City’s reclaimed
water system. The Ocotillo Water Reclamation Facility (OWRF), located at 3333 S. Old Price Road,
was originally built in 1985.  The Airport Water Reclamation Facility (AWRF), located at 905 E. Queen
Creek Road, was originally built in 1998. This agreement will procure the services of Mechanical
Solutions, Inc. (MSI), to determine the cause of the high vibration exhibited by permeate pumps located
at OWRF and reclaim pumps located at AWRF. MSI has provided this same type of analysis for raw
water pumps located at the Pecos Surface Water Treatment Plant and successfully designed a solution
to mitigate the vibration issues exhibited by the pumps.

The project scope of work consists of onsite testing at OWRF and AWRF, data analysis, and a
preliminary report. Completion time is 120 calendar days following Notice to Proceed.

Evaluation:
The City has used MSI for other troubleshooting needs, and MSI has provided successful results. Their
leadership team and staff are highly qualified in their fields of knowledge and have proven capabilities
as demonstrated on a previous project. Staff recommends the direct selection of Mechanical Solutions,
Inc., due to their experience and familiarity with City of Chandler operations.

Fiscal Impact
Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar

Amount
CIP Funded
Y/N

615.3970.5219.0.0.0 Wastewater Operating Other Professional
Services

$60,000 N

612.3960.5219.0.0.0 Reclaimed Water Other Professional $60,000 N



612.3960.5219.0.0.0 Reclaimed Water
Operating

Other Professional
Services

$60,000 N

Attachments
Agreement - Mechanical Solutions, Inc. 



Page 1 of 25 
 

 
 

City Clerk Document No.     
 

City Council Meeting Date: June 24, 2021  
 
 

CITY OF CHANDLER SERVICES AGREEMENT 
VIBRATION DIAGNOSTIC SERVICES 

CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT NO. PW1-925-4350 
 
THIS AGREEMENT (Agreement) is made and entered into by and between the City of Chandler, an 
Arizona municipal corporation (City), and Mechanical Solutions, Inc., a New Jersey Corporation 
(Contractor), (City and Contractor may individually be referred to as Party and collectively referred 
to as Parties) and made       , 20    (Effective Date). 
 

RECITALS 
 
A. City proposes to provide pump and piping vibration diagnostic services as more fully described 
in Exhibit A, which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement by this reference. 
 
B. Contractor is ready, willing, and able to provide the services described in Exhibit A for the 
compensation and fees set forth and as described in Exhibit B, which is attached to and made a part 
of this Agreement by this reference. 
 
C. City desires to contract with the Contractor to provide these services under the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Agreement. 
 

AGREEMENT 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual promises contained in this 
Agreement, City and Contractor agree as follows: 
 
SECTION I: DEFINITIONS 
 
For purposes of this Agreement, the following definitions apply: 
Agreement means the legal agreement executed between the City and the Contractor  
City means the City of Chandler, Arizona 
Contractor means the individual, partnership, or corporation named in the Agreement 
Days means calendar days 
May, Should means something that is not mandatory but permissible 
Shall, Will, Must means a mandatory requirement 
 
SECTION II: CONTRACTOR’S SERVICES 
 
Contractor must perform the services described in Exhibit A to the City’s satisfaction within the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement and within the care and skill that a person who provides 
similar services in Chandler, Arizona exercises under similar conditions. All work or services 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 2 of 25 
 

furnished by Contractor under this Agreement must be performed in a skilled and workmanlike 
manner.   Unless authorized by the City in writing, all fixtures, furnishings, and equipment furnished 
by Contractor as part of the work or services under this Agreement must be new, or the latest 
model, and of the most suitable grade and quality for the intended purpose of the work or service.  
 
SECTION III: PERIOD OF SERVICE 
 
Contractor must perform the services described in Exhibit A for the term of this Agreement.  
 
Following execution of this Agreement by City, the Contractor will immediately commence work and 
will complete all services described within 120 calendar days from the date the Contractor is notified 
to proceed. 
 
SECTION lV: PAYMENT OF COMPENSATION AND FEES 
 
Unless amended in writing by the Parties, Contractor's compensation and fees as more fully 
described in Exhibit B for performance of the services approved and accepted by the City under this 
Agreement must not exceed $120,000. Contractor must submit requests for payment for services 
approved and accepted during the previous billing period and must include, as applicable, detailed 
invoices and receipts, a narrative description of the tasks accomplished during the billing period, a 
list of any deliverables submitted, and any subcontractor’s or supplier’s actual requests for payment 
plus similar narrative and listing of their work. Payment for those services negotiated as a lump sum 
will be made in accordance with the percentage of the work completed during the preceding billing 
period. Services negotiated as a not-to-exceed fee will be paid in accordance with the work 
completed on the service during the preceding month. All requests for payment must be submitted 
to the City for review and approval. The City will make payment for approved and accepted services 
within 30 days of the City’s receipt of the request for payment. Contractor bears all responsibility 
and liability for any and all tax obligations that result from Contractor’s performance under this 
Agreement.  
 
SECTION V: GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
5.1 Records/Audit. Records of the Contractor's direct personnel payroll, reimbursable expenses 
pertaining to this Agreement and records of accounts between the City and Contractor must be 
kept on the basis of generally accepted accounting principles and must be made available to the 
City and its auditors for up to three years following the City’s final acceptance of the services under 
this Agreement. The City, its authorized representative, or any federal agency, reserves the right to 
audit Contractor's records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all cost and pricing data, 
including data used to negotiate this Agreement and any amendments. The City reserves the right 
to decrease the total amount of Agreement price or payments made under this Agreement or 
request reimbursement from the Contractor following final contract payment on this Agreement if, 
upon audit of the Contractor's records, the audit discloses the Contractor has provided false, 
misleading, or inaccurate cost and pricing data. The Contractor will include a similar provision in all 
of its contracts with subcontractors providing services under the Agreement Documents to ensure 
that the City, its authorized representative, or the appropriate federal agency, has access to the 
subcontractors’ records to verify the accuracy of all cost and pricing data. The City reserves the right 
to decrease Contract price or payments made on this Agreement or request reimbursement from 
the Contractor following final payment on this Agreement if the above provision is not included in 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 3 of 25 
 

subcontractor agreements, and one or more subcontractors refuse to allow the City to audit their 
records to verify the accuracy and appropriateness of all cost and pricing data. If, following an audit 
of this Agreement, the audit discloses the Contractor has provided false, misleading, or inaccurate 
cost and pricing data, and the cost discrepancies exceed 1% of the total Agreement billings, the 
Contractor will be liable for reimbursement of the reasonable, actual cost of the audit. 
 
5.2 Alteration in Character of Work. Whenever an alteration in the character of work results in a 
substantial change in this Agreement, thereby materially increasing or decreasing the scope of 
services, cost of performance, or Project schedule, the work will be performed as directed by the 
City. However, before any modified work is started, a written amendment must be approved and 
executed by the City and the Contractor. Such amendment must not be effective until approved by 
the City. Additions to, modifications, or deletions from this Agreement as provided herein may be 
made, and the compensation to be paid to the Contractor may accordingly be adjusted by mutual 
agreement of the Parties. It is distinctly understood and agreed that no claim for extra work done 
or materials furnished by the Contractor will be allowed by the City except as provided herein, nor 
must the Contractor do any work or furnish any materials not covered by this Agreement unless 
such work is first authorized in writing. Any such work or materials furnished by the Contractor 
without prior written authorization will be at Contractor's own risk, cost, and expense, and 
Contractor hereby agrees that without written authorization Contractor will make no claim for 
compensation for such work or materials furnished. 
 
5.3 Termination for Convenience. The City and the Contractor hereby agree to the full 
performance of the covenants contained herein, except that the City reserves the right, at its 
discretion and without cause, to terminate or abandon any service provided for in this 
Agreement, or abandon any portion of the Project for which services have been performed by 
the Contractor. In the event the City abandons or suspends the services, or any part of the 
services as provided in this Agreement, the City will notify the Contractor in writing and 
immediately after receiving such notice, the Contractor must discontinue advancing the work 
specified under this Agreement. Upon such termination, abandonment, or suspension, the 
Contractor must deliver to the City all drawings, plans, specifications, special provisions, 
estimates and other work entirely or partially completed, together with all unused materials 
supplied by the City. The Contractor must appraise the work Contractor has completed and 
submit Contractor's appraisal to the City for evaluation. The City may inspect the Contractor's 
work to appraise the work completed. The Contractor will receive compensation in full for 
services performed to the date of such termination. The fee shall be paid in accordance with 
Section IV of this Agreement, and as mutually agreed upon by the Contractor and the City. If 
there is no mutual agreement on payment, the final determination will be made in accordance 
with the Disputes provision in this Agreement. However, in no event may the payment exceed 
the payment set forth in this Agreement nor as amended in accordance with Alteration in 
Character of Work. The City will make the final payment within 60 days after the Contractor has 
delivered the last of the partially completed items and the Parties agree on the final payment. 
If the City is found to have improperly terminated the Agreement for cause or default, the 
termination will be converted to a termination for convenience in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement. 

5.4 Termination for Cause. The City may terminate this Agreement for Cause upon the occurrence 
of any one or more of the following events: in the event that (a) the Contractor fails to perform 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, (b) the Contractor is adjudged a bankrupt or insolvent, (c) 
the Contractor makes a general assignment for the benefit of creditors, (d) a trustee or receiver is 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 4 of 25 
 

appointed for Contractor or for any of Contractor’s property (e) the Contractor files a petition to 
take advantage of any debtor's act, or to reorganize under the bankruptcy or similar laws, (f) the 
Contractor disregards laws, ordinances, rules, regulations or orders of any public body having 
jurisdiction, or (g) the Contractor fails to cure default within the time requested. Where Agreement 
has been so terminated by City, the termination will not affect any rights of City against Contractor 
then existing or which may thereafter accrue. 
 
5.5 Indemnification. The Contractor (lndemnitor) must indemnify, defend, save and hold 
harmless the City and its officers, officials, agents and employees (lndemnitee) from any and 
all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses or expenses (including court costs, attorneys' fees 
and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation) (Claims) caused or alleged to be 
caused, in whole or in part, by the wrongful, negligent or willful acts, or errors or omissions of 
the Contractor or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees, or subcontractors in 
connection with this Agreement. This indemnity includes any claim or amount arising out of or 
recovered under workers' compensation law or on account of the failure of the Contractor to 
conform to any federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, regulation or court decree. 
The Contractor must indemnify lndemnitee from and against any and all Claims, except those 
arising solely from lndemnitee's own negligent or willful acts or omissions. The Contractor is 
responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this 
indemnification applies. In consideration of the award of this Agreement, the Contractor agrees 
to waive all rights of subrogation against lndemnitee for losses arising from or related to this 
Agreement. The obligations of the Contractor under this provision survive the termination or 
expiration of this Agreement. 
 
5.6 Insurance Requirements. Contractor must procure insurance under the terms and 
conditions and for the amounts of coverage set forth in Exhibit C against claims that may arise 
from or relate to performance of the work under this Agreement by Contractor and its agents, 
representatives, employees, and subcontractors. Contractor and any subcontractors must 
maintain this insurance until all of their obligations have been discharged, including any 
warranty periods under this Agreement. These insurance requirements are minimum 
requirements for this Agreement and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this 
Agreement. The City in no way warrants that the minimum limits stated in Exhibit C are 
sufficient to protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of 
the work under this Agreement by the Contractor, the Contractor’s agents, representatives, 
employees, or subcontractors. Contractor is free to purchase such additional insurance as may 
be determined necessary. 
 
5.7 Cooperation and Further Documentation. The Contractor agrees to provide the City such 
other duly executed documents as may be reasonably requested by the City to implement the 
intent of this Agreement. 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 5 of 25 

5.8 Notices. Unless otherwise provided, notice under this Agreement must be in writing and 
will be deemed to have been duly given and received either (a) on the date of service if 
personally served on the party to whom notice is to be given, or (b) on the date notice is sent if 
by electronic mail, or (c) on the third day after the date of the postmark of deposit by first class 
United States mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid and properly addressed as follows: 

For the City For the Contractor 
Name:       Raquel McMahon     Name:    Karen Rizzi      
Title:      Procurement Officer        Title:   CFO/General Manager        
Address:    175 S. Arizona Ave.  Address:    11 Apollo Drive      

 Chandler, AZ 85298       Whippany, NJ 07981   
Phone:    480-782-2407       
Email:   raquel.mcmahon@chandleraz.gov 

Phone:  973-326-9920        
Email: Karen.Rizzi@mechsol.com    

5.9 Successors and Assigns. City and Contractor each bind itself, its partners, successors, 
assigns, and legal representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, assigns, and legal representatives of such other party in respect to all covenants of 
this Agreement. Neither the City nor the Contractor may assign, sublet, or transfer its interest 
in this Agreement without the written consent of the other party. In no event may any 
contractual relation be created between any third party and the City. 

5.10 Disputes. In any dispute arising out of an interpretation of this Agreement or the duties 
required not disposed of by agreement between the Contractor and the City, the final 
determination at the administrative level will be made by the City Purchasing and Materials 
Manager. 

5.11 Completeness and Accuracy of Contractor's Work. The Contractor must be responsible for 
the completeness and accuracy of Contractor's services, data, and other work prepared or 
compiled under Contractor's obligation under this Agreement and must correct, at Contractor's 
expense, all willful or negligent errors, omissions, or  acts that may be discovered. The fact that 
the City has accepted or approved the Contractor's work will in no way relieve the Contractor 
of any of Contractor's responsibilities. 

5.12 Withholding Payment. The City reserves the right to withhold funds from the Contractor's 
payments up to the amount equal to the claims the City may have against the Contractor until 
such time that a settlement on those claims has been reached. 

5.13 City's Right of Cancellation. The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is subject to 
cancellation by the City under the provisions of Section 38-511, Arizona Revised Statutes 
(A.R.S.). 

5.14 Independent Contractor. For this Agreement the Contractor constitutes an independent 
contractor. Any provisions in this Agreement that may appear to give the City the right to direct 
the Contractor as to the details of accomplishing the work or to exercise a measure of control 
over the work means that the Contractor must follow the wishes of the City as to the results of 
the work only. These results must comply with all applicable laws and ordinances. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 6 of 25 
 

5.15 Project Staffing. Prior to the start of any work under this Agreement, the Contractor must 
assign to the City the key personnel that will be involved in performing services prescribed in 
the Agreement. The City may acknowledge its acceptance of such personnel to perform 
services under this Agreement. At any time hereafter that the Contractor desires to change key 
personnel while performing under the Agreement, the Contractor must submit the 
qualifications of the new personnel to the City for prior approval. The Contractor will maintain 
an adequate and competent staff of qualified persons, as may be determined by the City, 
throughout the performance of this Agreement to ensure acceptable and timely completion of 
the Scope of Services. If the City objects, with reasonable cause, to any of the Contractor's staff, 
the Contractor must take prompt corrective action acceptable to the City and, if required, 
remove such personnel from the Project and replace with new personnel agreed to by the City. 
 
5.16 Subcontractors. Prior to beginning the work, the Contractor must furnish the City for 
approval the names of subcontractors to be used under this Agreement. Any subsequent 
changes are subject to the City’s written prior approval. 
 
5.17 Force Majeure. If either party is delayed or prevented from the performance of any act 
required under this Agreement by reason of acts of God or other cause beyond the control and 
without fault of the Party (financial inability excepted), performance of that act may be excused, 
but only for the period of the delay, if the Party provides written notice to the other Party within 
ten days of such act. The time for performance of the act may be extended for a period 
equivalent to the period of delay from the date written notice is received by the other Party. 
 

5.18 Compliance with Laws. Contractor understands, acknowledges, and agrees to comply with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 and the 
Drug Free Workplace Act of 1989. All services performed by Contractor must also comply with 
all applicable City of Chandler codes, ordinances, and requirements. Contractor agrees to 
permit the City to verify Contractor’s compliance. 
 
5.19 No Israel Boycott. By entering into this Agreement, Contractor certifies that Contractor is 
not currently engaged in, and agrees for the duration of the Agreement, not to engage in a 
boycott of Israel as defined by state statute. 
 
5.20 Legal Worker Requirements. A.R.S. § 41-4401 prohibits the City from awarding a contract 
to any contractor who fails, or whose subcontractors fail, to comply with A.R.S. § 23-214(A). 
Therefore, Contractor agrees Contractor and each subcontractor it uses warrants their 
compliance with all federal immigration laws and regulations that relate to their employees 
and their compliance with§ 23-214, subsection A. A breach of this warranty will be deemed a 
material breach of the Agreement and may be subject to penalties up to and including 
termination of the Agreement. City retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any 
Contractor’s or subcontractor’s employee who provides services under this Agreement to 
ensure that the Contractor and subcontractors comply with the warranty under this provision. 
 

5.21 Lawful Presence Requirement. A.RS. §§ 1-501 and 1-502 prohibit the City from awarding a 
contract to any natural person who cannot establish that such person is lawfully present in the 
United States. To establish lawful presence, a person must produce qualifying identification 
and sign a City-provided affidavit affirming that the identification provided is genuine. This 
requirement will be imposed at the time of contract award. This requirement does not apply 
to business organizations such as corporations, partnerships, or limited liability companies. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 7 of 25 
 

 
5.22 Covenant Against Contingent Fees. Contractor warrants that no person has been 
employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an agreement or understanding 
for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, and that no member of the 
Chandler City Council, or any City employee has any interest, financially, or otherwise, in 
Contractor’s firm. For breach or violation of this warrant, the City may annul this Agreement 
without liability or, at its discretion, to deduct from the Agreement price or consideration, the 
full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. 
 
5.23 Non-Waiver Provision. The failure of either Party to enforce any of the provisions of this 
Agreement or to require performance of the other Party of any of the provisions hereof must 
not be construed to be a waiver of such provisions, nor must it affect the validity of this 
Agreement or any part thereof, or the right of either Party to thereafter enforce each and every 
provision. 
 
5.24 Disclosure of Information Adverse to the City’s Interests. To evaluate and avoid potential 
conflicts of interest, the Contractor must provide written notice to the City, as set forth in this 
Section, of any work or services performed by the Contractor for third parties that may involve 
or be associated with any real property or personal property owned or leased by the City. Such 
notice must be given seven business days prior to commencement of the services by the 
Contractor for a third party, or seven business days prior to an adverse action as defined below. 
Written notice and disclosure must be sent to the City’s Purchasing and Materials Manager. An 
adverse action under this Agreement includes, but is not limited to: (a) using data as defined in 
the Agreement acquired in connection with this Agreement to assist a third party in pursuing 
administrative or judicial action against the City; or (b) testifying or providing evidence on behalf 
of any person in connection with an administrative or judicial action against the City; or (c) using 
data to produce income for the Contractor or its employees independently of performing the 
services under this Agreement, without the prior written consent of the City. Contractor 
represents that except for those persons, entities, and projects identified to the City, the 
services performed by the Contractor under this Agreement are not expected to create an 
interest with any person, entity, or third party project that is or may be adverse to the City’s 
interests. Contractor's failure to provide a written notice and disclosure of the information as 
set forth in this Section constitute a material breach of this Agreement. 
 
5.25 Data Confidentiality and Data Security. As used in the Agreement, data means all 
information, whether written or verbal, including plans, photographs, studies, investigations, audits, 
analyses, samples, reports, calculations, internal memos, meeting minutes, data field notes, work 
product, proposals, correspondence and any other similar documents or information prepared by, 
obtained by, or transmitted to the Contractor or its subcontractors in the performance of this 
Agreement. The Parties agree that all data, regardless of form, including originals, images, and 
reproductions, prepared by, obtained by, or transmitted to the Contractor or its subcontractors in 
connection with the Contractor's or its subcontractor’s performance of this Agreement is 
confidential and proprietary information belonging to the City. Except as specifically provided in this 
Agreement, Contractor or its subcontractors must not divulge data to any third party without the 
City’s prior written consent. Contractor or its subcontractors must not use the data for any purposes 
except to perform the services required under this Agreement. These prohibitions do not apply to 
the following data provided to the Contractor or its subcontractors have first given the required 
notice to the City: (a) data which was known to the Contractor or its subcontractors prior to its 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 8 of 25 
 

performance under this Agreement unless such data was acquired in connection with work 
performed for the City; or (b) data which was acquired by the Contractor or its subcontractors in its 
performance under this Agreement and which was disclosed to the Contractor or its subcontractors 
by a third party, who to the best of the Contractor's or its subcontractors knowledge and belief, had 
the legal right to make such disclosure and the Contractor or its subcontractors are not otherwise 
required to hold such data in confidence; or (c) data which is required to be disclosed by virtue of 
law, regulation, or court order, to which the Contractor or its subcontractors are subject. In the event 
the Contractor or its subcontractors are required or requested to disclose data to a third party, or 
any other information to which the Contractor or its subcontractors became privy as a result of any 
other contract with the City, the Contractor must first notify the City as set forth in this Section of 
the request or demand for the data. The Contractor or its subcontractors must give the City 
sufficient facts so that the City can be given an opportunity to first give its consent or take such 
action that the City may deem appropriate to protect such data or other information from 
disclosure. Unless prohibited by law, within ten calendar days after completion or termination of 
services under this Agreement, the Contractor or its subcontractors must promptly deliver, as set 
forth in this Section, a copy of all data to the City. All data must continue to be subject to the 
confidentiality agreements of this Agreement. Contractor or its subcontractors assume all liability 
to maintain the confidentiality of the data in its possession and agrees to compensate the City if any 
of the provisions of this Section are violated by the Contractor, its employees, agents or 
subcontractors. Solely for the purposes of seeking injunctive relief, it is agreed that a breach of this 
Section must be deemed to cause irreparable harm that justifies injunctive relief in court. Contractor 
agrees that the requirements of this Section must be incorporated into all subcontracts entered 
into by Contractor. A violation of this Section may result in immediate termination of this Agreement 
without notice. 
 
5.26 Personal Identifying Information-Data Security. Personal identifying information, financial 
account information, or restricted City information, whether electronic format or hard copy, 
must be secured and protected at all times by Contractor and any of its subcontractors. At a 
minimum, Contractor must encrypt or password-protect electronic files. This includes data 
saved to laptop computers, computerized devices, or removable storage devices. When 
personal identifying information, financial account information, or restricted City information, 
regardless of its format, is no longer necessary, the information must be redacted or destroyed 
through appropriate and secure methods that ensure the information cannot be viewed, 
accessed, or reconstructed. In the event that data collected or obtained by Contractor or its 
subcontractors in connection with this Agreement is believed to have been compromised, 
Contractor or its subcontractors must immediately notify the City contact. Contractor agrees 
to reimburse the City for any costs incurred by the City to investigate potential breaches of this 
data and, where applicable, the cost of notifying individuals who may be impacted by the 
breach. Contractor agrees that the requirements of this Section must be incorporated into all 
subcontracts entered into by Contractor. It is further agreed that a violation of this Section must 
be deemed to cause irreparable harm that justifies injunctive relief in court. A violation of this 
Section may result in immediate termination of this Agreement without notice. The obligations 
of Contractor or its subcontractors under this Section must survive the termination of this 
Agreement. 
 
5.27 Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement is made under, and must be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Arizona without regard to the 
conflicts or choice of law provisions thereof. Any action to enforce any provision of this 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 9 of 25 
 

Agreement or to obtain any remedy with respect hereto must be brought in the courts located 
in Maricopa County, Arizona, and for this purpose, each Party hereby expressly and irrevocably 
consents to the jurisdiction and venue of such court. 
 
5.28 Survival. All warranties, representations, and indemnifications by the Contractor must 
survive the completion or termination of this Agreement. 
 
5.29 Modification. Except as expressly provided herein to the contrary, no supplement, 
modification, or amendment of any term of this Agreement will be deemed binding or effective 
unless in writing and signed by the Parties.  
 
5.30 Severability. If any provision of this Agreement or the application to any person or 
circumstance may be invalid, illegal or unenforceable to any extent, the remainder of this 
Agreement and the application will not be affected and will be enforceable to the fullest extent 
permitted by law. 
 
5.31 Integration. This Agreement contains the full agreement of the Parties. Any prior or 
contemporaneous written or oral agreement between the Parties regarding the subject matter 
is merged and superseded. 
 
5.32 Time is of the Essence. Time of each of the terms, covenants, and conditions of this 
Agreement is hereby expressly made of the essence. 
 
5.33 Date of Performance. If the date of performance of any obligation or the last day of any 
time period provided for should fall on a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday for the City, the 
obligation will be due and owing, and the time period will expire, on the first day after which is 
not a Saturday, Sunday or legal City holiday. Except as may otherwise be set forth in this 
Agreement, any performance provided for herein will be timely made if completed no later 
than 5:00 p.m. (Chandler time) on the day of performance. 
 
5.34 Delivery.  All prices are F.O.B. Destination and include all delivery and unloading at the 
specified destinations.  The Contractor will retain title and control of all goods until they are 
delivered and accepted by the City.  All risk of transportation and all related charges will be the 
responsibility of the Contractor.  All claims for visible or concealed damage will be filed by the 
Contractor.  The City will notify the Contractor promptly of any damaged goods and will assist 
the Contractor in arranging for inspection. 
 
5.35 Third Party Beneficiary. Nothing under this Agreement will be construed to give any rights 
or benefits in the Agreement to anyone other than the City and the Contractor, and all duties 
and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole and exclusive 
benefit of City and the Contractor and not for the benefit of any other party. 
 
5.36 Conflict in Language. All work performed must conform to all applicable City of Chandler 
codes, ordinances, and requirements as outlined in this Agreement. If there is a conflict in 
interpretation between provisions in this Agreement and those in the Exhibits, the provisions 
in this Agreement prevail. 
 
5.37 Document/Information Release. Documents and materials released to the Contractor, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 10 of 25 
 

which are identified by the City as sensitive and confidential, are the City’s property. The 
document/material must be issued by and returned to the City upon completion of the services 
under this Agreement. Contractor’s secondary distribution, disclosure, copying, or duplication 
in any manner is prohibited without the City’s prior written approval. The document/material 
must be kept secure at all times. This directive applies to all City documents, whether in 
photographic, printed, or electronic data format.  
 
5.38 Exhibits. The following exhibits are made a part of this Agreement and are incorporated 
by reference: 
 
Exhibit A - Project Description/Scope of Services 
Exhibit B - Compensation and Fees 
Exhibit C - Insurance Requirements 
Exhibit D - Special Conditions  

 
5.39 Special Conditions. As part of the services Contractor provides under this Agreement, 
Contractor agrees to comply with and fully perform the special terms and conditions set forth 
in Exhibit D, which is attached to and made a part of this Agreement. 
 
5.40 Cooperative Use of Agreement.  In addition to the City of Chandler and with approval of 
the Contractor, this Agreement may be extended for use by other municipalities, school 
districts and government agencies of the State.  Any such usage by other entities must be in 
accordance with the ordinance, charter and/or procurement rules and regulations of the 
respective political entity. 
 
If required to provide services on a school district property at least five times during a month, 
the Contractor will submit a full set of fingerprints to the school of each person or employee 
who may provide such service.  The District will conduct a fingerprint check in accordance with 
A.R.S. 41-1750 and Public Law 92-544 of all Contractors, subcontractors or vendors and their 
employees for which fingerprints are submitted to the District. Additionally, the Contractor will 
comply with the governing body fingerprinting policies of each individual school district/public 
entity.  The Contractor, sub-contractors, vendors and their employees will not provide services 
on school district properties until authorized by the District. 
  
Orders placed by other agencies and payment thereof will be the sole responsibility of that 
agency.  The City will not be responsible for any disputes arising out of transactions made by 
other agencies who utilize this Agreement. 
 
5.41 Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment Laws. Contractor must comply with all 
applicable City, state, and federal non-discrimination and anti-harassment laws, rules, and 
regulations. 
 
5.42 Licenses and Permits. Beginning with the Effective Date and for the full term of this 
Agreement, Contractor must maintain all applicable City, state, and federal licenses and 
permits required to fully perform Contractor’s services under this Agreement. 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3

CFO/General Manager



Page 12 of 25 
 

 
EXHIBIT A TO AGREEMENT 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 

 
CONTRACTOR’S OBLIGATIONS 
 

Contractor, Mechanical Solutions., Inc. (MSI), will provide City of Chandler Public Works 
Department with services to troubleshoot and determine the root cause of the high vibration 
issues on four permeate pumps and piping at Ocotillo Water Reclamation Facility (OWRF) and 
seven vertical turbine pumps (VTP) at the Airport Water Reclamation Facility (AWRF) via 
specialized testing. Contractor will recommend a practical solution based on the proposed field 
test and in-office analysis results. This step may be augmented with an optional Finite Element 
Analysis (FEA) if needed. MSI will then support solution implementation. 

 
While MSI was performing post-modification acceptance testing on the raw water VTP’s at the 
Pecos SWTP station in March of 2021, it was requested to perform a preliminary vibration 
evaluation on four permeate pumps at Ocotillo WRF, which were reported to have high 
vibration, especially when operating in back pulse mode. The vibration affects the motor, pump, 
connected piping, and piping support structure, as observed while using MSI’s VibVue® motion 
magnification system (Figure 1). Pump seal 1 has been wearing out more quickly. Also, issues 
with cracking or breaking small bore piping and piping supports have been reported. The 
vibration has also resulted in concrete damage, requiring re-grouting around the pump and 
motor baseplate and piping support connections. The permeate pumps are rotary lobe type 
pumps with 3 lobes, and are driven by a 50 HP, 1780 rpm motor, through a 3.91:1 speed 
reducing gear box. 

 
In addition to the Ocotillo permeate pumps, MSI obtained preliminary data on VTP’s at AWRF. 
Seven of the eight VTP’s are experiencing high vibration. Plant personnel have determined 
natural frequencies between 17.25 Hz and 18.25 Hz. The peak operating speed of the pump is 
approximately 19.75 Hz (1185 rpm), and the pumps are variable speed, controlled by a VFD. 
MSI’s preliminary impact testing revealed natural frequencies from 17 Hz to 19 Hz on Pumps 5 
and 7. Vibration measurements also exceeded Hydraulic Institute specification 9.6.4 limits. 

 
MSI is recommending a well-practiced approach focused on yielding a data driven and practical 
solution. The plan includes the following key features: 

 

a. The test data analysis will initially reveal if the advanced seal wear and piping failures are 
due to a forced response issue, a structural resonance issue, an acoustic natural 
frequency, or a combination of issues. 

 
b. All MSI test data will be measured and recorded simultaneously and time-stamped. This 

is particularly important when trying to uncover a failure mode (or combinations) that 
periodically occurs during transient conditions or is only present during random 
operating conditions. 

 

c. A series of specialized on-site tests is used to determine the pump system natural 
frequencies and associated damping along with system motion, looseness, and 
deflection including: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 13 of 25 
 

 
 The VibVue® high speed video camera and related software will be used to 

magnify the motion the pump system to better visualize the actual deflection, 
vibration, and deformation of select portions of pump systems in slow motion. 

 
 Operating Deflection Shape (ODS), Experimental Modal Analysis (i.e., impact 

testing) while the pump is operating, and proximity probe measurements are 
proven specialized problem-solving techniques. 

 
 The test measurements will include the accessible areas of the pumps. It is noted 

that some below ground portions of the VTP’s may not be accessible, and that 
some portions of the piping may not be accessible on the permeate pumps. 

 
 Dynamic pressure testing on the permeate pumps suction and discharge piping 

to determine if there is excessive pulsation or amplification of the dynamic 
pressure due to acoustic resonance in the piping. 

 
 Optional Task 8 adds below ground measurements on the VTP’s. Please note that 

a submersible accelerometer with integral 50 foot cable will continue to function 
for months (maybe years). The pressure transducer can remain installed but will 
only function for days. 

 
Note: The proposed plan is to perform the detailed testing on one each type of the 
pumps with comparison data collected on the remaining installed pumps. 

 
d. Once the problem source is identified, the solution can be formulated. In many cases, 

MSI in collaboration with the engineering firm, repair facility, and plant personnel are 
able to recommend and justify a practical solution based on the test and data analysis 
results. 

 
In other cases, some level of FEA is required to model, evaluate, and “test” solutions 
before down-selecting to the preferred solution. 

 
MSI is proposing our standard problem-solving approach for high-value pump systems, and MSI 
is typically involved in more difficult/ challenging problems. MSI believes that the impact on 
plant reliability and the problem history requires a comprehensive data driven problem-solving 
approach, not simply more data collection.  

 
Phase I: Specialized Field Vibration Testing Ocotillo Permeate Pumps 
1. History review, preparation, and travel: MSI has reviewed data and information gathered from 

its March 2021 initial vibration survey, along with drawings from the permeate pump 
manufacturer, in order to prepare this proposal. Additional review by MSI, and a 
teleconference with City of Chandler personnel will take place under this task so that all test 
plan details are finalized. Water availability for the required testing will be discussed. 

 
MSI will prepare all the hardware needed to perform the planned testing. This includes all 
temporarily installed triaxial accelerometers, proximity probes, 32-channel MSI Sentry® 
and/or a 17-channnel B&K signal analysis equipment, instrumented impact hammer, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 14 of 25 
 

VibVue® motion amplified video hardware/software, and data storage computers (Figure 
2). 

 
An MSI Project Engineer and a Senior Technical Specialist or Engineering Associate will travel 
from MSI offices in Whippany, NJ via Newark Airport (EWR) to the plant via the Phoenix 
Airport. 

Figure 2. Typical equipment needed for Operating Deflection 
Shape (ODS) testing and experimental modal analysis (impact 
testing) includes: the laptop computer with the data analysis 
software installed, analyzer with appropriate channel count, 
associated cables, the required number of above tri-axial 
accelerometers and uni-axial accelerometers, and an 
instrumented impact hammer. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

2. On-site test setup: Onsite test set up will begin on the morning of Day 1. MSI will visually 
inspect the pump, motor, baseplate, piping, and foundation, and take physical 
measurements and digital photos. The temporary sensors will be installed by MSI and  
the equipment can be operational during test set up. MSI will need AC power and support 
from plant personnel for pump operation while onsite to complete the testing effort. 

 
3. Structural Assessment via VibVue® Vibration Amplified Video Testing – pump operating: The 

VibVue® high speed video camera and related software will be used to magnify the motion 
of the video allowing engineers (and managers) to better visualize the actual deflection, 
vibration, and deformation of select portions of the pump system in slow motion. Limited 
video data has already been taken of the pumps and piping, but more will be taken as 
necessary. More information about this unique test methodology is available at 
https://www.mechsol.com/products/vibvue. Figure 1 is a still image from VibVue® video of 
the permeate pump, captured during MSI’s initial survey. 

 
4. Experimental Modal Analysis (EMA) or Impact Testing – pumps on & off): Perform impact testing 

on limited and available portions of the pump system while it is operating and not operating. 
MSI’s use of its Time Averaged Pulse (TAP™) method makes impact testing on an operating 
pump system practical, as well as the associated piping. 

A portion of the testing is performed with the pump operating so the water mass effect is 
taken into account for the casing in the resultant test data. Likewise, any motor and 
pump/piping structural stiffening/deflection and actual bearing loads are taken into 
account. MSI performs the impact test in three orthogonal directions (axially and both lateral 
directions). 

The modal test provides the operating natural frequency mode shapes and damping 
information for the rotating system and the structure. The mode shapes of the relevant 
excited natural frequencies will be evaluated as Frequency Response Function (FRF) plots by 
MSI personnel back at MSI’s facilities. 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 15 of 25 
 

5. Operating Deflection Shape (ODS) testing –pump operating: The results from Tasks 3 will help 
focus the ODS testing task. MSI will perform operating forced response testing on the motor, 
baseplate/ foundation, discharge head (for VTP’s), and nearby discharge piping while the 
pump operates, using tri-axial accelerometers which measure vibration in three orthogonal 
directions and high frequency single axis accelerometers. Measurements will be taken at 
representative key locations (up to 300) on the system. 

 
MSI will record vibration displacement vs. frequency spectra, and digitally record the same 
data vs. time for a reasonable time interval (approximately one minute at each location). 
This natural excitation signature testing (with point-to-point phase information) will be done 
such that one of the 32-channel FFT analyzer channels is always kept at the same location 
and direction, for phase reference, such that the data can stored as an operating deflection 
shape (ODS). 

 
This shape will be plotted, animated, and analyzed later by MSI personnel, back at MSI’s 
facilities under Task 9. Figure 4 is a still frame ODS animation from a past vertical pump 

problem-solving project involving a discharge head located below the foundation. 
 

Note: Due to the operating conditions, the ODS on the permeate pumps may have to be 
performed using many accelerometers that simultaneously record the data. This provides 
similar results as the above method that will be used for the VTP’s, but requires many more 
accelerometers and channels of data. 

 
6. Dynamic pressure testing (Permeate pump only) – pump operating: Determine pressure 

pulsations at the suction and discharge using high frequency piezo dynamic pressure 
transducers (Figure 5). This testing will help to determine if there is acoustic resonance that 
is amplifying the dynamic pressure of the pump. 

 
Phase II: Specialized Field Vibration Testing AWRF VTP’s 

7. Field vibration testing of the 7 VTP’s at the AWRF: MSI will repeat tasks 1 through 4 on 7 of the 
VTP’s at the AWRF. Additionally, task 5, the operating deflection shape testing, will be 
performed on at least one of the seven VTP’s. 

 
8. Optional below-ground vibration and pressure data measurements: MSI will collect vibration 

data and pressure data from a submersible tri-axial accelerometer (Figure 6) and a pressure 
transducer mounted on the suction bell, if the instrumentation is mounted by plant 
personnel prior to MSI’s arrival. The data will help diagnose and solve the problem if it is 
either a) a below-ground resonance problem and/or b) an issue with the flow entering the 
suction below. The data will be analyzed and used under Task 10. 

 
Phase III: Test data preparation, analysis, and reporting with recommendations 

9. Test data analysis and reporting with specific recommendations: MSI will use the test results to 
identify the specific nature of the problems on a best effort basis and recommend how to 
effectively resolve the problem. MSI will write a clear and concise technical report that will 
document the testing and analysis which MSI performed. 

 
The report will enable the City of Chandler to follow what was done, what the relevant results 
were, and recommendations for solving the problem. MSI will prepare both static plots and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 16 of 25 
 

animations of the final test results for distribution to City of Chandler with the final report. 
A report section will provide design information for recommended modification(s) 
supported by computer generated and dimensionalized sketches, if needed. 

 
Phase IV: If needed, Finite Element Analysis (FEA) Option 
10. Finite Element Analysis (FEA): Usually, MSI can provide solutions based on field data and using 

the ME’Scope software. However, depending on the results of the above ODS and modal 
analysis it may be preferable for MSI to use Finite Element Analysis (FEA) to design and 
analyze a recommended solution. This will be discussed with the customer early in Task 9. 

FEA can be used to analyze and finalize a structural modification to correct a structural 
resonance. If needed, this optional task consists of constructing a structural modal analysis 
model of the pump, nearby foundation, and nearby piping using MSI field measurements 
and any repair vendor measurements. MSI uses ANSYS or Pro/Mechanical FEA. 

 
Initially, the FEA model will be calibrated with the ODS model (structural) that is based on 
the field data. Next, potential solutions are analyzed and refined. The FEA work is only far 
enough to design a solution that will work for all seven pumps. 

 
If this option is needed, the FEA work will include two iterations to the support 
structure achieve the desired separation margin between running speed and the 
offending natural frequency. The Task 9 report will be amended with the FEA results 
and will include the details for the specific modifications needed to solve the problem. 
The FEA report amendment will reference key plots and tabulated FEA results. 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 17 of 25 
 

Figure 4. Static image of an ODS animation of a vertical pump system. 
ODS animation overlay test data on an MSI prepared 3D solid model. When 
animated looseness, deflections, and natural frequencies can be viewed to 
identify problems with more certain so a fix can be recommended with more 
confidence. 

 
 

Figure 5: Dynamic pressure testing is performed if pressure 
pulsations/ acoustic natural frequencies are a possible root 
cause of, or contributor to, the problem. These will only be 
used on the permeate pumps. 

 
 
 
 

Figure 6 – Optionally a submersible triaxial 
accelerometer with an integral cable mounted at the 
suction bell helps characterize and resolve below-
ground structural resonance issues. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Personnel: 

Maki Onari, Vice President, will be assigned as the overall project manager responsible for 
successful completion of this project. He will be supported by a several engineers and 
technicians from among MSI 35-person staff. A Project Engineer III and a Senior Technical 
Specialist or second Project Engineer will be the performing the on-site testing and test data 
analysis. Paul Boyadjis, Director of Structural Analysis, will be involved in the optional Task 5 
(FEA) effort. Oversight will be provided by William D. Marscher, P.E., Technical Director, who has 
over 45 years of experience pump experience. A companion document provides background 
information about the qualifications of the company and its staff.  

 
About the Company: 
MSI is an engineering design, development, and analysis company specializing in rotating 
machinery and related systems with a particular focus on pumping/piping systems. MSI's activities 

include specialized vibration analysis and testing, stress analysis & testing, advanced 
mechanical component development, heat transfer and fluid flow analysis, and fluid dynamic 
component development. MSI engineers are recognized experts in their various fields. MSI staff 
have authored or co-authored the vibration chapter of Sank’s Pumping Station Design 
Handbook; “Centrifugal Pump Design & Performance”, published by Oxford University Press; 

and “Centrifugal Pump Mechanical Behavior and Vibration” chapter in the 4th edition of the 
Pump Handbook (McGraw Hill, 2008). MSI is a Standards Partner with the Hydraulic Institute 
and the Vice-Chair of the Vibration committee. 

 
On a regular basis MSI is contracted by users of high value pumps, engineering firms, 
manufacturers, and to resolve problems, analyze component or system stress and vibration, 
analyze flow fields, develop advanced components or complete machines, apply or develop 
specialty software, and perform machinery testing on test stands and operating in the field.  

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 18 of 25 
 

Schedule: 
 

MSI will work with Carollo Engineers to meet schedule requirements. The following is a 
tentative schedule for Tasks 2 and 3 (on-site testing): 

 Day 1 (Monday) – Travel to a hotel near the job site 
 Day 2 (Tuesday) – On-site at Ocotillo for up to 10 hours to complete Task 2 (set up) and 

start Task 3. 
 Day 3 (Wednesday) – On-site at Ocotillo for up to 10 hours to continue with Task 3 

through Task 6. 
 Day 4 (Thursday) – On-site at Ocotillo for up to 5 hours to complete permeate pump 

testing. On-site at AWRF for up to 5 hours to start Task 7. 
 Day 5 (Friday) – On-site at AWRF for up to 10 hours to complete Task 7. 
 Day 6 (Saturday) – Travel home. 

 
The Task 9 (Phase III) effort will take up to 10 to 15 additional working days after the last day on- 
site. Preliminary conclusions and input will be provided via email shortly after the testing 
concludes on a provisional basis. If it is needed the optional Task 10 FEA work could add 10 to 
15 additional days after receiving all the drawings required to build the computer solids models. 

 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 19 of 25 
 

EXHIBIT B TO AGREEMENT 
COST SUMMARY 

 
Table 1. Level of effort and estimated cost summary by phase with the optional task. 

 
Phase 

 
Phase name 

 
Tasks 

Onsite 
Time 

 
Labor 

 
Expenses 

 
Total 

 
NTE 

 

I 
Ocotillo Permeate Pump Testing 
(review, prep, travel, MMV, EMA, 
ODS, Dynamic Pressure) 

 

1 to 6 

2 people, 
up to 25 

hours over 
2.5 days 

 

$16,510 

 

$2,760 

 

$19,270 

 

$19,800 

 
 

II 

 
AWRF vibration testing of 7 VTPs 
(review, prep, MMV, EMA, ODS) 

 
 

7 

2 people, 
up to 15 

hours over 
1.5 days 

 
 

$6,700 

 
 

$1,300 

 
 

$8,000 

 
 

$8,500 

II 
Optional Below Ground 
Accelerometer Data for 1 VTP 

8 
 

$1,500 $0 $1,500 $1,500 

III Test data analysis and reporting 9  $13,500 $0 $13,500 $14,000 
        

 
 

IV 

 

Finite Element Analysis of AWRF 
VTP's 

 
 

10 

 
The need will be known during Task 9. If needed, MSI 

will quote the work which has a budgeted to cost 
between $10,000 to $13,000. 

* Hourly rates include MSI usage of the specialized test hardware and sensors for the onsite 
testing, and the analysis software needed. 

Work will be billed as follows:  

a) Salaries & Wages: All work under this agreement will be charged at standard hourly rates 
charged to MSI standard industrial customers. In the event of travel, travel hours are billed 
at full rate. Standard rates may change without notice, typically as of January 1 of each 
New Year. 

b) Materials and Services necessary to the project, and purchased outside of MSI. 
c) Travel and other out-of-pocket expenses (air, meals, lodging, rentals, etc.) 
d) A handling charge of 8% on items b and c. 

 

The M&S expenses are for travel and living expenses for the two personnel who will work on-site. 
The estimate is based on travel and testing for Phase I is based on the travel and on-site testing 
taking place on four consecutive weekdays. 

 
A daily rate will apply if test personnel encounter on-site non-productive dwell time for factors 
outside their control. The estimated daily rate including additional living expenses for the two- 
person team totals $3,700USD for 8 hour weekdays. The pricing offered is valid for work 
completed per the schedule indicated. 

 
The MSI Senior Technical Specialist or Engineering Associate is an hourly person any time over 
8 hours per weekday or on Saturdays will be charged at time-and-a-half, and any required 
Sunday work at double-time. Expected weekday overtime is included in the NTE estimate. Work 
will generally be billed in the month it takes place with net 30 payment terms. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 20 of 25 
 

EXHIBIT C TO AGREEMENT 
INSURANCE 

INSURANCE  
 

General. 
 

A. At the same time as execution of this Agreement, the Contractor shall furnish the 
City a certificate of insurance on a standard insurance industry ACORD form.  The 
ACORD form must be issued by an insurance company authorized to transact 
business in the State of Arizona possessing a current A.M. Best, Inc. rating of A-7, or 
better and legally authorized to do business in the State of Arizona with policies and 
forms satisfactory to City.  Provided, however, the A.M. Best rating requirement 
shall not be deemed to apply to required Workers’ Compensation coverage.  

 
B. The Contractor and any of its subcontractors shall procure and maintain, until all of 

their obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this 
Agreement are satisfied, the insurances set forth below. 

 
C. The insurance requirements set forth below are minimum requirements for this 

Agreement and in no way limit the indemnity covenants contained in this 
Agreement. 

 
D. The City in no way warrants that the minimum insurance limits contained in this 

Agreement are sufficient to protect Contractor from liabilities that might arise out 
of the performance of the Agreement services under this Agreement by Contractor, 
its agents, representatives, employees, subcontractors, and the Contractor is free 
to purchase any additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 

 
E. Failure to demand evidence of full compliance with the insurance requirements in 

this Agreement or failure to identify any insurance deficiency will not relieve the 
Contractor from, nor will it be considered a waiver of its obligation to maintain the 
required insurance at all times during the performance of this Agreement. 

 
F. Use of Subcontractors:  If any work is subcontracted in any way, the Contractor shall 

execute a written contract with Subcontractor containing the same Indemnification 
Clause and Insurance Requirements as the City requires of the Contractor in this 
Agreement. The Contractor is responsible for executing the Agreement with the 
Subcontractor and obtaining Certificates of Insurance and verifying the insurance 
requirements. 

 
Minimum Scope and Limits of Insurance.  The Contractor shall provide coverage with limits of 

liability not less than those stated below. 
 

A. Commercial General Liability-Occurrence Form.  Contractor must maintain 
“occurrence” form Commercial General Liability insurance with a limit of not less 
than $1,000,000 for each occurrence, $2,000,000 aggregate.  Said insurance must 
also include coverage for products and completed operations, independent 
contractors, personal injury and advertising injury. If any Excess insurance is utilized 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 21 of 25 
 

to fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess insurance must be “follow 
form” equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying insurance. 

 
B. Automobile Liability-Any Auto or Owned, Hired and Non-Owned Vehicles 

Vehicle Liability:  Contractor must maintain Business/Automobile Liability insurance 
with a limit of $1,000,000 each accident on Contractor owned, hired, and non-
owned vehicles assigned to or used in the performance of the Contractor’s work or 
services under this Agreement.  If any Excess or Umbrella insurance is utilized to 
fulfill the requirements of this paragraph, the Excess  or Umbrella insurance must 
be “follow form” equal or broader in coverage scope than underlying insurance. 

  
C. Workers Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance:  Contractor must maintain 

Workers Compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by federal and state 
statutes having jurisdiction of Contractor employees engaged in the performance 
of work or services under this Agreement and must also maintain Employers’ 
Liability insurance of not less than $1,000,000 for each accident and $1,000,000 
disease for each employee. 

 
D. Professional Liability.  If the Agreement is the subject of any professional services or 

work performed by the Contractor, or if the Contractor engages in any professional 
services or work adjunct or residual to performing the work under this Agreement, 
the Contractor must maintain Professional Liability insurance covering errors and 
omissions arising out of the work or services performed by the Contractor, or 
anyone employed by the Contractor, or anyone whose acts, mistakes, errors and 
omissions the Contractor is legally liable, with a liability limit of $1,000,000 each 
claim and $2,000,000 all claims.  In the event the Professional Liability insurance 
policy is written on a “claims made” basis, coverage must extend for three years 
past completion and acceptance of the work or services, and the Contractor, or its 
selected Design Professional will submit Certificates of Insurance as evidence the 
required coverage is in effect.  The Design Professional must annually submit 
Certificates of Insurance citing that the applicable coverage is in force and contains 
the required provisions for a three year period. 

 
Additional Policy Provisions Required. 

 
A. Self-Insured Retentions or Deductibles.  Any self-insured retentions and deductibles must 

be declared and approved by the City.  If not approved, the City may require that the 
insurer reduce or eliminate any deductible or self-insured retentions with respect to 
the City, its officers, officials, agents, employees, and volunteers. 

 
1.  The Contractor’s insurance must contain broad form contractual liability 

coverage. 
 
2.  The Contractor's insurance coverage must be primary insurance with respect to 

the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees.  Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees 
shall be in excess of the coverage provided by the Contractor and must not 
contribute to it. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 22 of 25 
 

 
3.  The Contractor's insurance must apply separately to each insured against whom 

claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's 
liability. 

 
4.  Coverage provided by the Contractor must not be limited to the liability 

assumed under the indemnification provisions of this Agreement. 
 
5. The policies must contain a severability of interest clause and waiver of 

subrogation against the City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees, for 
losses arising from Work performed by the Contractor for the City. 

 
6.  The Contractor, its successors and or assigns, are required to maintain 

Commercial General Liability insurance as specified in this Agreement for a 
minimum period of three years following completion and acceptance of the 
Work.  The Contractor must submit a Certificate of Insurance evidencing 
Commercial General Liability insurance during this three year period containing 
all the Agreement insurance requirements, including naming the City of 
Chandler, its agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees 
as Additional Insured as required. 

 
7. If a Certificate of Insurance is submitted as verification of coverage, the City will 

reasonably rely upon the Certificate of Insurance as evidence of coverage but 
this acceptance and reliance will not waive or alter in any way the insurance 
requirements or obligations of this Agreement.   

 
B.  Insurance Cancellation During Term of Contract/Agreement.  

1. If any of the required policies expire during the life of this Contract/Agreement, 
the Contractor must forward renewal or replacement Certificates to the City 
within ten days after the renewal date containing all the required insurance 
provisions. 

2.  Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this 
Contract/Agreement shall provide the required coverage and shall not be 
suspended, voided or canceled except after 30 days prior written notice has 
been given to the City, except when cancellation is for non-payment of premium, 
then ten days prior notice may be given.  Such notice shall be sent directly to 
Chandler Law-Risk Management Department, Post Office Box 4008, Mailstop 
628, Chandler, Arizona  85225. If any insurance company refuses to provide the 
required notice, the Contractor or its insurance broker shall notify the City of 
any cancellation, suspension, non-renewal of any insurance within seven days 
of receipt of insurers’ notification to that effect.  

 
A. City as Additional Insured.  The policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, 

the following provisions: 
 

1. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies are to 
contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:  The City, its 
officers, officials, agents, and employees are additional insureds with respect to 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 23 of 25 
 

liability arising out of activities performed by, or on behalf of, the Contractor 
including the City's general supervision of the Contractor; Products and 
Completed operations of the Contractor; and automobiles owned, leased, hired, 
or borrowed by the Contractor. 

 
2.  The City, its officers, officials, agents, and employees must be additional 

insureds to the full limits of liability purchased by the Contractor even if those 
limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Agreement. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 24 of 25 
 

EXHIBIT D TO AGREEMENT 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS 

 
INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 
 
City Ownership of Project Documents. All work products (electronically or manually generated) 
including, but not limited to: plans, specifications, cost estimates, tracings, studies, design 
analyses, original drawings, Computer Aided Drafting and Design (CADD) file diskettes which 
reflect all final drawings, and other related documents which are prepared in the performance of 
this Agreement (collectively referred to as "Documents") are to be and remain the property of the 
City and are to be delivered to the City Representative before the final payment is made to the 
Contractor. In the event these Documents are altered, modified or adapted without the written 
consent of the Contractor, which consent the Contractor shall not unreasonably withhold, the City 
agrees to hold the Contractor harmless to the extent permitted by law from the legal liability 
arising out of the City's alteration, modification or adaptation of the Documents. 
 
Contractor to Retain Copyrights. The copyrights, patents, trade secrets or other intellectual 
property rights associated with the ideas, concepts, techniques, inventions, processes or works of 
authorship developed or created by the Contractor, its subcontractors or personnel, during the 
course of performing this Agreement or arising out of the Project shall belong to the Contractor. 
 
License to City for Reasonable Use. With this Agreement, the Contractor and its subcontractors 
hereby grant a license to the City, its agents, employees, and representatives for an indefinite 
period of time to reasonably use, make copies, and distribute as appropriate the Documents, 
works or deliverables developed or created as a result of the Project and this Agreement. This 
license also includes the making of derivative works. In the event that the derivative works require 
the City to alter or modify the Documents, then the provisions of this section apply. 
 
Documents to Bear Seal. The Contractor and its subcontractors shall endorse by professional seal 
all plans, works, and deliverables prepared by each for this Agreement as required by state law 
 
ACCESS TO SECURED FACILITIES 
 
Contract Worker Access Controls, Badge and Key Access Requirements. A Contract Worker shall 
not be allowed to begin work in any City facility without: (A) The prior completion and the City's 
acceptance of the required background screening; and (B) when required, the Contract Worker's 
receipt of a City issued badge. A badge will be issued to a Contract Worker solely for access to the 
City facility(s) to which the Contract Worker is assigned. Each Contract Worker who enters a City 
facility must use the badge issued to the Contract Worker. Any and all fees associated with security 
badging will be assessed in compliance with Chandler City Code §4-22. 
 
Key Access Procedures. If the Contract Worker's services require keyed access to enter a City 
facility(s), a separate key issue/return form must be completed and submitted by Contractor for 
each key issued. 
 
Stolen or Lost Badges or Keys. Contractor shall report lost or stolen badges or keys to the City 
immediately. A new badge application or key issue form shall be completed and submitted along 
with payment of the applicable fees prior to issuance of a new badge or key. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



Page 25 of 25 
 

 
Return of Badges or Keys. All badges and keys are the property of the City and must be returned 
to the City within one business day of when the Contract Worker's access to a City facility is no 
longer required to furnish the services under this Agreement. Contractor shall collect a Contract 
Worker's badge and key(s) upon the termination of the Contract Worker's employment; when the 
Contract Worker's services are no longer required at the particular City facility(s); or upon 
termination, cancellation or expiration of this Agreement. 
 
Contractor's default under this Section shall include, but is not limited to the following: (1) Contract 
Worker gains access to a City facility(s) without the proper badge or key; (2) Contract Worker uses 
a badge or key of another to gain access to a City facility; (3) Contract Worker commences services 
under this Agreement without the proper badge, key or Background Screening; (4) Contract 
Worker or Contractor submits false information or negligently submits wrong information to the 
City to obtain a badge, key or applicable Background Screening; or (5) Contractor fails to collect 
and timely return Contract Worker's badge or key upon termination of Contract Worker's 
employment, reassignment of Contract Worker to another City facility or upon the expiration, 
cancellation or termination of this Agreement. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the 
access control, badge and key requirements in this Section are necessary to preserve and protect 
public health, safety and welfare. Accordingly, Contractor agrees to properly cure any default 
under this Section within three business days from the date notice of default is sent by the City. 
The parties agree that Contractor's failure to properly cure any default under this Section shall 
constitute a breach of this Section. In addition to any other remedy available to the City at law or 
in equity, Contractor shall be liable for and shall pay to the City the sum of $1,000.00 for each 
breach by Contractor of this Section. The parties further agree that the sum fixed above is 
reasonable and approximates the actual or anticipated loss to the City at the time and making of 
this Agreement in the event that Contractor breaches this Section. Further, the parties expressly 
acknowledge and agree to the fixed sum set forth above because of the difficulty of proving the 
City's actual damages in the event that Contractor breaches this Section. The parties further agree 
that three breaches by Contractor of this Section arising out of any default within a consecutive 
period of three months or three breaches by Contractor of this Section arising out of the same 
default within a period of 12 consecutive months shall constitute a material breach of this 
Agreement by Contractor and the City expressly reserves all of its rights, remedies and interests 
under this Agreement, at law and in equity including, but not limited to, termination of this 
Agreement. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A8D86BB9-AF1E-4887-BDFC-4ED042DE1DD3



ITEM  35 

City Council Memorandum      Public Works & Utilities  Memo No. UA21-055
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager

Debra Stapleton, Assistant City Manager 
John Knudson, Public Works and Utilities Director

From: Paul Roy, Utility Operations Manager
Subject: Agreement No. MU0-962-4219, Amendment No. 1, with Cartright's Drain Service, Inc.; PM Plumbing

and Mechanical, Inc.; RKS Plumbing and Mechanical, Inc.; and TALIS Construction Corporation, for
Plumbing Services

Proposed Motion:
Move City Council approve Agreement No. MU0-962-4219, Amendment No. 1, with Cartright's Drain
Service, Inc.; PM Plumbing and Mechanical, Inc.; RKS Plumbing and Mechanical, Inc.; and TALIS
Construction Corporation, for plumbing services, increasing the combined contract limit by $500,000 for
a revised contract amount not to exceed $1,000,000, for the existing term ending October 31, 2021.

Background/Discussion:
The Wastewater Collection Division maintains and repairs all City-owned sewer mains, as well as
crushed or damaged sewer laterals located in the public right-of-way. On average, 72 sewer service
repairs are required annually. 

To provide prompt and efficient service, it was determined the most cost-effective way to repair lateral
and main lines is to engage a plumbing contractor. Within 48 hours of notification, the plumbing
contractor excavates the area, repairs the damaged line, and restores the landscaping to its original
condition. The cost of these repairs has tripled in recent years, resulting in a funding deficit at the end
of the fiscal year. The Wastewater Collection Division has worked through these shortages; however,
with the increased volume and cost of sewer service repairs, it is not possible to manage with current
funding. This amendment will increase funding to continue repairing damaged or missing segments of
pipe in the public utility easements of single family residential neighborhoods.

Evaluation:
On October 15, 2020, City Council approved an agreement with Cartright's Drain Service, Inc.; PM
Plumbing and Mechanical, Inc.; RKS Plumbing and Mechanical, Inc.; and TALIS Construction
Corporation, for plumbing services, for a one-year term, with the option of up to two (2) one-year
extensions. The current term of the agreement is still in effect, however, staff is requesting an increase
to the combined spending limit that was previously approved. All other terms of the original agreements
remain unchanged.  

Fiscal Impact



Account No. Fund Name Program Name Dollar
Amount

CIP Funded
Y/N

615.3900.5219.0.0 Wastewater
Operating

Other Professional
Services

$500,000 N

Attachments
Amendment - Cartright's 
Amendment - PM 
Amendment - RKS 
Amendment - TALIS 



e!cHANDLER 
'1/j\v a r I z on a

City Clerk Document No. _____ _ 

City Council Meeting Date:   June 24, 2021  

AMENDMENT TO CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT 

PLUMBING SERVICE 

CITY OF CHANDLER AGREEMENT NO. MU0-962-4219 

THIS AMENDMENT NO. 1 (Amendment No. 1) is made and entered into by and between the City of 
Chandler, an Arizona municipal corporation (City), and Cartright's Drain Service, Inc., (Contractor), (City 
and Contractor may individually be referred to as Party and collectively referred to as Parties) and made 
_ ____ , 2021 (Effective Date). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, City Council approved the award of four related Agreements for plumbing services 
(Agreement) in various amounts for the prices set forth in each plumbing services agreement. Although 
the amount and type of plumbing services needed by the City may vary, the total sum for all four 
plumbing services agreements must not exceed $500,000; and 

WHEREAS, the term of the Agreement was November 1, 2020 through October 31, 2021, with the option 
of up to two one-year extensions; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to add additional funds to the current term of the Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. The recitals are accurate and are incorporated and made a part of the Agreement by this
reference.

2. Section 4, Price is amended to increase the annual spending limit by $500,000, for a total sum
for all four plumbing services agreements not to exceed the amount of $1,000,000 for the term
ending October 31, 2021, per pricing set forth in Exhibit B of the original Agreement, which is
incorporated into and made a part of this Amendment No. 1 by this reference.

3. All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain unchanged and in full force and effect.
If a conflict or ambiguity arises between this Amendment No. 1 and the Agreement, the terms
and conditions in this Amendment No. 1 prevail and control.

Page 1 of 2 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4A38319B-4C84-4E64-B78A-8522AA18F9AD



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4A38319B-4C84-4E64-B78A-8522AA18F9AD

PRESIDENT



DocuSign Envelope ID: CD8D862C-C537-4605-9F86-4775450F8CE8



DocuSign Envelope ID: CD8D862C-C537-4605-9F86-4775450F8CE8

Office Manager







DocuSign Envelope ID: 5A581CFA-5320-4CDC-B4A8-4C7DBB5098A7



DocuSign Envelope ID: 5A581CFA-5320-4CDC-B4A8-4C7DBB5098A7

Vice President - Pre Construction



ITEM  36 

City Council Memorandum      Mayor and Council  Memo No. N/A
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Vice Mayor  and Council
From: Mayor Kevin Hartke
Subject: Discussion and Direction to staff to include review of the Draft Non-Discrimination Resolution in the

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Study Approved as Part of the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget, and
Direct Staff to Engage a Public Process to Develop Recommendations for the City Council, as
Requested by Mayor Hartke

Attachments
Draft Unity Resolution 



 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CHANDLER, 
ARIZONA, DECLARING THE POLICY FOR THE CITIZENS OF THE CITY 
OF CHANDLER, ARIZONA, TO BE FREE FROM DISCRIMINATION AND 
THAT IT IS CONTRARY TO PUBLIC POLICY AND UNLAWFUL TO 
DISCRIMINATE AGAINST ANY PERSON ON THE BASIS OF RACE, 
GENDER, AND/OR GENDER IDENTITY OR EXPRESSION, COLOR, 
CREED, RELIGION, AGE, NATIONAL ORIGIN, ETHNICITY, DISABILITY, 
VETERAN OR MILITARY STATUS, SEXUAL ORIENTATION, 
PREGNANCY, GENETIC INFORMATION, MARITAL STATUS,      
POLITICAL AFFILIATION, CITIZENSHIP STATUS OR ON ANY OTHER 
LEGALLY PROHIBITED BASIS IN PLACES OF PUBLIC 
ACCOMMODATION, EMPLOYMENT, AND HOUSING; AND THAT IT IS 
CONTRARY TO THE POLICY OF THE CITY AND UNLAWFUL FOR 
VENDORS AND CONTRACTORS DOING BUSINESS WITH THE CITY TO 
DISCRIMINATE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Chandler is a diverse community of residents in race, ethnicity, national 
origin, religion, socioeconomic status, age, sexual orientation, gender and gender identity, 
immigrant and refugee status, veteran status, and disability; and   
 
WHEREAS, all members of the community have the right to be treated fairly and live their lives 
with dignity, free from discrimination or disparate treatment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Chandler is committed to practicing equality in its practices and 
governance through its actions, processes, and decisions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Chandler is committed to serve all members of the community, protect 
their basic human rights, and ensure the safety and well-being of its residents; and  
 
WHEREAS, the inclusion and integration of all residents of the City is a vital concern for the 
general welfare of the City.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, 
as follows:  
 
Section 1.   It is the policy of City of Chandler to not discriminate and to provide equal 

opportunity to all persons regardless of actual or perceived race, gender, and/or 
gender identity or expression, color, creed, religion, age, national origin, ethnicity, 
disability, veteran or military status, sexual orientation, pregnancy, genetic 
information, marital status, political affiliation, citizenship status or on any other 
legally prohibited basis in the access, provision and treatment of City services, 
programs, and activities.  It is the policy of the City that all persons be treated with 
respect and dignity.  Each person has the right to receive service from the City in a 
manner that promotes equality under the law and prohibits unlawful discrimination, 



Resolution ______ 
Page 2 

 
 
 

including harassment and retaliation.   
 
Section 2. That the City of Chandler embraces, celebrates, and welcomes all people without 

regard to race, gender, and/or gender identity or expression, color, creed, religion, 
age, national origin, ethnicity, disability, veteran or military status, sexual 
orientation, pregnancy, genetic information, marital status, political affiliation, 
citizenship status or on any other legally prohibited basis.  

 
Section 3.  That the City of Chandler encourages its citizens, businesses, and partners to 

embrace, celebrate, and welcome all people without regard to race, gender, and/or 
gender identity or expression, color, creed, religion, age, national origin, ethnicity, 
disability, veteran or military status, sexual orientation, pregnancy, genetic 
information, marital status, political affiliation, citizenship status or on any other 
legally prohibited basis.  Further, it is the policy of the City of Chandler to prohibit 
discrimination due to actual or perceived race, gender, and/or gender identity or 
expression, color, creed, religion, age, national origin, ethnicity, disability, veteran 
or military status, sexual orientation, pregnancy, genetic information, marital 
status, political affiliation, citizenship status or on any other legally prohibited basis 
with regard to employment, housing and public accommodations in Chandler. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, this _____ day 
of _______________, 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________   _____________________________ 
CITY CLERK      MAYOR 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the above and foregoing Resolution No. _____ was duly passed and 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Chandler, Arizona, at a regular meeting held on the 
_____ day of __________, 2021 and that a quorum was present thereat. 
 
       ______________________________ 
       CITY CLERK 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
  
______________________________ 
CITY ATTORNEY 
 



ITEM  37 

City Council Memorandum      Development Services  Memo No. 
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council
From: Development Services Department
Subject: Study Session & Regular Minutes of May 5, 2021, Planning and Zoning Commission

Attachments
May 5, 2021 Study Session Minutes 
May 5, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 



















































ITEM  38 

City Council Memorandum      Management Services  Memo No. 21-057
       

Date: June 24, 2021
To: Mayor  and Council

Thru: Joshua H. Wright, Acting City Manager
Dawn Lang, Management Services Director

From: Danielle Wells, Revenue and Tax Manager
Subject: Special Event Liquor Licenses and Temporary and Permanent Extensions of Liquor License Premises

Administratively Approved

Attachments
Special Event Liquor and Extensions of Liquor License Premises 



June 24, 2021 

Special Event Liquor and Extensions of Liquor License Premises Approvals 

 

Special Event Liquor Licenses 

Organization Name: Lights Camera Discover 

Applicant: Okema Charles 

Event Details: LCD 10 Anniversary Fundraiser, ‘Shine Bright Like a Diamond’, on Saturday, August 

21, 2021, from 6:00 p.m. until 9:00 p.m. 

Location: Bella Rose Estate, 1380 S. Price Rd. 

 

Temporary Extensions of Liquor License Premises 

Business Name: JB Friend International Inc., dba Sushi & Cocktails 

Applicant: Datcharat Mungkieatsakul 

Extension Purpose: Temporary patio extension for outside dining from June 1, 2021 until July 18, 

2021 

Location: 1949 W. Ray Rd. #32 

 

Permanent Extension of Liquor License Premises   

None 

 


	Agenda
	1__June 2021 City Council Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_Minutes of the Work Session of June 7, 2021
	       ATT_Minutes of the Study Session of June 7, 2021
	       ATT_Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 10, 2021
	       ATT_Minutes of the Special Meeting of June 10, 2021
	       ATT_Minutes of the Special Budget Meeting of June 10, 2021
	       ATT_Minutes of the Special Meeting 1_00 pm of June 14, 2021
	       ATT_Minutes of the Special Meeting 8_30 am of June 14, 2021
	2__Resolution 5496 SRP 230kV Transmission Project Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution No. 5496
	       ATT_SRP Agreement
	Exhibit 4 Depictions of overhead permananet easement options.pdf
	SRP HIP Exhibit 4A Water Treatment Facility Option 1 061221
	SRP HIP Exhibit 4B Water Treatment Facility Option 2 061221


	       ATT_Letter of Support - Sellers
	3__Purchase of Downtown Sidewalk Re-Coating Services
	4__Resolution 5493 Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Enhanced Municipal Services District Agreement
	       ATT_Resolution No. 5493 with Contract and Exhibits
	5__Ordinance 4974 ANX20-0004 Annexation SEC Arizona Ave Appleby Rd 
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 4974
	       ATT_Vicinity map
	6__Resolution 5484 Ordinance 4975 PLH20-0050 PLH20-0051 PLT21-0015 The Ashley 
	       ATT_Resolution No 5484
	       ATT_Ordinance No 4975
	ORDINANCE NO.  4975

	       ATT_Vicinity maps
	       ATT_Airport Conflict Evaluation
	       ATT_Development Booklet
	7__Ordinance 4997 PLH20-0030 PLT20-0020 Schrader Farms Business Park
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 4997
	ORDINANCE NO.  4997
	PLH200030 Schrader Farms Ord4997 Legal Descriptions.pdf
	20210512 Schrader Farms BP PAD-PDP-PPT Narrative -- UPDATE
	Ex 1 - Aerial
	Sheets
	A-3 - AERIAL


	Ex 2 - Perspectives
	Building A Rendering_2021-04-01
	Building B Rendering_2021-04-08

	Ex 3 - Conceptual Site Plan
	Sheets
	A-1 - MASTER SITE PLAN


	Ex 4a - Landscape Plan-Color
	Ex 4b - Landscape Plan-B&W
	L-0
	Sheets and Views
	L-0


	L-1
	Sheets and Views
	L-1


	L-2
	Sheets and Views
	L-2


	L-3
	Sheets and Views
	L-3


	L-4
	Sheets and Views
	L-4


	L-5
	Sheets and Views
	L-5


	L-6
	Sheets and Views
	L-6


	L-7
	Sheets and Views
	L-7


	L-8
	Sheets and Views
	L-8



	Ex 5 - Arterial Street Enlargements
	Ex 6a - Building A Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg A A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg A A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN


	Building A Front Entry.pdf
	Sheets
	A5 - EXTERIOR ELEVATION - CENTER ENTRY


	Building A Corner Entry.pdf
	Sheets
	A6 - EXTERIOR ELEVATION - CORNER ENTRY



	Ex 6b - Building B Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg B A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg B A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN



	Ex 6c - Building C Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg C A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg C A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN



	Ex 7 - Colors-Materials
	Sheets
	A-6 - MATERIALS


	Ex 8 - Screenwall Plan
	Sheets
	A-7 - SITE SCREEN WALLS


	Ex 9 - Comprehensive Sign Plan
	Ex 10 - Conceptual G&D
	Ex 11 - Phasing Plan
	Sheets
	A-1 - PRELIMINARY MASTER SITE PLAN


	Ex 12 - Preliminary Plat
	PLH20-0030-air-photo
	PLH20-0030
	LEGAL DESCRIPTION - BUSINESS PARK
	CORE001-XB03-1
	CORE001-XB03-2

	LEGAL DESCRIPTION - COMMERCIAL
	CORE001-XB04-1
	CORE001-XB04-2



	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	20210512 Schrader Farms BP PAD-PDP-PPT Narrative -- UPDATE
	Ex 1 - Aerial
	Sheets
	A-3 - AERIAL


	Ex 2 - Perspectives
	Building A Rendering_2021-04-01
	Building B Rendering_2021-04-08

	Ex 3 - Conceptual Site Plan
	Sheets
	A-1 - MASTER SITE PLAN


	Ex 4a - Landscape Plan-Color
	Ex 4b - Landscape Plan-B&W
	L-0
	Sheets and Views
	L-0


	L-1
	Sheets and Views
	L-1


	L-2
	Sheets and Views
	L-2


	L-3
	Sheets and Views
	L-3


	L-4
	Sheets and Views
	L-4


	L-5
	Sheets and Views
	L-5


	L-6
	Sheets and Views
	L-6


	L-7
	Sheets and Views
	L-7


	L-8
	Sheets and Views
	L-8



	Ex 5 - Arterial Street Enlargements
	Ex 6a - Building A Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg A A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg A A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN


	Building A Front Entry.pdf
	Sheets
	A5 - EXTERIOR ELEVATION - CENTER ENTRY


	Building A Corner Entry.pdf
	Sheets
	A6 - EXTERIOR ELEVATION - CORNER ENTRY



	Ex 6b - Building B Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg B A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg B A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN



	Ex 6c - Building C Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg C A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg C A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN



	Ex 7 - Colors-Materials
	Sheets
	A-6 - MATERIALS


	Ex 8 - Screenwall Plan
	Sheets
	A-7 - SITE SCREEN WALLS


	Ex 9 - Comprehensive Sign Plan
	Ex 10 - Conceptual G&D
	Ex 11 - Phasing Plan
	Sheets
	A-1 - PRELIMINARY MASTER SITE PLAN


	Ex 12 - Preliminary Plat
	PLH20-0030-air-photo
	PLH20-0030
	LEGAL DESCRIPTION - BUSINESS PARK
	CORE001-XB03-1
	CORE001-XB03-2

	LEGAL DESCRIPTION - COMMERCIAL
	CORE001-XB04-1
	CORE001-XB04-2


	       ATT_Development Booklet 1_3
	20210512 Schrader Farms BP PAD-PDP-PPT Narrative -- UPDATE
	Ex 1 - Aerial
	Sheets
	A-3 - AERIAL


	Ex 2 - Perspectives
	Building A Rendering_2021-04-01
	Building B Rendering_2021-04-08

	Ex 3 - Conceptual Site Plan
	Sheets
	A-1 - MASTER SITE PLAN


	Ex 4a - Landscape Plan-Color
	Ex 4b - Landscape Plan-B&W
	L-0
	Sheets and Views
	L-0


	L-1
	Sheets and Views
	L-1


	L-2
	Sheets and Views
	L-2


	L-3
	Sheets and Views
	L-3


	L-4
	Sheets and Views
	L-4


	L-5
	Sheets and Views
	L-5


	L-6
	Sheets and Views
	L-6


	L-7
	Sheets and Views
	L-7


	L-8
	Sheets and Views
	L-8



	Ex 5 - Arterial Street Enlargements
	Ex 6a - Building A Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg A A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg A A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN


	Building A Front Entry.pdf
	Sheets
	A5 - EXTERIOR ELEVATION - CENTER ENTRY


	Building A Corner Entry.pdf
	Sheets
	A6 - EXTERIOR ELEVATION - CORNER ENTRY



	Ex 6b - Building B Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg B A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg B A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN



	Ex 6c - Building C Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg C A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg C A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN



	Ex 7 - Colors-Materials
	Sheets
	A-6 - MATERIALS


	Ex 8 - Screenwall Plan
	Sheets
	A-7 - SITE SCREEN WALLS


	Ex 9 - Comprehensive Sign Plan
	Ex 10 - Conceptual G&D
	Ex 11 - Phasing Plan
	Sheets
	A-1 - PRELIMINARY MASTER SITE PLAN


	Ex 12 - Preliminary Plat
	PLH20-0030-air-photo
	PLH20-0030
	LEGAL DESCRIPTION - BUSINESS PARK
	CORE001-XB03-1
	CORE001-XB03-2

	LEGAL DESCRIPTION - COMMERCIAL
	CORE001-XB04-1
	CORE001-XB04-2


	       ATT_Development Booklet 2_3
	20210512 Schrader Farms BP PAD-PDP-PPT Narrative -- UPDATE
	Ex 1 - Aerial
	Sheets
	A-3 - AERIAL


	Ex 2 - Perspectives
	Building A Rendering_2021-04-01
	Building B Rendering_2021-04-08

	Ex 3 - Conceptual Site Plan
	Sheets
	A-1 - MASTER SITE PLAN


	Ex 4a - Landscape Plan-Color
	Ex 4b - Landscape Plan-B&W
	L-0
	Sheets and Views
	L-0


	L-1
	Sheets and Views
	L-1


	L-2
	Sheets and Views
	L-2


	L-3
	Sheets and Views
	L-3


	L-4
	Sheets and Views
	L-4


	L-5
	Sheets and Views
	L-5


	L-6
	Sheets and Views
	L-6


	L-7
	Sheets and Views
	L-7


	L-8
	Sheets and Views
	L-8



	Ex 5 - Arterial Street Enlargements
	Ex 6a - Building A Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg A A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg A A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN


	Building A Front Entry.pdf
	Sheets
	A5 - EXTERIOR ELEVATION - CENTER ENTRY


	Building A Corner Entry.pdf
	Sheets
	A6 - EXTERIOR ELEVATION - CORNER ENTRY



	Ex 6b - Building B Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg B A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg B A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN



	Ex 6c - Building C Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg C A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg C A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN



	Ex 7 - Colors-Materials
	Sheets
	A-6 - MATERIALS


	Ex 8 - Screenwall Plan
	Sheets
	A-7 - SITE SCREEN WALLS


	Ex 9 - Comprehensive Sign Plan
	Ex 10 - Conceptual G&D
	Ex 11 - Phasing Plan
	Sheets
	A-1 - PRELIMINARY MASTER SITE PLAN


	Ex 12 - Preliminary Plat
	PLH20-0030-air-photo
	PLH20-0030
	LEGAL DESCRIPTION - BUSINESS PARK
	CORE001-XB03-1
	CORE001-XB03-2

	LEGAL DESCRIPTION - COMMERCIAL
	CORE001-XB04-1
	CORE001-XB04-2


	       ATT_Development Booklet 3_3
	20210512 Schrader Farms BP PAD-PDP-PPT Narrative -- UPDATE
	Ex 1 - Aerial
	Sheets
	A-3 - AERIAL


	Ex 2 - Perspectives
	Building A Rendering_2021-04-01
	Building B Rendering_2021-04-08

	Ex 3 - Conceptual Site Plan
	Sheets
	A-1 - MASTER SITE PLAN


	Ex 4a - Landscape Plan-Color
	Ex 4b - Landscape Plan-B&W
	L-0
	Sheets and Views
	L-0


	L-1
	Sheets and Views
	L-1


	L-2
	Sheets and Views
	L-2


	L-3
	Sheets and Views
	L-3


	L-4
	Sheets and Views
	L-4


	L-5
	Sheets and Views
	L-5


	L-6
	Sheets and Views
	L-6


	L-7
	Sheets and Views
	L-7


	L-8
	Sheets and Views
	L-8



	Ex 5 - Arterial Street Enlargements
	Ex 6a - Building A Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg A A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg A A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN


	Building A Front Entry.pdf
	Sheets
	A5 - EXTERIOR ELEVATION - CENTER ENTRY


	Building A Corner Entry.pdf
	Sheets
	A6 - EXTERIOR ELEVATION - CORNER ENTRY



	Ex 6b - Building B Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg B A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg B A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN



	Ex 6c - Building C Elevation-Floor Plan
	2021-04-13 Bldg C A-4 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-04-13 Bldg C A-1 FLOOR PLAN
	Sheets
	A1 - OVERALL FLOOR PLAN



	Ex 7 - Colors-Materials
	Sheets
	A-6 - MATERIALS


	Ex 8 - Screenwall Plan
	Sheets
	A-7 - SITE SCREEN WALLS


	Ex 9 - Comprehensive Sign Plan
	Ex 10 - Conceptual G&D
	Ex 11 - Phasing Plan
	Sheets
	A-1 - PRELIMINARY MASTER SITE PLAN


	Ex 12 - Preliminary Plat
	PLH20-0030-air-photo
	PLH20-0030
	LEGAL DESCRIPTION - BUSINESS PARK
	CORE001-XB03-1
	CORE001-XB03-2

	LEGAL DESCRIPTION - COMMERCIAL
	CORE001-XB04-1
	CORE001-XB04-2

	Phasing Study2

	       ATT_Preliminary Plat
	       ATT_Revised Development Booklet Exhibits
	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS

	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS

	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS

	Sheets
	A4 - COLORED ELEVATIONS

	Page 5 Revised Narrative - Development Standards

	8__PLH20-0072 PLT21-0016 Chandler Airpark Technology Center  
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	9__PLH20-0069 Chandler Corporate Center Lots 8 & 10
	       ATT_Vicinity Maps
	10__Agreement BF6-910-3566 Amendment 3 Arizona Elevator Solutions Elevator Maintenance Repair and Service
	       ATT_BF6-910-3566 Elevator Maintenance Amendment Three
	11__Agreement No. FS2-928-4310 Auto Body Repair Service
	       ATT_Arizona Truck and Coach Agreement
	       ATT_Allard Agreement
	12__Resolution 5489 Agreement Renewal Dignity Health Administrative Medical Direction to Paramedics
	       ATT_Resolution No. 5489 Agreement
	       ATT_Base Station Agreement Amendment
	13__Resolution 5491 Agreement Dignity Health for Neonatal Resuscitation Education
	       ATT_Signed Agreement with Dignity Health
	       ATT_Resolution 5491 Dignity Health Education Services Agreement
	14__Purchase Technology Infrastructure Hardware/Software
	15__Settlement Jennifer Przybyla vs City of Chandler 
	16__Settlement Kathleen Renee Clum and Anthony Jose Cano vs City of Chandler
	17__Fiscal Year 2021-22 Renewal Commercial Insurance And Services 
	       ATT_FY 2021-22 Self-Insurance Renewal Premium Chart
	SIR - Council Memo

	18__Ordinance 4970 Fiscal year 2021 2022 Tax Levy
	       ATT_Ordinance No. 4970
	21-504 re Resolution 5477 and Ordinance 4970 6
	21-504 re Resolution 5477 and Ordinance 4970 7

	19__Agreement No. MS1-926-4312 Emergency Environmental Response and Remediation
	       ATT_Agreement_Kary
	       ATT_Agreement_GrayMar
	       ATT_Agreement_EES
	20__Liquor License Series 12, Ramen Hood 1940 W Chandler Blvd Suite 12
	       ATT_A-Map
	       ATT_B-Floor Plan
	21__Resolution 5494 Designating Chief Fiscal Officer for Fiscal Year 2022
	       ATT_Resolution No. 5494
	22__Employment Agreement City Magistrate Patrick Gann
	       ATT_City Magistrate Employment Agreement - Patrick Gann
	23__Employment Agreement with City Magistrate Alexa Nolle
	       ATT_City Magistrate Employment Agreement - Alexa Nolle
	24__City Attorney Employment Agreement
	       ATT_City Attorney Employment Contract
	25__City Clerk Employment Agreement
	       ATT_City Clerk Employment Contract
	26__Appointment of Presiding City Magistrate and Employment Agreement
	       ATT_Presiding Magistrate Employment Contract
	27__Agreement PD9-200-4038 Amendment 3 Police Uniforms
	       ATT_4038 Amendment 3
	28__Police Firearm Simulator Equipment
	29__Agreement No. PD8-680-3892, Amendment No. 3, for Outer Vest Carriers
	       ATT_Agreement Amendment 3 - Universal Police Supply Complany
	30__Sole Source Purchase Wastewater Membrane Modules
	31__Agreement WW0-885-4137 Amendment 1 Collection System Odor and Corrosion Control
	       ATT_Amendment - In-Pipe Technology
	       ATT_Amendment - USP Technologies
	32__Agreement ST0-988-4175 Amendment 1 Reyes & Sons Landscaping Landscape Maintenance Areas 1 through 4
	       ATT_Amendment - Reyes and Sons Landscaping
	33__Agreement ST0-988-4194 Amendment 1 Brightview Landscape Services Revegetation Storm Repair and Maintenance City Streets
	       ATT_Amendment - Brightview
	34__Public Works Vibration Diagnostic Services
	       ATT_Agreement - Mechanical Solutions, Inc.
	35__Agreement MU0-962-4219 Amendment 1 Plumbing Services
	       ATT_Amendment - Cartright's
	       ATT_Amendment - PM
	       ATT_Amendment - RKS
	       ATT_Amendment - TALIS
	36__Unity Resolution Discussion
	       ATT_Draft Unity Resolution
	37__May 5 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_May 5, 2021 Study Session Minutes
	       ATT_May 5, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes
	38__Special Event Liquor and Extensions of Liquor License Premises
	       ATT_Special Event Liquor and Extensions of Liquor License Premises

